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PART I
Item 1:

Business

Overview
Molina Healthcare, Inc. provides quality and cost-effective Medicaid-related solutions to meet the health care needs of low-income
families and individuals, and to assist state agencies in their administration of the Medicaid program. Our business focuses exclusively
on government-sponsored health care programs, and includes our Health Plans segment, our Molina Medicaid Solutionssm segment, and
our smaller direct delivery line of business. Our Health Plans segment consists of licensed health maintenance organizations serving
Medicaid populations in ten states. Our Molina Medicaid Solutions segment provides design, development, implementation, and business
process outsourcing solutions to Medicaid agencies in an additional five states. Our direct delivery line of business consists of 16
primary care community clinics in California and two primary care community clinics in Washington, and we also manage three countyowned primary care community clinics under a contract with Fairfax County, Virginia. Dr. C. David Molina founded our company in
1980 as a provider organization serving the Medicaid population in Southern California. Today we remain a provider-focused company
led by his son, Dr. J. Mario Molina.

Our Health Plans segment operates Medicaid managed care plans in the states of California, Florida, Michigan, Missouri, New
Mexico, Ohio, Texas, Utah, Washington, and Wisconsin that serve a total of approximately 1.6 million members. The health plans are
operated by our respective wholly owned subsidiaries in those states, each of which is licensed as a health maintenance organization, or
HMO. Our Health Plans segment derives its revenue principally in the form of premiums paid under Medicaid contracts with the states in
which our health plans operate. While the health plans receive fixed per-member per-month, or PMPM, premium payments from the
states, the health plans are at risk for the medical costs associated with their members’ health care. Our Health Plans segment operates in
a highly regulated environment, with stringent minimum capitalization requirements which limit the ability of our health plan
subsidiaries to pay dividends to us.

Our Molina Medicaid Solutions segment provides design, development, implementation, and business process outsourcing
solutions to state governments for their Medicaid Management Information Systems, or MMIS, a core information technology tool used to
support the administration of state Medicaid and other health care entitlement programs. Our Molina Medicaid Solutions segment
currently holds MMIS contracts with the states of Idaho, Louisiana, Maine, New Jersey, and West Virginia, as well as a contract to
provide drug rebate administration services for the Florida Medicaid program. We added the Molina Medicaid Solutions segment to our
business in May 2010 to expand our product offerings to include support of state Medicaid agency administrative needs; to reduce the
variability in our earnings resulting from fluctuations in medical care costs; to improve our operating profit margin percentages; and to
improve our cash flow by adding a business for which there are no restrictions on dividend payments.
From a strategic perspective, we believe our two business segments and our direct delivery business line allow us to participate in an
expanding sector of the economy and continue our mission of serving low-income families and individuals eligible for governmentsponsored health care programs. Operationally, our two business segments share a common systems platform, which allows for
economies of scale and common experience in meeting the needs of state Medicaid programs. We also believe that we have opportunities to
market to state Medicaid agencies various cost containment and quality practices used by our health plans, such as care management and
care coordination, for incorporation into their own fee-for-service Medicaid programs.
Our principal executive offices are located at 200 Oceangate, Suite 100, Long Beach, California 90802, and our telephone number is

(562) 435-3666. Our website is www.molinahealthcare.com.
Information contained on our website or linked to our website is not incorporated by reference into, or as part of, this annual report.
Unless the context otherwise requires, references to “Molina Healthcare,” the “Company,” “we,” “our,” and “us” herein refer to Molina
Healthcare, Inc. and its subsidiaries. Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K,
and all amendments to these reports, are available free of charge on our website, www.molinahealthcare.com, as soon as reasonably
practicable after such reports are electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC. Information
regarding our officers and directors, and copies of our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, Corporate Governance Guidelines, and our
Audit, Compensation, Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee, and Compliance Committee Charters, are also available on our
website. Such information is also available in print upon the request
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of any stockholder to our Investor Relations department at the address of our executive offices set forth above. In accordance with New
York Stock Exchange, or NYSE, rules, on June 2, 2010, we filed the annual certification by our Chief Executive Officer certifying that
he was unaware of any violation by us of the NYSE’s corporate governance listing standards at the time of the certification.
Molina Healthcare, the Molina Healthcare logo, Molina Medicaid Solutionssm, motherhood matters!sm, breathe with ease!sm, and
Healthy Living with Diabetessm are registered servicemarks of Molina Healthcare, Inc.

Our Industry

The Medicaid and CHIP Programs. The Medicaid program is a federal entitlement program administered by the states. Medicaid
provides health care and long-term care services and support to low-income Americans. Subject to federal rules, states have significant
flexibility to structure their own programs in terms of eligibility, benefits, delivery of services, and provider payments. Medicaid is
funded jointly by the states and the federal government. The federal government guarantees matching funds to states for qualifying
Medicaid expenditures based on each state’s federal medical assistance percentage, or FMAP. A state’s FMAP is calculated annually and
varies inversely with average personal income in the state. The average FMAP across all states prior to FY 2009 was 57 percent, but
ranged from a federally established FMAP floor at 50 percent to as high as 76 percent. With the passage of the American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act, or ARRA, stimulus package in 2009, FMAP rates for all states increased by a minimum of 6.2 percentage points
between October 1, 2009 and December 31, 2010, plus an additional increase adjusted quarterly based on the state’s unemployment rate.
Congress has extended through June 2011 the increased FMAP, but at a reduced rate from the previous ARRA enhancement.
The most common state-administered Medicaid program is the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families program, or TANF (often
pronounced “TAN-if”). Another common state-administered Medicaid program is for the aged, blind or disabled, or ABD, Medicaid
members. In addition, the Children’s Health Insurance Program, or CHIP, is a joint federal and state matching program that provides
health care coverage to children whose families earn too much to qualify for Medicaid coverage. States have the option of administering
CHIP through their Medicaid programs.
As a result of recently enacted health care reform legislation, the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, the Medicaid and CHIP
population is expected to grow from approximately 60 million people today to approximately 82 million people by 2019. Over that same
period, total Medicaid and CHIP expenditures are expected to grow from approximately $427 billion to approximately $896 billion.

Each state establishes its own eligibility standards, benefit packages, payment rates, and program administration within broad
federal statutory and regulatory guidelines. Every state Medicaid program must balance many potentially competing demands, including
the need for quality care, adequate provider access, and cost-effectiveness. In an effort to improve quality and provide more uniform and
more cost-effective care, many states have implemented Medicaid managed care programs. These programs seek to improve access to
coordinated health care services, including preventive care, and to control health care costs. Under Medicaid managed care programs, a
health plan receives capitation payments from the state. The health plan, in turn, arranges for the provision of health care services by
contracting with a network of medical providers. The health plan implements care management and care coordination programs that seek
to improve both care access and care quality, while controlling costs more effectively.
While many states have embraced Medicaid managed care programs, others continue to operate traditional fee-for-service programs
to serve all or part of their Medicaid populations. Under fee-for-service Medicaid programs, health care services are made available to
beneficiaries as they seek that care, without the benefit of a coordinated effort to maintain and improve their health. As a consequence,
treatment is often postponed until medical conditions become more severe, leading to higher costs and more unfavorable outcomes.
Additionally, providers paid on a fee-for-service basis are compensated based upon services they perform, rather than health outcomes,
and therefore lack incentives to coordinate preventive care, monitor utilization, and control costs.
Because Medicaid is a state-administered program, every state must have mechanisms, policies, and procedures in place to perform
a large number of crucial functions, including the determination of eligibility and the reimbursement of medical providers for services
provided. This requirement exists regardless of whether a state has adopted a fee-for-service or a managed care delivery model. MMIS are
used by states to support these administrative activities. The federal government typically reimburses the states for 90% of the costs
incurred in the
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design, development, and implementation of an MMIS and for 50% of the costs incurred in operating an MMIS. Although a small
number of states build and operate their own MMIS, a far more typical practice is for states to sub-contract the design, development,
implementation, and operation of their MMIS to private parties. Through our Molina Medicaid Solutions segment, we now actively
participate in this market.
In certain instances, states have elected to provide medical benefits to individuals and families who are not served by Medicaid. In
New Mexico and Washington, our health plan segment participates in programs that are administered in a manner similar to Medicaid
and CHIP, but without federal matching funds.

Medicare Advantage Plans. During 2010, each of our health plans in California, Florida, Michigan, New Mexico, Ohio, Texas,
Utah, and Washington operated Medicare Advantage plans, each of which included a mandatory Part D prescription drug benefit. Our
Medicare Advantage special needs plans, or SNPs, operate under the trade name, Molina Medicare Options Plus, and serve those
beneficiaries who are dually eligible for both Medicare and Medicaid, such as low-income seniors and people with disabilities. Our
Medicare Advantage Prescription Drug plans, or MA-PDs, operate under the trade name, Molina Medicare Options. Although our MA-PD
benefit plans do not exclusively enroll dual eligible beneficiaries, the plans’ benefit structure is designed to appeal to lower income
beneficiaries. We believe offering these Medicare plans is consistent with our historical mission of serving low-income and medically
underserved families and individuals. None of our health plans operate a Medicare Advantage private fee-for-service plan. Total
enrollment in our Medicare Advantage plans at December 31, 2010 was approximately 24,500 members. Our 2010 premium revenues
from Medicare across all health plans represented approximately 6.6% of our total premium revenues.
Overall, approximately 82% of our members are TANF, 9% are CHIP, 8% are ABD, and 1% are Medicare.

Our Strengths
We focus on serving low-income families and individuals who receive health care benefits through government-sponsored programs
within a managed care model. Additionally, we support state Medicaid agencies by providing them with comprehensive solutions to their
MMIS development and operating needs. Our approach to our business is based on the following strengths:

Comprehensive Medicaid Services. We offer a complete suite of Medicaid services, ranging from quality care, disease
management, and cost management through our Health Plans segment, to state-level MMIS administration through our Molina Medicaid
Solutions segment, to the direct delivery of health care services at our clinics. We have the ability to draw upon our experience and
expertise in each of these areas to enhance the quality of the services we offer in the others.
Flexible Service Delivery Systems. Our health plan care delivery systems are diverse and readily adaptable to different markets
and changing conditions. We arrange health care services with a variety of providers, including independent physicians and medical
groups, hospitals, ancillary providers, and our own clinics. Our systems support multiple types of contract models. Our provider
networks are well-suited, based on medical specialty, member proximity, and cultural sensitivity, to provide services to our members.
Our Molina Medicaid Solutions platform is based upon commercial off-the-shelf technology, or COTS. As a result, we believe that our
Molina Medicaid Solutions platform has the flexibility to meet a wide variety of state Medicaid administrative needs in a timely and costeffective manner.

Proven Expansion and Acquisition Capability. We have successfully replicated the business model of our health plan segment
through the acquisition of health plans, the start-up development of new operations, and the transition of members from other health
plans. The successful acquisition of our New Mexico, Missouri, and Wisconsin health plans demonstrated our ability to expand into
new states. The establishment of our health plans in Utah, Ohio, Texas, and Florida reflects our ability to replicate our business model on
a start-up basis in new states, while contract acquisitions in California, Michigan, and Washington have demonstrated our ability to
expand our operations within states in which we were already operating.
Administrative Efficiency. We have centralized and standardized various functions and practices to increase administrative
efficiency. The steps we have taken include centralizing claims processing and information services onto a single platform. We have
standardized medical management programs, pharmacy benefits management contracts, and health education programs. In addition, we
have designed our administrative and operational infrastructure to be scalable for cost-effective expansion into new and existing markets.
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Recognition for Quality of Care. The National Committee for Quality Assurance, or NCQA, has accredited eight of our ten
Medicaid managed care plans. Our Missouri health plan is currently seeking NCQA accreditation, and our recently acquired Wisconsin
plan will be seeking NCQA accreditation in the future. We believe that these objective measures of the quality of the services that we
provide will become increasingly important to state Medicaid agencies.
Experience and Expertise. Since the founding of our Company in 1980 to serve the Medicaid population in Southern California
through a small network of primary care clinics, we have increased our membership to 1.6 million members, expanded our Health Plans
segment to ten states, and added our Molina Medicaid Solutions segment. Our experience over the last 30 years has allowed us to develop
strong relationships with the constituents we serve, establish significant expertise as a government contractor, and develop sophisticated
disease management, care coordination and health education programs that address the particular health care needs of our members. We
also benefit from a thorough understanding of the cultural and linguistic needs of Medicaid populations.
Our Strategy
Our objective is to provide a comprehensive suite of Medicaid-related services to meet the health care needs of low-income families
and individuals and the state Medicaid agencies that serve them. To achieve our objective, we intend to:

Continue to expand within existing markets. We plan to continue our growth in existing markets by expanding our service areas
and provider networks, increasing awareness of the Molina brand name, extending our services to new populations (including the aged,
blind, or disabled), maintaining positive provider relationships, and integrating members from other health plans.

Continue to enter new strategic markets. We plan to continue to enter new markets through both acquisitions and by building our
own start-up operations. For example, on September 1, 2010, we acquired for approximately $15.5 million Abri Health Plan, a provider
of Medicaid managed care services in Wisconsin. We intend to focus our expansion in markets with competitive provider communities,
supportive regulatory environments, significant size and, where practicable, mandated Medicaid managed care enrollment.
Continue to provide quality cost-effective care. We plan to use our strong provider networks and the knowledge gained through the
operation of our clinics to further develop and utilize effective medical management and other coordinated programs that address the
distinct needs of our members and improve the quality and cost-effectiveness of their care.

Leverage operational efficiencies. We intend to leverage the operational efficiencies created by our centralized administrative
infrastructure and flexible information systems to earn higher margins on future revenues. We believe our administrative infrastructure
has significant expansion capacity, allowing us to integrate new members from expansion within existing markets and enter new markets
at lower incremental cost.

Deliver administrative value to state Medicaid agencies. As Medicaid expenditures increase, we believe that an increasing number
of states will demand comprehensive solutions that improve both quality and cost-effectiveness. We intend to use our MMIS solution to
provide state Medicaid agencies with a flexible and robust solution to their administrative needs. For example, we can apply analytics to
improve the functionality of care management processes. We believe that we can help strengthen these tools in ways that translate into both
better care and cost containment. We believe that our MMIS platform, together with our extensive experience in health care management
and health plan operations, enables us to offer state Medicaid agencies a comprehensive suite of Medicaid-related solutions that meets their
needs for quality and for the cost-effective operation of their Medicaid programs.

Open additional primary care clinics. During 2010, we became more diversified and more efficient by expanding our involvement
in the direct delivery of primary care. The community clinic model offers an integrated approach that helps us improve both the quality
and cost-effectiveness of the care our members receive. In 2010 we opened two clinics in Washington so that we can serve our members’
needs for primary and behavioral health services in one place. We also expanded the capacity of our existing clinics in California in
anticipation of increases in the numbers of ABD members in our plans. Approximately 20% of our California health plan’s membership
is now being served by the health plan’s 16 primary care clinics. The growth and aging of the population of the United States
foreshadows an increasing shortage of physicians over the next 15 years. Health care reform is expected to
4
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worsen this shortage. We believe the shortage will be felt most acutely among already underserved populations, such as the low income
families and individuals we serve. We therefore intend to expand on the direct delivery component of our business by developing
additional community care clinics at certain of our health plans during 2011. While we have no plans to become an organization that fully
integrates primary care delivery with our health plans, by leveraging this capability selectively we can improve access for our plan
members in areas that are most underserved by primary care providers.

Pursue opportunities presented by ICD-10 conversion requirements. Over the next three years, health insurance plans are
required to upgrade their systems for diagnosis, medical procedure coding, and claims processing under the tenth revisions of the
International Statistical Classification of Diseases, or ICD-10. The United States Department of Health and Human Services will require
payers and providers to transition to ICD-10 by October 2013. For many smaller health plans with less than one million members, the
costs of making the necessary systems upgrades will be substantial. For companies like ours, the benefits of scale in this environment
will be significant. We believe we will be positioned to reduce the cost per member for compliance with ICD-10. At the same time, the new
requirements will create revenue opportunities for Molina Medicaid Solutions.

Prepare for health care reform. In preparation for the large scale changes associated with federal health care reform, we have
organized a dedicated business unit to address issues of strategy, policy, reform readiness, and implementation. Health care reform
opportunities include an estimated 16 million more members eligible for Medicaid by 2019, 30 million more individuals covered by
health insurance exchanges, and increasing demand for long-term care and behavioral health services. In the next three years, we anticipate
that many states will be offering new Medicaid RFP expansions in order to avoid disruptions in 2014 in connection with the full
implementation of health care reform. For instance, several states are currently evaluating transitioning their ABD populations into
managed care. Pursuant to a Section 1115 waiver expansion in California, we will be enrolling new ABD members in California by year
end 2011.
Medicaid Contracts
With the exception of our Missouri health plan, which does not serve ABD or Medicare members, and our Wisconsin health plan,
which does not serve Medicare members, all of our health plans serve TANF, CHIP, ABD, and Medicare members. For its Medicare
members, each health plan enters into a one-year annually renewable contract with the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, or
CMS. For its other members, each health plan enters into a contract with the state’s Medicaid agency. The contractual relationship with
the state is generally for a period of one- to two-years and renewable on an annual or biannual basis at the discretion of the state. In
general, either the state Medicaid agency or the health plan may terminate the state contract with or without cause upon 30 days to nine
months prior written notice. Most of these contracts contain renewal options that are exercisable by the state. Our health plan subsidiaries
have generally been successful in obtaining the renewal of their contracts in each state prior to the actual expiration of their contracts. Our
state contracts are generally at greatest risk of loss when a state issues a new request for proposals, or RFP, subject to competitive bidding
by other health plans. If one of our health plans is not a successful responsive bidder to a state RFP, its contract may be subject to nonrenewal.
Our contracts with the state determine the type and scope of health care services that we arrange for our members. Generally, our
contracts require us to arrange for preventive care, office visits, inpatient and outpatient hospital and medical services, and pharmacy
benefits. The contracts also detail the requirements for operating in the Medicaid sector, including provisions relating to: eligibility;
enrollment and disenrollment processes; covered benefits; eligible providers; subcontractors; record-keeping and record retention; periodic
financial and informational reporting; quality assurance; marketing; financial standards; timeliness of claims payments; health
education, wellness and prevention programs; safeguarding of member information; fraud and abuse detection and reporting; grievance
procedures; and organization and administrative systems. A health plan’s compliance with these requirements is subject to monitoring by
state regulators. A health plan is subject to periodic comprehensive quality assurance evaluation by a third-party reviewing organization
and generally by the insurance department of the jurisdiction that licenses the health plan. Most health plans must also submit quarterly
and annual statutory financial statements and utilization reports, as well as many other reports in accordance with individual state
requirements.

We are usually paid a negotiated PMPM amount, with the PMPM amount varying from contract to contract. Generally, that amount
is higher in states where we are required to offer more extensive health benefits. We are also
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paid an additional amount for each newborn delivery from the Medicaid programs in all of our state health plans, except with respect to
our New Mexico health plan.

Provider Networks
We arrange health care services for our members through contracts with providers that include independent physicians and groups,
hospitals, ancillary providers, and our own clinics. Our network of providers includes primary care physicians, specialists and
hospitals. Our strategy is to contract with providers in those geographic areas and medical specialties necessary to meet the needs of our
members. We also strive to ensure that our providers have the appropriate cultural and linguistic experience and skills.

Physicians. We contract with both primary care physicians and specialists, many of whom are organized into medical groups or
independent practice associations, or IPAs. Primary care physicians provide office-based primary care services. Primary care physicians
may be paid under capitation or fee-for-service contracts and may receive additional compensation by providing certain preventive
services. Our specialists care for patients for a specific episode or condition, usually upon referral from a primary care physician, and
are usually compensated on a fee-for-service basis. When we contract with groups of physicians on a capitated basis, we monitor their
solvency.

Hospitals. We generally contract with hospitals that have significant experience dealing with the medical needs of the Medicaid
population. We reimburse hospitals under a variety of payment methods, including fee-for-service, per diems, diagnostic-related groups,
or DRGs, capitation, and case rates.
Primary Care Clinics. Our California health plan operates 16 company-owned primary care clinics in California staffed by our
physicians, physician assistants, and nurse practitioners. These clinics are located in neighborhoods where our members live, and
provide us a first-hand opportunity to understand the special needs of our members. The clinics assist us in developing and
implementing community education, disease management, and other programs. The clinics also give us direct clinic management
experience that enables us to better understand the needs of our contracted providers. In addition, we have a non-licensed subsidiary in
Virginia which manages three health care clinics for Fairfax County, and our Washington health plan operates two Company-owned
primary care clinics.

Medical Management
Our experience in medical management extends back to our roots as a provider organization. Primary care physicians are the focal
point of the delivery of health care to our members, providing routine and preventive care, coordinating referrals to specialists, and
assessing the need for hospital care. This model has proven to be an effective method for coordinating medical care for our members. The
underlying challenge we face is to coordinate health care so that our members receive timely and appropriate care from the right provider at
the appropriate cost. In support of this goal, and to ensure medical management consistency among our various state health plans, we
continuously refine and upgrade our medical management efforts at both the corporate and subsidiary levels.

We seek to ensure quality care for our members on a cost-effective basis through the use of certain key medical management and cost
control tools. These tools include utilization management, case and health management, and provider network and contract management.

Utilization Management. We continuously review utilization patterns with the intent to optimize quality of care and ensure that
only appropriate services are rendered in the most cost-effective manner. Utilization management, along with our other tools of medical
management and cost control, is supported by a centralized corporate medical informatics function which utilizes third-party software
and data warehousing tools to convert data into actionable information. We use a predictive modeling capability that supports a proactive
case and health management approach both for us and our affiliated physicians.

Case and Health Management. We seek to encourage quality, cost-effective care through a variety of case and health management
programs, including disease management programs, educational programs, and pharmacy management programs.

Disease Management Programs. We develop specialized disease management programs that address the particular health care
needs of our members. motherhood matters!sm is a comprehensive program designed to improve pregnancy outcomes and enhance
member satisfaction. breathe with ease!sm is a multi-disciplinary disease management program that provides health education resources
and case management services to assist physicians caring for asthmatic members between the ages of three and fifteen. Healthy Living
with Diabetessm is a diabetes
6

Table of Contents

disease management program. “Heart Health Living” is a cardiovascular disease management program for members who have suffered
from congestive heart failure, angina, heart attack, or high blood pressure.

Educational Programs. Educational programs are an important aspect of our approach to health care delivery. These programs are
designed to increase awareness of various diseases, conditions, and methods of prevention in a manner that supports our providers while
meeting the unique needs of our members. For example, we provide our members with information to guide them through various episodes
of care. This information, which is available in several languages, is designed to educate parents on the use of primary care physicians,
emergency rooms, and nurse call centers.

Pharmacy Management Programs. Our pharmacy management programs focus on physician education regarding appropriate
medication utilization and encouraging the use of generic medications. Our pharmacists and medical directors work with our pharmacy
benefits manager to maintain a formulary that promotes both improved patient care and generic drug use. We employ full-time
pharmacists and pharmacy technicians who work with physicians to educate them on the uses of specific drugs, the implementation of
best practices, and the importance of cost-effective care.
Provider Network and Contract Management. The quality, depth, and scope of our provider network are essential if we are to
ensure quality, cost-effective care for our members. In partnering with quality, cost-effective providers, we utilize clinical and financial
information derived by our medical informatics function, as well as the experience we have gained in serving Medicaid members to gain
insight into the needs of both our members and our providers. As we grow in size, we seek to strengthen our ties with high-quality, costeffective providers by offering them greater patient volume.
Plan Administration and Operations

Management Information Systems. All of our health plan information technology and systems operate on a single platform. This
approach avoids the costs associated with maintaining multiple systems, improves productivity, and enables medical directors to
compare costs, identify trends, and exchange best practices among our plans. Our single platform also facilitates our compliance with
current and future regulatory requirements.
The software we use is based on client-server technology and is scalable. We believe the software is flexible, easy to use, and allows
us to accommodate anticipated enrollment growth and new contracts. The open architecture of the system gives us the ability to transfer
data from other systems without the need to write a significant amount of computer code, thereby facilitating the integration of new plans
and acquisitions.
We have designed our corporate website with a focus on ease of use and visual appeal. Our website has a secure ePortal which allows
providers, members, and trading partners to access individualized data. The ePortal allows the following self-services:

• Provider Self Services. Providers have the ability to access information regarding their members and claims. Key functionalities
include Check Member Eligibility, View Claim, and View/Submit Authorizations.
• Member Self Services. Members can access information regarding their personal data, and can perform the following key
functionalities: View Benefits, Request New ID Card, Print Temporary ID Card, and Request Change of Address/PCP.
• File Exchange Services. Various trading partners — such as service partners, providers, vendors, management companies,
and individual IPAs — are able to exchange data files (such as those that may be required by the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996, or HIPAA, or any other proprietary format) with us using the file exchange functionality.

Best Practices. We continuously seek to promote best practices. Our approach to quality is broad, encompassing traditional
medical management and the improvement of our internal operations. We have staff assigned full-time to the development and
implementation of a uniform, efficient, and quality-based medical care delivery model for our health plans. These employees coordinate
and implement Company-wide programs and strategic initiatives such as preparation of the Healthcare Effectiveness Data and
Information Set, or HEDIS, and accreditation by the NCQA. We use measures established by the NCQA in credentialing the physicians
in our network. We routinely use peer review to assess the quality of care rendered by providers. Eight of our ten health plans are
accredited by the NCQA.
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Claims Processing. All of our health plans operate on a single managed care platform for claims processing (the QNXT 3.4
system), with the exception of our newly acquired Wisconsin plan which we expect will be migrated to the Molina standard platform in
January 2012.
Centralized Management Services. We provide certain centralized medical and administrative services to our health plans
pursuant to administrative services agreements, including medical affairs and quality management, health education, credentialing,
management, financial, legal, information systems, and human resources services. Fees for such services are based on the fair market
value of services rendered and are recorded as operating revenue. Payment is subordinated to the health plan’s ability to comply with
minimum capital and other restrictive financial requirements of the states in which they operate.
Compliance. Our health plans have established high standards of ethical conduct. Our compliance programs are modeled after the
compliance guidance statements published by the Office of the Inspector General of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services.
Our uniform approach to compliance makes it easier for our health plans to share information and practices and reduces the potential for
compliance errors and any associated liability.
Disaster Recovery. We have established a disaster recovery and business resumption plan, with back-up operating sites, to be
deployed in the case of a major disruptive event.
Competition

We operate in a highly competitive environment. The Medicaid managed care industry is fragmented, and the competitive
landscape is subject to ongoing changes as a result of business consolidations and new strategic alliances. We compete with a large
number of national, regional, and local Medicaid service providers, principally on the basis of size, location, and quality of provider
network, quality of service, and reputation. Competition can vary considerably from state to state. Below is a general description of our
principal competitors for state contracts, members, and providers:
• Multi-Product Managed Care Organizations — National and regional managed care organizations that have Medicaid
members in addition to numerous commercial health plan and Medicare members.
• Medicaid HMOs — National and regional managed care organizations that focus principally on providing health care services to
Medicaid beneficiaries, many of which operate in only one city or state.
• Prepaid Health Plans — Health plans that provide less comprehensive services on an at-risk basis or that provide benefit
packages on a non-risk basis.
• Primary Care Case Management Programs — Programs established by the states through contracts with primary care
providers to provide primary care services to Medicaid beneficiaries, as well as to provide limited oversight of other services.
We will continue to face varying levels of competition. Health care reform proposals may cause organizations to enter or exit the
market for government sponsored health programs. However, the licensing requirements and bidding and contracting procedures in some
states may present partial barriers to entry into our industry.

We compete for government contracts, renewals of those government contracts, members, and providers. State agencies consider
many factors in awarding contracts to health plans. Among such factors are the health plan’s provider network, medical management,
degree of member satisfaction, timeliness of claims payment, and financial resources. Potential members typically choose a health plan
based on a specific provider being a part of the network, the quality of care and services available, accessibility of services, and
reputation or name recognition of the health plan. We believe factors that providers consider in deciding whether to contract with a health
plan include potential member volume, payment methods, timeliness and accuracy of claims payment, and administrative service
capabilities.

Molina Medicaid Solutions competes with large MMIS vendors, such as HP Enterprise Services (formerly known as EDS), ACS
(owned by Xerox Corporation), Computer Services Corporation, or CSC, and CNSI.

Regulation
Our health plans are highly regulated by both state and federal government agencies. Regulation of managed care products and health
care services varies from jurisdiction to jurisdiction, and changes in applicable laws and rules can occur frequently. Regulatory agencies
generally have discretion to issue regulations and interpret and enforce laws and
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rules. Such agencies have become increasingly active in recent years in their review and scrutiny of health insurers and managed care
organization, including those operating in the Medicaid and Medicare programs.

To operate a health plan in a given state, we must apply for and obtain a certificate of authority or license from that state. Our
operating health plans are licensed to operate as health maintenance organizations, or HMOs, in each of California, Florida, Michigan,
Missouri, New Mexico, Ohio, Texas, Utah, Washington, and Wisconsin. In those states we are regulated by the agency with
responsibility for the oversight of HMOs which, in most cases, is the state department of insurance. In California, however, the agency
with responsibility for the oversight of HMOs is the Department of Managed Health Care. Licensing requirements are the same for us as
they are for health plans serving commercial or Medicare members. We must demonstrate that our provider network is adequate, that our
quality and utilization management processes comply with state requirements, and that we have adequate procedures in place for
responding to member and provider complaints and grievances. We must also demonstrate that we can meet requirements for the timely
processing of provider claims, and that we can collect and analyze the information needed to manage our quality improvement activities.
In addition, we must prove that we have the financial resources necessary to pay our anticipated medical care expenses and the
infrastructure needed to account for our costs.

Our health plans are required to file quarterly and annual reports of their operating results with the appropriate state regulatory
agencies. These reports are accessible for public viewing. Each health plan undergoes periodic examinations and reviews by the state in
which it operates. The health plans generally must obtain approval from the state before declaring dividends in excess of certain
thresholds. Each health plan must maintain its net worth at an amount determined by statute or regulation. The minimum statutory net
worth requirements differ by state, and are generally based on statutory minimum risk-based capital, or RBC, requirements. The RBC
requirements are based on guidelines established by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners, or NAIC, and are
administered by the states. Our Michigan, Missouri, New Mexico, Ohio, Texas, Utah, Washington, and Wisconsin health plans are
subject to RBC requirements. Any acquisition of another plan’s members or its state contracts must also be approved by the state, and
our ability to invest in certain financial securities may be prescribed by statute.
In addition, we are also regulated by each state’s department of health services or the equivalent agency charged with oversight of
Medicaid and CHIP. These agencies typically require demonstration of the same capabilities mentioned above and perform periodic audits
of performance, usually annually.

Medicaid. Medicaid was established in 1965 under the U.S. Social Security Act to provide medical assistance to the poor.
Although both the federal and state governments jointly fund it, Medicaid is a state-operated and state-implemented program. Our
contracts with the state Medicaid programs impose various requirements on us in addition to those imposed by applicable federal and
state laws and regulations. Within broad guidelines established by the federal government, each state:
• establishes its own member eligibility standards;
• determines the type, amount, duration, and scope of services;
• sets the rate of payment for health care services; and
• administers its own program.
We obtain our Medicaid contracts in different ways. Some states award contracts to any applicant demonstrating that it meets the
state’s requirements. Other states engage in a competitive bidding process. In all cases, we must demonstrate to the satisfaction of the state
Medicaid program that we are able to meet the state’s operational and financial requirements. These requirements are in addition to those
required for a license and are targeted to the specific needs of the Medicaid population. For example:

• We must measure provider access and availability in terms of the time needed to reach the doctor’s office using public
transportation;
• Our quality improvement programs must emphasize member education and outreach and include measures designed to promote
utilization of preventive services;
• We must have linkages with schools, city or county health departments, and other community-based providers of health care, to
demonstrate our ability to coordinate all of the sources from which our members may receive care;
• We must be able to meet the needs of the disabled and others with special needs;
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• Our providers and member service representatives must be able to communicate with members who do not speak English or who
are deaf; and
• Our member handbook, newsletters, and other communications must be written at the prescribed reading level, and must be
available in languages other than English.
In addition, we must demonstrate that we have the systems required to process enrollment information, to report on care and services
provided, and to process claims for payment in a timely fashion. We must also have the financial resources needed to protect the state,
our providers, and our members against the insolvency of one of our health plans.

Medicare. Medicare is a federal program that provides eligible persons age 65 and over and some disabled persons a variety of
hospital, medical insurance, and prescription drug benefits. Medicare is funded by Congress, and administered by the Centers for
Medicare and Medicaid Services, or CMS. Medicare beneficiaries have the option to enroll in a Medicare Advantage plan. Under Medicare
Advantage, managed care plans contract with CMS to provide benefits that are comparable to original Medicare in exchange for a fixed
PMPM premium payment that varies based on the county in which a member resides, the demographics of the member, and the
member’s health condition.
The Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003, or MMA, made numerous changes to the Medicare
program, including expanding the Medicare program to include a prescription drug benefit. Since 2006, Medicare beneficiaries have had
the option of selecting a new prescription drug benefit from an existing Medicare Advantage plan. The drug benefit, available to
beneficiaries for a monthly premium, is subject to certain cost sharing depending upon the specific benefit design of the selected plan.
Plans are not required to offer the same benefits, but are required to provide coverage that is at least actuarially equivalent to the standard
drug coverage delineated in the MMA.

On July 15, 2008, the Medicare Improvements for Patients and Providers Act, or MIPPA, became law and, in September 2008,
CMS promulgated implementing regulations. MIPPA impacts a broad range of Medicare activities and impacts all types of Medicare
managed care plans. MIPPA and subsequent CMS guidance place prohibitions and limitations on certain sales and marketing activities of
Medicare Advantage plans. Among other things, Medicare Advantage plans are not permitted to make unsolicited outbound calls to
potential members or engage in other forms of unsolicited contact, establish appointments without documented consent from potential
members, or conduct sales events in certain provider-based settings. MIPPA also establishes certain restrictions on agent and broker
compensation.

HIPAA. In 1996, Congress enacted the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, or HIPAA. All health plans are subject
to HIPAA, including ours. HIPAA generally requires health plans to:

• Establish the capability to receive and transmit electronically certain administrative health care transactions, like claims
payments, in a standardized format,
• Afford privacy to patient health information, and
• Protect the privacy of patient health information through physical and electronic security measures.
The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act of 2010, or ACA, created additional tools for fraud prevention, including increased
oversight of providers and suppliers participating or enrolling in Medicaid, CHIP, and Medicare. Those enhancements included
mandatory licensure for all providers, and site visits, fingerprinting, and criminal background checks for higher risk providers. On
September 23, 2010, CMS issued proposed regulations designed to implement these requirements. It is not clear at this time the degree to
which managed care providers would have to comply with these new requirements, many of which resemble procedures that we already
have in place.

The Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (“HITECH Act”), a part of the ARRA, modified certain
provisions of HIPAA by, among other things, extending the privacy and security provisions to business associates, mandating new
regulations around electronic medical records, expanding enforcement mechanisms, allowing the state Attorneys General to bring
enforcement actions, and increasing penalties for violations. The U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, as required by the
HITECH Act, has issued interim final rules that set forth the breach notification obligations applicable to covered entities and their
business associates (the “HHS Breach Notification Rule”). The various requirements of the HITECH Act and the HHS Breach
Notification Rule have different compliance dates, some of which have passed and some of which will occur in the future. With respect to
those requirements whose compliance dates have passed, we believe that we are
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in compliance with these provisions. With respect to those requirements whose compliance dates are in the future, we are reviewing our
current practices and identifying those which may be impacted by upcoming regulations. It is our intention to implement these new
requirements on or before the applicable compliance dates.

Fraud and Abuse Laws. Our operations are subject to various state and federal health care laws commonly referred to as “fraud
and abuse” laws. Fraud and abuse prohibitions encompass a wide range of activities, including kickbacks for referral of members,
billing for unnecessary medical services, improper marketing, and violations of patient privacy rights. These fraud and abuse laws
include the federal False Claims Act which prohibits the knowing filing of a false claim or the knowing use of false statements to obtain
payment from the federal government. Many states have false claim act statutes that closely resemble the federal False Claims Act. If an
entity is determined to have violated the federal False Claims Act, it must pay three times the actual damages sustained by the
government, plus mandatory civil penalties up to fifty thousand dollars for each separate false claim. Suits filed under the Federal False
Claims Act, known as “qui tam” actions, can be brought by any individual on behalf of the government and such individuals (known
as “relators” or, more commonly, as “whistleblowers”) may share in any amounts paid by the entity to the government in fines or
settlement. Qui tam actions have increased significantly in recent years, causing greater numbers of health care companies to have to
defend a false claim action, pay fines or be excluded from the Medicaid, Medicare or other state or Federal health care programs as a result
of an investigation arising out of such action. In addition, the Deficit Reduction Action of 2005 (“DRA”) encourages states to enact stateversions of the federal False Claims Act that establish liability to the state for false and fraudulent Medicaid claims and that provide for,
among other things, claims to be filed by qui tam relators.
Companies involved in public health care programs such as Medicaid are often the subject of fraud and abuse investigations. The
regulations and contractual requirements applicable to participants in these public sector programs are complex and subject to change.
Violations of certain fraud and abuse laws applicable to us could result in civil monetary penalties, criminal fines and imprisonment,
and/or exclusion from participation in Medicaid, Medicare, other federal health care programs and federally funded state health programs.
Federal and state governments have made investigating and prosecuting health care fraud and abuse a priority. Although we believe
that our compliance efforts are adequate, we will continue to devote significant resources to support our compliance efforts.

Employees
As of December 31, 2010, we had approximately 4,200 employees. Our employee base is multicultural and reflects the diverse
Medicaid and Medicare membership we serve. We believe we have good relations with our employees. None of our employees is
represented by a union.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

J. Mario Molina, M.D., 52, has served as President and Chief Executive Officer since succeeding his father and company founder,
Dr. C. David Molina, in 1996. He has also served as Chairman of the Board since 1996. Prior to that, he served as Medical Director
from 1991 through 1994 and was Vice President responsible for provider contracting and relations, member services, marketing and
quality assurance from 1994 to 1996. He earned an M.D. from the University of Southern California and performed his medical
internship and residency at the Johns Hopkins Hospital. Dr. Molina is the brother of John C. Molina.
John C. Molina, J.D., 46, has served in the role of Chief Financial Officer since 1995. He also has served as a director since 1994.
Mr. Molina has been employed by us for over 30 years in a variety of positions. Mr. Molina is a past president of the California
Association of Primary Care Case Management Plans. He was recently named to the Los Angeles branch of the Federal Reserve Bank of
San Francisco’s board of directors. He earned a Juris Doctorate from the University of Southern California School of Law. Mr. Molina is
the brother of J. Mario Molina, M.D.

Terry P. Bayer, 60, has served as our Chief Operating Officer since November 2005. She had formerly served as our Executive Vice
President, Health Plan Operations since January 2005. Ms. Bayer has 26 years of health care management experience, including staff
model clinic administration, provider contracting, managed care operations, disease management, and home care. Prior to joining us, her
professional experience included regional responsibility at FHP, Inc. and multi-state responsibility as Regional Vice-President at Maxicare;
Partners National Health Plan, a joint venture of Aetna Life Insurance Company and Voluntary Hospital Association (VHA); and Lincoln
National. She has also served as Executive Vice President of Managed Care at Matria Healthcare, President
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and Chief Operating Officer of Praxis Clinical Services, and as Western Division President of AccentCare. She holds a Juris Doctorate
from Stanford University, a Master’s degree in Public Health from the University of California, Berkeley, and a Bachelor’s degree in
Communications from Northwestern University.

Joseph W. White, 52, has served as our Chief Accounting Officer since 2003. In his role as Chief Accounting Officer, Mr. White is
responsible for oversight of the Company’s accounting, reporting, forecasting, budgeting, actuarial, procurement, treasury and facilities
functions. Mr. White has 25 years of financial management experience in the health care industry. Prior to joining the Company in 2003,
Mr. White worked for Maxicare Health Plans, Inc. from 1987 through 2002. Mr. White holds a Master’s degree in Business
Administration and a Bachelor’s degree in Commerce from the University of Virginia. Mr. White is a Certified Public Accountant.
James W. Howatt, 64, served as our Chief Medical Officer from May 2007 to February 2011. Effective February 17, 2011,
Dr. Howatt was reassigned to the position of medical director of MMS. As medical director of MMS, Dr. Howatt will serve as the clinical
leader for existing and future MMS product offerings, and will direct efforts to incorporate care coordination solutions into the government
health care programs served by MMS. Prior to joining Molina Healthcare in February 2006, Dr. Howatt was Western Regional Medical
Director for Humana. Dr. Howatt received B.S. and M.D. degrees from the University of California, San Francisco, and also holds a
Master of Business Administration degree with an emphasis in Health Management from the University of Phoenix.

12

Table of Contents

Item 1A:

Risk Factors
RISK FACTORS

Safe Harbor Statement under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995
This annual report on Form 10-K and the documents we incorporate by reference in this report contain forward-looking
statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and Section 21E of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Other than statements of historical fact, all statements that
we include in this report and in the documents we incorporate by reference may be deemed to be forward-looking statements for
purposes of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act. Such forward-looking statements may be identified by words such as
“anticipates,” “believes,” “could,” “estimates,” “expects,” “guidance,” “intends,” “may,” “outlook,” “plans,” “projects,”
“seeks,” “will,” or similar words or expressions.
Investing in our securities involves a high degree of risk. Before making an investment decision, you should carefully read and
consider the following risk factors, as well as the other information we include or incorporate by reference in this report and the
information in the other reports we file with the SEC. Such risk factors should be considered not only with regard to the
information contained in this annual report, but also with regard to the information and statements in the other periodic or current
reports we file with the SEC, as well as our press releases, presentations to securities analysts or investors, or other
communications made by or with the approval of one of our executive officers. No assurance can be given that we will actually
achieve the results contemplated or disclosed in our forward-looking statements. Such statements may turn out to be wrong due to
the inherent uncertainties associated with future events. Accordingly, you should not place undue reliance on our forward-looking
statements, which reflect management’s analyses, judgments, beliefs, or expectations only as of the date they are made.
If any of the events described in the following risk factors actually occur, our business, results of operations, financial
condition, cash flows, or prospects could be materially adversely affected. The risks and uncertainties described below are those
that we currently believe may materially affect us. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently
deem immaterial may also affect our business and operations. As such, you should not consider this list to be a complete statement
of all potential risks or uncertainties. Except to the extent otherwise required by federal securities laws, we do not undertake to
address or update forward-looking statements in future filings or communications regarding our business or operating results,
and do not undertake to address how any of these factors may have caused results to differ from discussions or information
contained in previous filings or communications.

Risks Related to Our Health Plans Business
State and federal budget deficits may result in Medicaid, CHIP, or Medicare funding cuts which could reduce our revenues
and profit margins.
Nearly all of our premium revenues come from the joint federal and state funding of the Medicaid and CHIP programs. Due to high
unemployment levels, Medicaid enrollment levels and Medicaid costs are continuing to increase at the same time that state budgets are
suffering from unprecedented deficits. In June 2010, 50.3 million members were enrolled in the Medicaid program throughout the nation,
over three million more than in June 2009. Because governmental health care programs account for such a large portion of state budgets,
efforts to contain overall government spending and to achieve a balanced budget often result in significant political pressure being directed
at the funding for these health care programs. For fiscal year 2011, 46 states have reported budget gaps of a total of $130 billion as of
December 2010, and that gap could reach an estimated $160 billion. Resolving the budget shortfalls is now particularly difficult since
program reductions and one-time strategies to plug the gaps have already been used in most states. Headed into fiscal year 2012, states do
not expect revenue collections to recover to a level sufficient to avoid additional budget cuts. Because Medicaid is one of the largest
expenditures in every state budget, and one of the fastest-growing, it will likely be a prime target for cost-containment efforts. All of the
states in which we currently operate our health plans are currently facing significant budgetary pressures. The mandate of health reform
adding millions of individuals to Medicaid and CHIP will put further pressures on state Medicaid programs.
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As part of ARRA, the federal government increased the amount of funding for federal Medicaid matching by approximately
$87 billion for the period between October 1, 2008 and December 31, 2010. In August 2010, the President signed a bill extending the
ARRA enhanced FMAP on a phased-down basis for two additional quarters through June 30, 2011. The unemployment adjustment
remained in the extension, but the law phased down the across-the-board base increase of 6.2 percentage points to 3.2 percentage points
from January 1, 2011 to March 31, 2011, and to 1.2 percentage points from April 1, 2011 to June 30, 2011. Almost every state
legislature had enacted its 2011 budgets prior to enactment of the extension, and with the uncertainty about whether Congress would
extend the enhanced FMAP, each state was forced to make an assumption about whether the higher FMAP would continue beyond
December 2010. Even with fiscal relief provided by the extension of ARRA enhanced Medicaid matching rates and the fact that
economists pegged June 2009 as the official “end” of the recession, state budgets remain under considerable stress in fiscal year 2011,
and without exception state policy leaders expect the fiscal stress to extend into fiscal year 2012. Unemployment remains high, and state
revenues remain depressed.

Since the start of the recession, all states have implemented programmatic changes of some kind, including provider rate cuts or
freezes, benefit cuts and restrictions, provider taxes and assessments, utilization controls, fraud and abuse reduction strategies and
numerous administrative cuts (travel bans, hiring freezes, furloughs and layoffs) to reduce Medicaid cost growth. 20 states reduced
Medicaid benefits in fiscal year 2010, more than in any year in the past decade, and 14 states planned to reduce benefits in fiscal year
2011. With the expiration of the ARRA funds on June 30, 2011, states may have no choice but to further cut or revise health care
programs, optional benefits, eligibility criteria and thresholds, or health plan rates. Such actions could materially reduce the funding
under one or more of our state Medicaid contracts, thereby reducing our revenues and our health plan profit margins. We expect to obtain
rate increases during our fiscal year 2011 from the states of California and Ohio, and for the rates at our other health plans (with the
exception of our Wisconsin health plan where we expect an 11% rate cut) to remain unchanged during the year. In the event this
expectation is undermined by state budget pressures and the rates of any of our health plans are reduced, our business, financial
condition, cash flows, or results of operations could be adversely affected. In addition, the timing of payments we receive may be
impacted by state budget shortfalls.
Moreover, some federal deficit reduction proposals would fundamentally change the structure and financing of the Medicaid
program. Recently, various proposals have been advanced to reduce annual federal deficits and to slow the increase in the national debt. A
number of these proposals include both tax increases and spending reductions in discretionary programs and mandatory programs, such
as Social Security, Medicare, and Medicaid. Some of the proposals relating to Medicaid would fundamentally change the structure and
financing of the program, with major implications for providers and beneficiaries. One such proposal would be to convert Medicaid into a
block grant, capping federal Medicaid payments to each state at a specified dollar amount, and limiting the growth in that dollar amount
each year. Based on analysis of previous proposals to cap Medicaid, these dollar caps and growth limits would have to be set below the
levels at which Medicaid is now expected to grow based on enrollment and health care inflation to save money. In the event the Medicaid
program is fundamentally restructured, our business could be adversely affected.

The recently enacted health care reform law and the implementation of that law could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, cash flows, or results of operations.
In March 2010, President Obama signed both the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and the Health Care and Education
Affordability Reconciliation Act, commonly referred to together as the “ACA”. This legislation enacts comprehensive changes to the
U.S. health care system, components of which will be phased in at various stages over the next eight years. Among other things, by
January 1, 2014, the Medicaid program will be expanded to provide eligibility to nearly all low-income people under age 65 with income
below 133 percent of the federal poverty line. As a result, millions of low-income adults without children who currently cannot qualify for
coverage, as well as many low-income parents and, in some instances, children now covered through CHIP, will be made eligible for
Medicaid. In total, the Congressional Budget Office estimates that Medicaid and CHIP will cover an additional 16 million people by
2019. The legislation also imposes a franchise tax or premium excise tax of $8 billion starting in 2014, with increasing annual amounts
thereafter. Such assessment may not be deductible for income tax purposes.
There are many parts of the legislation that will require further guidance in the form of regulations. Due to the breadth and
complexity of the health reform legislation, the lack of implementing regulations and interpretive
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guidance, and the phased-in nature of the implementation, the overall impact of the health reform legislation on our business over the
coming years is difficult to predict and not yet fully known.

In addition, there have been a number of lawsuits filed that challenge all or part of the health care reform law. On January 31, 2011,
a Florida District Court ruled that the entire health care reform law is unconstitutional. Other courts have ruled in favor of the law or have
only struck down certain provisions of the law. These cases are under appeal and others are in process. We cannot predict the ultimate
outcome of any of the litigation. Further, various Congressional leaders have indicated a desire to revisit some or all of the health care
reform law during 2011. While the U.S House of Representatives voted to repeal the whole health care reform law, the U.S. Senate voted
against such a repeal, and there have separately been a number of bills introduced that would repeal or change certain provisions of the
law. Because of these challenges, we cannot predict whether any or all of the legislation will be implemented as enacted, overturned,
repealed, or modified.
If we fail to effectively accommodate the growth in Medicaid enrollment anticipated under the health reform legislation, our business
may be materially adversely affected. In addition, if the new insurance industry assessment is imposed as enacted, or if we are unable to
obtain premium increases to offset the impact of the assessment or otherwise adjust our business model to address the assessment, our
business, financial condition, cash flows, or results of operations could be materially adversely affected.

Our profitability depends on our ability to accurately predict and effectively manage our medical care costs.
Our profitability depends to a significant degree on our ability to accurately predict and effectively manage our medical care costs.
Historically, our medical care cost ratio, meaning our medical care costs as a percentage of our premium revenue, has fluctuated
substantially, and has also varied across our state health plans. Because the premium payments we receive are generally fixed in advance
and we operate with a narrow profit margin, relatively small changes in our medical care cost ratio can create significant changes in our
overall financial results. For example, if our overall medical care ratio for 2010 of 84.5% had been one percentage point higher, or 85.5%,
our earnings for 2010 would have been approximately $1.14 per diluted share rather than our actual 2010 earnings of $1.98 per diluted
share, a 42% reduction in our earnings.
Factors that may affect our medical care costs include the level of utilization of health care services, unexpected patterns in the
annual flu season, increases in hospital costs, an increased incidence or acuity of high dollar claims related to catastrophic illnesses or
medical conditions such as hemophilia for which we do not have adequate reinsurance coverage, increased maternity costs, payment rates
that are not actuarially sound, changes in state eligibility certification methodologies, relatively low levels of hospital and specialty
provider competition in certain geographic areas, increases in the cost of pharmaceutical products and services, changes in health care
regulations and practices, epidemics, new medical technologies, and other various external factors. Many of these factors are beyond our
control and could reduce our ability to accurately predict and effectively manage the costs of providing health care services. The inability
to forecast and manage our medical care costs or to establish and maintain a satisfactory medical care cost ratio, either with respect to a
particular state health plan or across the consolidated entity, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
cash flows, or results of operations.

A failure to accurately estimate incurred but not reported medical care costs may negatively impact our results of operations.
Because of the time lag between when medical services are actually rendered by our providers and when we receive, process, and
pay a claim for those medical services, we must continually estimate our medical claims liability at particular points in time, and
establish claims reserves related to such estimates. Our estimated reserves for such “incurred but not paid,” or IBNP, medical care costs,
are based on numerous assumptions. We estimate our medical claims liabilities using actuarial methods based on historical data adjusted
for claims receipt and payment experience (and variations in that experience), changes in membership, provider billing practices, health
care service utilization trends, cost trends, product mix, seasonality, prior authorization of medical services, benefit changes, known
outbreaks of disease or increased incidence of illness such as influenza, provider contract changes, changes to Medicaid fee schedules,
and the incidence of high dollar or catastrophic claims. Our ability to accurately estimate claims for our newer lines of business or
populations, such as with respect to Medicare Advantage or aged,
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blind, and disabled Medicaid members, is impacted by the more limited experience we have had with those populations. Finally, with
regard to the new Medicaid and CHIP members we expect to enroll in 2011 through organic growth due primarily to the recession, certain
new members may be disproportionately costly due to high utilization in their first several months of Medicaid or CHIP membership as a
result of their previously having been uninsured and therefore not seeking or deferring medical treatment.
The IBNP estimation methods we use and the resulting reserves that we establish are reviewed and updated, and adjustments, if
deemed necessary, are reflected in the current period. Given the numerous uncertainties inherent in such estimates, our actual claims
liabilities for a particular quarter or other period could differ significantly from the amounts estimated and reserved for that quarter or
period. Our actual claims liabilities have varied and will continue to vary from our estimates, particularly in times of significant changes
in utilization, medical cost trends, and populations and markets served.

If our actual liability for claims payments is higher than estimated, our earnings per share in any particular quarter or annual period
could be negatively affected. Our estimates of IBNP may be inadequate in the future, which would negatively affect our results of
operations for the relevant time period. Furthermore, if we are unable to accurately estimate IBNP, our ability to take timely corrective
actions may be limited, further exacerbating the extent of the negative impact on our results.

Another flu epidemic in 2011 or other kind of epidemic in one or more of the states in which we operate a health plan could
significantly increase utilization rates and medical costs.
Our results during 2009 were significantly impacted by the widespread incidence of the H1N1 flu in the states in which we operate
our health plans. The recurrence in 2011 of the H1N1 flu, another variant of the flu, or the outbreak and rapid spread of any other highly
contagious and potentially virulent disease, could increase the utilization rates among our members, resulting in significantly increased
outpatient, inpatient, emergency room, and pharmacy costs.

If the responsive bids of our health plans for new or renewed Medicaid contracts are not successful, or if our government
contracts are terminated or are not renewed, our premium revenues could be materially reduced and our operating results
could be negatively impacted.
Our government contracts may be subject to periodic competitive bidding. In such process, our health plans may face competition as
other plans, many with greater financial resources and greater name recognition, attempt to enter our markets through the competitive
bidding process. For instance, the state contract of our Washington health plan with respect to the Healthy Options program may be
subject to competitive bidding during 2011 or 2012. In the event the responsive bids of our Washington health plan or those of other
health plans are not successful, we will lose our Medicaid contract in the applicable state, and our premium revenues could be materially
reduced as a result. Alternatively, even if our responsive bids are successful, the bids may be based upon assumptions regarding
enrollment, utilization, medical costs, or other factors which could result in the Medicaid contract being less profitable than we had
expected.

In addition, all of our contracts may be terminated for cause if we breach a material provision of the contract or violate relevant laws
or regulations. Our contracts with the states are also subject to cancellation by the state in the event of the unavailability of state or federal
funding. In some jurisdictions, such cancellation may be immediate and in other jurisdictions a notice period is required. Further, most of
our contracts are terminable without cause.
Our government contracts generally run for periods of one year to three years, and may be successively extended by amendment for
additional periods if the relevant state agency so elects. Our current contracts expire on various dates over the next several years. Although
our health plans have generally been successful in obtaining the renewal and/or extension of their state contracts, there can be no guarantee
that any of our state government contracts will be renewed or extended. If we are unable to renew, successfully re-bid, or compete for any
of our government contracts, or if any of our contracts are terminated or renewed on less favorable terms, our business, financial
condition, cash flows, or results of operations could be adversely affected.
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There are numerous risks associated with the expansion of our Texas health plan’s service area under the CHIP Rural
Service Area Program, with our acquisition of Abri Health Plan in Wisconsin, and with our ABD expansion in California.
In September 2010, our Texas health plan began arranging health care services for approximately 64,000 low-income children and
pregnant women in 174 predominantly rural counties through Texas’ CHIP Rural Service Area Program. In addition, on September 1,
2010, we acquired Abri Health Plan, a Medicaid managed care organization based in Milwaukee, Wisconsin. As of December 31, 2010,
Abri Health Plan served approximately 36,000 Medicaid members. During 2011, we will begin serving additional ABD members in
Texas, and we expect to begin serving additional ABD members in California. There are numerous risks associated with a health plan’s
initial expansion into a new service area or the provision of medical services to a new population, including pent-up demand for medical
services, elevated medical care costs, and our lack of actuarial experience in setting appropriate reserve levels. In the event the medical care
costs of our Texas, Wisconsin, or California health plans are higher than anticipated, we are unable to lower the medical care ratio
associated with these new populations, our reserve levels are inadequate, or our enrollment projections are overestimated, the negative
results of our Texas, Wisconsin, or California health plan could adversely affect our business, financial condition, cash flows, or results
of operations.

States may not adequately compensate us for the value of drug rebates that were previously earned by the Company but that
are now collectible by the states.
ACA includes certain provisions that change the way drug rebates are handled for drug claims filled by Medicaid managed care
plans. Retroactive to March 23, 2010, state Medicaid programs are now required to collect federal rebates on all Medicaid-covered
outpatient drugs dispensed or administered to Medicaid managed care enrollees (excluding certain drugs that are already discounted), and
pharmaceutical manufacturers are required to pay specified rebates directly to the state Medicaid programs for those claims. This has
impacted the level of rebates received by managed care plans from the manufacturers for Medicaid managed care enrollees. Many
manufacturers are in the process of or have completed renegotiating their rebate contracts with Medicaid managed care plans and
pharmacy benefits managers to offset these new rebates paid directly to state Medicaid programs. As a result, the drug rebate amounts
paid to managed care plans like ours will likely decline significantly in the future. There are provisions in the ACA that require rates paid
to Medicaid managed care to be actuarially sound in regard to drug rebates. Although we will be pursuing rate increases with state agencies
to make us whole for the rebate amounts lost, there can be no assurances that the premium increases we may receive, if any, will be
adequate to offset the amount of the lost rebates. If such premium increases prove to be inadequate, our business, financial condition,
cash flows, or results of operations could be adversely affected.
We derive our premium revenues from a relatively small number of state health plans.
We currently derive our premium revenues from 10 state health plans. If we were unable to continue to operate in any of those ten
states, or if our current operations in any portion of the states we are in were significantly curtailed, our revenues could decrease
materially. Our reliance on operations in a limited number of states could cause our revenue and profitability to change suddenly and
unexpectedly, depending on an abrupt loss of membership, significant rate reductions, a loss of a material contract, legislative actions,
changes in Medicaid eligibility methodologies, catastrophic claims, an epidemic or an unexpected increase in utilization, general economic
conditions, and similar factors in those states. Our inability to continue to operate in any of the states in which we currently operate, or a
significant change in the nature of our existing operations, could adversely affect our business, financial condition, cash flows, or results
of operations.

There are performance and other risks associated with certain provisions in the state Medicaid contracts of our Florida,
New Mexico, Ohio, and Texas health plans.
The state contracts of our New Mexico, Ohio, and Texas health plans contain provisions pertaining to at-risk premiums that require
us to meet certain quality performance measures to earn all of our contract revenues in those states. In the event we are unsuccessful in
achieving the stated performance measure, the health plan will be unable to recognize the revenue associated with that measure. Any failure
of our health plan to satisfy one of these performance measure provisions could adversely affect our business, financial condition, cash
flows, or results of operations.
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In addition, the state contracts of our Florida, New Mexico, and Texas health plans contain provisions pertaining to medical cost
floors, administrative cost and profit ceilings, and profit-sharing arrangements. These provisions are subject to interpretation and
application by our health plans. In the event the applicable state government agency disagrees with our health plan’s interpretation or
application of the contract provisions at issue, the health plan could be required to adjust the amount of its obligations under these
provisions and/or make a payment or payments to the state. Any interpretation or application of these provisions at variance with our
health plan’s interpretation or inconsistent with our revenue recognition accounting treatment could adversely affect our business,
financial condition, cash flows, or results of operations.

Failure to attain profitability in any new start-up operations could negatively affect our results of operations.
Start-up costs associated with a new business can be substantial. For example, to obtain a certificate of authority to operate as a
health maintenance organization in most jurisdictions, we must first establish a provider network, have infrastructure and required
systems in place, and demonstrate our ability to obtain a state contract and process claims. Often, we are also required to contribute
significant capital to fund mandated net worth requirements, performance bonds or escrows, or contingency guaranties. If we were
unsuccessful in obtaining the certificate of authority, winning the bid to provide services, or attracting members in sufficient numbers to
cover our costs, any new business of ours would fail. We also could be required by the state to continue to provide services for some
period of time without sufficient revenue to cover our ongoing costs or to recover our significant start-up costs.
Even if we are successful in establishing a profitable health plan in a new state, increasing membership, revenues, and medical
costs will trigger increased mandated net worth requirements which could substantially exceed the net income generated by the health plan.
Rapid growth in an existing state will also create increased net worth requirements. In such circumstances, we may not be able to fund on
a timely basis or at all the increased net worth requirements with our available cash resources. The expenses associated with starting up a
health plan in a new state or expanding a health plan in an existing state could have an adverse impact on our business, financial
condition, cash flows, or results of operations.

Receipt of inadequate or significantly delayed premiums could negatively affect our business, financial condition, cash flows,
or results of operations.
Our premium revenues consist of fixed monthly payments per member, and supplemental payments for other services such as
maternity deliveries. These premiums are fixed by contract, and we are obligated during the contract periods to provide health care
services as established by the state governments. We use a large portion of our revenues to pay the costs of health care services delivered to
our members. If premiums do not increase when expenses related to medical services rise, our medical margins will be compressed, and
our earnings will be negatively affected. A state could increase hospital or other provider rates without making a commensurate increase in
the rates paid to us, or could lower our rates without making a commensurate reduction in the rates paid to hospitals or other providers. In
addition, if the actuarial assumptions made by a state in implementing a rate or benefit change are incorrect or are at variance with the
particular utilization patterns of the members of one of our health plans, our medical margins could be reduced. Any of these rate
adjustments in one or more of the states in which we operate could adversely affect our business, financial condition, cash flows, or
results of operations.
Furthermore, a state undergoing a budget crisis may significantly delay the premiums paid to one of our health plans. During 2010,
due to a prolonged budget impasse, some of the monthly premium payments made by the state of California to our California health plan
were several months late. Any significant delay in the monthly payment of premiums to any of our health plans could have a material
adverse affect on our business, financial condition, cash flows, or results of operations.

Difficulties in executing our acquisition strategy could adversely affect our business.
The acquisitions of other health plans and the assignment and assumption of Medicaid contract rights of other health plans have
accounted for a significant amount of our growth over the last several years. Although we cannot predict with certainty our rate of growth
as the result of acquisitions, we believe that additional acquisitions of all sizes will be important to our future growth strategy. Many of
the other potential purchasers of these assets — particularly operators of large commercial health plans — have significantly greater
financial resources than we do.
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Also, many of the sellers may insist on selling assets that we do not want, such as commercial lines of business, or may insist on
transferring their liabilities to us as part of the sale of their companies or assets. Even if we identify suitable targets, we may be unable to
complete acquisitions on terms favorable to us or obtain the necessary financing for these acquisitions. Further, to the extent we complete
an acquisition, we may be unable to realize the anticipated benefits from such acquisition because of operational factors or difficulty in
integrating the acquisition with our existing business. This may include problems involving the integration of:

• additional employees who are not familiar with our operations or our corporate culture,
• new provider networks which may operate on terms different from our existing networks,
• additional members who may decide to transfer to other health care providers or health plans,
• disparate information, claims processing, and record-keeping systems,
• internal controls and accounting policies, including those which require the exercise of judgment and complex estimation
processes, such as estimates of claims incurred but not reported, accounting for goodwill, intangible assets, stock-based
compensation, and income tax matters, and
• new regulatory schemes, relationships, practices, and compliance requirements.
Also, we are generally required to obtain regulatory approval from one or more state agencies when making acquisitions of health
plans. In the case of an acquisition of a business located in a state in which we do not already operate, we would be required to obtain the
necessary licenses to operate in that state. In addition, although we may already operate in a state in which we acquire a new business, we
would be required to obtain regulatory approval if, as a result of the acquisition, we will operate in an area of that state in which we did
not operate previously. We may be unable to obtain the necessary governmental approvals or comply with these regulatory requirements in
a timely manner, if at all. For all of the above reasons, we may not be able to consummate our proposed acquisitions as announced from
time to time to sustain our pattern of growth or to realize benefits from completed acquisitions.

We face periodic routine and non-routine reviews, audits, and investigations by government agencies, and these reviews and

audits could have adverse findings, which could negatively impact our business.
We are subject to various routine and non-routine governmental reviews, audits, and investigations. Violation of the laws,
regulations, or contract provisions governing our operations, or changes in interpretations of those laws, could result in the imposition of
civil or criminal penalties, the cancellation of our contracts to provide managed care services, the suspension or revocation of our licenses,
the exclusion from participation in government sponsored health programs, or the revision and recoupment of past payments made based
on audit findings. For example, from July 26 to July 30, 2010, the Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services, or CMS, conducted an
on-site audit with respect to our Medicare Advantage and Prescription Drug Plan contracts in the compliance areas of prescription drug
formulary administration, prescription drug coverage determinations and appeals, prescription drug grievances, enrollment and
disenrollment, premium billing, and an evaluation of whether we had implemented an effective compliance program. On February 25,
2011, we received from CMS the audit and inspection report. The report provides that we will be given until April 26, 2011 to develop
and implement a corrective action plan to correct the deficiencies noted in the report and to demonstrate to CMS that the underlying
deficiencies have been corrected and are not likely to recur. If we are unable to correct the noted deficiencies, or become subject to material
fines or other sanctions, whether as a result of this most recent CMS audit or otherwise, we might suffer a substantial reduction in
profitability, and might also lose one or more of our government contracts and as a result lose significant numbers of members and
amounts of revenue. In addition, government receivables are subject to government audit and negotiation, and government contracts are
vulnerable to disagreements with the government. The final amounts we ultimately receive under government contracts may be different
from the amounts we initially recognize in our financial statements.

We rely on the accuracy of eligibility lists provided by state governments. Inaccuracies in those lists would negatively affect

our results of operations.
Premium payments to our health plan segment are based upon eligibility lists produced by state governments. From time to time,
states require us to reimburse them for premiums paid to us based on an eligibility list that a state later discovers contains individuals
who are not in fact eligible for a government sponsored program or are eligible for a different premium category or a different program.
Alternatively, a state could fail to pay us for members for
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whom we are entitled to payment. Our results of operations would be adversely affected as a result of such reimbursement to the state if
we had made related payments to providers and were unable to recoup such payments from the providers.

We are subject to extensive fraud and abuse laws which may give rise to lawsuits and claims against us, the outcome of
which may have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows.
Because we receive payments from federal and state governmental agencies, we are subject to various laws commonly referred to as
“fraud and abuse” laws, including the federal False Claims Act, which permit agencies and enforcement authorities to institute suit
against us for violations and, in some cases, to seek treble damages, penalties, and assessments. Liability under such federal and state
statutes and regulations may arise if we know, or it is found that we should have known, that information we provide to form the basis
for a claim for government payment is false or fraudulent, and some courts have permitted False Claims Act suits to proceed if the
claimant was out of compliance with program requirements. Qui tam actions under federal and state law can be brought by any
individual on behalf of the government. Qui tam actions have increased significantly in recent years, causing greater numbers of health
care companies to have to defend a false claim action, pay fines, or be excluded from the Medicare, Medicaid, or other state or federal
health care programs as a result of an investigation arising out of such action. Many states, including states where we currently operate,
have enacted parallel legislation. In the event we are subject to liability under a qui tam action, our business and operating results could be
adversely affected.

Federal regulations require entities subject to HIPAA to update their transaction formats for electronic data exchange from
current HIPAA 4010 requirement to the new HIPAA 5010 standards, which are not only burdensome and complex, but
could adversely impact administrative expense and compliance.
A federal mandate known as HIPAA 5010 will require health plans to use new standards for conducting certain operational and
administrative transactions electronically beginning in January 2012. These administrative transactions include: claims, remittance,
eligibility and claims status requests and responses. The HIPAA 5010 upgrade was prompted by government and industry’s shared goal
of providing higher-quality, lower-cost health care and the need for a comprehensive electronic data exchange environment for the ICD-10
mandate to be implemented by October 2013. Upgrading to the new HIPAA 5010 standards should increase transaction uniformity,
support pay for performance, and streamline reimbursement transactions. We, along with other health plans, face significant pressure to
make sure that we have installed our software and tested it for compatibility with our business partners. Because HIPAA 5010 affects
electronic transactions such as patient eligibility, claims filing, claims status, and remittance advice, we must proceed proactively to
achieve full functionality of HIPAA 5010 transactions before the deadline. Otherwise we may face transaction rejections and subsequent
payment delays, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, cash flows, and results of operations. As the deadline
approaches, we continue to upgrade and test our claims management systems to accommodate HIPAA 5010 and prevent any operational
disruptions.

Our business could be adversely impacted by adoption of the new ICD-10 standardized coding set for diagnoses.
The U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, or HHS, has released rules pursuant to HIPAA which mandate the use of
standard formats in electronic health care transactions. HHS also has published rules requiring the use of standardized code sets and
unique identifiers for providers. By October 2013, the federal government will require that health care organizations, including health
insurers, upgrade to updated and expanded standardized code sets used for documenting health conditions. These new standardized code
sets, known as ICD-10, will require substantial investments from health care organizations, including us. While use of the ICD-10 code
sets will require significant administrative changes, we believe that the cost of compliance with these regulations has not had and is not
expected to have a material adverse effect on our cash flows, financial position, or results of operations. However, these changes may
result in errors and otherwise negatively impact our service levels, and we may experience complications related to supporting customers
that are not fully compliant with the revised requirements as of the applicable compliance date. Furthermore, if physicians fail to provide,
appropriate codes for services provided as a result of the new coding set, we may not be reimbursed, or adequately reimbursed, for such
services.
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If we are unable to deliver quality care, maintain good relations with the physicians, hospitals, and other providers with
whom we contract, or if we are unable to enter into cost-effective contracts with such providers, our profitability could be
adversely affected.
We contract with physicians, hospitals, and other providers as a means to ensure access to health care services for our members, to
manage health care costs and utilization, and to better monitor the quality of care being delivered. We compete with other health plans to
contract with these providers. We believe providers select plans in which they participate based on criteria including reimbursement rates,
timeliness and accuracy of claims payment, potential to deliver new patient volume and/or retain existing patients, effectiveness of
resolution of calls and complaints, and other factors. We cannot be sure that we will be able to successfully attract and retain providers to
maintain a competitive network in the geographic areas we serve. In addition, in any particular market, providers could refuse to contract
with us, demand higher payments, or take other actions which could result in higher health care costs, disruption to provider access for
current members, a decline in our growth rate, or difficulty in meeting regulatory or accreditation requirements.
The Medicaid program generally pays doctors and hospitals at levels well below those of Medicare and private insurance. Large
numbers of doctors, therefore, do not accept Medicaid patients. In the face of fiscal pressures, some states may reduce rates paid to
providers, which may further discourage participation in the Medicaid program.

In some markets, certain providers, particularly hospitals, physician/hospital organizations, and some specialists, may have
significant market positions or even monopolies. If these providers refuse to contract with us or utilize their market position to negotiate
favorable contracts which are disadvantageous to us, our profitability in those areas could be adversely affected.
Some providers that render services to our members are not contracted with our plans. In those cases, there is no pre-established
understanding between the provider and our plan about the amount of compensation that is due to the provider. In some states, the amount
of compensation is defined by law or regulation, but in most instances it is either not defined or it is established by a standard that is not
clearly translatable into dollar terms. In such instances, providers may believe they are underpaid for their services and may either litigate
or arbitrate their dispute with our plan. The uncertainty of the amount to pay and the possibility of subsequent adjustment of the payment
could adversely affect our business, financial position, cash flows, or results of operations.

The insolvency of a delegated provider could obligate us to pay their referral claims, which could have an adverse effect on
our business, cash flows, or results of operations.
Circumstances may arise where providers to whom we have delegated risk, due to insolvency or other circumstances, are unable to
pay claims they have incurred with third parties in connection with referral services provided to our members. The inability of delegated
providers to pay referral claims presents us with both immediate financial risk and potential disruption to member care. Depending on
states’ laws, we may be held liable for such unpaid referral claims even though the delegated provider has contractually assumed such
risk. Additionally, competitive pressures may force us to pay such claims even when we have no legal obligation to do so or we have
already paid claims to a delegated provider and payments cannot be recouped if the delegated provider becomes insolvent. To reduce the
risk that delegated providers are unable to pay referral claims, we monitor the operational and financial performance of such providers.
We also maintain contingency plans that include transferring members to other providers in response to potential network instability. In
certain instances, we have required providers to place funds on deposit with us as protection against their potential insolvency. These
funds are frequently in the form of segregated funds received from the provider and held by us or placed in a third-party financial
institution. These funds may be used to pay claims that are the financial responsibility of the provider in the event the provider is unable
to meet these obligations. However, there can be no assurances that these precautionary steps will fully protect us against the insolvency of
a delegated provider. Liabilities incurred or losses suffered as a result of provider insolvency could have an adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, cash flows, or results of operations.
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Regulatory actions and negative publicity regarding Medicaid managed care and Medicare Advantage may lead to
programmatic changes and intensified regulatory scrutiny and regulatory burdens.
Several of our health care competitors have recently been involved in governmental investigations and regulatory actions which have
resulted in significant volatility in the price of their stock. In addition, there has been negative publicity and proposed programmatic
changes regarding Medicare Advantage private fee-for-service plans, a part of the Medicare Advantage program in which the Company
does not participate. These actions and the resulting negative publicity could become associated with or imputed to the Company,
regardless of the Company’s actual regulatory compliance or programmatic participation. Such an association, as well as any perception
of a recurring pattern of abuse among the health plan participants in government programs and the diminished reputation of the managed
care sector as a whole, could result in public distrust, political pressure for changes in the programs in which the Company does
participate, intensified scrutiny by regulators, additional regulatory requirements and burdens, increased stock volatility due to
speculative trading, and heightened barriers to new managed care markets and contracts, all of which could have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition, cash flows, or results of operations.

If a state fails to renew its federal waiver application for mandated Medicaid enrollment into managed care or such
application is denied, our membership in that state will likely decrease.
States may only mandate Medicaid enrollment into managed care under federal waivers or demonstrations. Waivers and programs
under demonstrations are approved for two- to five-year periods and can be renewed on an ongoing basis if the state applies and the waiver
request is approved or renewed by CMS. We have no control over this renewal process. If a state does not renew its mandated program or
the federal government denies the state’s application for renewal, our business would suffer as a result of a likely decrease in membership.

If state regulators do not approve payments of dividends and distributions by our subsidiaries, it may negatively affect our
business strategy.
We are a corporate parent holding company and hold most of our assets at, and conduct most of our operations through, direct
subsidiaries. As a holding company, our results of operations depend on the results of operations of our subsidiaries. Moreover, we are
dependent on dividends or other intercompany transfers of funds from our subsidiaries to meet our debt service and other obligations.
The ability of our subsidiaries to pay dividends or make other payments or advances to us will depend on their operating results and will
be subject to applicable laws and restrictions contained in agreements governing the debt of such subsidiaries. In addition, our health plan
subsidiaries are subject to laws and regulations that limit the amount of dividends and distributions that they can pay to us without prior
approval of, or notification to, state regulators. In California, our health plan may dividend, without notice to or approval of the
California Department of Managed Health Care, amounts by which its tangible net equity exceeds 130% of the tangible net equity
requirement. Our other health plans must give thirty days’ advance notice and the opportunity to disapprove “extraordinary” dividends to
the respective state departments of insurance for amounts over the lesser of (a) ten percent of surplus or net worth at the prior year end or
(b) the net income for the prior year. The discretion of the state regulators, if any, in approving or disapproving a dividend is not clearly
defined. Health plans that declare non-extraordinary dividends must usually provide notice to the regulators ten or fifteen days in advance
of the intended distribution date of the non-extraordinary dividend. The aggregate amounts our health plan subsidiaries could have paid
us at December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008 without approval of the regulatory authorities were approximately $18.8 million, $9.0 million,
and $7.6 million, respectively. If the regulators were to deny or significantly restrict our subsidiaries’ requests to pay dividends to us, the
funds available to our company as a whole would be limited, which could harm our ability to implement our business strategy. For
example, we could be hindered in our ability to make debt service payments under our credit facility and/or our convertible senior notes.

Unforeseen changes in pharmaceutical regulations or market conditions may impact our revenues and adversely affect our
results of operations.
A significant category of our health care costs relate to pharmaceutical products and services. Evolving regulations and state and
federal mandates regarding coverage may impact the ability of our health plans to continue to receive existing price discounts on
pharmaceutical products for our members. Other factors affecting our pharmaceutical costs include, but are not limited to, the price of
pharmaceuticals, geographic variation in utilization
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of new and existing pharmaceuticals, and changes in discounts. The unpredictable nature of these factors may have an adverse effect on
our business, financial condition, cash flows, or results of operations.

An unauthorized disclosure of sensitive or confidential member information could have an adverse effect on our business.
As part of our normal operations, we collect, process, and retain confidential member information. We are subject to various federal
and state laws and rules regarding the use and disclosure of confidential member information, including HIPAA and the Gramm-LeachBliley Act. The Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act provisions of the ARRA further expand the coverage
of HIPAA by, among other things, extending the privacy and security provisions, mandating new regulations around electronic medical
records, expanding enforcement mechanisms, allowing the state Attorneys General to bring enforcement actions, increasing penalties for
violations, and requiring public disclosure of improper disclosures of health information of more than 500 individuals.
Under ARRA, civil penalties for HIPAA violations by covered entities are increased up to an annual maximum of $1.5 million for
uncorrected violations based on willful neglect. In addition, imposition of these penalties is now more likely because ARRA strengthens
enforcement. For example, commencing February 2010, HHS was required to conduct periodic audits to confirm compliance.
Investigations of violations that indicate willful neglect, for which penalties are mandatory beginning in February 2011, are statutorily
required. In addition, state attorneys general are authorized to bring civil actions seeking either injunctions or damages in response to
violations of HIPAA privacy and security regulations that threaten the privacy of state residents. Initially monies collected will be
transferred to a division of HHS for further enforcement, and within three years, a methodology will be adopted for distributing a
percentage of those monies to affected individuals to fund enforcement and provide incentive for individuals to report violations. In
addition, ARRA requires us to notify affected individuals, HHS, and in some cases the media when unsecured personal health
information is subject to a security breach.

ARRA also contains a number of provisions that provide incentives for states to initiate certain programs related to health care and
health care technology, such as electronic health records. While provisions such as these do not apply to us directly, states wishing to
apply for grants under ARRA, or otherwise participating in such programs, may impose new health care technology requirements on us
through our contracts with state Medicaid agencies. We are unable to predict what such requirements may entail or what their effect on our
business may be.
We will continue to assess our compliance obligations as regulations under ARRA are promulgated and more guidance becomes
available from HHS and other federal agencies. The new privacy and security requirements, however, may require substantial operational
and systems changes, employee education and resources and there is no guarantee that we be able to implement them adequately or prior to
their effective date. Given HIPAA’s complexity and the anticipated new regulations, which may be subject to changing and perhaps
conflicting interpretation, our ongoing ability to comply with all of the HIPAA requirements is uncertain, which may expose us to the
criminal and increased civil penalties provided under ARRA and may require us to incur significant costs in order to seek to comply with
its requirements.
Despite the security measures we have in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and rules, our facilities and systems, and
those of our third-party service providers, may be vulnerable to security breaches, acts of vandalism, computer viruses, misplaced or
lost data, programming and/or human errors or other similar events. Any security breach involving the misappropriation, loss or other
unauthorized disclosure or use of confidential member information, whether by us or a third party, could subject us to civil and criminal
penalties and have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, cash flows, or results of operations.

Risks Related to the Operation of Our Molina Medicaid Solutions Business
MMIS operational problems in Idaho or Maine could result in reduced or withheld payments, damage assessments,
increased administrative costs, or even contract termination, any of which could adversely affect our business, financial
condition, cash flows, or results of operations.
From and after the MMIS operational or “go live” date of June 1, 2010 after which it began pilot operations, Molina Medicaid
Solutions has experienced certain problems with the MMIS in Idaho. On October 5, 2010, Molina Medicaid Solutions received from the
Idaho Department of Administration a notice to cure letter with respect to its
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alleged non-compliance with certain provisions of the MMIS project agreements. Molina Medicaid Solutions and the Idaho Department of
Health and Welfare (“DHW”) have been working together to resolve the MMIS problems, and Molina Medicaid Solutions has developed a
corrective action plan with respect to the identified problems and defects. Molina Medicaid Solutions believes it has ameliorated or
corrected many of the identified problems, and that it will ultimately be successful in resolving all of the MMIS issues in Idaho. However,
in the event Molina Medicaid Solutions is unsuccessful in correcting all of the identified problems, the Idaho Department of
Administration may: (i) reduce or withhold its payments to Molina Medicaid Solutions, (ii) require Molina Medicaid Solutions to provide
services at no additional cost to Idaho, (iii) require the payment of damages, or (iv) terminate its contract with Molina Medicaid Solutions.
In addition, Molina Medicaid Solutions may incur much greater administrative costs than expected in correcting the MMIS problems, or
in advancing interim payments to Idaho providers. For example, the consulting and outside service costs for Idaho following its go-live
operational date have not declined from the pre-operational level as had been previously expected. Finally, Idaho DHW may not accept the
MMIS developed and implemented by Molina Medicaid Solutions, or CMS may not certify such MMIS.

All of such risks are also applicable to the MMIS in Maine which became operational and began pilot operations as of September 1,
2010. The realization of any of the foregoing risks could adversely affect our business, financial condition, cash flows, or results of
operations.

We may be unable to retain or renew the state government contracts of the Molina Medicaid Solutions segment on terms
consistent with our expectations or at all.
Molina Medicaid Solutions currently has management contracts in only six states. If we are unable to continue to operate in any of
those six states, or if our current operations in any of those six states were significantly curtailed, the revenues and cash flows of Molina
Medicaid Solutions could decrease materially, and as a result our profitability would be negatively impacted.

If the responsive bids to RFPs of Molina Medicaid Solutions are not successful, including its responsive bid in Louisiana
during 2011, our revenues could be materially reduced and our operating results could be negatively impacted.
The government contracts of Molina Medicaid Solutions may be subject to periodic competitive bidding. In such process, Molina
Medicaid Solutions may face competition as other service providers, some with much greater financial resources and greater name
recognition, attempt to enter our markets through the competitive bidding process. For instance, the state MMIS contract of Louisiana is
currently subject to competitive bidding. Molina Medicaid Solutions also anticipates bidding in other states which have issued RFPs for
procurement of a new MMIS. In the event the responsive bid in Louisiana is not successful, we will lose our fiscal agent contract in that
state, and our revenues could be materially reduced as a result. In addition, in the event our responsive bids in other states are not
successful, we will be unable to grow in a manner consistent with our projections. Even if our responsive bids are successful, the bids
may be based upon assumptions or other factors which could result in the contract being less profitable than we had expected or had been
the case prior to competitive re-bidding.

Because of the complexity and duration of the services and systems required to be delivered under the government contracts
of Molina Medicaid Solutions, there are substantial risks associated with full performance under the contracts.
The state contracts of Molina Medicaid Solutions typically require significant investment in the early stages that is expected to be
recovered through billings over the life of the contracts. These contracts involve the construction of new computer systems and
communications networks and the development and deployment of complex technologies. Substantial performance risk exists under each
contract. Some or all elements of service delivery under these contracts are dependent upon successful completion of the design,
development, construction, and implementation phases. Any increased or unexpected costs or unanticipated delays in connection with the
performance of these contracts, including delays caused by factors outside our control, could make these contracts less profitable or
unprofitable, which could have an adverse effect on our overall business, financial condition, cash flows, or results of operations.
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If we fail to comply with our state government contracts or government contracting regulations, our business may be
adversely affected.
Molina Medicaid Solutions’ contracts with state government customers may include unique and specialized performance
requirements. In particular, contracts with state government customers are subject to various procurement regulations, contract
provisions, and other requirements relating to their formation, administration, and performance. Any failure to comply with the specific
provisions in our customer contracts or any violation of government contracting regulations could result in the imposition of various civil
and criminal penalties, which may include termination of the contracts, forfeiture of profits, suspension of payments, imposition of
fines, and suspension from future government contracting. Further, any negative publicity related to our state government contracts or
any proceedings surrounding them may damage our business by affecting our ability to compete for new contracts. The termination of a
state government contract, our suspension from government work, or any negative impact on our ability to compete for new contracts,
could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, cash flows, or results of operations.

System security risks and systems integration issues that disrupt our internal operations or information technology services
provided to customers could adversely affect our financial results or damage our reputation.
Experienced computer programmers and hackers may be able to penetrate our network security and misappropriate our confidential
information or that of third parties, create system disruptions or cause shutdowns. Computer programmers and hackers also may be able
to develop and deploy viruses, worms, and other malicious software programs that attack our products or otherwise exploit any security
vulnerabilities of our products. In addition, sophisticated hardware and operating system software and applications that we produce or
procure from third parties may contain defects in design or manufacture, including “bugs” and other problems that could unexpectedly
interfere with the operation of the system. The costs to us to eliminate or alleviate security problems, bugs, viruses, worms, malicious
software programs and security vulnerabilities could be significant, and the efforts to address these problems could result in
interruptions, delays, cessation of service, and loss of existing or potential government customers.

Molina Medicaid Solutions routinely processes, stores, and transmits large amounts of data for our clients, including sensitive and
personally identifiable information. Breaches of our security measures could expose us, our customers, or the individuals affected to a
risk of loss or misuse of this information, resulting in litigation and potential liability for us and damage to our brand and reputation.
Accordingly, we could lose existing or potential government customers for outsourcing services or other information technology solutions
or incur significant expenses in connection with our customers’ system failures or any actual or perceived security vulnerabilities in our
products. In addition, the cost and operational consequences of implementing further data protection measures could be significant.
Portions of our information technology infrastructure also may experience interruptions, delays, or cessations of service or produce
errors in connection with systems integration or migration work that takes place from time to time. We may not be successful in
implementing new systems and transitioning data, which could cause business disruptions and be more expensive, time consuming,
disruptive, and resource-intensive. Such disruptions could adversely impact our ability to fulfill orders and interrupt other processes.
Delayed sales, lower margins, or lost government customers resulting from these disruptions could adversely affect our financial results,
reputation, and stock price.

In the course of providing services to customers, Molina Medicaid Solutions may inadvertently infringe on the intellectual
property rights of others and be exposed to claims for damages.
The solutions we provide to our state government customers may inadvertently infringe on the intellectual property rights of third
parties resulting in claims for damages against us. The expense and time of defending against these claims may have a material and
adverse impact on our profitability. Additionally, the publicity we may receive as a result of infringing intellectual property rights may
damage our reputation and adversely impact our ability to develop new MMIS business.
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Inherent in the government contracting process are various risks which may materially and adversely affect our business
and profitability.
We are subject to the risks inherent in the government contracting process. These risks include government audits of billable
contract costs and reimbursable expenses and compliance with government reporting requirements. In the event we are found to be out of
compliance with government contracting requirements, our reputation may be adversely impacted and our relationship with the
government agencies we work with may be damaged, resulting in a material and adverse effect on our profitability.

Our performance on contracts, including those on which we have partnered with third parties, may be adversely affected if
we or the third parties fail to deliver on commitments.
In some instances, our contracts require that we partner with other parties including software and hardware vendors to provide the
complex solutions required by our state government customers. Our ability to deliver the solutions and provide the services required by
our customers is dependent on our and our partners’ ability to meet our customers’ delivery schedules. If we or our partners fail to deliver
services or products on time, our ability to complete the contract may be adversely affected, which may have a material and adverse
impact on our revenue and profitability.

Risks Related to our General Business Operations
Restrictions and covenants in our credit facility may limit our ability to make certain acquisitions or reduce our liquidity and
capital resources.
We have a $150 million senior secured credit facility that imposes numerous restrictions and covenants, including prescribed
consolidated leverage and fixed charge coverage ratios, net worth requirements, and acquisition limitations that restrict our financial and
operating flexibility, including our ability to make certain acquisitions above specified values and declare dividends without lender
approval. As a result of the restrictions and covenants imposed under our credit facility, our growth strategy may be negatively impacted
by our inability to act with complete flexibility, or our inability to use our credit facility in the manner intended. In addition, our credit
facility matures in May 2012. If we are in default at a time when funds under the credit facility are required to finance an acquisition, or
if a proposed acquisition does not satisfy the pro forma financial requirements under our credit facility, or if we are unable to renew or
refinance our credit facility prior to its maturity, we may be unable to use the credit facility in the manner intended, and our operations,
liquidity, and capital resources could be materially adversely affected.

Ineffective management of our growth may negatively affect our business, financial condition, or results of operations.
Depending on acquisitions and other opportunities, we expect to continue to grow our membership and to expand into other markets.
In fiscal year 2006, we had total premium revenue of $2.0 billion. In fiscal year 2010, we had total premium revenue of $4.0 billion, an
increase of 100% over a five-year span. Continued rapid growth could place a significant strain on our management and on other
Company resources. Our ability to manage our growth may depend on our ability to strengthen our management team and attract, train,
and retain skilled employees, and our ability to implement and improve operational, financial, and management information systems on a
timely basis. If we are unable to manage our growth effectively, our business, financial condition, cash flows, and results of operations
could be materially and adversely affected. In addition, due to the initial substantial costs related to acquisitions, rapid growth could
adversely affect our short-term profitability and liquidity.

Any changes to the laws and regulations governing our business, or the interpretation and enforcement of those laws or
regulations, could cause us to modify our operations and could negatively impact our operating results.
Our business is extensively regulated by the federal government and the states in which we operate. The laws and regulations
governing our operations are generally intended to benefit and protect health plan members and providers rather than managed care
organizations. The government agencies administering these laws and regulations have broad latitude in interpreting and applying them.
These laws and regulations, along with the terms of our government contracts, regulate how we do business, what services we offer, and
how we interact with
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members and the public. For instance, some states mandate minimum medical expense levels as a percentage of premium revenues. These
laws and regulations, and their interpretations, are subject to frequent change. The interpretation of certain contract provisions by our
governmental regulators may also change. Changes in existing laws or regulations, or their interpretations, or the enactment of new laws or
regulations, could reduce our profitability by imposing additional capital requirements, increasing our liability, increasing our
administrative and other costs, increasing mandated benefits, forcing us to restructure our relationships with providers, or requiring us to
implement additional or different programs and systems. Changes in the interpretation of our contracts could also reduce our profitability
if we have detrimentally relied on a prior interpretation.

Our business depends on our information and medical management systems, and our inability to effectively integrate,
manage, and keep secure our information and medical management systems, could disrupt our operations.
Our business is dependent on effective and secure information systems that assist us in, among other things, processing provider
claims, monitoring utilization and other cost factors, supporting our medical management techniques, and providing data to our
regulators. Our providers also depend upon our information systems for membership verifications, claims status, and other information.
If we experience a reduction in the performance, reliability, or availability of our information and medical management systems, our
operations, ability to pay claims, and ability to produce timely and accurate reports could be adversely affected. In addition, if the
licensor or vendor of any software which is integral to our operations were to become insolvent or otherwise fail to support the software
sufficiently, our operations could be negatively affected.

Our information systems and applications require continual maintenance, upgrading, and enhancement to meet our operational
needs. Moreover, our acquisition activity requires transitions to or from, and the integration of, various information systems. If we
experience difficulties with the transition to or from information systems or are unable to properly implement, maintain, upgrade or
expand our system, we could suffer from, among other things, operational disruptions, loss of members, difficulty in attracting new
members, regulatory problems, and increases in administrative expenses.
Our business requires the secure transmission of confidential information over public networks. Advances in computer capabilities,
new discoveries in the field of cryptography, or other events or developments could result in compromises or breaches of our security
systems and member data stored in our information systems. Anyone who circumvents our security measures could misappropriate our
confidential information or cause interruptions in services or operations. The internet is a public network, and data is sent over this
network from many sources. In the past, computer viruses or software programs that disable or impair computers have been distributed
and have rapidly spread over the internet. Computer viruses could be introduced into our systems, or those of our providers or regulators,
which could disrupt our operations, or make our systems inaccessible to our members, providers, or regulators. We may be required to
expend significant capital and other resources to protect against the threat of security breaches or to alleviate problems caused by breaches.
Because of the confidential health information we store and transmit, security breaches could expose us to a risk of regulatory action,
litigation, possible liability and loss. Our security measures may be inadequate to prevent security breaches, and our business operations
would be negatively impacted by cancellation of contracts and loss of members if security breaches are not prevented.

Because our corporate headquarters are located in Southern California, our business operations may be significantly
disrupted as a result of a major earthquake.
Our corporate headquarters is located in Long Beach, California. In addition, the claims of our health plans are also processed in
Long Beach. Southern California is exposed to a statistically greater risk of a major earthquake than most other parts of the United States.
If a major earthquake were to strike the Los Angeles area, our corporate functions and claims processing could be significantly impaired
for a substantial period of time. Although we have established a disaster recovery and business resumption plan with back-up operating
sites to be deployed in the case of such a major disruptive event, there can be no assurances that the disaster recovery plan will be
successful or that the business operations of all our health plans, including those that are remote from any such event, would not be
substantially impacted by a major Southern California earthquake.

27

Table of Contents

We face claims related to litigation which could result in substantial monetary damages.
We are subject to a variety of legal actions, including medical malpractice actions, provider disputes, employment related disputes,
and breach of contract actions. In the event we incur liability materially in excess of the amount for which we have insurance coverage,
our profitability would suffer. In addition, our providers involved in medical care decisions are exposed to the risk of medical malpractice
claims. Providers at our 16 primary care clinics in California and two in Washington are employees of our health plans. As a direct
employer of physicians and ancillary medical personnel and as an operator of primary care clinics, our plans are subject to liability for
negligent acts, omissions, or injuries occurring at one of its clinics or caused by one of their employees. We maintain medical malpractice
insurance for our clinics as we believe are reasonable in light of our experience to date. However, given the significant amount of some
medical malpractice awards and settlements, this insurance may not be sufficient or available at a reasonable cost to protect us from
damage awards or other liabilities. Even if any claims brought against us were unsuccessful or without merit, we would have to defend
ourselves against such claims. The defense of any such actions may be time-consuming and costly, and may distract our management’s
attention. As a result, we may incur significant expenses and may be unable to effectively operate our business.

Furthermore, claimants often sue managed care organizations for improper denials of or delays in care, and in some instances
improper authorizations of care. Claims of this nature could result in substantial damage awards against us and our providers that could
exceed the limits of any applicable medical malpractice insurance coverage. Successful malpractice or tort claims asserted against us, our
providers, or our employees could adversely affect our financial condition and profitability.
We cannot predict the outcome of any lawsuit with certainty. While we currently have insurance coverage for some of the potential
liabilities relating to litigation, other such liabilities may not be covered by insurance, the insurers could dispute coverage, or the amount
of insurance could be insufficient to cover the damages awarded. In addition, insurance coverage for all or certain types of liability may
become unavailable or prohibitively expensive in the future or the deductible on any such insurance coverage could be set at a level which
would result in us effectively self-insuring cases against us.
Although we establish reserves for litigation as we believe appropriate, we cannot assure you that our recorded reserves will be
adequate to cover such costs. Therefore, the litigation to which we are subject could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, cash flows, or results of operations, and could prompt us to change our operating procedures.

We are subject to competition which negatively impacts our ability to increase penetration in the markets we serve.
We operate in a highly competitive environment and in an industry that is subject to ongoing changes from business consolidations,
new strategic alliances, and aggressive marketing practices by other managed care organizations. We compete for members principally on
the basis of size, location, and quality of provider network, benefits supplied, quality of service, and reputation. A number of these
competitive elements are partially dependent upon and can be positively affected by the financial resources available to a health plan.
Many other organizations with which we compete, including large commercial plans, have substantially greater financial and other
resources than we do. For these reasons, we may be unable to grow our membership, or may lose members to other health plans.

Failure to maintain effective internal controls over financial reporting could have a material adverse effect on our business,
operating results, and stock price.
The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 requires, among other things, that we maintain effective internal control over financial reporting. In
particular, we must perform system and process evaluation and testing of our internal controls over financial reporting to allow
management to report on, and our independent registered public accounting firm to attest to, our internal controls over financial reporting
as required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Our future testing, or the subsequent testing by our independent registered
public accounting firm, may reveal deficiencies in our internal controls over financial reporting that are deemed to be material weaknesses.
Our compliance with Section 404 will continue to require that we incur substantial accounting expense and expend significant management
time and effort. Moreover, if we are not able to continue to comply with the requirements of Section 404 in a timely manner, or if we or our
independent registered public accounting firm identifies deficiencies
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in our internal control over financial reporting that are deemed to be material weaknesses, the market price of our stock could decline and
we could be subject to sanctions or investigations by the NYSE, SEC or other regulatory authorities, which would require additional
financial and management resources.

Changes in accounting may affect our results of operations.
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) and related implementation guidelines and interpretations can be highly
complex and involve subjective judgments. Changes in these rules or their interpretation, or the adoption of new pronouncements could
significantly affect our stated results of operations.

Our investments in auction rate securities are subject to risks that may cause losses and have a material adverse effect on
our liquidity.
As of December 31, 2010, our investments in auction rate securities included amounts designated as available-for-sale securities
amounted to $24.6 million par value (fair value of $20.4 million). As a result of the decrease in fair value of auction rate securities
designated as available-for-sale, we recorded pretax unrealized losses of $0.2 million to accumulated other comprehensive loss for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2010. We deem the cumulative unrealized losses on these securities to be temporary and attribute the
decline in value to liquidity issues, as a result of the failed auction market, rather than to credit issues. Any future fluctuation in fair
value related to these instruments that we deem to be temporary, including any recoveries of previous write-downs, would be recorded to
accumulated other comprehensive loss. If we determine that any future valuation adjustment was other-than-temporary, we would record a
charge to earnings as appropriate. For our investments in auction rate securities, we do not intend to sell, nor is it more likely than not that
we will be required to sell, these investments before recovery of their cost. However, if we were to sell these investments before recovery of
their cost, we would be required to record a charge to earnings for any accumulated losses, which would impact our earnings for the
quarter in which such event occurred.

The value of our investments is influenced by varying economic and market conditions, and a decrease in value could have
an adverse effect on our results of operations, liquidity, and financial condition.
Our investments consist solely of investment-grade debt securities. The unrestricted portion of this portfolio is designated as
available-for-sale. Our non-current restricted investments are designated as held-to-maturity. Available-for-sale investments are carried at
fair value, and the unrealized gains or losses are included in accumulated other comprehensive income or loss as a separate component of
stockholders’ equity, unless the decline in value is deemed to be other-than-temporary and we do not have the intent and ability to hold
such securities until their full cost can be recovered. For our available-for-sale investments and held-to-maturity investments, if a decline
in value is deemed to be other-than-temporary and we do not have the intent and ability to hold such security until its full cost can be
recovered, the security is deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired and it is written down to fair value and the loss is recorded as an
expense.

In accordance with applicable accounting standards, we review our investment securities to determine if declines in fair value below
cost are other-than-temporary. This review is subjective and requires a high degree of judgment. We conduct this review on a quarterly
basis, using both quantitative and qualitative factors, to determine whether a decline in value is other-than-temporary. Such factors
considered include the length of time and the extent to which market value has been less than cost, the financial condition and near term
prospects of the issuer, recommendations of investment advisors and forecasts of economic, market or industry trends. This review
process also entails an evaluation of our ability and intent to hold individual securities until they mature or full cost can be recovered.
The current economic environment and recent volatility of the securities markets increase the difficulty of assessing investment
impairment and the same influences tend to increase the risk of potential impairment of these assets. Over time, the economic and market
environment may provide additional insight regarding the fair value of certain securities, which could change our judgment regarding
impairment. This could result in realized losses relating to other-than-temporary declines to be recorded as an expense. Given the current
market conditions and the significant judgments involved, there is continuing risk that declines in fair value may occur and material
other-than-temporary impairments may result in realized losses in future periods which could have an adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, cash flows, or results of operations.
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Unanticipated changes in our tax rates or exposure to additional income tax liabilities could affect our profitability.
We are subject to income taxes in the United States. Our effective tax rate could be adversely affected by changes in the mix of
earnings in states with different statutory tax rates, changes in the valuation of deferred tax assets and liabilities, changes in U.S. tax laws
and regulations, and changes in our interpretations of tax laws, including pending tax law changes. In addition, we are subject to the
routine examination of our income tax returns by the Internal Revenue Service and other local and state tax authorities. We regularly assess
the likelihood of outcomes resulting from these examinations to determine the adequacy of our estimated income tax liabilities. Adverse
outcomes from tax examinations, or the accounting reversal of any tax benefits or revenue previously recognized by us, could have an
adverse effect on our provision for income taxes, estimated income tax liabilities, or results of operations.

We are dependent on our executive officers and other key employees.
Our operations are highly dependent on the efforts of our executive officers. The loss of their leadership, knowledge, and experience
could negatively impact our operations. Replacing many of our executive officers might be difficult or take an extended period of time
because a limited number of individuals in the managed care industry have the breadth and depth of skills and experience necessary to
operate and expand successfully a business such as ours. Our success is also dependent on our ability to hire and retain qualified
management, technical, and medical personnel. We may be unsuccessful in recruiting and retaining such personnel, which could
negatively impact our operations.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock
Volatility of our stock price could adversely affect stockholders.
Since our initial public offering in July 2003, the sales price of our common stock has ranged from a low of $16.12 to a high of
$53.23. A number of factors will continue to influence the market price of our common stock, including:

• state and federal budget pressures,
• changes in expectations as to our future financial performance or changes in financial estimates, if any, of public market
analysts,
• announcements relating to our business or the business of our competitors,
• changes in government payment levels,
• adverse publicity regarding health maintenance organizations and other managed care organizations,
• government action regarding member eligibility,
• changes in state mandatory programs,
• conditions generally affecting the managed care industry or our provider networks,
• the success of our operating or acquisition strategy,
• the operating and stock price performance of other comparable companies in the health care industry,
• the termination of our Medicaid or CHIP contracts with state or county agencies, or subcontracts with other Medicaid managed
care organizations that contract with such state or county agencies,
• regulatory or legislative change,
• general economic conditions, including unemployment rates, inflation, and interest rates, and
• the factors set forth under “Risk Factors” in this report.
Our stock may not trade at the same levels as the stock of other health care companies or the market in general. Also, if the trading
market for our stock does not continue to develop, securities analysts may not maintain or initiate research coverage of our Company and
our shares, and this could depress the market for our shares.

Members of the Molina family own a majority of our capital stock, decreasing the influence of other stockholders on
stockholder decisions.
Members of the Molina family, either directly or as trustees or beneficiaries of Molina family trusts, in the aggregate own or are
entitled to receive upon certain events approximately 55% of our capital stock. Our president
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and chief executive officer, as well as our chief financial officer, are members of the Molina family, and they are also on our board of
directors. Because of the amount of their shareholdings, Molina family members, if they were to act as a group with the trustees of their
family trusts, have the ability to significantly influence all matters submitted to stockholders for approval, including the election and
removal of directors, amendments to our charter, and any merger, consolidation, or sale of our Company. A significant concentration of
share ownership can also adversely affect the trading price for our common stock because investors often discount the value of stock in
companies that have controlling stockholders. Furthermore, the concentration of share ownership in the Molina family could delay or
prevent a merger or consolidation, takeover, or other business combination that could be favorable to our stockholders. Finally, the
interests and objectives of the Molina family may be different from those of our company or our other stockholders, and they may vote
their common stock in a manner that is contrary to the vote of our other stockholders.

Future sales of our common stock or equity-linked securities in the public market could adversely affect the trading price of
our common stock and our ability to raise funds in new stock offerings.
We may issue equity securities in the future, including securities that are convertible into or exchangeable for, or that represent the
right to receive, common stock. Sales of a substantial number of shares of our common stock or other equity securities, including sales
of shares in connection with any future acquisitions, could be substantially dilutive to our stockholders. These sales may have a harmful
effect on prevailing market prices for our common stock and our ability to raise additional capital in the financial markets at a time and
price favorable to us. Moreover, to the extent that we issue restricted stock units, stock appreciation rights, options, or warrants to
purchase our common stock in the future and those stock appreciation rights, options, or warrants are exercised or as the restricted stock
units vest, our stockholders may experience further dilution. Holders of our shares of common stock have no preemptive rights that entitle
holders to purchase a pro rata share of any offering of shares of any class or series and, therefore, such sales or offerings could result in
increased dilution to our stockholders. Our certificate of incorporation provides that we have authority to issue 80,000,000 shares of
common stock and 20,000,000 shares of preferred stock. As of December 31, 2010, 30,308,616 shares of common stock and no shares
of preferred or other capital stock were issued and outstanding.

It may be difficult for a third party to acquire our Company, which could inhibit stockholders from realizing a premium on
their stock price.
We are subject to the Delaware anti-takeover laws regulating corporate takeovers. These provisions may prohibit stockholders
owning 15% or more of our outstanding voting stock from merging or combining with us. In addition, any change in control of our state
health plans would require the approval of the applicable insurance regulator in each state in which we operate.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws also contain provisions that could have the effect of delaying, deferring, or preventing a
change in control of our Company that stockholders may consider favorable or beneficial. These provisions could discourage proxy
contests and make it more difficult for our stockholders to elect directors and take other corporate actions. These provisions could also
limit the price that investors might be willing to pay in the future for shares of our common stock. These provisions include:

• a staggered board of directors, so that it would take three successive annual meetings to replace all directors,
• prohibition of stockholder action by written consent, and
• advance notice requirements for the submission by stockholders of nominations for election to the board of directors and for
proposing matters that can be acted upon by stockholders at a meeting.
In addition, changes of control are often subject to state regulatory notification, and in some cases, prior approval.

We do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.
We have never declared or paid any cash dividends. While we have in the past and may again in the future use our available cash to
repurchase our securities, we do not anticipate declaring or paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.
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Unresolved Staff Comments

Item 1B:
None.

Item 2:

Properties

We lease a total of 67 facilities, including our corporate headquarters at 200 Oceangate in Long Beach, California. We own a
32,000 square-foot office building in Long Beach, California, our 26,000 square-foot data center in Albuquerque, New Mexico, and one
of the community clinics in Pomona, California. We believe our current facilities are adequate to meet our operational needs for the
foreseeable future.

Item 3:

Legal Proceedings

The health care and business process outsourcing industries are subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state, and local
governments. Compliance with these laws and regulations can be subject to government review and interpretation, as well as regulatory
actions unknown and unasserted at this time. Penalties associated with violations of these laws and regulations include significant fines
and penalties, exclusion from participating in publicly funded programs, and the repayment of previously billed and collected revenues.
We are involved in legal actions in the ordinary course of business, some of which seek monetary damages, including claims for
punitive damages, which are not covered by insurance. The outcome of such legal actions is inherently uncertain. Nevertheless, we
believe that these actions, when finally concluded and determined, are not likely to have a material adverse effect on our consolidated
financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

Item 4:

Reserved
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PART II
Item 5:

Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the trading symbol “MOH.” As of

February 15, 2011, there were 115 holders of record of our common stock. The high and low sales prices of our common stock for
specified periods are set forth below:
Date Range

Low

High

2010
First Quarter
Second Quarter

Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter
2009
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

$ 26.39
$ 31.20
$ 31.80
$ 28.28

$ 20.02
$ 25.00
$25.28
$24.65

$ 22.74
$25.75
$ 25.05
$ 23.49

$16.22
$ 18.11
$19.36
$ 17.05

Dividends
We have never paid cash dividends on our common stock. We currently intend to retain any future earnings to fund our business,
and we do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the future.

Our ability to pay dividends is partially dependent on, among other things, our receipt of cash dividends from our regulated
subsidiaries. The ability of our regulated subsidiaries to pay dividends to us is limited by the state departments of insurance in the states
in which we operate or may operate, as well as requirements of the government-sponsored health programs in which we participate. Any
future determination to pay dividends will be at the discretion of our Board and will depend upon, among other factors, our results of
operations, financial condition, capital requirements and contractual restrictions. For more information regarding restrictions on the
ability of our regulated subsidiaries to pay dividends to us, please see Item 7 — Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations — Regulatory Capital and Dividends Restrictions.
Unregistered Issuances of Equity Securities
None.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans (as of December 31, 2010)

Number of Securities to be
Issued Upon Exercise of
Outstanding Options,
Warrants and Rights

Weighted Average
Exercise Price of
Outstanding Options,
Warrants and Rights

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for
Future Issuance
Under Equity Compensation
Plans (Excluding Securities
Reflected in Column (a))

Plan Category

(a)

(b)

(c)

Equity compensation plans
approved by security
holders

513,614(1)

$
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(1) Options to purchase shares of our common stock issued under the 2000 Omnibus Stock and Incentive Plan and the 2002 Equity
Incentive Plan. Further grants under the 2000 Omnibus Stock and Incentive Plan have been suspended.
(2) Includes only shares remaining available to issue under the 2002 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2002 Incentive Plan”) and the 2002
Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”). The 2002 Incentive Plan initially allowed for the issuance of 1.6 million shares of
common stock. Beginning January 1, 2004, shares available for issuance under the 2002 Incentive Plan automatically increase by the
lesser of 400,000 shares or 2% of total outstanding capital stock on a fully diluted basis, unless the board of directors affirmatively
acts to nullify the automatic increase. The 400,000 share increase on January 1, 2011 increased the total number of shares reserved
for issuance under the 2002 Incentive Plan to 4,800,000 shares. The ESPP initially allowed for the issuance of 600,000 shares of
common stock. Beginning December 31, 2003, and each year until the 2.2 million maximum aggregate number of shares reserved for
issuance was reached on December 31, 2008, shares reserved for issuance under the ESPP automatically increased by 1% of total
outstanding capital stock.
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STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following discussion shall not be deemed to be “soliciting material” or to be “filed” with the SEC nor shall this
information be incorporated by reference into any future filing under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, except to the extent that
the Company specifically incorporates it by reference into a filing.
The following line graph compares the percentage change in the cumulative total return on our common stock against the cumulative
total return of the Standard & Poor’s Corporation Composite 500 Index (the “S&P 500”) and a peer group index for the five-year period
from December 31, 2005 to December 31, 2010. The graph assumes an initial investment of $100 in Molina Healthcare, Inc. common
stock and in each of the indices.

The peer group index consists of Amerigroup Corporation (AGP), Centene Corporation (CNC), Coventry Health Care, Inc. (CVH),
Health Net, Inc. (HNT), Humana, Inc. (HUM), UnitedHealth Group Incorporated (UNH), and WellPoint, Inc. (WLP).

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Molina Healthcare, Inc, The S&P 500 Index
And A Peer Group

* $100 invested on 12/31/05 in stock or index, including reinvestment of dividends. Fiscal year ending December 31.
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Item 6.

Selected Financial Data

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
We derived the following selected consolidated financial data (other than the data under the caption “Operating Statistics”) for the
five years ended December 31, 2010 from our audited consolidated financial statements. You should read the data in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements, related notes and other financial information included herein. All dollars are in thousands, except per
share data. The data under the caption “Operating Statistics” has not been audited.
Year Ended December 31,
2010(1)(3)

2009(2)(3)

2008(2)(3)

2007(2)(8)

2006(2)(9)

$ 3,989,909
89,809
6,259
4,085,977

$ 3,660,207
—
9,149
3,669,356

$ 3,091,240
—
21,126
3,112,366

$ 2,462,369
—
30,085
2,492,454

$ 1,985,109
—
19,886
2,004,995

3,370,857
78,647
345,993
139,775
45,704
3,980,976
—
105,001
(15,509)
89,492
34,522
$
54,970

3,176,236
—
276,027
128,581
38,110
3,618,954
1,532
51,934
(13,777)
38,157
7,289
$
30,868

2,621,312
2,080,083
1,678,652
—
—
—
249,646
205,057
168,280
100,165
81,020
60,777
33,688
27,967
21,475
3,004,811
2,394,127
1,929,184
—
—
—
107,555
98,327
75,811
(13,231)
(5,605)
(2,353)
94,324
92,722
73,458
34,726
34,996
27,731
$
59,598 $
57,726 $
45,727

$
$

$
$

$
$

Statements of Income Data:
Revenue:
Premium revenue
Service revenue(1)
Investment income

Total revenue
Expenses:
Medical care costs
Cost of service revenue(1)
General and administrative expenses(2)
Premium tax expenses(2)(3)
Depreciation and amortization
Total expenses
Gain on purchase of convertible senior notes
Operating income
Interest expense
Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes(3)
Net income

Net income per share:

Basic
Diluted

2.00

1.98

1.19
1.19

2.15
2.15

$
$

2.04
2.03

$
$

1.64
1.62

Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding

27,449,000

25,843,000

27,676,000

28,275,000

27,966,000

Weighted average number of common shares and
potential dilutive common shares outstanding

27,754,000

25,984,000

27,772,000

28,419,000

28,164,000

Operating Statistics:
Medical care ratio(4)
General and administrative expense ratio(5)
Premium tax ratio(6)
Members(7)

84.5%
8.5%
3.5%
1,613,000
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86.8%
7.5%
3.5%
1,455,000

84.8%
8.0%
3.2%

1,256,000

84.5%
8.2%
3.3%

1,149,000

84.6%
8.4%
2.3%
1,077,000
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As of December 31,
2010(1)

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets
Long-term debt (including current
maturities)
Total liabilities
Stockholders’ equity

2009

2008

2007(8)

2006(9)

$ 455,886
1,509,214

$ 469,501
1,244,035

$ 387,162
1,148,068

$ 459,064
1,170,016

$ 403,650
864,475

164,014
790,157
719,057

158,900
701,297
542,738

164,873
616,306
531,762

160,166
655,640
514,376

45,000
444,309

420,166

(1) Service revenue and cost of service revenue represent revenue and costs generated by our Molina Medicaid Solutions segment.
Because we acquired this business on May 1, 2010, results for the year ended December 31, 2010 include eight months of results for
this segment.
(2) Prior to 2010, general and administrative expenses have included premium tax expenses. Beginning in 2010, we have reported
premium tax expenses on a separate line in the statements of income data. Prior periods have been reclassified to conform to this
presentation.
(3) Effective January 1, 2008 through December 31, 2009, income tax expense included both the Michigan business income tax, or BIT,

and Michigan modified gross receipts tax, or MGRT. Effective January 1, 2010, we have recorded the MGRT as a premium tax and
not as an income tax. We will continue to record the BIT as an income tax. For the years ended December 31, 2009, and 2008,
amounts for premium tax expense and income tax expense have been reclassified to conform to this presentation. The MGRT
amounted to $6.2 million, $5.5 million, and $5.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively.
(4) Medical care ratio represents medical care costs as a percentage of premium revenue. The medical care ratio is a key operating

indicator used to measure our performance in delivering efficient and cost effective health care services. Changes in the medical care
ratio from period to period result from changes in Medicaid funding by the states, our ability to effectively manage costs, and
changes in accounting estimates related to incurred but not reported claims. See Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations for further discussion.

(5) General and administrative expense ratio represents such expenses as a percentage of total revenue.
(6) Premium tax ratio represents such expenses as a percentage of premium revenue.
(7) Number of members at end of period.
(8) The balance sheet and operating results of the Mercy CarePlus acquisition, relating to our Missouri health plan, have been included
since November 1, 2007, the effective date of the acquisition.

(9) The balance sheet and operating results of the Cape Health Plan acquisition, relating to our Michigan health plan, have been included
since May 15, 2006, the effective date of the acquisition.
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Item 7.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with the “Selected
Financial Data” and the accompanying consolidated financial statements and the notes to those statements appearing elsewhere in this
report. This discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties, including those
set forth under Item 1A — Risk Factors, above.

Reclassifications
Effective January 1, 2010, we have recorded the Michigan modified gross receipts tax, or MGRT, as a premium tax and not as an
income tax. Prior periods have been reclassified to conform to this presentation.

In prior periods, general and administrative, or G&A, expenses have included premium tax expenses. Beginning in 2010, we have
reported premium tax expenses on a separate line in the accompanying consolidated statements of income. Prior periods have been
reclassified to conform to this presentation.
Overview
Molina Healthcare, Inc. provides quality and cost-effective Medicaid-related solutions to meet the health care needs of low-income
families and individuals, and to assist state agencies in their administration of the Medicaid program. Our business comprises our Health
Plans segment, consisting of licensed health maintenance organizations serving Medicaid populations in ten states, and our Molina
Medicaid Solutions segment, which provides design, development, implementation, and business processing solutions to Medicaid
agencies in an additional five states. Our direct delivery business currently consists of 16 primary care community clinics in California
and two primary care community clinics in Washington, and we also manage three county-owned primary care clinics under a contract
with Fairfax County, Virginia.

Our Health Plans segment comprises health plans in California, Florida, Michigan, Missouri, New Mexico, Ohio, Texas, Utah,
Washington, and Wisconsin. These health plans served approximately 1.6 million members eligible for Medicaid, Medicare, and other
government-sponsored health care programs for low-income families and individuals as of December 31, 2010. The health plans are
operated by our respective wholly owned subsidiaries in those states, each of which is licensed as a health maintenance organization, or
HMO. Effective January 1, 2010, we terminated operations at our small Medicare health plan in Nevada.
On May 1, 2010, we acquired a health information management business which we now operate under the name, Molina Medicaid
SolutionsSM. Our Molina Medicaid Solutions segment provides design, development, implementation, and business process outsourcing
solutions to state governments for their Medicaid Management Information Systems, or MMIS. MMIS is a core tool used to support the
administration of state Medicaid and other health care entitlement programs. Molina Medicaid Solutions currently holds MMIS contracts
with the states of Idaho, Louisiana, Maine, New Jersey, and West Virginia, as well as a contract to provide drug rebate administration
services for the Florida Medicaid program. We paid $131.3 million to acquire Molina Medicaid Solutions. The acquisition was funded
with available cash of $26 million and $105 million drawn under our credit facility.
With the addition of Molina Medicaid Solutions, we have added a segment to our internal financial reporting structure in 2010. We
now report our financial performance based on the following two reportable segments: (i) Health Plans; and (ii) Molina Medicaid
Solutions.

Fiscal Year 2010 Overview and Highlights
During 2010, we experienced diversified revenue growth thanks to increased enrollment in our health plans, our successful entry
into the Medicaid health information management business, and an acquisition that established us in a new state. Meanwhile, stronger
medical management and disciplined cost control helped us realize improvements in our health plan medical margins. Many of these
factors contributed to our Company’s strong financial performance in 2010. For the year, our net income rose to $55.0 million, or $1.98
per diluted share, an increase of 78% over 2009. We earned premium revenues of $4.0 billion, up 9% over the previous year. Meanwhile,
during a year when costs continued to rise for the health care industry, we achieved a medical care ratio of 84.5%, compared with a
medical care ratio of 86.8% for fiscal year 2009.
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During 2010, we continued to pursue the expansion of our Medicaid health plan business. In September 2010, we completed the
$15.5 million acquisition of Abri Health Plan of Milwaukee, which served approximately 36,000 Medicaid beneficiaries as of
December 31, 2010. We also expanded our growing presence in Texas, where we were already serving patients in the Houston,
San Antonio, and Laredo service areas. In May 2010, we were awarded a contract to serve Medicaid managed care patients in the sevencounty Dallas service area starting in February 2011. In September 2010, we won an additional contract to administer the CHIP program
(including the CHIP Perinatal program) in 174 predominately rural counties across the state. As of December 31, 2010, we served
approximately 63,000 children and pregnant women under this contract. The new contracts not only provide increased scale for leveraging
our resources in Texas, they make Molina an increasingly important player in a state where the potential revenue opportunity will grow as
new Medicaid beneficiaries qualify for coverage under health care reform.
In addition, during 2010 we expanded our operation of community-based primary care clinics — the business field in which Molina
began over 30 years ago — so that we can serve the needs of our patients while also serving the states that pay for their health care.

Finally, on May 1, 2010, we acquired Molina Medicaid Solutions, an acquisition which has complemented our core business model
of serving government programs, expanded our service offerings diversified our revenue base, and expanded our level of participation in
the Medicaid program.
2010 Financial Performance Summary

The following table briefly summarizes our financial performance for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008. All
ratios, with the exception of the medical care ratio and the premium tax ratio, are shown as a percentage of total revenue. The medical care
ratio and the premium tax ratio are computed as a percentage of premium revenue because there are direct relationships between premium
revenue earned, and the cost of health care and premium taxes.
Year Ended December 31,
2010
2009
2008
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per-share data)

$
1.98
$3,989,909
$
89,809
$ 105,001
$
54,970
1,613,000
97.6%
2.2

Earnings per diluted share
Premium revenue
Service revenue
Operating income
Net income
Total ending membership
Premium revenue
Service revenue
Investment income
Total revenue
Medical care ratio
General and administrative expense ratio
Premium tax ratio
Operating income
Net income
Effective tax rate

$
1.19
$3,660,207
$
—
$ 51,934
$ 30,868
1,455,000
99.8%
—

$
2.15
$ 3,091,240
$
—
$ 107,555
$ 59,598
1,256,000
99.3%
—

0.2

0.2

0.7

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

84.5%
8.5%
3.5%
2.6%

86.8%
7.5%
3.5%

84.8%
8.0%
3.2%

1.4%
0.8%
19.1%

3.5%
1.9%
36.8%

1.3%
38.6%

Health Plans Segment
Our Health Plans segment derives its revenue, in the form of premiums, chiefly from Medicaid contracts with the states in which
our health plans operate. The majority of medical costs associated with premium revenues are risk-based costs — while the health plans
receive fixed per-member per-month, or PMPM, premium payments from the states, the health plans are at risk for the costs of their
members’ health care. Our Health Plans segment operates
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in a highly regulated environment with stringent capitalization requirements. These capitalization requirements, among other things, limit
the health plans’ ability to pay dividends to us without regulatory approval.

As of December 31, 2010, our health plans were located in California, Florida, Michigan, Missouri, New Mexico, Ohio, Texas,
Utah, Washington, and Wisconsin. Additionally, we operate three county-owned primary care clinics in Virginia.

Molina Medicaid Solutions Segment
Our Molina Medicaid Solutions segment provides design, development, implementation, and business process outsourcing
solutions to state governments for their Medicaid Management Information Systems, or MMIS. Among the principle differences between
the Molina Medicaid Solutions segment and the Health Plans segment are:

• The Molina Medicaid Solutions segment, unlike the Health Plans segment, does not assume risk for medical costs. We believe
that over time the Molina Medicaid Solutions segment will experience less volatility in profits than the Health Plans segment
because the costs incurred for the provision of business process outsourcing services are less volatile than those incurred for the
provision of medical care.
• Revenue earned by the Molina Medicaid Solutions segment will be much less than that earned by the Health Plans segment. The
revenue earned by our Health Plans segment is intended to include the cost of the medical care actually provided to our health plan
membership. Such costs typically amount to approximately 85% of the revenue of the health plans segment. The revenue received
by the Molina Medicaid Solutions segment is intended only to pay for certain administrative costs (plus profit) of the Medicaid
program — not the actual cost of services provided to Medicaid members.
• In general, we expect the operating profit margin percentage generated by the Molina Medicaid Solutions segment to be higher than
the operating profit margin percentage generated by the Health Plans segment. While total profit is likely to be lower for the Molina
Medicaid Solutions segment than for the Health Plans segment, the percentage of revenue that we retain as profit is likely to be
higher for the Molina Medicaid Solutions segment.
• The capital requirements of the Molina Medicaid Solutions segment are — except in the case of new contract start-ups —
considerably less than those of our Health Plans segment.
• Regulatory approval is not required for the Molina Medicaid Solutions segment to pay dividends to us.
While we believe that the acquisition of the Molina Medicaid Solutions segment diversifies our risk profile, we also believe that the
two segments are complementary from strategic and operating perspectives. From a strategic perspective, both segments allow us to
participate in an expanding sector of the economy while continuing our mission to serve low-income families and individuals eligible for
government-sponsored health care programs. Operationally, the segments share a common systems platform — allowing for efficiencies
of scale — and common experience in meeting the needs of state Medicaid programs. We also believe that we have opportunities to market
various cost containment and quality practices used by our Health Plans segment (such as care management and care coordination
programs) to state MMIS customers who wish to incorporate certain aspects of managed care programs into their own fee-for-service
programs.

Composition of Revenue and Membership

Health Plans Segment
Premium revenue is fixed in advance of the periods covered and, except as described in “Critical Accounting Policies” below, is not
generally subject to significant accounting estimates. For the year ended December 31, 2010, we received approximately 94% of our
premium revenue as a fixed PMPM amount, pursuant to our Medicaid contracts with state agencies, our Medicare contracts with the
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, or CMS, and our contracts with other managed care organizations for which we operate as a
subcontractor. These premium revenues are recognized in the month that members are entitled to receive health care services. The state
Medicaid programs and the federal Medicare program periodically adjust premium rates.
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For the year ended December 31, 2010, we received approximately 6% of our premium revenue in the form of “birth income” — a
one-time payment for the delivery of a child — from the Medicaid programs in all of our state health plans except New Mexico. Such
payments are recognized as revenue in the month the birth occurs.

The amount of the premiums paid to us may vary substantially between states and among various government programs. PMPM
premiums for CHIP members are generally among our lowest, with rates as low as approximately $75 PMPM in California. Premium
revenues for Medicaid members are generally higher. Among the TANF Medicaid population — the Medicaid group that includes mostly
mothers and children — PMPM premiums range between approximately $100 in California to $230 in Missouri. Among our Medicaid
ABD membership, PMPM premiums range from approximately $320 in Utah to $1,000 in Ohio. Contributing to the variability in
Medicaid rates among the states is the practice of some states to exclude certain benefits from the managed care contract (most often
pharmacy and catastrophic case benefits) and retain responsibility for those benefits at the state level. Medicare premiums are almost
$1,100 PMPM, with Medicare revenue totaling $265.2 million, $135.9 million, and $95.1 million, for the years ended December 31,
2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively.
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The following table sets forth the approximate total number of members by state health plan as of the dates indicated:
As of December 31,

Total Ending Membership by Health Plan:
California
Florida
Michigan
Missouri
New Mexico
Ohio
Texas

Utah
Washington
Wisconsin(1)
Total
Total Ending Membership by State for our Medicare Advantage Plans(1):
California

2010

2009

2008

344,000

351,000
50,000
223,000
78,000
94,000
216,000

322,000

61,000
227,000
81,000
91,000
245,000
94,000
79,000
355,000
36,000
1,613,000

40,000

69,000
334,000

—
1,455,000

4,900
500
6,300
600

2,100
—

700

500

Utah
Washington
Total
Total Ending Membership by State for our Aged, Blind or Disabled Population:
California

8,900
2,600
24,500

4,000
1,300

Florida
Michigan
New Mexico
Ohio
Texas

10,000
31,700

Florida
Michigan
New Mexico
Texas

13,900

5,700
28,200
19,000

Utah
Washington
Wisconsin(1)
Total

8,000
4,000
1,700

122,200

3,300
400

11,600
13,900
8,800
32,200
5,700
22,600
17,600
7,500
3,200
—
111,500

—
206,000
77,000
84,000
176,000
31,000
61,000

299,000
—
1,256,000
1,500
—
1,700
300
400

2,400
1,000
7,300

12,700
—
30,300

6,300
19,000
16,200
7,300
3,000

—
94,800

(1) We acquired the Wisconsin health plan on September 1, 2010. As of December 31, 2010, the Wisconsin health plan had
approximately 3,000 Medicare Advantage members covered under a reinsurance contract with a third party; these members are not
included in the membership tables herein.
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Molina Medicaid Solutions Segment
Our Molina Medicaid Solutions segment provides technology solutions to state Medicaid programs that include system design,
development, implementation, and technology outsourcing services. In addition, this segment offers business process outsourcing
services such as claims processing, provider enrollment, pharmacy drug rebate services, recipient eligibility management, and preauthorization services to state Medicaid agencies.

Molina Medicaid Solutions has contracts with five states to design, develop, implement, maintain, and operate Medicaid
Management Information Systems (MMIS). These contracts extend over a number of years, and cover the life of the MMIS from
inception through at least the first five years of its operation. The contracts are subject to extension by the exercise of an option, and also
by renewal of the base contract. The contracts have a life cycle beginning with the design, development, and implementation of the MMIS
and continuing through the operation of the system. Payment during the design, development, and implementation phase of the contract,
or the DDI phase, is generally based upon the attainment of specific milestones in systems development as agreed upon ahead of time by
the parties. Payment during the operations phase typically takes the form of either a flat monthly fee or payment for specific measures of
capacity or activity, such as the number of claims processed, or the number of Medicaid beneficiaries served by the MMIS. Contracts
may also call for the adjustment of amounts paid if certain activity measures exceed or fall below certain thresholds. In some
circumstances, revenue recognition may be delayed for long periods while we await formal customer acceptance of our products and/or
services. In those circumstances, recognition of a portion of our costs may also be deferred.

Under our contracts in Louisiana, New Jersey, and West Virginia, we provide primarily business process outsourcing and
technology outsourcing services, because the development of the MMIS solution has been completed. Under these contracts, we recognize
outsourcing service revenue on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of the contract. In Maine, we completed the DDI phase of our
contract effective September 1, 2010. In Idaho, we expect to complete the DDI phase of our contract during 2011. We began revenue and
cost recognition for our Maine contract in September 2010, and expect to begin revenue and cost recognition for our Idaho contract in

2011.
Additionally, Molina Medicaid Solutions provides pharmacy rebate administration services under a contract with the state of
Florida.

Composition of Expenses

Health Plans Segment
Operating expenses for the Health Plans segment include expenses related to the provision of medical care services, G&A expenses,
and premium tax expenses. Our results of operations are impacted by our ability to effectively manage expenses related to medical care
services and to accurately estimate medical costs incurred. Expenses related to medical care services are captured in the following four
categories:

• Fee-for-service — Physician providers paid on a fee-for-service basis are paid according to a fee schedule set by the state or by
our contracts with the providers. We pay hospitals on a fee-for-service basis in a variety of ways, including by per diem
amounts, by diagnostic-related groups, or DRGs, as a percentage of billed charges, and by case rates. We also pay a small
portion of hospitals on a capitated basis. We also have stop-loss agreements with the hospitals with which we contract; under
certain circumstances, we pay escalated charges in connection with these stop-loss agreements. Under all fee-for-service
arrangements, we retain the financial responsibility for medical care provided. Expenses related to fee-for-service contracts are
recorded in the period in which the related services are dispensed. The costs of drugs administered in a physician or hospital
setting that are not billed through our pharmacy benefit managers are included in fee-for-service costs.
• Capitation — Many of our primary care physicians and a small portion of our specialists and hospitals are paid on a capitated
basis. Under capitation contracts, we typically pay a fixed PMPM payment to the provider without regard to the frequency,
extent, or nature of the medical services actually furnished. Under capitated contracts, we remain liable for the provision of
certain health care services. Certain of our capitated contracts also contain incentive programs based on service delivery, quality
of care, utilization management,
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and other criteria. Capitation payments are fixed in advance of the periods covered and are not subject to significant accounting
estimates. These payments are expensed in the period the providers are obligated to provide services. The financial risk for
pharmacy services for a small portion of our membership is delegated to capitated providers.

• Pharmacy — Pharmacy costs include all drug, injectibles, and immunization costs paid through our pharmacy benefit
managers. As noted above, drugs and injectibles not paid through our pharmacy benefit manager are included in fee-for-service
costs, except in those limited instances where we capitate drug and injectible costs.
• Other — Other medical care costs include medically related administrative costs, certain provider incentive costs, reinsurance
costs, and other health care expense. Medically related administrative costs include, for example, expenses relating to health
education, quality assurance, case management, disease management, 24-hour on-call nurses, and a portion of our information
technology costs. Salary and benefit costs are a substantial portion of these expenses. For the years ended December 31, 2010,
2009 and 2008, medically related administrative costs were approximately $85.5 million, $74.6 million and $75.9 million,
respectively.

Our medical care costs include amounts that have been paid by us through the reporting date as well as estimated liabilities for
medical care costs incurred but not paid by us as of the reporting date. See “Critical Accounting Policies” below for a comprehensive
discussion of how we estimate such liabilities.

Molina Medicaid Solutions Segment
Cost of service revenue consists primarily of the costs incurred to provide business process outsourcing and technology outsourcing
services under our contracts in Louisiana, Maine, New Jersey, West Virginia and Florida, as well as certain selling, general and
administrative expenses. Additionally, certain indirect costs incurred under our contracts in Maine (prior to exiting the DDI phase of that
contract in September, 2010) and Idaho are also expensed to cost of services.
In some circumstances we may defer recognition of incremental direct costs (such as direct labor, hardware, and software)
associated with a contract if revenue recognition is also deferred. Such deferred contract costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over
the remaining original contract term, consistent with the revenue recognition period. We began to recognize deferred costs for our Maine
contract in September 2010, at the same time we began to recognize revenue associated with that contract. In Idaho, we expect to begin
recognition of deferred contact costs during 2011, in a manner consistent with our anticipated recognition of revenue.

Results of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2010 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2009
Health Plans Segment
Premium Revenue
Premium revenue grew 9.0% in the year ended December 31, 2010, compared with the year ended December 31, 2009, due to a
membership increase of 10.9%. On a PMPM basis, however, consolidated premium revenue decreased 2.1% because of declines in
premium rates. The decrease in PMPM revenue was due to the transfer of the pharmacy benefit to the state fee-for-service programs in
Ohio (effective February 1, 2010) and Missouri (effective October 1, 2009). Exclusive of the transfer of the pharmacy benefit in Ohio and
Missouri, Medicaid premium revenue PMPM increased approximately 1.5% over the year ended December 31, 2009. Medicare enrollment
exceeded 24,000 members at December 31, 2010, and Medicare premium revenue was $265.2 million for the year ended December 31,
2010, compared with $135.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2009.

44

Table of Contents

Medical Care Costs
The following table provides the details of consolidated medical care costs for the periods indicated (dollars in thousands except
PMPM amounts):
Year Ended December 31,
2010

2009

% of

Fee-for-service

Capitation
Pharmacy
Other
Total

Amount

PMPM

$2,360,858
555,487
325,935
128,577
$ 3,370,857

$ 128.73
30.29
17.77
7.01
$ 183.80

Total

70.0%

16.5
9.7
3.8
100.0%

% of
Amount

PMPM

$ 2,077,489
558,538
414,785
125,424
$3,176,236

$ 126.14
33.91
25.18
7.62
$192.85

Total

65.4%
17.6
13.1
3.9
100.0%

The medical care ratio decreased to 84.5% for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared with 86.8% for the year ended
December 31, 2009.

The medical care ratio of the California health plan decreased to 83.5% for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared with
92.2% for the year ended December 31, 2009, primarily due to lower inpatient facility fee-for-service costs resulting from provider
network restructuring and improved medical management.
The medical care ratio of the Florida health plan increased to 95.4% for the year ended December 31, 2010, from 93.8% for the year
ended December 31, 2009, primarily due to higher capitation costs and higher fee-for-service costs in the outpatient and physician
categories.

The medical care ratio of the Michigan health plan increased to 83.7% for the year ended December 31, 2010, from 81.5% for the
year ended December 31, 2009, primarily due to higher inpatient facility fee-for-service costs.
The medical care ratio of the New Mexico health plan decreased to 80.6% for the year ended December 31, 2010, from 85.7% for the
year ended December 31, 2009, primarily due to reduced fee-for-service costs which more than offset decreased premium revenue PMPM.

The medical care ratio of the Ohio health plan decreased to 79.1% for the year ended December 31, 2010, from 86.1% for the year
ended December 31, 2009, primarily due to an increase in Medicaid premium PMPM of approximately 6% effective January 1, 2010
(exclusive of the reduction related to pharmacy benefits), partially offset by higher inpatient facility fee-for-service costs.

The medical care ratio of the Utah health plan decreased to 91.3% for the year ended December 31, 2010, from 91.8% for the year
ended December 31, 2009, due to improved financial performance in the second half of 2010. That improved financial performance was
the result of reduced fee-for-service costs in the second half of 2010 and an increase in Medicaid premium PMPM of approximately 7%
effective July 1, 2010.

The medical care ratio of the Washington health plan decreased to 83.9% for the year ended December 31, 2010 from 84.5% for the
year ended December 31, 2009, primarily due to reduced fee-for-service costs which more than offset decreased premium revenue PMPM.
Premium revenue PMPM decreased for all of 2010 compared with 2009 because the rate increase of approximately 2.5% effective July 1,
2010 was not enough to offset decreases received during the second half of 2009.
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Health Plans Segment Operating Data
The following table summarizes member months, premium revenue, medical care costs, medical care ratio, and premium taxes by
health plan for the periods indicated (PMPM amounts are in whole dollars; member months and other dollar amounts are in thousands):
Premium Revenue
Total
PMPM

Member
Months(1)

California
Florida
Michigan
Missouri
New Mexico
Ohio
Texas
Utah
Washington
Wisconsin(2)
Other(3)

4,197
664
2,708
946
1,104
2,817

$

506,871
170,683
630,134

921
4,141

210,852
366,784
860,324
188,716
258,076
758,849

134

30,033

—

8,587
$3,989,909

708

18,340

4,135
386
2,523
927
1,042
2,411
402

793
3,847
—
—
16,466

332.02
305.42

266.72
280.27
183.27
224.75
—
$217.56

Premium Revenue
Total
PMPM

Member
Months(1)

California
Florida
Michigan
Missouri
New Mexico
Ohio
Texas
Utah
Washington
Wisconsin(2)
Other(3),(4)

$ 120.77
256.87
232.66
222.98

$ 481,717
102,232
557,421
230,222
404,026

803,521
134,860
207,297
726,137
—
12,774
$3,660,207

$116.49
264.94
220.94
248.25
387.67
333.33

335.69
261.43
188.77
—
—
$ 222.24

Year Ended December 31, 2010
Medical Care Costs
Medical
Total
PMPM
Care Ratio

$

423,021

162,839
527,596
180,291
295,633
680,802
162,714
235,576
636,617
27,574
38,194
$ 3,370,857

$ 100.79
245.07
194.80
190.66
267.61
241.69
229.97
255.84
153.75
206.35
—
$ 183.80

83.5%
95.4
83.7
85.5
80.6
79.1
86.2
91.3
83.9
91.8
—
84.5%

Year Ended December 31, 2009
Medical Care Costs
Medical
Total
PMPM
Care Ratio

$

443,892
95,936
454,431
191,585

$ 107.34
248.62
180.12
206.59

346,044

332.03

691,402
110,794
190,319
613,876
—
37,957
$3,176,236

286.82
275.78
240.02

159.58
—
—
$ 192.85

92.2%
93.8
81.5
83.2
85.7
86.1
82.2
91.8
84.5
—
—
86.8%

Premium Tax
Expense

$

$

6,912
1
39,187
—
9,300
67,358
3,251
—
13,513
—
253
139,775

Premium Tax
Expense

$

$

16,446
16
36,482
—
11,043
47,849
2,513
—
14,175
—
57
128,581

(1) A member month is defined as the aggregate of each month’s ending membership for the period presented.
(2) We acquired the Wisconsin health plan on September 1, 2010.
(3) “Other” medical care costs also include medically related administrative costs at the parent company.
(4) As of December 31, 2009, our Nevada health plan no longer served members. Premium revenue and medical care costs for the

Nevada health plan have been included in “Other.”

Days in Medical Claims and Benefits Payable
Beginning January 1, 2010, and for all prior periods presented, we are reporting days in medical claims and benefits payable
relating to fee-for-service medical claims only. This computation includes only fee-for-service
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medical care costs and related liabilities, and therefore calculates the extent of reserves for those liabilities that are most subject to
estimation.

The days in medical claims and benefits payable amount previously reported included all medical care costs (fee-for-service,
capitation, pharmacy, and administrative), and all medical claims liabilities, including those liabilities that are typically paid
concurrently, or shortly after the costs are incurred, such as capitation costs and pharmacy costs. Medical claims liabilities in this
calculation do not include accrued costs — such as salaries — associated with the administrative portion of medical costs. By including
only fee-for-service medical costs and liabilities in this computation, our days in claims payable metric is more indicative of the size of
our reserves for liabilities subject to a substantial degree of estimation. The days in medical claims and benefits payable, excluding our
Wisconsin health plan which was acquired September 1, 2010, were as follows:
December 31,
2010

Days in claims payable — fee-for-service only
Number of claims in inventory at end of period
Billed charges of claims in inventory at end of period (in thousands)

42 days
143,600
$218,900

2009

2008

51 days

44 days
93,100
$ 131,400

87,300

$ 115,400

Molina Medicaid Solutions Segment
Molina Medicaid Solutions contributed $2.6 million to operating income for the year ended December 31, 2010, but reported an
operating loss of $3.6 million for the quarter ended December 31, 2010. The operating loss for the fourth quarter of 2010 was primarily
the result of system stabilization costs incurred for two of Molina Medicaid Solutions’ contracts.
Performance of the Molina Medicaid Solutions segment for the year ended December 31, 2010 was as follows:
(In thousands)

Service revenue before amortization
Less: amortization of contract backlog recorded as contra-service revenue
Service revenue
Cost of service revenue
General and administrative costs
Amortization of customer relationship intangibles recorded as amortization
Operating income
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$

$

98,125
(8,316)
89,809
78,647
5,135
3,418
2,609
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Consolidated Expenses

General and Administrative Expenses
General and administrative, or G&A, expenses, were $346.0 million, or 8.5% of total revenue, for the year ended December 31,
2010 compared with $276.0 million, or 7.5% of total revenue, for the year ended December 31, 2009. The increase in the G&A ratio was
the result of higher administrative expenses for the Health Plans segment, driven in part by the cost of our Medicare expansion, higher
variable compensation expense as a result of substantially improved financial performance in 2010, employee severance and settlement
costs, and costs relating to the acquisitions of Molina Medicaid Solutions and the Wisconsin health plan.
Year Ended December 31,
2010

Amount

Medicare-related administrative costs
Non Medicare-related administrative costs:
Health Plans segment administrative payroll, including employee
incentive compensation
Molina Medicaid Solutions segment administrative expenses
Employee severance and settlement costs
Molina Medicaid Solutions and Wisconsin plan acquisition costs
All other Health Plans segment administrative expense

2009

% of Total
Revenue

Amount
(In thousands)

$ 30,254

0.7%

239,146
5,135
5,548
2,957
62,953
$345,993

5.9

204,432

0.1
0.1
0.1

—
1,257
—
51,774
$276,027

1.6
8.5%

% of Total
Revenue

$ 18,564

0.5%
5.6
—
—
—
1.4

7.5%

Premium Tax Expense
Premium tax expense relating to Health Plans segment premium revenue was 3.5% of revenue for both years ended December 31,

2010, and 2009.

Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation and amortization related to our Health Plans segment is all recorded in “Depreciation and Amortization” in the
consolidated statements of income. Depreciation and amortization related to our Molina Medicaid Solutions segment is recorded within
three different captions in the consolidated statements of income as follows:

• Amortization of purchased intangibles relating to customer relationships is reported as amortization in “Depreciation and
Amortization;”
• Amortization of purchased intangibles relating to contract backlog is recorded as a reduction of service revenue; and
• Depreciation is recorded as cost of service revenue.
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The following table presents all depreciation and amortization recorded in our consolidated statements of income, regardless of
whether the item appears as depreciation and amortization, a reduction of revenue, or as cost of service revenue, and reconciles that
amount to the consolidated statements of cash flows.
Year Ended December 31,
2010

Amount

Depreciation
Amortization of intangible assets
Depreciation and amortization reported in the consolidated statements of
income
Amortization recorded as reduction of service revenue
Depreciation recorded as cost of service revenue
Depreciation and amortization reported in the consolidated statements of cash
flows

$ 27,230
18,474
45,704
8,316
6,745

$60,765

2009

% of Total
Revenue

Amount
(In thousands)

0.7%
0.4

1.1
0.2
0.2

1.5%

$25,172
12,938
38,110
—
—

$ 38,110

% of Total
Revenue

0.7%
0.3

1.0

—
—
1.0%

Interest Expense
Interest expense increased to $15.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, from $13.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2009. We incurred higher interest expense relating to the $105 million draw on our credit facility (beginning May 1,
2010) to fund the acquisition of Molina Medicaid Solutions. Amounts borrowed to fund this acquisition were repaid in the third quarter
using proceeds from our equity offering in the third quarter of 2010. Interest expense includes non-cash interest expense relating to our
convertible senior notes, which totaled $5.1 million and $4.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2010, and 2009, respectively.

Income Taxes
Income tax expense was recorded at an effective rate of 38.6% for the year ended December 31, 2010 compared with 19.1% for the
year ended December 31, 2009. The lower rate in 2009 was primarily due to discrete tax benefits recorded in 2009 as a result of settling
tax examinations, and higher than previously estimated tax credits.

For the year ended December 31, 2009, amounts for premium tax expense and income tax expense have been reclassified to conform
to the 2010 presentation of MGRT as a premium tax. The MGRT amounted to $6.2 million and $5.5 million for the years ended
December 31, 2010, and 2009, respectively. There was no impact to net income for either period presented relating to this change.

Year Ended December 31, 2009 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2008
Health Plans Segment
Premium Revenue
Premium revenue grew approximately 18% in the year ended December 31, 2009 compared with the same period in 2008. During
2009, membership grew 16% overall, with Florida, California, Washington, and Ohio gaining the most members. Consolidated premium
revenue increased 5.3% on a PMPM basis. Increased membership contributed 71% of the growth in premium revenue, and increases in
PMPM revenue, as a result of both rate changes and shifts in member mix, contributed the remaining 29%.

We received PMPM premium reductions in 2009 that were in many cases correlated with reductions in the Medicaid fee schedule
that also reduced our medical costs. However, PMPM premium reductions in Washington and Missouri in 2009 were not fully
commensurate with changes in the Medicaid fee schedule in those states, and thus decreases in premiums were not matched by lower
medical costs. In Washington, premium reductions not
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linked to decreases in the Medicaid fee schedule lowered our medical margin by approximately $13 million in 2009. In Missouri, the
transfer of the pharmacy benefit to the state fee-for-service program effective October 1, 2009 reduced our medical margin by
approximately $1.2 million in 2009.

Medical care costs
The following table provides the details of consolidated medical care costs for the periods indicated (dollars in thousands except
PMPM amounts):
Year Ended December 31,
2009

2008

% of

Fee-for-service

Capitation
Pharmacy
Other
Total

Amount

PMPM

$ 2,077,489
558,538
414,785
125,424
$3,176,236

$ 126.14
33.91
25.18
7.62
$192.85

Total

65.4%
17.6
13.1
3.9
100.0%

% of
Total

Amount

PMPM

$1,709,806

$116.69

450,440

30.74
24.31

65.2%
17.2
13.6

7.16
$ 178.90

100.0%

356,184
104,882
$2,621,312

4.0

Medical care costs, in the aggregate, increased 8% on a PMPM basis for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared with the same
period in 2008. The medical care ratio was 86.8% for the year ended December 31, 2009, compared with 84.8% for the same period in
2008. Increased expenses were generally the result of higher utilization rather than higher unit costs (except in the case of outpatient costs,
where both utilization and unit costs increased) and were most pronounced in connection with physician and outpatient emergency room
facility services. Influenza-related illnesses and the costs associated with more recently enrolled members were key factors in the higher
utilization. We estimate that the incremental costs associated with influenza-related illnesses were approximately $35 million, or $0.83 per
diluted share, in the year ended December 31, 2009 compared with the year ended December 31, 2008.

Physician and outpatient costs exhibited the most significant unfavorable cost trend in the year ended December 31, 2009. Together,
these costs increased approximately 13% on a PMPM basis compared with the same period in 2008. Consistent with our experience
throughout 2009, emergency room utilization (up approximately 9%) and cost per visit (up approximately 8%) were the primary drivers
of increased cost in the year ended December 31, 2009.
Inpatient costs were flat on a PMPM basis year-over-year despite increased utilization.

Pharmacy costs (including the benefit of rebates) increased 6% on a PMPM basis year-over-year, excluding the Missouri health
plan, where the pharmacy benefit was transferred to the sate fee-for-service program effective October 1, 2009. Pharmacy utilization
increased approximately 6% year-over-year, while unit costs (excluding rebates) were flat.
Capitated costs increased approximately 10% PMPM year-over-year, primarily as a result of rate increases received for members
capitated on a percentage of premium basis at the New Mexico health plan, and the transition of members into capitated arrangements in
California.
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Health Plans Segment Operating Data
The following table summarizes premium revenue, medical care costs, medical care ratio, and premium taxes by health plan for the
periods indicated (PMPM amounts are in whole dollars; member months and other dollar amounts are in thousands):
Premium Revenue
Total
PMPM

Member
Months(1)

California
Florida(2)
Michigan
Missouri
New Mexico
Ohio
Texas
Utah
Washington
Other(3),(4)

4,135
386
2,523
927
1,042
2,411
402

793
3,847
—
16,466

$ 481,717
102,232
557,421
230,222
404,026

803,521
134,860
207,297
726,137
12,774
$3,660,207

3,721
—
2,526
910
970
1,998
348

659
3,514
—
14,646

333.33

335.69
261.43
188.77
—
$ 222.24

Premium Revenue
Total
PMPM

Member
Months(1)

California
Florida(2)
Michigan
Missouri
New Mexico
Ohio
Texas
Utah
Washington
Other(3),(4)

$116.49
264.94
220.94
248.25
387.67

$

417,027
—
509,782
225,280
348,576
602,826
110,178
155,991
709,943
11,637
$ 3,091,240

$ 112.06
—
201.86
247.62
359.45
301.76
316.32
236.75
202.02

—
$ 210.97

Year Ended December 31, 2009
Medical Care Costs
Medical
Total
PMPM
Care Ratio

$

443,892
95,936
454,431
191,585

$ 107.34
248.62
180.12
206.59

346,044

332.03

691,402
110,794
190,319
613,876
37,957
$3,176,236

286.82
275.78
240.02

159.58
—
$ 192.85

92.2%
93.8
81.5
83.2
85.7
86.1
82.2
91.8
84.5
—
86.8%

Year Ended December 31, 2008
Medical Care Costs
Medical
Total
PMPM
Care Ratio

$ 363,776
—
405,683
184,298
286,004
549,182
84,324

139,011
575,085
33,949
$2,621,312

$ 97.75
—
160.64
202.58
294.92
274.91
242.09
210.98
163.64
—
$ 178.90

87.2%
—
79.6
81.8
82.1
91.1
76.5
89.1
81.0
—
84.8%

Premium Tax
Expense

$

$

16,446
16
36,482
—
11,043
47,849
2,513
—
14,175
57
128,581

Premium Tax
Expense

$

$

12,503
—
31,760
—
11,713
30,505
1,995
—
11,668
21
100,165

(1) A member month is defined as the aggregate of each month’s ending membership for the period presented.
(2) The Florida health plan began enrolling members in December 2008.
(3) “Other” medical care costs also include medically related administrative costs at the parent company.
(4) As of December 31, 2009, our Nevada health plan no longer served members. Premium revenue and medical care costs for the

Nevada health plan have been included in “Other.”
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General and administrative expenses
G&A expenses were 7.5% of revenue in the year ended December 31, 2009, compared with 8.0% for the year ended December 31,
2008. Year-over-year, premium revenue grew faster than administrative costs, causing administrative costs, as a percentage of revenue, to
decrease. On a PMPM basis, G&A decreased to $16.76 in 2009, from $17.04 for the same period in 2008.
Year Ended December 31,
2009

Amount

Medicare-related administrative costs
Non Medicare-related administrative costs:
Administrative payroll, including employee incentive compensation
Florida health plan start up expenses
All other administrative expense
G&A expenses

2008

% of Total
Revenue

% of Total
Revenue

Amount
(In thousands)

$ 18,857

0.5%

$ 18,451

0.6%

205,396
—
51,774
$ 276,027

5.6
—

190,932
2,495
37,768
$249,646

6.1

1.4

7.5%

0.1

1.2
8.0%

Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation and amortization expense increased $4.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared with 2008, primarily
due to depreciation expense associated with investments in infrastructure. The following table presents the components of depreciation and
amortization:
Year Ended December 31,
2009

Amount

Depreciation
Amortization of intangible assets
Depreciation and amortization reported in the consolidated statements of cash
flows

2008

% of Total
Revenue

Amount
(In thousands)

% of Total
Revenue

$25,172
12,938

0.7%

$ 20,718
12,970

0.7%

0.3

$ 38,110

1.0%

$ 33,688

1.1%

0.4

Gain on Retirement of Convertible Senior Notes
In February 2009, we purchased and retired $13.0 million face amount of our convertible senior notes. In connection with the
purchase of the notes, we recorded a pretax gain of $1.5 million in 2009. There was no comparable transaction in 2008.

Interest Expense
Interest expense was $13.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2009, a slight increase over interest expense of $13.2 million for
the year ended December 31, 2008. Interest expense includes non-cash interest expense relating to our convertible senior notes, which
totaled $4.8 million, and $4.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, and 2008, respectively.

Income Taxes
Income taxes were recorded at an effective rate of 19.1% for the year ended December 31, 2009, compared with 36.8% in the prior
year. The decrease in the effective tax rate was primarily due to discrete tax benefits recognized during the year relating to settling tax
examinations, and higher than previously estimated California enterprise zone tax credits.
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For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, amounts for premium tax expense and income tax expense have been reclassified
to conform to the presentation of MGRT as a premium tax. The MGRT amounted to $5.5 million and $5.1 million for the years ended
December 31, 2009, and 2008, respectively. There was no impact to net income for either period presented relating to this change.

Acquisitions

Wisconsin Health Plan. On September 1, 2010, we acquired Abri Health Plan, a Medicaid managed care organization based in
Milwaukee, Wisconsin. As of December 31, 2010, we expect the final purchase price for the acquisition to be approximately
$15.5 million, subject to adjustments. As of December 31, 2010, we had paid $8.5 million of the total purchase price. In the first quarter
of 2011 we will compute the final purchase price based on the plan’s membership on that date.
Molina Medicaid Solutions. On May 1, 2010, we acquired a health information management business which we now operate
under the name, Molina Medicaid Solutions SM as described in “Overview,” above.

Florida Health Plan. On December 31, 2009, we acquired 100% of the voting equity interests in Florida NetPASS, LLC, or
NetPASS. The final purchase price totaled $29.6 million.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
We manage our cash, investments, and capital structure to meet the short- and long-term obligations of our business while
maintaining liquidity and financial flexibility. We forecast, analyze, and monitor our cash flows to enable prudent investment
management and financing within the confines of our financial strategy.
Our regulated subsidiaries generate significant cash flows from premium revenue and investment income. Such cash flows are our
primary source of liquidity. Thus, any future decline in our premium revenue or our profitability may have a negative impact on our
liquidity. We generally receive premium revenue in advance of the payment of claims for the related health care services. A majority of the
assets held by our regulated subsidiaries are in the form of cash, cash equivalents, and investments. After considering expected cash
flows from operating activities, we generally invest cash of regulated subsidiaries that exceeds our expected short-term obligations in longer
term, investment-grade, marketable debt securities to improve our overall investment return. These investments are made pursuant to
board approved investment policies which conform to applicable state laws and regulations. Our investment policies are designed to
provide liquidity, preserve capital, and maximize total return on invested assets, all in a manner consistent with state requirements that
prescribe the types of instruments in which our subsidiaries may invest. These investment policies require that our investments have
final maturities of five years or less (excluding auction rate securities and variable rate securities, for which interest rates are periodically
reset) and that the average maturity be two years or less. Professional portfolio managers operating under documented guidelines manage
our investments. As of December 31, 2010, a substantial portion of our cash was invested in a portfolio of highly liquid money market
securities, and our investments consisted solely of investment-grade debt securities. All of our investments are classified as current assets,
except for our investments in auction rate securities, which are classified as non-current assets. Our restricted investments are invested
principally in certificates of deposit and U.S. treasury securities.
Investment income decreased to $6.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared with $9.1 million for year ended
December 31, 2009. This decline was primarily due to lower interest rates in 2010. The annualized portfolio yields for the years ended
December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008, were 0.7%, 1.2%, and 3.0%, respectively.

Investments and restricted investments are subject to interest rate risk and will decrease in value if market rates increase. We have
the ability to hold our restricted investments until maturity and, as a result, we would not expect to incur significantly losses due to a
sudden change in market interest rates. Declines in interest rates over time will reduce our investment income.
Cash in excess of the capital needs of our regulated health plans is generally paid to our non-regulated parent company in the form of
dividends, when and as permitted by applicable regulations, for general corporate use.
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Cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2010 was $161.6 million compared with $155.4 million for
the year ended December 31, 2009, an increase of $6.2 million. Deferred revenue, which was a use of operating cash totaling
$41.9 million in 2010, was a source of operating cash totaling $88.2 million in 2009. In 2009, the state of Ohio typically paid premiums
in advance of the month the premium was earned. In 2010, the state of Ohio delayed its premium payments to mid-month for the month
premium is earned. Therefore, we did not receive advance payments for the Ohio health plan’s premiums during 2010. The change in
deferred revenue was offset by increases in net income, depreciation and amortization, and other current liabilities.

Cash used in investing activities increased significantly in 2010 compared with 2009, due chiefly to the acquisition of Molina
Medicaid Solutions, which totaled $131.3 million.

Cash provided by financing activities increased due to funds generated by our equity offering in the third quarter of 2010, which
totaled $111.1 million, net of issuance costs. Amounts borrowed under our credit facility to fund the acquisition of Molina Medicaid
Solutions in the second quarter of 2010 were repaid in the third quarter using proceeds from the equity offering.
Reconciliation of Non-GAAP(1) to GAAP Financial Measures

EBITDA(2)
Year Ended
December 31,
2010
2009
(In thousands)

Operating income

$ 105,001

$51,934

60,765
$165,766

38,110
$ 90,044

Add back:
Depreciation and amortization reported in the consolidated statements of cash flows
EBITDA

(1) GAAP stands for U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
(2) We calculate EBITDA consistently on a quarterly and annual basis by adding back depreciation and amortization to operating
income. Operating income includes investment income. EBITDA is not prepared in conformity with GAAP because it excludes
depreciation and amortization, as well as interest expense, and the provision for income taxes. This non-GAAP financial measure
should not be considered as an alternative to the GAAP measures of net income, operating income, operating margin, or cash
provided by operating activities, nor should EBITDA be considered in isolation from these GAAP measures of operating
performance. Management uses EBITDA as a supplemental metric in evaluating our financial performance, in evaluating financing
and business development decisions, and in forecasting and analyzing future periods. For these reasons, management believes that
EBITDA is a useful supplemental measure to investors in evaluating our performance and the performance of other companies in our

industry.

Capital Resources
At December 31, 2010, the parent company — Molina Healthcare, Inc. — held cash and investments of approximately
$65.1 million, including $6.0 million in non-current auction rate securities, compared with $45.6 million of cash and investments at
December 31, 2009.

On a consolidated basis, at December 31, 2010, we had working capital of $392.4 million compared with $321.2 million at
December 31, 2009. At December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, cash and cash equivalents were $455.9 million and
$469.5 million, respectively. At December 31, 2010, investments were $315.8 million, including $20.4 million in non-current auction
rate securities, and at December 31, 2009, investments were $234.5 million, including $59.7 million in non-current auction rate
securities.
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Credit Facility
We are a party to an Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of March 9, 2005, as amended by the first amendment on
October 5, 2005, the second amendment on November 6, 2006, the third amendment on May 25, 2008, the fourth amendment on
April 29, 2010, and the fifth amendment on April 29, 2010, among Molina Healthcare Inc., certain lenders, and Bank of America N.A.,
as Administrative Agent (the “Credit Facility”) for a revolving credit line of $150 million that matures in May 2012. The Credit Facility
is intended to be used for general corporate purposes. We borrowed $105 million under the Credit Facility to acquire Molina Medicaid
Solutions in the second quarter of 2010. During the third quarter of 2010, we repaid this amount using proceeds from our equity offering,
described in Note 14 to the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2010. As of
December 31, 2010, and 2009, there was no outstanding principal debt balance under the Credit Facility. However, as of December 31,
2010, our lenders had issued two letters of credit in the aggregate principal amount of $10.3 million in connection with the contract of
MMS with the states of Maine and Idaho.

To the extent that in the future we incur any obligations under the Credit Facility, such obligations will be secured by a lien on
substantially all of our assets and by a pledge of the capital stock of our health plan subsidiaries (with the exception of the California
health plan). The Credit Facility includes usual and customary covenants for credit facilities of this type, including covenants limiting
liens, mergers, asset sales, other fundamental changes, debt, acquisitions, dividends and other distributions, capital expenditures,
investments, and a fixed charge coverage ratio. The Credit Facility also requires us to maintain a ratio of total consolidated debt to total
consolidated EBITDA of not more than 2.75 to 1.00 at any time. At December 31, 2010, we were in compliance with all financial
covenants in the Credit Facility.
The commitment fee on the total unused commitments of the lenders under the Credit Facility is 50 basis points on all levels of the
pricing grid, with the pricing grid referring to our ratio of consolidated funded debt to consolidated EBITDA. The pricing for LIBOR
loans and base rate loans is 200 basis points at every level of the pricing grid. Thus, the applicable margins under the Credit Facility
range between 2.75% and 3.75% for LIBOR loans, and between 1.75% and 2.75% for base rate loans. The Credit Facility carves out
from our indebtedness and restricted payment covenants under the Credit Facility the $187.0 million current principal amount of the
convertible senior notes, although the $187.0 million indebtedness is included in the calculation of our consolidated leverage ratio. The
fixed charge coverage ratio set forth pursuant to the Credit Facility was 2.75x (on a pro forma basis) at December 31, 2009, and 3.00x
thereafter.

The fifth amendment increased the maximum consolidated leverage ratio under the Credit Facility to 3.25 to 1.0 for the fourth
quarter of 2009 (on a pro forma basis), and to 3.50 to 1.0 for the first and second quarters of 2010, and through August 14, 2010.
Effective as of August 15, 2010, the consolidated leverage ratio under the Credit Facility reverted back to 2.75 to 1.0. In connection with
the lenders’ approval of the fifth amendment, we paid an amendment fee of 25 basis points on the amount of each consenting lender’s
commitment. We also paid an incremental commitment fee of 12.5 basis points based on each lender’s unfunded commitment during the
period from the effective date of the fifth amendment through August 15, 2010.

Shelf Registration Statement
In December 2008, we filed a shelf registration statement on Form S-3 with the Securities and Exchange Commission covering the
issuance of up to $300 million of our securities, including common stock, warrants, or debt securities, and up to 250,000 shares of
outstanding common stock that may be sold from time to time by the Molina Siblings Trust as a selling stockholder. We may publicly
offer securities from time to time at prices and terms to be determined at the time of the offering. As a result of the offering described
below, we may now offer up to $182.5 million of our securities from time to time under the shelf registration statement.

In August 2010, we sold 4,350,000 shares of common stock covered by this registration statement. The public offering price for this
sale was $25.65 per share, net of the underwriting discount. Our proceeds from the sales totaled approximately $111.1 million, net of
the issuance costs. We used the proceeds from these sales to repay the Credit Facility and for general corporate purposes. Also in August
2010, the Molina Siblings Trust, as a selling stockholder, sold 250,000 shares of outstanding common stock covered by this registration
statement.
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Securities Purchase Programs
Under securities purchase programs announced in 2009, we purchased and retired $13.0 million face amount of our convertible
senior notes. Also during 2009, we purchased approximately 1,352,000 shares of our common stock for $28 million.

Convertible Senior Notes
In October 2007, we sold $200.0 million aggregate principal amount of 3.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2014 (the “Notes”).
During 2009, we purchased and retired $13.0 million face amount of the Notes. As of December 31, 2010, the remaining aggregate
principal amount of the Notes was $187.0 million. The Notes rank equally in right of payment with our existing and future senior
indebtedness.

The Notes are convertible into cash and, under certain circumstances, shares of our common stock. The initial conversion rate is
21.3067 shares of our common stock per $1,000 principal amount of the Notes. This represents an initial conversion price of
approximately $46.93 per share of our common stock. In addition, if certain corporate transactions that constitute a change of control
occur prior to maturity, we will increase the conversion rate in certain circumstances.

Regulatory Capital and Dividend Restrictions
Our principal operations are conducted through our health plan subsidiaries operating in California, Florida, Michigan, Missouri,
New Mexico, Ohio, Texas, Utah, Washington, and Wisconsin. The health plans are subject to state laws that, among other things,
require the maintenance of minimum levels of statutory capital, as defined by each state, and may restrict the timing, payment, and
amount of dividends and other distributions that may be paid to Molina Healthcare, Inc. as the sole stockholder of each of our health
plans. To the extent the subsidiaries must comply with these regulations, they may not have the financial flexibility to transfer funds to
us. The net assets in these subsidiaries, after intercompany eliminations, which may not be transferable to us in the form of loans,
advances, or cash dividends totaled $397.8 million at December 31, 2010, and $368.7 million at December 31, 2009.

The National Association of Insurance Commissioners, or NAIC, adopted rules effective December 31, 1998, which, if adopted by
a particular state, set minimum capitalization requirements for health plans and other insurance entities bearing risk for health care
coverage. The requirements take the form of risk-based capital, or RBC, rules. These rules, which vary slightly from state to state, have
been adopted in Michigan, Missouri, New Mexico, Ohio, Texas, Utah, Washington, and Wisconsin. California and Florida have not
adopted RBC rules and have not given notice of any intention to do so. The RBC rules, if adopted by California and Florida, may
increase the minimum capital required by those states.
At December 31, 2010, our health plans had aggregate statutory capital and surplus of approximately $416.6 million, compared to
the required minimum aggregate statutory capital and surplus of approximately $278.0 million. All of our health plans were in
compliance with the minimum capital requirements at December 31, 2010. We have the ability and commitment to provide additional
working capital to each of our health plans when necessary to ensure that capital and surplus continue to meet regulatory requirements.
Barring any change in regulatory requirements, we believe that we will continue to be in compliance with these requirements through

2011.
Critical Accounting Policies
When we prepare our consolidated financial statements, we use estimates and assumptions that may affect reported amounts and
disclosures. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Our most significant accounting policies relate to:

• The determination of the amount of revenue to be recognized under certain contracts that place revenue at risk dependent upon the
achievement of certain quality or administrative measurements, or the expenditure of certain percentages of revenue on defined
expenses, or requirements that we return a certain portion of our profits to state governments;
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• The deferral of revenue and costs associated with contracts held by our Molina Medicaid Solutions segment; and
• The determination of medical claims and benefits payable.

Revenue Recognition — Health Plans Segment
Certain components of premium revenue of our Health Plans segment are subject to accounting estimates, and are therefore subject to
retroactive revision. Chief among these are:

• Florida Health Plan Medical Cost Floor (Minimum) for Behavioral Health: A portion of premium revenue paid to our
Florida health plan by the state of Florida may be refunded to the state if certain minimum amounts are not spent on defined
behavioral health care costs. At December 31, 2010, we had not recorded any liability under the terms of this contract provision.
If the state of Florida disagrees with our interpretation of the existing contract terms, an adjustment to the amounts owed may be
required. Any changes to the terms of this provision, including revisions to the definitions of premium revenue or behavioral
health care costs, the period of time over which performance is measured or the manner of its measurement, or the percentages
used in the calculations, may affect the profitability of our Florida health plan.
• New Mexico Health Plan Medical Cost Floors (Minimums) and Administrative Cost and Profit Ceilings (Maximums): A
portion of premium revenue paid to our New Mexico health plan by the state of New Mexico may be refunded to the state if
certain minimum amounts are not spent on defined medical care costs, or if administrative costs or profit (as defined) exceed
certain amounts. Our contract with the state of New Mexico requires that we spend a minimum percentage of premium revenue on
certain explicitly defined medical care costs (the medical cost floor). Our contract is for a three-year period, and the medical cost
floor is based on premiums and medical care costs over the entire contract period. Effective July 1, 2008, our New Mexico health
plan entered into a new three year contract that, in addition to retaining the medical cost floor, added certain limits on the amount
our New Mexico health plan can: (a) expend on administrative costs; and (b) retain as profit. At December 31, 2010, we had
recorded a liability of $5.6 million under the terms of these contract provisions. If the state of New Mexico disagrees with our
interpretation of the
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existing contract terms, an adjustment to the amounts owed may be required. Any changes to the terms of these provisions,
including revisions to the definitions of premium revenue, medical care costs, administrative costs or profit, the period of time
over which performance is measured or the manner of its measurement, or the percentages used in the calculations, may affect the
profitability of our New Mexico health plan.

• New Mexico Health Plan At-Risk Premium Revenue: Under our contract with the state of New Mexico, up to 1% of our New
Mexico health plan’s revenue may be refundable to the state if certain performance measures are not met. These performance
measures are generally linked to various quality of care and administrative measures dictated by the state. The state of New
Mexico’s fiscal year ends June 30, and open contract years typically include the current state fiscal year and the immediately
preceding state fiscal year (two state fiscal years in total). For the two open state fiscal years ending June 30, 2011, our New
Mexico health plan has received $5.4 million in at-risk revenue as of December 31, 2010. To date, we have recognized
$3.5 million of that amount as revenue, and recorded a liability of approximately $1.9 million as of December 31, 2010, for the
remainder. If the state of New Mexico disagrees with our estimation of our compliance with the at-risk premium requirements, an
adjustment to the amounts owed may be required.
• Ohio Health Plan At-Risk Premium Revenue: Under our contract with the state of Ohio, up to 1% of our Ohio health plan’s
revenue may be refundable to the state if certain performance measures are not met. Effective February 1, 2010 an additional
0.25% of the Ohio health plan’s revenue became refundable if certain pharmacy specific performance measures were not met.
These performance measures are generally linked to various quality-of-care measures dictated by the state. The state of Ohio’s
fiscal year ends June 30, and open contract years typically include the current state fiscal year and the immediately preceding
state fiscal year (two state fiscal years in total). For the two open state fiscal years ending June 30, 2011, our Ohio health plan has
received $13.8 million in at-risk revenue as of December 31, 2010. To date, we have recognized $4.5 million of that amount as
revenue and recorded a liability of approximately $9.3 million as of December 31, 2010, for the remainder. If the state of Ohio
disagrees with our estimation of our compliance with the at-risk premium requirements, an adjustment to the amounts owed may
be required. During the third quarter of 2010, we reversed the recognition of approximately $3.3 million of at-risk revenue
previously recognized.
• Utah Health Plan Premium Revenue: Our Utah health plan may be entitled to receive additional premium revenue from the
state of Utah as an incentive payment for saving the state of Utah money in relation to fee-for-service Medicaid. In prior years, we
estimated amounts we believed were recoverable under our savings sharing agreement with the state of Utah based on available
information and our interpretation of our contract with the state. The state may not agree with our interpretation or our application
of the contract language, and it may also not agree with the manner in which we have processed and analyzed our member claims
and encounter records. Thus, the ultimate amount of savings sharing revenue that we realize from prior years may be subject to
negotiation with the state. During 2007, as a result of an ongoing disagreement with the state of Utah, we wrote off the entire
receivable, totaling $4.7 million. Our Utah health plan continues to assert its claim to the amounts believed to be due under the
savings share agreement. When additional information is known, or resolution is reached with the state regarding the appropriate
savings sharing payment amount for prior years, we will adjust the amount of savings sharing revenue recorded in our financial
statements as appropriate in light of such new information or agreement. No receivables for saving sharing revenue have been
established at December 31, 2010.
• Texas Health Plan Profit Sharing: Under our contract with the state of Texas there is a profit-sharing agreement, where we pay
a rebate to the state of Texas if our Texas health plan generates pretax income, as defined in the contract, above a certain specified
percentage, as determined in accordance with a tiered rebate schedule. We are limited in the amount of administrative costs that we
may deduct in calculating the rebate, if any. As of December 31, 2010, we had an aggregate liability of approximately
$0.6 million accrued pursuant to our profit-sharing agreement with the state of Texas for the 2010 and 2011 contract years
(ending August 31 of each year). We paid $2.6 million to the state under the terms of this profit sharing agreement during the year
ended December 31, 2010, for the 2009 and 2010 contract years. Because the final settlement
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calculations include a claims run-out period of nearly one year, the amounts recorded, based on our estimates, an adjustment to
the amounts owed may be required.

• Texas Health Plan At-Risk Premium Revenue: Under our contract with the state of Texas, up to 1% of our Texas health plan’s
revenue may be refundable to the state if certain performance measures are not met. These performance measures are generally
linked to various quality-of-care measures dictated by the state. The state of Texas’s fiscal year ends August 31, and open
contract years typically include the current state fiscal year and the immediately preceding state fiscal year (two state fiscal years
in total). For the two open state fiscal years ending August 31, 2011, our Texas health plan has received $2.2 million in at-risk
revenue, all of which has been recognized as revenue, as of December 31, 2010. If the state of Texas disagrees with our estimation
of our compliance with the at-risk premium requirements, an adjustment to the amounts owed may be required.
• Medicare Premium Revenue: Based on member encounter data that we submit to CMS, our Medicare revenue is subject to
retroactive adjustment for both member risk scores and member pharmacy cost experience for up to two years after the original
year of service. This adjustment takes into account the acuity of each member’s medical needs relative to what was anticipated
when premiums were originally set for that member. In the event that a member requires less acute medical care than was
anticipated by the original premium amount, CMS may recover premium from us. In the event that a member requires more acute
medical care than was anticipated by the original premium amount, CMS may pay us additional retroactive premium. A similar
retroactive reconciliation is undertaken by CMS for our Medicare members’ pharmacy utilization. That analysis is similar to the
process for the adjustment of member risk scores, but is further complicated by member pharmacy cost sharing provisions
attached to the Medicare pharmacy benefit that do not apply to the services measured by the member risk adjustment process. We
estimate the amount of Medicare revenue that will ultimately be realized for the periods presented based on our knowledge of our
members’ heath care utilization patterns and CMS practices. Based on our knowledge of member health care utilization patterns
we have recorded a liability of approximately $1.2 million related to the potential recoupment of Medicare premium revenue at
December 31, 2010. To the extent that the premium revenue ultimately received from CMS differs from recorded amounts, we
will adjust reported Medicare revenue.

Deferral of Service Revenue and Cost of Service Revenue — Molina Medicaid Solutions Segment
The payments received by our Molina Medicaid Solutions segment under its state contracts are based on the performance of three
elements of service. The first of these is the design, development and implementation, or DDI, of a Medicaid Management Information
System, or MMIS. The second element, following completion of the DDI element, is the operation of the MMIS under a business process
outsourcing, or BPO arrangement. While providing BPO services, we also provide the state with the third contracted element — training
and IT support and hosting services (training and support).
Because they include these three elements of service, our Molina Medicaid Solution segment contracts are multiple-element
arrangements. We have no vendor specific objective evidence, or VSOE, of fair value for any of the individual elements in these
contracts, and at no point in the contract will we have VSOE for the undelivered elements in the contract. We lack VSOE of the fair value
of the individual elements of our Molina Medicaid Solutions contracts for the following reasons:

• Each contract calls for the provision of its own specific set of products and services. While all contracts support the system of
record for state MMIS, the actual services and products we provide vary significantly between contracts; and
• The nature of the MMIS installed varies significantly between our older contracts (proprietary mainframe systems) and our new
contracts (commercial off-the-shelf technology solutions).
The absence of VSOE within the context of a multiple element arrangement requires us to delay recognition of any revenue for an
MMIS contract until completion of the DDI phase of the contract. Although the length of the DDI phase for any MMIS contract can vary
considerably, the DDI phase typically takes about two years to complete. As a general principle, revenue recognition will therefore
commence at the completion of the DDI phase, and all
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revenue will be recognized over the period that BPO services and training and IT support services are provided. Consistent with the
deferral of revenue, recognition of all direct costs (such as direct labor, hardware, and software) associated with the DDI phase of our
contracts is deferred until the commencement of revenue recognition. Deferred costs are recognized on a straight-line basis over the period
of revenue recognition.

Provisions specific to each contract may, however, lead us to modify this general principle. In those circumstances, the right of the
state to refuse acceptance of services, as well as the related obligation to compensate us, may require us to delay recognition of all or part
of our revenue until that contingency (the right of the state to refuse acceptance) has been removed. In those circumstances we defer
recognition of any revenue at risk (whether DDI, BPO services or training and IT support services) until the contingency had been
removed. In these circumstances we would also defer recognition of incremental direct costs (such as direct labor, hardware, and
software) associated with the contract (whether DDI, BPO services or training and IT support services) on which revenue recognition is
being deferred. Such deferred contract costs are recognized on a straight-line basis over the period of revenue recognition.
We began to recognize revenue (and related deferred costs) associated with our Maine contract in September 2010. In Idaho, we expect
to begin recognition of deferred contact costs during 2011, in a manner consistent with our anticipated recognition of revenue.
Unamortized deferred contract costs relating to the Molina Medicaid Solutions segment at December 31, 2010 were $28.4 million.

The recoverability of deferred contract costs associated with a particular contract is analyzed on a periodic basis using the
undiscounted estimated cash flows of the whole contract over its remaining contract term. If such undiscounted cash flows are
insufficient to recover the long-lived assets and deferred contract costs, the deferred contract costs are written down by the amount of the
cash flow deficiency. If a cash flow deficiency remains after reducing the balance of the deferred contract costs to zero, any remaining
long-lived assets are evaluated for impairment. Any such impairment recognized would equal the amount by which the carrying value of
the long-lived assets exceeds the fair value of those assets.

Medical Claims and Benefits Payable — Health Plans Segment
The following table provides the details of our medical claims and benefits payable as of the dates indicated:
December 31,

Fee-for-service claims incurred but not paid (IBNP)

Capitation payable
Pharmacy
Other

2010

2009
(In thousands)

2008

$275,259
49,598
14,649
14,850
$ 354,356

$246,508
39,995
20,609
8,204
$315,316

$236,492
28,111
18,837
9,002
$ 292,442

The determination of our liability for claims and medical benefits payable is particularly important to the determination of our
financial position and results of operations in any given period. Such determination of our liability requires the application of a
significant degree of judgment by our management.

As a result, the determination of our liability for claims and medical benefits payable is subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty.
Our medical care costs include amounts that have been paid by us through the reporting date, as well as estimated liabilities for medical
care costs incurred but not paid by us as of the reporting date. Such medical care cost liabilities include, among other items, unpaid
fee-for-service claims, capitation payments owed providers, unpaid pharmacy invoices, and various medically related administrative
costs that have been incurred but not paid. We use judgment to determine the appropriate assumptions for determining the required
estimates.
The most important element in estimating our medical care costs is our estimate for fee-for-service claims which have been incurred
but not paid by us. These fee-for-service costs that have been incurred but have not been paid at the reporting date are collectively referred
to as medical costs that are “Incurred But Not Paid,” or IBNP. Our IBNP, as reported on our balance sheet, represents our best estimate of
the total amount of claims we will ultimately
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pay with respect to claims that we have incurred as of the balance sheet date. We estimate our IBNP monthly using actuarial methods
based on a number of factors. As indicated in the table above, our estimated IBNP liability represented $275.3 million of our total
medical claims and benefits payable of $354.4 million as of December 31, 2010. Excluding amounts that we anticipate paying on behalf
of a capitated provider in Ohio (which we will subsequently withhold from that provider’s monthly capitation payment), our IBNP
liability at December 31, 2010 was $268.3 million.

The factors we consider when estimating our IBNP include, without limitation, claims receipt and payment experience (and
variations in that experience), changes in membership, provider billing practices, health care service utilization trends, cost trends,
product mix, seasonality, prior authorization of medical services, benefit changes, known outbreaks of disease or increased incidence of
illness such as influenza, provider contract changes, changes to Medicaid fee schedules, and the incidence of high dollar or catastrophic
claims. Our assessment of these factors is then translated into an estimate of our IBNP liability at the relevant measuring point through
the calculation of a base estimate of IBNP, a further reserve for adverse claims development, and an estimate of the administrative costs of
settling all claims incurred through the reporting date. The base estimate of IBNP is derived through application of claims payment
completion factors and trended per member per month (PMPM) cost estimates.
For the fifth month of service prior to the reporting date and earlier, we estimate our outstanding claims liability based on actual
claims paid, adjusted for estimated completion factors. Completion factors seek to measure the cumulative percentage of claims expense
that will have been paid for a given month of service as of the reporting date, based on historical payment patterns.
The following table reflects the change in our estimate of claims liability as of December 31, 2010 that would have resulted had we
changed our completion factors for the fifth through the twelfth months preceding December 31, 2010, by the percentages indicated. A
reduction in the completion factor results in an increase in medical claims liabilities. Dollar amounts are in thousands.
(Decrease) Increase in
Estimated
Completion Factors

Increase (Decrease) in
Medical Claims and
Benefits Payable

$

(6)%
(4)%
(2)%

2%
4%

6%

80,667
53,778
26,889
(26,889)
(53,778)
(80,667)

For the four months of service immediately prior to the reporting date, actual claims paid are not a reliable measure of our ultimate
liability, given the inherent delay between the patient/physician encounter and the actual submission of a claim for payment. For these
months of service, we estimate our claims liability based on trended PMPM cost estimates. These estimates are designed to reflect recent
trends in payments and expense, utilization patterns, authorized services, and other relevant factors. The following table reflects the
change in our estimate of claims liability as of December 31, 2010 that would have resulted had we altered our trend factors by the
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percentages indicated. An increase in the PMPM costs results in an increase in medical claims liabilities. Dollar amounts are in
thousands.
(Decrease) Increase in
Trended Per member Per Month
Cost Estimates

(Decrease) Increase in
Medical Claims and
Benefits Payable

$

(6)%
(4)%
(2)%

2%

(64,958)
(43,305)
(21,653)
21,653

4%

43,305

6%

64,958

The following per-share amounts are based on a combined federal and state statutory tax rate of 37%, and 27.8 million diluted
shares outstanding for the year ended December, 2010. Assuming a hypothetical 1% change in completion factors from those used in our
calculation of IBNP at December 31, 2010, net income for the year ended December 31, 2010 would increase or decrease by approximately
$8.5 million, or $0.31 per diluted share. Assuming a hypothetical 1% change in PMPM cost estimates from those used in our calculation
of IBNP at December 31, 2010, net income for the year ended December 31, 2010 would increase or decrease by approximately
$6.8 million, or $0.25 per diluted share, net of tax. The corresponding figures for a 5% change in completion factors and PMPM cost
estimates would be $42.4 million, or $1.53 per diluted share, and $34.1 million, or $1.23 per diluted share, respectively.
It is important to note that any change in the estimate of either completion factors or trended PMPM costs would usually be
accompanied by a change in the estimate of the other component, and that a change in one component would almost always compound
rather than offset the resulting distortion to net income. When completion factors are overestimated, trended PMPM costs tend to be
underestimated. Both circumstances will create an overstatement of net income. Likewise, when completion factors are underestimated,
trended PMPM costs tend to be overestimated, creating an understatement of net income. In other words, errors in estimates involving
both completion factors and trended PMPM costs will usually act to drive estimates of claims liabilities and medical care costs in the
same direction. If completion factors were overestimated by 1%, resulting in an overstatement of net income by approximately
$8.5 million, it is likely that trended PMPM costs would be underestimated, resulting in an additional overstatement of net income.

After we have established our base IBNP reserve through the application of completion factors and trended PMPM cost estimates, we
then compute an additional liability, once again using actuarial techniques, to account for adverse developments in our claims payments
which the base actuarial model is not intended to and does not account for. We refer to this additional liability as the provision for adverse
claims development. The provision for adverse claims development is a component of our overall determination of the adequacy of our
IBNP. It is intended to capture the potential inadequacy of our IBNP estimate as a result of our inability to adequately assess the impact of
factors such as changes in the speed of claims receipt and payment, the relative magnitude or severity of claims, known outbreaks of
disease such as influenza, our entry into new geographical markets, our provision of services to new populations such as the aged, blind
or disabled (ABD), changes to state-controlled fee schedules upon which a large proportion of our provider payments are based,
modifications and upgrades to our claims processing systems and practices, and increasing medical costs. Because of the complexity of
our business, the number of states in which we operate, and the need to account for different health care benefit packages among those
states, we make an overall assessment of IBNP after considering the base actuarial model reserves and the provision for adverse claims
development. We also include in our IBNP liability an estimate of the administrative costs of settling all claims incurred through the
reporting date. The development of IBNP is a continuous process that we monitor and refine on a monthly basis as additional claims
payment information becomes available. As additional information becomes known to us, we adjust our actuarial model accordingly to
establish IBNP.

On a monthly basis, we review and update our estimated IBNP and the methods used to determine that liability. Any adjustments, if
appropriate, are reflected in the period known. While we believe our current estimates are adequate, we have in the past been required to
increase significantly our claims reserves for periods previously
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reported, and may be required to do so again in the future. Any significant increases to prior period claims reserves would materially
decrease reported earnings for the period in which the adjustment is made.
In our judgment, the estimates for completion factors will likely prove to be more accurate than trended PMPM cost estimates
because estimated completion factors are subject to fewer variables in their determination. Specifically, completion factors are developed
over long periods of time, and are most likely to be affected by changes in claims receipt and payment experience and by provider billing
practices. Trended PMPM cost estimates, while affected by the same factors, will also be influenced by health care service utilization
trends, cost trends, product mix, seasonality, prior authorization of medical services, benefit changes, outbreaks of disease or increased
incidence of illness, provider contract changes, changes to Medicaid fee schedules, and the incidence of high dollar or catastrophic
claims. As discussed above, however, errors in estimates involving trended PMPM costs will almost always be accompanied by errors in
estimates involving completion factors, and vice versa. In such circumstances, errors in estimation involving both completion factors and
trended PMPM costs will act to drive estimates of claims liabilities (and therefore medical care costs) in the same direction.
Assuming that base reserves have been adequately set, we believe that amounts ultimately paid out should generally be between 8%
and 10% less than the liability recorded at the end of the period as a result of the inclusion in that liability of the allowance for adverse
claims development and the accrued cost of settling those claims. However, there can be no assurance that amounts ultimately paid out
will not be higher or lower than this 8% to 10% range, as shown by our results for the year ended December 31, 2010, when the amounts
ultimately paid out were less than the amount of the reserves we had established as of the beginning of that year by 15.7%.

As shown in greater detail in the table below, the amounts ultimately paid out on our prior period liabilities in fiscal years 2009 and
2010 were less than what we had expected when we had established our reserves. While the specific reasons for the overestimation of our
liabilities were different in each of the periods presented, in general the overestimations were tied to our assessment of specific
circumstances at our individual health plans which were unique to those reporting periods.
For the year ended December 31, 2010, we recognized a benefit from prior period claims development in the amount of $49.4 million
(see table below). This amount represents our estimate as of December 31, 2010 of the extent to which our initial estimate of medical
claims and benefits payable at December 31, 2009 exceeded the amount that will ultimately be paid out in satisfaction of that liability. The
overestimation of claims liability at December 31, 2009 was due primarily to the following factors:

• In New Mexico, we underestimated the degree to which cuts to the Medicaid fees schedule would reduce our liability as of
December 31, 2009.
• In California, we underestimated the extent to which various network restructuring, provider contracting and medical
management initiatives had reduced our medical care costs during the second half of 2009, thereby resulting in a lower liability at
December 31, 2009.
We recognized a benefit from prior period claims development in the amount of $51.6 million in the year ended December 31, 2009
(see table below). This was primarily caused by the overestimation of our liability for claims and medical benefits payable at
December 31, 2008. The overestimation of claims liability at December 31, 2008 was the result of the following factors:

• In New Mexico, we overestimated at December 31, 2008 the ultimate amounts we would need to pay to resolve certain high dollar
provider claims.
• In Ohio, we underestimated the degree to which certain operational initiatives had reduced our medical costs in the last few
months of 2008.
• In Washington, we overestimated the impact that certain adverse utilization trends would have on our liability at December 31,
2008.
• In California, we underestimated utilization trends at the end of 2008, leading to an underestimation of our liability at
December 31, 2008. Additionally, we underestimated the impact that certain delays in the receipt
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of paper claims would have on our liability, leading to a further underestimation of our liability at December 31, 2008.
In estimating our claims liability at December 31, 2010, we adjusted our base calculation to take account of the following factors
which we believe are reasonably likely to change our final claims liability amount:

• The rapid growth of membership in our Medicare line of business between December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2010.
• Our assumption of risk for new populations in Texas (rural CHIP members) and Wisconsin (Medicaid members) effective
September 1, 2010.
• An increase in claims inventory at our Florida, Michigan, New Mexico, Ohio and Texas health plans between September 30,
2010 and December 31, 2010.
• A decrease in claims inventory at our Utah health plan between September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2010.
• The transition of claims processing for our Missouri health plan from a third party service provider to our internal claims
processing platform effective April 1, 2010.
• Changes to the Medicaid fee schedule in Utah effective July 1, 2010.
• Changes to provider reimbursement rates (primarily for outpatient facility costs) in New Mexico effective November 1, 2010.
The use of a consistent methodology in estimating our liability for claims and medical benefits payable minimizes the degree to
which the under- or overestimation of that liability at the close of one period may affect consolidated results of operations in subsequent
periods. Facts and circumstances unique to the estimation process at any single date, however, may still lead to a material impact on
consolidated results of operations in subsequent periods. Any absence of adverse claims development (as well as the expensing through
general and administrative expense of the costs to settle claims held at the start of the period) will lead to the recognition of a benefit from
prior period claims development in the period subsequent to the date of the original estimate. In 2009 and 2010, the absence of adverse
development of the liability for claims and medical benefits payable at the close of the previous period resulted in the recognition of
substantial favorable prior period development. In both years, however, the recognition of a benefit from prior period claims development
did not have a material impact on our consolidated results of operations because the amount of benefit recognized in each year was
roughly consistent with that recognized in the previous year.
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The following table presents the components of the change in our medical claims and benefits payable for the periods presented. The
negative amounts displayed for “ Components of medical care costs related to: Prior years” represent the amount by which our original
estimate of claims and benefits payable at the beginning of the period exceeded the actual amount of the liability based on information
(principally the payment of claims) developed since that liability was first reported.
Year Ended December 31,
2010
2009
(Dollars in thousands, except
per-member amounts)

$

Balances at beginning of year
Balance of acquired subsidiary
Components of medical care costs related to:
Current year
Prior years
Total medical care costs
Payments for medical care costs related to:
Current year
Prior years
Total paid
Balances at end of year

$

Benefit from prior years as a percentage of:
Balance at beginning of year
Premium revenue
Medical care costs
Claims Data(1):
Days in claims payable, fee for service only
Number of members at end of period
Fee-for-service claims processing and inventory information:
Number of claims in inventory at end of period
Billed charges of claims in inventory at end of period
Claims in inventory per member at end of period
Billed charges of claims in inventory per member at end of period
Number of claims received during the period
Billed charges of claims received during the period

315,316
3,228

$

3,420,235
(49,378)
3,370,857

3,227,794
(51,558)
3,176,236

3,085,388
249,657
3,335,045
354,356

2,920,015
233,347

$

15.7%
1.2%
1.5%

3,153,362
315,316
17.6%
1.4%

1.6%

42

44

1,613,000

1,455,000
93,100

143,600

$

292,442
—

218,900
0.09
$
135.71
14,554,800
$ 11,686,100

$
$

131,400
0.06
90.31

$

12,930,100
9,769,000

(1) “Claims Data” does not include our Wisconsin health plan acquired September 1, 2010.

Commitments and Contingencies
We lease office space and equipment under various operating leases. As of December 31, 2010, our lease obligations for the next five
years and thereafter were as follows: $28.0 million in 2011, $23.8 million in 2012, $20.3 million in 2013, $17.4 million in 2014,
$13.7 million in 2015, and an aggregate of $30.6 million thereafter.

We are not an obligor to or guarantor of any indebtedness of any other party. We are not a party to off-balance sheet financing
arrangements except for operating leases which are disclosed in Note 18 to the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2010.
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Contractual Obligations
In the table below, we present our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2010. Some of the amounts we have included in this
table are based on management’s estimates and assumptions about these obligations, including their duration, the possibility of renewal,
anticipated actions by third parties, and other factors. Because these estimates and assumptions are necessarily subjective, the contractual
obligations we will actually pay in future periods may vary from those reflected in the table. Amounts are in thousands.

Medical claims and benefits payable
Principal amount of long-term debt(1)
Operating leases
Interest on long-term debt
Purchase commitments
Total contractual obligations

Total

2011

$354,356

$354,356
—

187,000
133,806

26,297
28,557
$ 730,016

2012-2013

$

—
—

28,004

44,143

7,012

14,025
14,828
$72,996

13,401
$ 402,773

2016 and Beyond

2014-2015

$

—

$

187,000
31,037

5,260
328

$223,625

$

—
—
30,622
—
—
30,622

(1) Represents the principal amount due on our 3.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2014.
As of December 31, 2010, we have recorded approximately $11.0 million of unrecognized tax benefits. The above table does not
contain this amount because we cannot reasonably estimate when or if such amount may be settled. See Note 13 to the accompanying
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2010 for further information.

Item 7A.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents,
investments, receivables, and restricted investments. We invest a substantial portion of our cash in the PFM Funds Prime Series —
Institutional Class, and the PFM Funds Government Series. These funds represent a portfolio of highly liquid money market securities
that are managed by PFM Asset Management LLC (PFM), a Virginia business trust registered as an open-end management investment
fund. Our investments and a portion of our cash equivalents are managed by professional portfolio managers operating under documented
investment guidelines. No investment that is in a loss position can be sold by our managers without our prior approval. Our investments
consist solely of investment grade debt securities with a maximum maturity of five years and an average duration of two years. Restricted
investments are invested principally in certificates of deposit and U.S. treasury securities. Concentration of credit risk with respect to
accounts receivable is limited due to payors consisting principally of the governments of each state in which our health plan subsidiaries
operate.

Inflation
Although the general rate of inflation has remained relatively stable and health care cost inflation has stabilized in recent years, the
national health care cost inflation rate still exceeds the general inflation rate. We use various strategies to mitigate the negative effects of
health care cost inflation. Specifically, our health plans try to control medical and hospital costs through contracts with independent
providers of health care services. Through these contracted providers, our health plans emphasize preventive health care and appropriate
use of specialty and hospital services. While we currently believe our strategies will mitigate health care cost inflation, competitive
pressures, new health care and pharmaceutical product introductions, demands from health care providers and customers, applicable
regulations, or other factors may affect our ability to control health care costs.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Molina Healthcare, Inc.
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Molina Healthcare, Inc. (the Company) as of December 31, 2010
and 2009, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2010. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of
Molina Healthcare, Inc. at December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2010, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
Molina Healthcare, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010, based on criteria established in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report
dated March 8, 2011 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP
Los Angeles, California

March 8, 2011
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MOLINA HEALTHCARE, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31,
2010
2009
(Amounts in thousands,
except per-share data)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

$ 455,886
295,375
168,190
—
15,716
22,772
957,939
100,537

Investments
Receivables
Income tax refundable
Deferred income taxes
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Deferred contract costs
Intangible assets, net
Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets
Investments
Restricted investments
Receivable for ceded life and annuity contracts
Other assets

28,444

105,500
212,228
20,449
42,100

24,649
17,368
$1,509,214

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Medical claims and benefits payable
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Income taxes payable
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Deferred income taxes

Liability for ceded life and annuity contracts
Other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 80,000 shares authorized; outstanding: 30,309 shares at
December 31, 2010 and 25,607 shares at December 31, 2009
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 20,000 shares authorized, no shares issued and outstanding
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Retained earnings
Total stockholders’ equity
See accompanying notes.
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$ 354,356
137,930
60,086
13,176
565,548
164,014
16,235
24,649
19,711
790,157

30

—
251,627
(2,192)
469,592
719,057
$1,509,214

$ 469,501
174,844

136,654
6,067
8,757
14,383

810,206
78,171
—
80,846
133,408

59,687
36,274
25,455
19,988
$ 1,244,035

$ 315,316
71,732
101,985
—
489,033

158,900
12,506
25,455
15,403
701,297

26
—
129,902
(1,812)
414,622
542,738
$ 1,244,035
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MOLINA HEALTHCARE, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Year Ended December 31,
2010

2009

2008

(In thousands, except per-share data)

Revenue:
Premium revenue
Service revenue
Investment income
Total revenue

Expenses:
Medical care costs
Cost of service revenue
General and administrative expenses
Premium tax expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Total expenses
Gain on purchase of convertible senior notes
Operating income
Interest expense
Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net income

$3,989,909
89,809
6,259
4,085,977

$ 3,660,207
—
9,149
3,669,356

$ 3,091,240
—
21,126
3,112,366

3,370,857
78,647
345,993
139,775
45,704
3,980,976
—
105,001
(15,509)
89,492
34,522
$
54,970

3,176,236
—
276,027
128,581
38,110
3,618,954
1,532
51,934
(13,777)
38,157
7,289
$
30,868

2,621,312
—
249,646
100,165
33,688
3,004,811
—
107,555
(13,231)
94,324
34,726
$ 59,598

$
$

$
$

$
$

Net income per share:

Basic
Diluted

2.00

1.98

1.19
1.19

2.15
2.15

Weighted average shares outstanding:

27,449
27,754

Basic
Diluted

See accompanying notes.
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MOLINA HEALTHCARE, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common Stock
Outstanding
Amount

Balance at January 1, 2008
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Unrealized loss on investments
Other-than-temporary impairment of available-for-sale
securities

Total comprehensive income
Purchase of treasury stock
Retirement of treasury stock
Stock issued in business purchase transaction
Stock options exercised, employee stock grants and
employee stock plan purchases
Tax deficiency from employee stock compensation

Balance at December 31, 2008
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Unrealized gain on investments
Total comprehensive income
Purchase of treasury stock
Retirement of treasury stock
Retirement of convertible debt
Employee stock grants and employee stock plan
purchases
Tax deficiency from employee stock compensation
Balance at December 31, 2009
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Unrealized loss on investments
Total comprehensive income
Common stock issued, net of issuance costs
Employee stock grants and employee stock plan
purchases
Tax deficiency from employee stock compensation
Balance at December 31, 2010

Additional
Paid-in

Accumulated
Other

Retained

Treasury

Capital

Comprehensive Loss
(In thousands)

Earnings

Stock

28,444

$ 28

$ 210,310

—

—

—
—
—
—
(1,943)
48

272

$ 324,156

—

—

59,598

—

59,598

—

—

(7,025)

—

—

(7,025)

—
—
—

—
—
—

4,443
(2,582)
—
—
—

—
59,598
—
—
—

—
—

4,443
57,016
(49,940)
—
1,262

—
—
383,754

—
—

9,340

(20,390)

531,762

(1)

—

$

Total

(49,939)
1,262

$ (20,390) $ 514,376

(49,940)
49,940

—

—
—

9,340

27

170,681

—
—
(2,310)

—

—

—

—

30,868

—

30,868

—
—
—
(1,352)
—

—
—
—

—
—
—
(48,101)

498
498
—
—
—

—
30,868
—
—
—

—
—
(27,712)

498
31,366
(27,712)
—

(718)
129,902

—
—
(1,812)

—
—
414,622

—
—
—

542,738
54,970

176

—
26,725

(1)

—
—
—

234

—
25,607

26

(292)

(476)

8,516

48,102
—

—

—

—

—

54,970

—

—
—
4,350

—
—

—
—
111,127

(380)
(380)

—
54,970
—

—
—

352
—
30,309

—
—

11,271

30

$ 251,627

—
—
—
—
(2,192) $ 469,592

—
—
—

4

$

(673)

See accompanying notes.
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$

(292)

(476)

8,516
(718)

(380)

54,590
111,131
11,271
(673)

$ 719,057
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MOLINA HEALTHCARE, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended December 31,
2010

Operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Unrealized (gain) loss on trading securities
Loss (gain) on rights agreement
Other-than-temporary impairment on available-for-sale securities
Deferred income taxes
Stock-based compensation
Non-cash interest on convertible senior notes
Gain on purchase of convertible senior notes
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Tax deficiency from employee stock compensation

Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects of business combinations:

$ 54,970
60,765
(4,170)
3,807

—
(4,092)
9,531
5,114
—
1,780
(968)
—
(7,539)
(9,756)

Receivables
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Medical claims and benefits payable

34,363
40,482

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue

(41,899)
19,258
161,646

Income taxes
Net cash provided by operating activities
Investing activities:
Purchases of equipment
Purchases of investments
Sales and maturities of investments
Net cash paid in business combinations
Increase in deferred contract costs
(Increase) decrease in restricted investments
Change in other noncurrent assets and liabilities
Net cash used in investing activities
Financing activities:
Proceeds from common stock offering, net of issuance costs
Amount borrowed under credit facility
Repayment of amount borrowed under credit facility
Treasury stock purchases
Purchase of convertible senior notes
Credit facility fees paid
Proceeds from employee stock plans
Excess tax benefits from employee stock compensation
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

(48,538)
(302,842)

225,106
(130,743)

(29,319)
(5,566)
2,830
(289,072)
111,131
105,000
(105,000)

—
—
(1,671)
4,056
295
113,811
(13,615)
469,501
$ 455,886
72

2009
(In thousands)

$

30,868
38,110
(3,394)
3,100

—
(1)
7,485
4,782
(1,532)
1,872
(749)
—

(8,092)
383

22,874
(26,467)
88,181
(2,049)
155,371

2008

$ 59,598
33,688
399
(6,907)
7,166
(3,404)
7,811
4,707
—
1,435
(335)
142

(17,025)
(2,245)
(19,164)
10,830
(26,300)

(9,965)
40,431

(35,870)
(186,764)
204,365
(11,294)
—
1,928
(10,078)
(37,713)

(34,690)
(263,229)
246,524
(1,000)
—
(9,183)
(2,942)
(64,520)

—
—
—
(27,712)
(9,653)
—
2,015

—
—
—
(49,940)
—
—
2,084

31

(35,319)
82,339
387,162
$ 469,501

43

(47,813)

(71,902)
459,064
$ 387,162
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MOLINA HEALTHCARE, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS — (Continued)
Year Ended December 31,
2010

2009
(In thousands)

2008

Supplemental cash flow information
Cash paid during the year for:

$
$

18,299
10,951

$ 23,480
$ 8,205

$ 46,088
$ 7,797

Schedule of non-cash investing and financing activities:
Retirement of treasury stock

$

—

$ 48,102

$ 49,940

Details of business combinations:
Fair value of assets acquired
Release of escrow and other deposits
Common stock issued to seller
Less payable to seller
Fair value of liabilities assumed
Net cash paid in business purchase transactions

$(159,916)
—
—
4,723
24,450
$ (130,743)

$ (34,594)

$ (2,262)
—
1,262
—
—
$ (1,000)

Income taxes
Interest

See accompanying notes.
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18,000

—
5,300
—
$(11,294)
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MOLINA HEALTHCARE, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Basis of Presentation
Organization and Operations
Molina Healthcare, Inc. provides quality and cost-effective Medicaid-related solutions to meet the health care needs of low-income
families and individuals, and to assist state agencies in their administration of the Medicaid program.

Our Health Plans segment comprises health plans in California, Florida, Michigan, Missouri, New Mexico, Ohio, Texas, Utah,
Washington, and Wisconsin. These health plans served approximately 1.6 million members eligible for Medicaid, Medicare, and other
government-sponsored health care programs for low-income families and individuals as of December 31, 2010. The health plans are
operated by our respective wholly owned subsidiaries in those states, each of which is licensed as a health maintenance organization, or
HMO. Effective January 1, 2010, we terminated operations at our small Medicare health plan in Nevada.

Our Molina Medicaid Solutions, which we acquired during 2010, segment provides business processing and information
technology development and administrative services to Medicaid agencies in Idaho, Louisiana, Maine, New Jersey, and West Virginia,
and drug rebate administration services in Florida.

Consolidation and Presentation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Molina Healthcare, Inc. and all majority owned subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation. Financial information related to subsidiaries
acquired during any year is included only for the period subsequent to their acquisition. Our operating results for the year ended
December 31, 2010, include the results of the following businesses acquired during 2010:

• Molina Medicaid Solutions. On May 1, 2010, we acquired a health information management business which now operates
under the name, Molina Medicaid Solutions SM. See Note 4, “Business Combinations,” for more information relating to this
acquisition.
• Wisconsin Health Plan. On September 1, 2010, we acquired Abri Health Plan, a Medicaid managed care organization based in
Milwaukee, Wisconsin. See Note 4, “Business Combinations,” for more information relating to this acquisition.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Principal areas requiring the use of estimates include:

• The determination of revenue to be recognized by our Health Plans segment under certain contracts that place revenue at risk
dependent upon the achievement of certain quality or administrative measurements, or the expenditure of certain percentages of
revenue on defined expenses, or requirements that we return a certain portion of our profits to state governments;
• The determination of medical claims and benefits payable of our Health Plans segment;
• The determination of allowances for uncollectible accounts;
• The valuation of certain investments;
• Settlements under risk or savings sharing programs;
74
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

• The assessment of deferred contract costs, deferred revenue, long-lived and intangible assets, and goodwill for impairment;
• The determination of professional and general liability claims, and reserves for potential absorption of claims unpaid by
insolvent providers;
• The determination of reserves for the outcome of litigation;
• The determination of valuation allowances for deferred tax assets; and
• The determination of unrecognized tax benefits.

Reclassifications
Effective January 1, 2010, we have recorded the Michigan modified gross receipts tax as a premium tax and not as an income tax.
For the years ended December 31, 2009, and 2008, amounts for premium tax expense and income tax expense have been reclassified to
conform to this presentation. See Note 2, “Significant Accounting Policies.”
In prior periods, general and administrative expenses have included premium tax expenses. Beginning in 2010, we have reported
premium tax expenses on a separate line in the accompanying consolidated statements of income. Prior periods have been reclassified to
conform to this presentation.
We have reclassified certain other prior year balance sheet amounts to conform to the 2010 presentation.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term, highly liquid investments that are both readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and have a maturity of three months or less on the date of purchase.

Investments
Our investments are principally held in debt securities, which are grouped into two separate categories for accounting and reporting
purposes: available-for-sale securities, and held-to-maturity securities. Available-for-sale securities are recorded at fair value and
unrealized gains and losses, if any, are recorded in stockholders’ equity as other comprehensive income, net of applicable income taxes.
Held-to-maturity securities are recorded at amortized cost, which approximates fair value, and unrealized holding gains or losses are not
generally recognized. Realized gains and losses and unrealized losses judged to be other than temporary with respect to available-for-sale
and held-to-maturity securities are included in the determination of net income.
The cost of securities sold is determined using the specific-identification method, on an amortized cost basis. Fair values of
securities are generally based on quoted prices in active markets.

Our investment policy requires that all of our investments have final maturities of five years or less (excluding auction rate and
variable rate securities where interest rates may be periodically reset), and that the average maturity be two years or less. Investments and
restricted investments are subject to interest rate risk and will decrease in value if market rates increase. Declines in interest rates over time
will reduce our investment income.
In general, our available-for-sale securities are classified as current assets without regard to the securities’ contractual maturity dates
because they may be readily liquidated. Our auction rate securities are classified as non-current assets. For comprehensive discussions of
the fair value and classification of our current and non-current investments, including auction rate securities, see Note 5, “Fair Value
Measurements,” and Note 6, “Investments” and Note 10, “Restricted Investments.”
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Receivables
Receivables consist primarily of amounts due from the various states in which we operate, and are subject to potential retroactive
adjustment. Because such receivables are readily determinable and our creditors are primarily state governments, our allowance for
doubtful accounts is immaterial. Any amounts determined to be uncollectible are charged to expense when such determination is made. See
Note 7, “Receivables.” Additionally, we cede 100% of the financial responsibility for Medicare members covered by our Wisconsin health
plan to third a party health reinsurer. In connection with the arrangement, as of December 31, 2010, we have recorded a receivable from
the third party reinsurer of $5.0 million along with a corresponding current liability of $5.0 million.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at historical cost. Replacements and major improvements are capitalized, and repairs and
maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. Furniture and equipment are generally depreciated using the straight-line method over
estimated useful lives ranging from three to seven years. Software developed for internal use is capitalized. Software is generally amortized
over its estimated useful life of three years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the term of the lease, or over their useful lives
from five to 10 years, whichever is shorter. Buildings are depreciated over their estimated useful lives of 31.5 years. See Note 8, “Property
and Equipment.”

As discussed below, the costs associated with certain of our Molina Medicaid Solutions segment equipment and software, which
may be ultimately transferred to our clients under fixed-price contracts, are capitalized and recorded as deferred contract costs. Such costs
are amortized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the useful life or the contract period.

Deferral of Service Revenue and Cost of Service Revenue — Molina Medicaid Solutions Segment
The payments received by our Molina Medicaid Solutions segment under its state contracts are based on the performance of three
elements of service. The first of these is the design, development and implementation, or DDI, of a Medicaid Management Information
System, or MMIS. The second element, following completion of the DDI element, is the operation of the MMIS under a business process
outsourcing, or BPO, arrangement. While providing BPO services, we also provide the state with the third contracted element — training
and IT support and hosting services (training and support).
Because they include these three elements of service, our Molina Medicaid Solution segment contracts are multiple-element
arrangements. We have no vendor specific objective evidence, or VSOE, of fair value for any of the individual elements in these
contracts, and at no point in the contract will we have VSOE for the undelivered elements in the contract. We lack VSOE of the fair value
of the individual elements of our Molina Medicaid Solutions contracts for the following reasons:

• Each contract calls for the provision of its own specific set of products and services. While all contracts support the system of
record for state MMIS, the actual services and products we provide vary significantly between contracts; and
• The nature of the MMIS installed varies significantly between our older contracts (proprietary mainframe systems) and our new
contracts (commercial off-the-shelf technology solutions).
The absence of VSOE within the context of a multiple element arrangement requires us to delay recognition of any revenue for an
MMIS contract until completion of the DDI phase of the contract. As a general principle, revenue recognition will therefore commence at
the completion of the DDI phase, and all revenue will be recognized over the period that BPO services and training and IT support
services are provided. Consistent with the deferral of revenue, recognition of all direct costs (such as direct labor, hardware, and software)
associated with the DDI phase
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
of our contracts is deferred until the commencement of revenue recognition. Deferred costs are recognized on a straight-line basis over the
period of revenue recognition.

Provisions specific to each contract may, however, lead us to modify this general principle. In those circumstances, the right of the
state to refuse acceptance of services, as well as the related obligation to compensate us, may require us to delay recognition of all or part
of our revenue until that contingency (the right of the state to refuse acceptance) has been removed. In those circumstances we defer
recognition of any revenue at risk (whether DDI, BPO services or training and IT support services) until the contingency had been
removed. In these circumstances we would also defer recognition of incremental direct costs (such as direct labor, hardware, and
software) associated with the contract (whether DDI, BPO services or training and IT support services) on which revenue recognition is
being deferred. Such deferred contract costs are recognized on a straight-line basis over the period of revenue recognition.
We began to recognize revenue (and related deferred costs) associated with our Maine contract in September 2010. In Idaho, we expect
to begin recognition of deferred contact costs during 2011, in a manner consistent with our anticipated recognition of revenue.
Unamortized deferred contract costs relating to the Molina Medicaid Solutions segment at December 31, 2010 were $28.4 million.

The recoverability of deferred contract costs associated with a particular contract is analyzed on a periodic basis using the
undiscounted estimated cash flows of the whole contract over its remaining contract term. If such undiscounted cash flows are
insufficient to recover the long-lived assets and deferred contract costs, the deferred contract costs are written down by the amount of the
cash flow deficiency. If a cash flow deficiency remains after reducing the balance of the deferred contract costs to zero, any remaining
long-lived assets are evaluated for impairment. Any such impairment recognized would equal the amount by which the carrying value of
the long-lived assets exceeds the fair value of those assets.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired. Identifiable intangible assets
(consisting principally of purchased contract rights and provider contracts) are amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected period
to be benefited (generally between one and 15 years). See Note 9, “Goodwill and Intangible Assets.”

Goodwill and indefinite-lived assets are not amortized, but are subject to impairment tests on an annual basis or more frequently if
indicators of impairment exist. We use a discounted cash flow methodology to assess the fair values of our reporting units. If the carrying
values of our reporting units exceed the fair values, we perform a hypothetical purchase price allocation. Impairment is measured by
comparing the goodwill and indefinite-lived asset balance derived from the hypothetical purchase price allocation to the carrying value of
the goodwill and indefinite-lived asset balance. Based on the results of our impairment testing, no adjustments were required for the years
ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008.
Identifiable intangible assets associated with Molina Medicaid Solutions are classified as either contract backlog or customer
relationships.

The contract backlog intangible asset comprises all contractual cash flows anticipated to be received during the remaining contracted
period for each specific contract relating to work that was performed prior to the acquisition. The contract backlog intangible has been
developed on a contract-by-contract basis. The amortization of that portion of the contract backlog intangible associated with contracts for
which revenue recognition has not yet commenced is deferred until revenue recognition has begun. Because each acquired contract
constitutes a single revenue stream, amortization of the contract backlog intangible is recorded to contra-service revenue so that
amortization is matched to any revenues associated with contract performance that occurred prior to the acquisition date. The contract
backlog intangible asset is amortized on a straight-line basis for each specific contract over periods generally ranging from one to six
years.
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The customer relationship intangible asset comprises all contractual cash flows that are anticipated to be received during the option
periods of each specific contract as well as anticipated renewals of those contracts. The customer relationship intangible is amortized on a
straight-line basis for each specific contract over periods generally ranging from four to nine years.
The determination of the value of identifiable intangible assets requires us to make estimates and assumptions about estimated asset
lives, future business trends, and growth. In addition to annual impairment testing, we continually evaluate whether events and
circumstances have occurred that indicate the balance of identifiable intangible assets may not be recoverable. In evaluating impairment,
we compare the estimated fair value of the intangible asset to its underlying book value. Such evaluation is significantly impacted by
estimates and assumptions of future revenues, costs and expenses, and other factors. If an event occurs that would cause us to revise our
estimates and assumptions used in analyzing the value of our identifiable intangible assets, such revision could result in a non-cash
impairment charge that could have a material impact on our financial results.

Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation and amortization related to our Health Plans segment is all recorded in “Depreciation and Amortization” in the
consolidated statements of income. Depreciation and amortization related to our Molina Medicaid Solutions segment is recorded within
three different captions in the consolidated statements of income as follows:

• Amortization of purchased intangibles relating to customer relationships is reported as amortization in “Depreciation and
Amortization;”
• Amortization of purchased intangibles relating to contract backlog is recorded as a reduction of service revenue; and
• Depreciation is recorded as cost of service revenue.
The following table presents all depreciation and amortization recorded in our consolidated statements of income, regardless of
whether the item appears as depreciation and amortization, a reduction of revenue, or as cost of service revenue, and reconciles that
amount to the consolidated statements of cash flows.
Year Ended December 31,

Depreciation
Amortization of intangible assets
Depreciation and amortization reported in our consolidated statements of income
Amortization recorded as reduction of service revenue
Depreciation recorded as cost of service revenue
Depreciation and amortization reported in our consolidated statements of cash flows

2010

2009
(In thousands)

2008

$ 27,230
18,474
45,704
8,316
6,745
$60,765

$25,172
12,938
38,110
—
—
$ 38,110

$ 20,718
12,970
33,688
—
—
$ 33,688

Long-Lived Asset Impairment
Situations may arise where the carrying value of a long-lived asset may exceed the undiscounted expected cash flows associated with
that asset. In such circumstances, the asset is deemed to be impaired. We review material long-lived assets for impairment when events or
changes in business conditions suggest potential impairment. For example, our health plan subsidiaries have generally been successful in
obtaining the renewal by amendment of their contracts in each state prior to the actual expiration of their contracts. However, there can be
no assurance that
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these contracts will continue to be renewed. Impaired assets are written down to fair value. We have determined that no long-lived assets
were impaired in the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008.

Restricted Investments
Restricted investments, which consist of certificates of deposit and treasury securities, are designated as held-to-maturity and are
carried at amortized cost, which approximates market value. The use of these funds is limited to specific purposes as required by each
state, or as protection against the insolvency of capitated providers. We have the ability to hold our restricted investments until maturity
and, as a result, we would not expect the value of these investments to decline significantly due to a sudden change in market interest
rates. See Note 10, “Restricted Investments.”

Receivable/Liability for Ceded Life and Annuity Contracts
We report a 100% ceded reinsurance arrangement for life insurance policies written and held by our wholly owned insurance
subsidiary, Molina Healthcare Insurance Company, by recording a non-current receivable from the reinsurer with a corresponding noncurrent liability for ceded life and annuity contracts.

Other Assets
Significant items included in other assets include deferred financing costs associated with our convertible senior notes and with our
credit facility, certain investments held in connection with our employee deferred compensation program, and an investment in a vision
services provider (see Note 17, “Related Party Transactions”). The deferred financing costs are being amortized on a straight-line basis
over the seven-year term of the convertible senior notes and the five year term of the credit facility.

Delegated Provider Insolvency
Circumstances may arise where providers to whom we have delegated risk, due to insolvency or other circumstances, are unable to
pay claims they have incurred with third parties in connection with referral services (including hospital inpatient services) provided to our
members. The inability of delegated providers to pay referral claims presents us with both immediate financial risk and potential
disruption to member care. Depending on states’ laws, we may be held liable for such unpaid referral claims even though the delegated
provider has contractually assumed such risk. Additionally, competitive pressures may force us to pay such claims even when we have
no legal obligation to do so. To reduce the risk that delegated providers are unable to pay referral claims, we monitor the operational and
financial performance of such providers. We also maintain contingency plans that include transferring members to other providers in
response to potential network instability.

In certain instances, we have required providers to place funds on deposit with us as protection against their potential insolvency.
These reserves are frequently in the form of segregated funds received from the provider and held by us or placed in a third-party
financial institution. These funds may be used to pay claims that are the financial responsibility of the provider in the event the provider
is unable to meet these obligations. Additionally, we have recorded liabilities for estimated losses arising from provider instability or
insolvency in excess of provider funds on deposit with us. Such liabilities were not material at December 31, 2010, or December 31,
2009.

Premium Revenue
Premium revenue is fixed in advance of the periods covered and, except as described below, is not generally subject to significant
accounting estimates. For the year ended December 31, 2010 we received approximately 94% of our premium revenue as a fixed amount
per member per month, or PMPM, pursuant to our contracts with state Medicaid agencies, Medicare and other managed care
organizations for which we operate as a subcontractor. These
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premium revenues are recognized in the month that members are entitled to receive health care services. The state Medicaid programs and
the federal Medicare program periodically adjust premium rates.

The following table summarizes premium revenue by health plan for the periods indicated:
Year Ended December 31,

$

California
Florida(1)
Michigan
Missouri
New Mexico
Ohio
Texas
Utah
Washington
Wisconsin(2)
Other

2010

2009
(In thousands)

506,871
170,683

$ 481,717
102,232
557,421
230,222

630,134

210,852
366,784
860,324
188,716
258,076
758,849
30,033

8,587
$3,989,909

404,026

803,521
134,860
207,297
726,137
—
12,774
$3,660,207

2008

$

417,027
—
509,782
225,280
348,576
602,826
110,178
155,991
709,943
—
11,637
$ 3,091,240

(1) The Florida health plan began enrolling members in December 2008.
(2) We acquired the Wisconsin health plan on September 1, 2010.
For the year ended December 31, 2010, we received approximately 6% of our premium revenue in the form of “birth income” — a
one-time payment for the delivery of a child — from the Medicaid programs in all of our state health plans except New Mexico. Such
payments are recognized as revenue in the month the birth occurs.

Certain components of premium revenue are subject to accounting estimates, and therefore are subject to retroactive revision. The
most significant of these estimates involve:

• The recognition of premium revenue at our Florida, New Mexico, and Texas health plans, where we are subject to a number of
requirements, that, among other things, require us to expend a minimum amount of revenue on certain defined medical costs,
expend a maximum amount of revenue on certain defined administrative costs, and share our profits (as defined) above a certain
percentage of revenue with the state;

• The recognition of premium revenue due to the achievement of certain performance measures (generally linked to quality of care
and administrative efficiency) included in our contracts with the states of New Mexico, Ohio, and Texas;
• The recognition of premium revenue due to the achievement of certain medical cost savings (as measured against state
fee-for-service costs) under our contract with the state of Utah; and
• The amount of Medicare premium revenue that we recognize, which may be retroactively adjusted to reflect the acuity of care
required by our members.
Medical Care Costs
Expenses related to medical care services are captured in the following four categories:

• Fee-for-service: Physician providers paid on a fee-for-service basis are paid according to a fee schedule set by the state or by
our contracts with these providers. Most hospitals are paid on a fee-for-service basis in a
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variety of ways, including per diem amounts, diagnostic-related groups or DRGs, percent of billed charges, and case rates. As
discussed below, we also pay a small portion of hospitals on a capitated basis. We also have stop-loss agreements with the
hospitals with which we contract. Under all fee-for-service arrangements, we retain the financial responsibility for medical care
provided. Expenses related to fee-for-service contracts are recorded in the period in which the related services are dispensed. The
costs of drugs administered in a physician or hospital setting that are not billed through our pharmacy benefit managers are
included in fee-for-service costs.

• Capitation: Many of our primary care physicians and a small portion of our specialists and hospitals are paid on a capitated
basis. Under capitation contracts, we typically pay a fixed per-member per-month, or PMPM, payment to the provider without
regard to the frequency, extent, or nature of the medical services actually furnished. Under capitated contracts, we remain liable
for the provision of certain health care services. Certain of our capitated contracts also contain incentive programs based on
service delivery, quality of care, utilization management, and other criteria. Capitation payments are fixed in advance of the
periods covered and are not subject to significant accounting estimates. These payments are expensed in the period the providers
are obligated to provide services. The financial risk for pharmacy services for a small portion of our membership is delegated to
capitated providers.
• Pharmacy: Pharmacy costs include all drug, injectibles, and immunization costs paid through our pharmacy benefit managers.
As noted above, drugs and injectibles not paid through our pharmacy benefit managers are included in fee-for-service costs,
except in those limited instances where we capitate drug and injectible costs.
• Other: Other medical care costs include medically related administrative costs, certain provider incentive costs, reinsurance
cost, and other health care expense. Medically related administrative costs include, for example, expenses relating to health
education, quality assurance, case management, disease management, 24-hour on-call nurses, and a portion of our information
technology costs. Salary and benefit costs are a substantial portion of these expenses. For the years ended December 31, 2010,
2009, and 2008, medically related administrative costs were approximately $85.5 million, $74.6 million, and $75.9 million,
respectively.

The following table provides the details of our consolidated medical care costs for the periods indicated (dollars in thousands, except
PMPM amounts):
Year Ended December 31,
2010

2009

% of
Amount

Fee-for- service

Capitation
Pharmacy
Other
Total

PMPM

$2,360,858 $ 128.73
555,487
30.29
325,935
17.77
128,577
7.01
$ 3,370,857 $ 183.80

Total

70.0%

16.5
9.7
3.8
100.0%

2008

% of
Amount

PMPM

$ 2,077,489 $ 126.14
558,538
33.91
414,785
25.18
125,424
7.62
$3,176,236 $192.85

Total

65.4%
17.6
13.1
3.9
100.0%

% of
Amount

PMPM

$1,709,806 $116.69
450,440

30.74
24.31

356,184
104,882
7.16
$2,621,312 $ 178.90

Total

65.2%
17.2
13.6
4.0

100.0%

Our medical care costs include amounts that have been paid by us through the reporting date, as well as estimated liabilities for
medical care costs incurred but not paid by us as of the reporting date. Such medical care cost liabilities include, among other items,
unpaid fee-for-service claims, capitation payments owed providers, unpaid pharmacy invoices, and various medically related
administrative costs that have been incurred but not paid. We use judgment to determine the appropriate assumptions for determining the
required estimates.
The most important element in estimating our medical care costs is our estimate for fee-for-service claims which have been incurred
but not paid by us. These fee-for-service costs that have been incurred but have not been
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paid at the reporting date are collectively referred to as medical costs that are “Incurred But Not Paid,” or IBNP. Our IBNP claims reserve,
as reported in our balance sheet, represents our best estimate of the total amount of claims we will ultimately pay with respect to claims
that we have incurred as of the balance sheet date. We estimate our IBNP monthly using actuarial methods based on a number of factors.

The factors we consider when estimating our IBNP include, without limitation, claims receipt and payment experience (and
variations in that experience), changes in membership, provider billing practices, health care service utilization trends, cost trends,
product mix, seasonality, prior authorization of medical services, benefit changes, known outbreaks of disease or increased incidence of
illness such as influenza, provider contract changes, changes to Medicaid fee schedules, and the incidence of high dollar or catastrophic
claims. Our assessment of these factors is then translated into an estimate of our IBNP liability at the relevant measuring point through
the calculation of a base estimate of IBNP, a further reserve for adverse claims development, and an estimate of the administrative costs of
settling all claims incurred through the reporting date. The base estimate of IBNP is derived through application of claims payment
completion factors and trended PMPM cost estimates. See Note 11, “Medical Claims and Benefits Payable.”
We report reinsurance premiums as medical care costs, while related reinsurance recoveries are reported as deductions from medical
care costs. We limit our risk of catastrophic losses by maintaining high deductible reinsurance coverage. We do not consider this coverage
to be material because the cost is not significant and the likelihood that coverage will apply is low.

Taxes Based on Premiums
Our California, Florida, Michigan, New Mexico, Ohio, Texas and Washington health plans are assessed a tax based on premium
revenue collected. We report these taxes on a gross basis, included in premium tax expense.

Premium Deficiency Reserves on Loss Contracts
We assess the profitability of our contracts for providing medical care services to our members and identify those contracts where
current operating results or forecasts indicate probable future losses. Anticipated future premiums are compared to anticipated medical
care costs, including the cost of processing claims. If the anticipated future costs exceed the premiums, a loss contract accrual is
recognized. No such accrual was recorded as of December 31, 2010, or 2009.

Income Taxes
The provision for income taxes is determined using an estimated annual effective tax rate, which is generally greater than the
U.S. federal statutory rate primarily because of state taxes. The effective tax rate may be subject to fluctuations during the year as new
information is obtained. Such information may affect the assumptions used to estimate the annual effective tax rate, including factors
such as the mix of pretax earnings in the various tax jurisdictions in which we operate, valuation allowances against deferred tax assets,
the recognition or derecognition of tax benefits related to uncertain tax positions, and changes in or the interpretation of tax laws in
jurisdictions where we conduct business. We recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for temporary differences between the financial
reporting basis and the tax basis of our assets and liabilities, along with net operating loss and tax credit carryovers. For further
discussion and disclosure, see Note 13, “Income Taxes.”

Through December 31, 2009, income tax expense included both the Michigan business income tax, or BIT, and Michigan modified
gross receipts tax, or MGRT. Effective January 1, 2010, we have recorded the MGRT as a premium tax and not as an income tax, and
prior years have been reclassified to conform to this presentation. We will continue to record the BIT as an income tax. The MGRT
amounted to $6.2 million, $5.5 million and $5.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008 respectively.
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Generally, the MGRT is a 0.976% tax (statutory rate of 0.8% plus 21.99% surtax) on modified gross receipts, which for most
taxpayers is defined as receipts less purchases from other firms. Managed care organizations, however, are not currently allowed to
deduct payments to providers in determining modified gross receipts. As a result, the MGRT is 0.976% of our Michigan plan’s receipts
and does not vary with levels of pretax income or margins. We believe that presentation of the MGRT as a premium tax produces financial
statements that are more useful to the reader.

Concentrations of Credit Risk
Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents,
investments, receivables, and restricted investments. We invest a substantial portion of our cash in the PFM Funds Prime Series —
Institutional Class, and the PFM Funds Government Series. These funds represent a portfolio of highly liquid money market securities
that are managed by PFM Asset Management LLC (PFM), a Virginia business trust registered as an open-end management investment
fund. As of December 31, 2010, and 2009, our investments with PFM totaled $327 million and $296 million, respectively. Our
investments and a portion of our cash equivalents are managed by professional portfolio managers operating under documented
investment guidelines. No investment that is in a loss position can be sold by our managers without our prior approval. Concentration of
credit risk with respect to accounts receivable is limited due to payors consisting principally of the governments of each state in which our
health plan subsidiaries operate.

Risks and Uncertainties
Our profitability depends in large part on our ability to accurately predict and effectively manage medical care costs. We continually
review our medical costs in light of our underlying claims experience and revised actuarial data. However, several factors could adversely
affect medical care costs. These factors, which include changes in health care practices, inflation, new technologies, major epidemics,
natural disasters, and malpractice litigation, are beyond our control and may have an adverse effect on our ability to accurately predict
and effectively control medical care costs. Costs in excess of those anticipated could have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition, results of operations, or cash flows.
At December 31, 2010, we operated health plans in 10 states, primarily as a direct contractor with the states, and in Los Angeles
County, California, as a subcontractor to another health plan holding a direct contract with the state. We are therefore dependent upon a
small number of contracts to support our revenue. The loss of any one of those contracts could have a material adverse effect on our
financial position, results of operations, or cash flows. Our ability to arrange for the provision of medical services to our members is
dependent upon our ability to develop and maintain adequate provider networks. Our inability to develop or maintain such networks
might, in certain circumstances, have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Revenue Recognition. In late 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, issued the following new accounting
guidance which is first applicable for our January 1, 2011 reporting:

• ASU No. 2009-14, Software (ASC Topic 985) — Certain Revenue Arrangements That Include Software Elements , a
consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force. This guidance modifies the scope of ASC Subtopic 985-605 — SoftwareRevenue Recognition to exclude from its requirements (a) non-software components of tangible products and (b) software
components of tangible products that are sold, licensed or leased with tangible products when the software components and nonsoftware components of the tangible product function together to deliver the tangible product’s essential functionality. We do not
expect the update to impact our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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• ASU No. 2009-13, Revenue Recognition (ASC Topic 605) — Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements , a consensus of
the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force. This guidance modifies previous requirements by allowing the use of the “best estimate
of selling price” in the absence of vendor-specific objective evidence (“VSOE”) or verifiable objective evidence (“VOE”) (now
referred to as “TPE” or third-party evidence) for determining the selling price of a deliverable. A vendor is now required to use its
best estimate of the selling price when more objective evidence of the selling price cannot be determined. In addition, the residual
method of allocating arrangement consideration is no longer permitted. As of December 31, 2010, we do not expect the update to
impact our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows; however, the future impact of the update will be
dependent on future contracts and modifications to existing contracts.

Fair Value Measurements. In January 2010, the FASB issued the following guidance which expanded the required disclosures
about fair value measurements. Effective for interim and annual reporting beginning after December 15, 2009, with one new disclosure
effective beginning after December 15, 2010, we adopted this guidance in full during the interim period ended March 31, 2010.
• ASU No. 2010-6, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (Topic 820) — Improving Disclosures about Fair Value
Measurements. This guidance requires (a) separate disclosure of the amounts of significant transfers in and out of Level 1 and
Level 2 fair value measurements along with the reasons for such transfers, (b) information about purchases, sales, issuances
and settlements to be presented separately in the reconciliation for Level 3 fair value measurements, (c) fair value measurement
disclosures for each class of assets and liabilities and (d) disclosures about the valuation techniques and inputs used to measure
fair value for both recurring and nonrecurring fair value measurements for fair value measurements that fall in either Level 2 or
Level 3. The adoption of this guidance did not impact our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
Other recent accounting pronouncements issued by the FASB (including its Emerging Issues Task Force), the AICPA, and the SEC
did not, or are not believed by management to have a material impact on our present or future consolidated financial statements.

3. Earnings per Share
The denominators for the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share were calculated as follows:
Year Ended December 31,
2010

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year
Weighted-average number of shares:
Issued under equity offering
Purchased
Issued under employee stock plans
Denominator for basic earnings per share
Dilutive effect of employee stock options and stock grants(1)
Denominator for diluted earnings per share(2)

2009
(In thousands)

25,607

26,725

1,671
—
171
27,449

—
(988)
106
25,843

305

141

27,754

25,984

2008

28,444

—
(871)
103

27,676
96
27,772

(1) Options to purchase common shares are included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share when their exercise prices are below
the average fair value of the common shares for each of the periods presented. For the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and
2008, there were approximately 478,000, 620,000, and 532,000 anti-dilutive weighted options, respectively. Restricted shares are
included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share when their grant date fair values are below the average fair value of the
common shares for each of the
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periods presented. For the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, anti-dilutive weighted restricted shares were insignificant.
(2) Potentially dilutive shares issuable pursuant to our 2007 offering of convertible senior notes were not included in the computation of
diluted net income per share because to do so would have been anti-dilutive for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008.

4. Business Combinations
Wisconsin Health Plan
On September 1, 2010, Molina acquired 100% of the voting equity interests in Avatar Partners, LLC, which is the sole shareholder
of Abri Health Plan, Inc. (“Abri”), a Medicaid managed care organization based in Milwaukee, Wisconsin. This acquisition is consistent
with our stated strategy to enter markets with competitive provider communities, supportive regulatory environments, significant size
and, where practicable, mandated Medicaid managed care enrollment.
We expect the final purchase price for the Abri acquisition to be approximately $15.5 million, subject to adjustments. As of
December 31, 2010, we had paid $8.5 million of the total purchase price. We expect to finalize the amount due to the sellers based on the
final membership reconciliation in the first quarter of 2011. Additionally, $2.8 million of the purchase price represents contingent
consideration based on the plan’s minimum surplus requirements as of February 1, 2011, which will also be computed in the first
quarter of 2011. Any adjustments to the estimated amount of contingent consideration will be recorded to operations in the first quarter of
2011. Following the final membership reconciliation, 10% of the final purchase price for the membership acquired will be deposited to an
escrow account payable at the later of 12 months or the resolution of all unresolved claims. We incurred approximately $0.5 million in
acquisition costs relating to this acquisition in 2010, recorded to general and administrative expenses.

In connection with this acquisition, we recorded $5.5 million in goodwill, which is not deductible for tax purposes, and
$3.4 million in various definite-lived identifiable intangible assets, with a weighted average useful life of 6.4 years. Accumulated
amortization totaled approximately $0.4 million as of December 31, 2010, which reflects amortization recorded since the acquisition date.
We expect to record amortization relating to this acquisition in future years as follows— 2011: $0.9 million, 2012: $0.4 million, 2013:
$0.3 million, 2014: $0.3 million, and 2015: $0.2 million.

Molina Medicaid Solutions
On May 1, 2010, we acquired a health information management business that was previously an operating unit of Unisys
Corporation. This business now operates under the name Molina Medicaid Solutions SM, or Molina Medicaid Solutions. Molina
Medicaid Solutions provides design, development, implementation, and business process outsourcing solutions to state governments for
their Medicaid Management Information Systems (MMIS). MMIS is a core tool used to support the administration of state Medicaid and
other health care entitlement programs. Molina Medicaid Solutions currently holds MMIS contracts with the states of Idaho, Louisiana,
Maine, New Jersey, and West Virginia, as well as a contract to provide drug rebate administration services for the Florida Medicaid
program. As a result of this acquisition, we are diversifying our core health plan business, and we believe that the use of a common
claims processing platform across our health plans and our new MMIS business will enable us to achieve synergies in the operations of
both.
We paid $131.3 million to acquire Molina Medicaid Solutions. The acquisition was funded with available cash of $26 million and
$105 million drawn under our credit facility. In connection with the closing, both the fourth amendment and the fifth amendment to our
credit facility became effective (see Note 12, “Long-Term Debt”). We incurred approximately $2.5 million in acquisition costs relating to
this acquisition in 2010, recorded to general and administrative expenses. Additionally, effective on the acquisition date, we entered into a
transition services
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agreement with Unisys Corporation. Under this agreement, Unisys is providing Molina Medicaid Solutions various systems and
infrastructure support services until April 30, 2011. During 2010, we recorded approximately $4.7 million to cost of service revenue
relating to this agreement.

Recording of assets acquired and liabilities assumed: The transaction has been accounted for using the acquisition method of
accounting which requires, among other things, that most assets acquired and liabilities assumed be recognized at their fair values as of
the acquisition date.
The following table summarizes the acquisition-date fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed:
(In thousands)

Assets
$

Accounts receivable
Other current assets
Equipment and other long-term assets
Identifiable intangible assets
Goodwill

17,128
3,901
783

48,150
72,367
142,329

Less: liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Net assets acquired

$

11,079
131,250

A single estimate of fair value results from a complex series of judgments about future events and uncertainties and relies heavily on
estimates and assumptions. Results that differ from the estimates and judgments used to determine the estimated fair value assigned to
each class of assets acquired and liabilities assumed, as well as asset lives, can materially impact our results of operations.

Accounts receivable: Accounts receivable are stated at fair value, based on the gross contractual amounts receivable. We have
collected substantially all of the accounts receivable as of the acquisition date.
Identifiable intangible assets: The following table is a summary of the fair value estimates of the identifiable intangible assets and
their weighted-average useful lives:
Estimated Fair

Value
(In thousands)

$

Customer relationships
Contract backlog

$

24,550
23,600
48,150

Weighted Average
Useful Life
(Years)

5.3
2.4

Accumulated amortization totaled approximately $11.7 million as of December 31, 2010, which reflects total amortization recorded
since the acquisition date. For identifiable intangible assets recorded as of December 31, 2010, we expect to record amortization in future
years as follows — 2011: $13.2 million, 2012: $7.6 million, 2013: $7.6 million, 2014: $5.6 million, and 2015: $0.8 million.

Goodwill: Goodwill in the amount of $72.4 million was recognized for this acquisition, all of which is expected to be deductible for
tax purposes. The total goodwill amount was calculated as the excess of the consideration transferred over the net assets recognized and
represents the future economic benefits arising from
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other assets acquired that could not be individually identified and separately recognized. The goodwill recorded as part of the acquisition
of Molina Medicaid Solutions includes:

• Expected synergies and other benefits that we believe will result from combining the operations of Molina Medicaid Solutions
with the operations of Molina;
• Any intangible assets that do not qualify for separate recognition such as the assembled workforce; and
• The value of the going-concern element of Molina Medicaid Solutions’ existing businesses (the higher rate of return on the
assembled collection of net assets versus acquiring all of the net assets separately).

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities: Accounts payable and accrued liabilities include $1.3 million payable to the seller of
Molina Medicaid Solutions, which represented a working capital adjustment provided in the purchase agreement. This working capital
adjustment was paid to the seller in August 2010. The working capital adjustment provided that the net working capital, or current assets
minus current liabilities, on Molina Medicaid Solutions’ opening balance sheet would equal $10 million. To the extent the final net
working capital conveyed by the seller exceeded $10 million, the amount would be payable back to the seller; conversely, to the extent that
net working capital conveyed by the seller was less than $10 million, the shortage would be a receivable from the seller. Thus, the
$1.3 million amount described above represented the amount payable to the seller for net working capital in excess of $10 million on the
opening balance sheet.

Pro-forma impact of the acquisition: The unaudited pro-forma results presented below include the effects of the acquisition as if it
had been consummated as of January 1, 2010, 2009 and 2008. The pro-forma results include the amortization associated with the
acquired intangible assets and interest expense associated with debt used to fund the acquisition. To better reflect the combined operating
results, material non-recurring charges directly attributable to the transaction have been excluded. In addition, the pro-forma results do not
include any anticipated synergies or other expected benefits of the acquisition. Accordingly, the unaudited pro forma financial information
below is not necessarily indicative of either future results of operations or results that might have been achieved had the acquisition been
consummated as of January 1, 2010, January 1, 2009, or January 1, 2008.
Year Ended December 31,
2010

$4,124,058
$ 57,800
$
2.08

Revenue
Net income

Diluted earnings per share

2009

$3,767,888
$ 26,192
$
1.01

2008

$3,202,581
$ 54,228
$
1.95

Florida Health Plan
On December 31, 2009, we acquired 100% of the voting equity interests in Florida NetPASS, LLC, or NetPASS. The final
purchase price for this acquisition totaled $29.6 million. As of the final membership reconciliation in the second quarter of 2010, we
transitioned approximately 49,600 members from NetPASS to our Florida health plan, and have recorded $18.0 million in goodwill, and
$11.6 million in intangible assets relating to these members.

On April 15, 2010, the former owners of NetPASS filed suit in federal court stating that we had not paid $12 million of the
purchase price that was owed and based on a formula in the purchase agreement. Because the purchase agreement contained an arbitration
clause, the Florida health plan filed a demand for arbitration seeking a declaration that the full purchase price had been paid and the
purchase agreement had been fulfilled. The former owners of NetPASS filed a counter-demand for an additional $10 million and seeking
a declaration regarding the anti-competition clause in the purchase agreement. The parties have exchanged documents and will start to take
depositions. Arbitration is scheduled to commence June 10, 2011. We continue to believe that their claims do not have any merit and that
we will prevail in this action.
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5. Fair Value Measurements
Our consolidated balance sheets include the following financial instruments: cash and cash equivalents, investments, receivables,
trade accounts payable, medical claims and benefits payable, long-term debt and other liabilities. We consider the carrying amounts of
cash and cash equivalents, receivables, other current assets and current liabilities to approximate their fair value because of the relatively
short period of time between the origination of these instruments and their expected realization or payment. For a comprehensive
discussion of fair value measurements with regard to our current and non-current investments, see below.

As described in Note 12, “Long-Term Debt,” the carrying amount of the convertible senior notes was $164.0 million, and
$158.9 million as of December 31, 2010, and 2009, respectively. Based on quoted market prices, the fair value of our convertible senior
notes issued in October 2007 was approximately $188.4 million, and $160.8 million as of December 31, 2010, and 2009, respectively.
To prioritize the inputs we use in measuring fair value, we apply a three-tier fair value hierarchy. These tiers include: Level 1,
defined as observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets; Level 2, defined as inputs other than quoted prices in active
markets that are either directly or indirectly observable; and Level 3, defined as unobservable inputs in which little or no market data
exists, therefore requiring an entity to develop its own assumptions.
As of December 31, 2010, we held certain assets that are required to be measured at fair value on a recurring basis. These included
investments as follows:
Balance Sheet Classification
D e s c r i p t i o n

Current assets:
Investments

Investment-grade debt securities; designated as available-for-sale; reported at fair value based on market
prices that are readily available (Level 1). See Note 6, “Investments,” for further information regarding
fair value.

Non-current assets:
Investments

Auction rate securities; designated as available-for-sale; reported at fair value based on discounted cash
flow analysis or other type of valuation model (Level 3).

As of December 31, 2010, $24.6 million par value (fair value of $20.4 million) of our investments consisted of auction rate
securities, all of which were collateralized by student loan portfolios guaranteed by the U.S. government. We continued to earn interest on
substantially all of these auction rate securities as of December 31, 2010. Due to events in the credit markets, the auction rate securities
held by us experienced failed auctions beginning in the first quarter of 2008. As such, quoted prices in active markets were not readily
available during the majority of 2008, 2009, and continued to be unavailable as of December 31, 2010. To estimate the fair value of these
securities, we used pricing models that included factors such as the collateral underlying the securities, the creditworthiness of the
counterparty, the timing of expected future cash flows, and the expectation of the next time the security would have a successful auction.
The estimated values of these securities were also compared, when possible, to valuation data with respect to similar securities held by
other parties. We concluded that these estimates, given the lack of market available pricing, provided a reasonable basis for determining
fair value of the auction rate securities as of December 31, 2010. For our investments in auction rate securities, we do not intend to sell,
nor is it more likely than not that we will be required to sell, these investments before recovery of their cost.
As of December 31, 2010, all of our auction rate securities were designated as available-for-sale securities. As a result of the decrease
in fair value of auction rate securities designated as available-for-sale, we recorded pretax unrealized losses of $0.2 million to accumulated
other comprehensive loss for the year ended December 31, 2010. We have deemed these unrealized losses to be temporary and attribute the
decline in value to liquidity issues, as a result of the failed auction market, rather than to credit issues. Any future fluctuation in fair
value related to these instruments that we deem to be temporary, including any recoveries of previous write-downs, would be recorded to
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accumulated other comprehensive loss. If we determine that any future valuation adjustment was other-than-temporary, we would record a
charge to earnings as appropriate.

Until July 2, 2010, we held certain auction rate securities (designated as trading securities) with an investment securities firm. In the
fourth quarter of 2008, we entered into a rights agreement with this firm that (1) allowed us to exercise rights (the “Rights”) to sell the
eligible auction rate securities at par value to this firm between June 30, 2010 and July 2, 2012, and (2) gave the investment securities
firm the right to purchase the auction rate securities from us any time after the agreement date as long as we received the par value. On
June 30, 2010, and July 1, 2010, all of the eligible auction rate securities remaining at that time were settled at par value.
During 2010, the aggregate auction rate securities (designated as trading securities) settled amounted to $40.9 par value (fair value
$36.7 million). For the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008, we recorded pretax gains (losses) of $4.2 million, $3.4 million,
and ($0.4) million, respectively, on the auction rate securities underlying the Rights.

We accounted for the Rights as a freestanding financial instrument and, until July 2, 2010, recorded the value of the Rights under
the fair value option. When the remaining eligible auction rate securities were sold at par value on July 1, 2010, the value of the Rights
was zero. For the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008, we recorded pretax (losses) gains of ($3.8) million, ($3.1) million and
$6.9 million, respectively, on the Rights.

Our assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2010, were as follows:
Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using
Total
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
(In thousands)

$177,929
59,713
30,563
23,918
3,252
20,449
$ 315,824

Corporate debt securities
Government-sponsored enterprise securities
Municipal securities
U.S. treasury notes
Certificates of deposit
Auction rate securities (available-for-sale)

$177,929
59,713
30,563
23,918
3,252
—
$295,375

$

$

—
—
—
—
—
—
—

$

—
—
—
—
—
20,449
$ 20,449

The following table presents our assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3):
(Level 3)
(In thousands)

Balance at December 31, 2009
Total gains (realized or unrealized):
Included in earnings:
Gain on auction rate securities designated as trading securities
Loss on change in fair value of Rights
Included in other comprehensive income
Settlements
Balance at December 31, 2010

The amount of total losses for the period included in other comprehensive income attributable to the change in
unrealized gains relating to assets still held at December 31, 2010

89

$

63,494

$

4,170
(3,807)
(208)
(43,200)
20,449

$

(208)
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As described in Note 4, “Business Combinations,” we have recorded a $2.8 million liability for contingent consideration related to
the acquisition of our Wisconsin health plan. We have estimated the fair value of this liability based on our expectations regarding the
Wisconsin health plan’s statutory net worth as of January 31, 2011 as well as the Wisconsin health plan’s minimum required statutory
net worth as of that date. The liability for contingent consideration related to this acquisition was measured at fair value on a recurring
basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3). The following table presents a roll forward of this liability for 2010:
(Level 3)
(In thousands)

$

Balance at December 31, 2009
Addition through acquisition — 2010
Balance at December 31, 2010

$

—
2,800
2,800

6. Investments
The following tables summarize our investments as of the dates indicated:
December 31, 2010
Cost or
Amortized
Cost

$179,124
59,790
55,247
23,864
3,252
$ 321,277

Corporate debt securities
Government-sponsored enterprise securities (GSEs)
Municipal securities (including non-current auction rate securities)
U.S. treasury notes
Certificates of deposit

Gross

Unrealized
Gains
Losses
(In thousands)

$ 193
293
78
114
—
$678

$ 1,388
370
4,313

60
—
$6,131

Estimated
Fair

Value

$177,929
59,713
51,012
23,918
3,252
$ 315,824

December 31, 2009
Cost or
Amortized
Cost

$ 32,543
89,451
82,009
28,052
3,258
$ 235,313

Corporate debt securities

GSEs
Municipal securities (including non-current auction rate securities)
U.S. treasury notes
Certificates of deposit

The contractual maturities of our investments as of December 31, 2010 are summarized below.

90

Gross

Unrealized
Gains
Losses
(In thousands)

$ 206
504
3,120

92
—
$3,922

$ 185
281
4,154
84

—
$ 4,704

Estimated
Fair

Value

$ 32,564
89,674
80,975
28,060
3,258
$ 234,531
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Estimated
Amortized
Fair
Cost
Value
(In thousands)

$168,948
127,549

Due in one year or less
Due one year through five years
Due after five years through ten years
Due after ten years

$167,856
127,144
990
19,834
$ 315,824

930

23,850
$ 321,277

Gross realized gains and gross realized losses from sales of available-for-sale securities are calculated under the specific
identification method and are included in investment income. Total proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities were
$124.5 million, $60.3 million, and $55.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Net realized
investment gains for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 were $110,000, $267,000, and $342,000 respectively.
We monitor our investments for other-than-temporary impairment. For investments other than our municipal securities, we have
determined that unrealized gains and losses at December 31, 2010 and 2009 are temporary in nature, because the change in market value
for these securities has resulted from fluctuating interest rates, rather than a deterioration of the credit worthiness of the issuers. So long as
we do not intend to sell these securities prior to maturity, we are unlikely to experience gains or losses. In the unlikely event that we
dispose of these securities before maturity, we expect that realized gains or losses, if any, will be immaterial.
Approximately 40% of our investment in municipal securities consists of auction rate securities. As described in Note 5, “Fair Value
Measurements,” the unrealized losses on these investments were caused primarily by the illiquidity in the auction markets. Because the
decline in market value is not due to the credit quality of the issuers, and because we do not intend to sell, nor is it more likely than not
that we will be required to sell these investments before recovery of their cost, we do not consider the auction rate securities that are
designated as available-for-sale to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2010.
The following table segregates those available-for-sale investments that have been in a continuous loss position for less than
12 months and those that have been in a loss position for 12 months or more as of December 31, 2010.
In a Continuous Loss

Position

for Less than 12 Months
as of December 31, 2010

for 12 Months or More
as of December 31, 2010

Estimated
Fair

Value

Corporate debt securities

GSEs
Municipal securities
U.S. treasury notes

In a Continuous Loss

Position

$ 103,225
13,014

18,884
5,480
$ 140,603

Unrealized
Losses

$

1,060
71
117
40

$ 1,288

Estimated
Fair

Value

$ 10,490
7,539
25,271
6,806
$ 50,106

Total as of December 31, 2010
Estimated
Fair

Unrealized
Losses
(In thousands)

$

328

$

299
4,196
$

20
4,843

Unrealized
Losses

Value

$

113,715
20,553
44,155
12,286
190,709

$

1,388
370
4,313

$

60
6,131

The following table segregates those available-for-sale investments that have been in a continuous loss position for less than
12 months, and those that have been in a loss position for 12 months or more as of December 31, 2009. At December 31, 2009, we
previously reported only those available-for-sale investments in an unrealized loss position for at least two consecutive months. To
conform to the current year presentation, we have
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included all available-for-sale investments in an unrealized loss position at December 31, 2009. This presentation change increased the
total amount of unrealized losses reported in the following table by $113,000 at December 31, 2009. The accompanying increase to the
estimated fair value of the underlying investments amounted to $42.9 million at December 31, 2009.
In a Continuous Loss

Position

for Less than 12 Months
as of December 31, 2009

for 12 Months or More
as of December 31, 2009

Estimated
Fair

Value

Corporate debt securities

GSEs
Municipal securities
U.S. treasury notes

In a Continuous Loss

Position

Unrealized
Losses

$ 13,513

149
187
78

30,460

12,460
21,824
$ 78,257

84

$

498

Estimated
Fair

Value

$

1,203
7,297

Unrealized
Losses
(In thousands)

Unrealized
Losses

Value

$

36
94
3,902
—

$

$

4,032

$

24,031

—
$ 32,531

Total as of December 31, 2009
Estimated
Fair

14,716
37,757
36,491
21,824
110,788

$

185
281
3,980
84
4,530

$

7. Receivables
Health Plans segment receivables consist primarily of amounts due from the various states in which we operate. Such receivables are
subject to potential retroactive adjustment. Because all of our receivable amounts are readily determinable and our creditors are in almost
all instances state governments, our allowance for doubtful accounts is immaterial. Any amounts determined to be uncollectible are
charged to expense when such determination is made. Accounts receivable were as follows:
December 31,
2010
2009
(In thousands)

Health Plans Segment:
California
Michigan
Missouri
New Mexico
Ohio

$ 46,482
13,596
22,841
18,310
21,622
1,589
14,486
5,437
3,598
147,961
20,229
$168,190

Utah
Washington
Wisconsin
Other
Total Health Plans
Molina Medicaid Solutions Segment

92

$ 34,289
14,977
19,670
11,919
37,004

6,107
9,910
—
2,778
136,654
—
$136,654
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8. Property and Equipment
A summary of property and equipment is as follows:
December 31,
2010
2009
(In thousands)

$

Land
Building and improvements
Furniture and equipment
Capitalized computer software costs

3,524
49,735
60,074
90,003
203,336
(54,341)
(48,458)

Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization on building and improvements, furniture and equipment
Less: accumulated amortization for capitalized computer software costs

(102,799)
$ 100,537

Property and equipment, net

$

3,524
41,476
54,898
66,526
166,424
(50,911)
(37,342)
(88,253)
$ 78,171

Depreciation expense recognized for building and improvements, and furniture and equipment was $13.9 million, $11.0 million,
and $9.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Amortization expense recognized for capitalized
computer software costs was $20.1 million, $14.2 million, and $11.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008,
respectively.

9. Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Other intangible assets are amortized over their useful lives ranging from one to 15 years. The weighted average amortization period
for contract rights and licenses is approximately 11 years, for customer relationships is approximately 5 years, for backlog is
approximately 2 years, and for provider networks is approximately 10 years. Based on the balances of our identifiable intangible assets
as of December 31, 2010, we estimate that our intangible asset amortization will be $27.5 million in 2011, $19.0 million in 2012,
$15.8 million in 2013, $12.8 million in 2014, and $7.0 million in 2015. The following table provides the details of identified intangible
assets, by major class, for the periods indicated:
Accumulated
Cost

Amortization
(In thousands)

Intangible assets:
Contract rights and licenses (Health Plans segment)
Customer relationships (Molina Medicaid Solutions segment)
Backlog (Molina Medicaid Solutions segment)
Provider networks (Health Plans segment)
Balance at December 31, 2010

$ 120,920
24,550
23,600
18,622
$187,692

$

Intangible assets:
Contract rights and licenses
Provider networks
Balance at December 31, 2009

$ 119,101
17,146
$ 136,247

$

93

$

$

Net
Balance

64,201
3,418
8,316
6,257
82,192

$ 56,719
21,132
15,284
12,365
$105,500

51,246
4,155
55,401

$ 67,855
12,991
$ 80,846
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The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets were as follows (in thousands):

$ 133,408
72,367
5,474
979
$212,228

Balance as of December 31, 2009
Goodwill recorded for acquisition of Molina Medicaid Solutions on May 1, 2010
Goodwill recorded for acquisition of the Wisconsin health plan on September 1, 2010
Goodwill adjustment related to the 2009 acquisition of the Florida health plan
Balance at December 31, 2010

10.

Restricted Investments

Pursuant to the regulations governing our health plan subsidiaries, we maintain statutory deposits and deposits required by state
Medicaid authorities. Additionally, we maintain restricted investments as protection against the insolvency of capitated providers. The
following table presents the carrying value of restricted investments by health plan, and by our insurance company:
December 31,
2010
2009
(In thousands)

$

California
Florida
Insurance Company
Michigan
Missouri
New Mexico
Ohio
Texas
Utah
Washington
Wisconsin
Other

372

4,508
4,689
1,000

508
15,881
9,066
3,501
1,279
151
260
885
$ 42,100

$

368
2,052
4,686
1,000
503

15,497
9,036
1,515
578
151
—
888
$ 36,274

The contractual maturities of our held-to-maturity restricted investments as of December 31, 2010 are summarized below.
Amortized
Estimated
Cost
Fair Value
(In thousands)

$ 40,757
1,218
125
$ 42,100

Due in one year or less
Due one year through five years
Due after five years through ten years
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$ 40,792
1,216
158
$ 42,166
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11.

Medical Claims and Benefits Payable

The following table presents the components of the change in our medical claims and benefits payable for the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009. The negative amounts displayed for “Components of medical care costs related to: Prior years”
represent the amount by which our original estimate of claims and benefits payable at the beginning of the period exceeded the actual
amount of the liability based on information (principally the payment of claims) developed since that liability was first reported.
Year Ended December 31,
2010
2009
(Dollars in thousands, except permember amounts)

$ 315,316
3,228

Balances at beginning of year
Balance of acquired subsidiary
Components of medical care costs related to:
Current year
Prior years
Total medical care costs
Payments for medical care costs related to:
Current year
Prior years
Total paid
Balances at end of year

3,420,235
(49,378)
3,370,857

3,085,388
249,657
3,335,045
$ 354,356

Benefit from prior years as a percentage of:
Balance at beginning of year
Premium revenue
Total medical care costs

$

292,442
—
3,227,794
(51,558)
3,176,236
2,920,015
233,347

3,153,362
$ 315,316

15.7%
1.2%
1.5%

17.6%
1.4%

1.6%

For the year ended December 31, 2010, we recognized a benefit from prior period claims development in the amount of
$49.4 million. This amount represents our estimate as of December 31, 2010 of the extent to which our initial estimate of medical claims
and benefits payable at December 31, 2009 exceeded the amount that will ultimately be paid out in satisfaction of that liability. The
overestimation of claims liability at December 31, 2009 was the result of the following factors:

• In New Mexico, we underestimated the degree to which cuts to the Medicaid fees schedule would reduce our liability as of
December 31, 2009.
• In California, we underestimated the extent to which various network restructuring, provider contracting and medical
management initiatives had reduced our medical care costs during the second half of 2009, thereby resulting in a lower liability at
December 31, 2009.
For the year ended December 31, 2009, we recognized a benefit from prior period claims development in the amount of
$51.6 million. This amount represented our estimate as of December 31, 2009 of the extent to which our initial estimate of medical claims
and benefits payable at December 31, 2008 exceeded the amount that was ultimately be paid out in satisfaction of that liability. The
overestimation of the claims liability at our Michigan, New Mexico, Ohio, and Washington health plans was principally the cause of the
recognition of a benefit from prior period claims development. This was partially offset by the underestimation of our claims liability at
December 31, 2008 at our California health plan.
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The use of a consistent methodology in estimating our liability for claims and medical benefits payable minimizes the degree to
which the under- or over-estimation of that liability at the close of one period may affect consolidated results of operations in subsequent
periods. Facts and circumstances unique to the estimation process at any single date, however, may still lead to a material impact on
consolidated results of operations in subsequent periods. In 2010 and 2009 the absence of adverse development of the liability for claims
and medical benefits payable at the close of the previous period resulted in the recognition of substantial favorable prior period
development. In both years, however, the recognition of a benefit from prior period claims development did not have a material impact on
our consolidated results of operations as the amount of benefit recognized in each your was roughly consistent with that recognized in the
previous year.

12.

Long-Term Debt

Credit Facility
We are a party to an Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of March 9, 2005, as amended by the first amendment on
October 5, 2005, the second amendment on November 6, 2006, the third amendment on May 25, 2008, the fourth amendment on
April 29, 2010, and the fifth amendment on April 29, 2010, among Molina Healthcare Inc., certain lenders, and Bank of America N.A.,
as Administrative Agent (the “Credit Facility”) for a revolving credit line of $150 million that matures in May 2012. The Credit Facility
is intended to be used for general corporate purposes. As described below and in Note 4, “Business Combinations,” we borrowed
$105 million under the Credit Facility to acquire Molina Medicaid Solutions in the second quarter of 2010. During the third quarter of
2010, we repaid this amount using proceeds from our equity offering, described in Note 14, “Stockholders’ Equity.” As of December 31,
2010, and 2009, there was no outstanding principal balance under the Credit Facility. However, as of December 31, 2010, our lenders
had issued two letters of credit in the aggregate principal amount of $10.3 million in connection with the contract of MMS with the states
of Maine and Idaho.

To the extent that in the future we incur any obligations under the Credit Facility, such obligations will be secured by a lien on
substantially all of our assets and by a pledge of the capital stock of our health plan subsidiaries (with the exception of the California
health plan). The Credit Facility includes usual and customary covenants for credit facilities of this type, including covenants limiting
liens, mergers, asset sales, other fundamental changes, debt, acquisitions, dividends and other distributions, capital expenditures,
investments, and a fixed charge coverage ratio. The Credit Facility also requires us to maintain a ratio of total consolidated debt to total
consolidated EBITDA of not more than 2.75 to 1.00 at any time. At December 31, 2010, we were in compliance with all financial
covenants in the Credit Facility.
The commitment fee on the total unused commitments of the lenders under the Credit Facility is 50 basis points on all levels of the
pricing grid, with the pricing grid referring to our ratio of consolidated funded debt to consolidated EBITDA. The pricing for LIBOR
loans and base rate loans is 200 basis points at every level of the pricing grid. Thus, the applicable margins under the Credit Facility
range between 2.75% and 3.75% for LIBOR loans, and between 1.75% and 2.75% for base rate loans. The Credit Facility carves out
from our indebtedness and restricted payment covenants under the Credit Facility the $187.0 million current principal amount of the
convertible senior notes, although the $187.0 million indebtedness is included in the calculation of our consolidated leverage ratio. The
fixed charge coverage ratio set forth pursuant to the Credit Facility was 2.75x (on a pro forma basis) at December 31, 2009, and 3.00x
thereafter.

The fifth amendment increased the maximum consolidated leverage ratio under the Credit Facility to 3.25 to 1.00 for the fourth
quarter of 2009 (on a pro forma basis), and to 3.50 to 1.00 for the first and second quarters of 2010, and through August 14, 2010.
Effective as of August 15, 2010, the consolidated leverage ratio under the Credit Facility reverted back to 2.75 to 1.00. In connection with
the lenders’ approval of the fifth amendment, we paid an amendment fee of 25 basis points on the amount of each consenting lender’s
commitment. We also paid an incremental commitment fee of 12.5 basis points based on each lender’s unfunded commitment during the
period from the effective date of the fifth amendment through August 15, 2010.
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Convertible Senior Notes
In October 2007, we sold $200.0 million aggregate principal amount of 3.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2014 (the “Notes”). The
sale of the Notes resulted in net proceeds totaling $193.4 million. During 2009, we purchased and retired $13.0 million face amount of the
Notes, so the remaining aggregate principal amount totaled $187.0 million as of December 31, 2010 (see further discussion below
regarding the purchase program). The Notes rank equally in right of payment with our existing and future senior indebtedness.

The Notes are convertible into cash and, under certain circumstances, shares of our common stock. The initial conversion rate is
21.3067 shares of our common stock per one thousand dollar principal amount of the Notes. This represents an initial conversion price
of approximately $46.93 per share of our common stock. In addition, if certain corporate transactions that constitute a change of control
occur prior to maturity, the conversion rate will increase in certain circumstances. Prior to July 2014, holders may convert their Notes
only under the following circumstances:

• During any fiscal quarter after our fiscal quarter ending December 31, 2007, if the closing sale price per share of our common
stock, for each of at least 20 trading days during the period of 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day of the
previous fiscal quarter, is greater than or equal to 120% of the conversion price per share of our common stock;
• During the five business day period immediately following any five consecutive trading day period in which the trading price per
one thousand dollar principal amount of the Notes for each trading day of such period was less than 98% of the product of the
closing price per share of our common stock on such day and the conversion rate in effect on such day; or
• Upon the occurrence of specified corporate transactions or other specified events.
On or after July 1, 2014, holders may convert their Notes at any time prior to the close of business on the scheduled trading day
immediately preceding the stated maturity date regardless of whether any of the foregoing conditions is satisfied.

We will deliver cash and shares of our common stock, if any, upon conversion of each $1,000 principal amount of Notes, as
follows:

• An amount in cash (the “principal return”) equal to the sum of, for each of the 20 Volume-Weighted Average Price (VWAP)
trading days during the conversion period, the lesser of the daily conversion value for such VWAP trading day and fifty dollars
(representing 1/20th of one thousand dollars); and
• A number of shares based upon, for each of the 20 VWAP trading days during the conversion period, any excess of the daily
conversion value above fifty dollars.
The proceeds from the issuance of the Notes have been allocated between a liability component and an equity component. We have
determined that the effective interest rate of the Notes is 7.5%, principally based on the seven-year U.S. treasury note rate as of the
October 2007 issuance date, plus an appropriate credit spread. The resulting debt discount is being amortized over the period the Notes
are expected to be outstanding, as additional non-cash interest expense. As of December 31, 2010, we expect the Notes to be outstanding
until their October 1, 2014 maturity date, for a remaining amortization period of 45 months. The Notes’ if-converted value did not exceed
their principal amount as of December 31, 2010. At December 31, 2010, the equity component of the Notes, net of the
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impact of deferred taxes, was $24.0 million. The following table provides the details of the liability amounts recorded:
December 31,
2010
2009
(In thousands)

Details of the liability component:
Principal amount
Unamortized discount
Net carrying amount

$ 187,000
(22,986)
$ 164,014

$ 187,000
(28,100)

$158,900

Years Ended December 31,

Interest cost recognized for the period relating to the:
Contractual interest coupon rate of 3.75%
Amortization of the discount on the liability component
Total interest cost recognized

2010

2009
(In thousands)

2008

$ 7,012
5,114
$12,126

$ 7,076
4,782
$11,858

$ 7,500
4,707
$12,207

Securities Purchase Program. Under the $25 million securities purchase program announced in January 2009, we purchased
and retired $13.0 million face amount of the Notes during the first quarter of 2009. We purchased the Notes at an average price of $74.25
per $100 principal amount, for a total of $9.8 million, including accrued interest. The gain recognized during 2009 on the purchase of
the Notes was $1.5 million.
In March 2009, our board of directors authorized the purchase of up to an additional $25 million in aggregate of either our common
stock or the Notes. The purchase program was funded with working capital, and common stock purchases were made from time to time
on the open market or through privately negotiated transactions during 2009. The purchase program extended through December 31,
2009. See the details regarding the common stock purchases at Note 14, “Stockholders’ Equity.”

13.

Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes consisted of the following:
Year Ended December 31,
2010

2009
(In thousands)

2008

Current:

$36,395
2,144
38,539

Federal
State

Total current
Deferred:
Federal
State
Total deferred
Total provision for income taxes

(4,717)
700

(4,017)

$ 34,522
98

$ 9,421
(1,558)
7,863
1,924
(2,498)
(574)
$ 7,289

$32,972
1,866
34,838

378
(490)

(112)
$ 34,726
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A reconciliation of the effective income tax rate to the statutory federal income tax rate is as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

Taxes on income at statutory federal tax rate (35)%
State income taxes, net of federal benefit
(Benefit) liability for unrecognized tax benefits
Other
Reported income tax expense

2010

2009
(In thousands)

2008

$ 31,323
1,849
(57)
1,407
$34,522

$13,355
(2,637)
(3,315)
(114)
$ 7,289

$ 33,014
894
450

368
$34,726

Through December 31, 2009, the Company’s income tax expense included both the Michigan business income tax, or BIT, and the
Michigan modified gross receipts tax, or MGRT. Effective January 1, 2010, the Company has recorded the MGRT as a premium tax and
not as an income tax. The Company will continue to record the BIT as an income tax. For the years ended December 31, 2009 and
December 31, 2008, premium tax expense and income tax expense have been reclassified to conform to this presentation.
Our effective tax rate is based on expected income, statutory tax rates, and tax planning opportunities available to us in the various
jurisdictions in which we operate. Significant management estimates and judgments are required in determining our effective tax rate. We
are routinely under audit by federal, state, or local authorities regarding the timing and amount of deductions, nexus of income among
various tax jurisdictions, and compliance with federal, state, and local tax laws. We have pursued various strategies to reduce our federal,
state and local taxes. As a result, we have reduced our state income tax expense due to California enterprise zone credits.

During 2010, 2009, and 2008, tax-related deficiencies on share-based compensation were $673,000, $718,000, and $292,000,
respectively. Such amounts were recorded as adjustments to income taxes payable with a corresponding decrease to additional paid-in
capital.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current according to the classification of the related asset or liability.
Significant components of our deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 were as follows:
December 31,
2010
2009
(In thousands)

$ 12,618
877

Accrued expenses
Reserve liabilities
State taxes
Other accrued medical costs
Net operating losses
Unrealized (gains) losses
Unearned premiums
Prepaid expenses
Other, net
Deferred tax asset, net of valuation allowance — current
Accrued expenses
Reserve liabilities
State taxes
Other accrued medical costs
Net operating losses
Unrealized losses
Unearned premiums
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred compensation
Debt basis
Other, net
Valuation allowance
Deferred tax liability, net of valuation allowance — long term
Net deferred income tax liability

(120)
2,126
27
(254)
3,517
(3,006)
(69)
15,716
791
3,071
1,960
(358)
1,362
1,559
(135)
(20,110)
6,829
(9,673)
(337)
(1,194)
(16,235)
$ (519)

$

2,494
285
1,151
1,628
27
(408)
6,554
(2,894)
(80)
8,757
(281)
2,501
—
(866)

237
1,480
(264)
(10,415)
6,817
(11,555)
(160)
—
(12,506)
$ (3,749)

At December 31, 2010, we had federal and state net operating loss carryforwards of $475,000 and $28 million, respectively. The
federal net operating loss begins expiring in 2018, and state net operating losses begin expiring in 2015. The utilization of the net operating
losses is subject to certain limitations under federal law.
At December 31, 2010, we had California enterprise zone tax credit carryovers of $3 million which do not expire.
We evaluate the need for a valuation allowance taking into consideration the ability to carry back and carry forward tax credits and
losses, available tax planning strategies and future income, including reversal of temporary differences. We have determined that as of
December 31, 2010, $1.2 million of deferred tax assets did not satisfy the recognition criteria due to uncertainty regarding the realization
of some of our state tax operating loss carryforwards. We increased our valuation allowance from zero at December 31, 2009 to
$1.2 million as of December 31, 2010.
We recognize tax benefits only if the tax position is more likely than not to be sustained. We are subject to income taxes in the
U.S. and numerous state jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in evaluating our tax positions and determining our provision for
income taxes. During the ordinary course of business, there are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. We establish reserves for tax-related uncertainties based on estimates of whether, and the extent to which,
additional taxes will be due. These
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reserves are established when we believe that certain positions might be challenged despite our belief that our tax return positions are fully
supportable. We adjust these reserves in light of changing facts and circumstances, such as the outcome of tax audits. The provision for
income taxes includes the impact of reserve provisions and changes to reserves that are considered appropriate.

The roll forward of our unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:
Year Ended December 31,
2010

$ (4,128)
(6,891)
—
—
—
—
57
$(10,962)

Gross unrecognized tax benefits at beginning of period
Increases in tax positions for prior years
Decreases in tax positions for prior years
Increases in tax positions for current year
Decreases in tax positions for current year
Settlements
Lapse in statute of limitations
Gross unrecognized tax benefits at end of period

2009
(In thousands)

2008

$(11,676)
(3,748)
6,804
—
—
4,355

$ (10,278)
(3,310)
2,682
(2,061)
892
—
399
$(11,676)

137

$ (4,128)

As of December 31, 2010, we had $11.0 million of unrecognized tax benefits of which $7.8 million, if fully recognized, would
affect our effective tax rate. We anticipate a decrease of $499,000 to our liability for unrecognized tax benefits within the next twelve-month
period due to normal expiration of tax statutes.
Our continuing practice is to recognize interest and/or penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. As of
December 31, 2010, December 31, 2009, and December 31, 2008, we had accrued $82,000, $75,000 and $1.4 million, respectively, for
the payment of interest and penalties.
We may be subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) for calendar years 2007 through 2010. We are under
examination, or may be subject to examination, in certain state and local jurisdictions, with the major jurisdictions being California,
Missouri, and Michigan, for the years 2004 through 2010. Our subsidiary, HCLB, entered into a closing agreement with the IRS in
December 2009 that successfully concluded with certainty the IRS examination of HCLB for the year ended May 2006.

14.

Stockholders’ Equity

In August 2010, we commenced an underwritten public offering of 4,000,000 shares of our common stock, conducted pursuant to
an effective registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 8, 2008. In connection with the
offering, we granted the underwriters an overallotment option to purchase up to 350,000 shares, and the single selling stockholder, the
Molina Siblings Trust, granted the underwriters an option to purchase up to 250,000 shares. The overallotment option was subsequently
exercised in August 2010. Our chief financial officer, John Molina, is the trustee of the Molina Siblings Trust, with sole voting and
investment power. Dr. J. Mario Molina, our president and chief executive officer and the brother of John Molina, is a beneficiary of the
Molina Siblings Trust, as is John Molina and each of his other three siblings.

We issued 4,350,000 shares in connection with the offering, including the overallotment option. Net of the issuance costs, proceeds
from the offering totaled $111.1 million, or approximately $25.55 per share, resulting in an increase to additional paid-in capital. We
used the net proceeds of the offering to repay the outstanding indebtedness under the Credit Facility and for general corporate purposes.
We did not receive any proceeds from the sale of shares by the selling stockholder.

In connection with the plans described in Note 16, “Stock Plans,” we issued approximately 352,000 shares and 234,000 shares of
common stock, net of shares retired to settle employees’ income taxes, for the years ended
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December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. This resulted in increases to additional paid-in capital of $10.6 million, and $7.8 million,
both net of deferred taxes, as of December 31, 2010, and December 31, 2009, respectively.

Under the purchase program described in Note 12, “Long-Term Debt,” we purchased approximately 1.4 million shares of our
common stock for $27.7 million (average cost of approximately $20.49 per share) during 2009. These purchases increased diluted
earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2009 by $0.04. In 2009, we retired the $27.7 million of treasury shares purchased in
2009, and we also retired $20.4 million of treasury shares that were purchased prior to 2009 ($48.1 million in aggregate), which reduced
additional paid-in capital.

15.

Employee Benefits

We sponsor a defined contribution 401(k) plan that covers substantially all full-time salaried and hourly employees of our company
and its subsidiaries. Eligible employees are permitted to contribute up to the maximum amount allowed by law. We match up to the first
4% of compensation contributed by employees. Expense recognized in connection with our contributions to the 401(k) plan totaled
$5.9 million, $4.7 million and $3.9 million in the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively.
We also have a nonqualified deferred compensation plan for certain key employees. Under this plan, eligible participants may defer
up to 100% of their base salary and 100% of their bonus to provide tax-deferred growth for retirement. The funds deferred are invested in
corporate-owned life insurance, under a rabbi trust.

16.

Stock Plans

In 2002, we adopted the 2002 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2002 Plan”), which provides for the award of stock options, restricted
stock, performance shares, and stock bonuses to the company’s officers, employees, directors, consultants, advisors, and other service
providers. The 2002 Plan initially allowed for the issuance of 1.6 million shares of common stock. Beginning January 1, 2004, shares
eligible for issuance automatically increase by the lesser of 400,000 shares or 2% of total outstanding capital stock on a fully diluted
basis, unless the board of directors affirmatively acts to nullify the automatic increase. There were 4.4 million shares reserved for
issuance under the 2002 Plan as of January 1, 2010.

Restricted stock awards are granted with a fair value equal to the market price of our common stock on the date of grant, and
generally vest in equal annual installments over periods up to four years from the date of grant. Stock option awards have an exercise
price equal to the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant, generally vest in equal annual installments over periods up
to four years from the date of grant, and have a maximum term of ten years from the date of grant.

Under our 2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”), eligible employees may purchase common shares at 85% of the lower
of the fair market value of our common stock on either the first or last trading day of each six-month offering period. Each participant is
limited to a maximum purchase of $25,000 (as measured by the fair value of the stock acquired) per year through payroll deductions.
Under the ESPP, we issued 109,800 and 120,300 shares of our common stock during the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. Beginning January 1, 2004, and each year until the 2.2 million maximum aggregate number of shares reserved for issuance
was reached on December 31, 2008, shares available for issuance under the ESPP automatically increased by 1% of total outstanding
capital stock. The aggregate number of unissued common shares available for future grants under the 2002 Plan and the ESPP combined
was 3.7 million as of December 31, 2010, and 3.8 million as of December 31, 2009.
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The following table illustrates the components of our stock-based compensation expense that are reported in general and
administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of income:
Year Ended December 31,
Pretax
Charges

Restricted stock awards
Stock options (including expense relating to our ESPP)
Total

2010
Net-of-Tax
Amount

$ 8,007
1,524
$9,531

$
$

5,044
960
6,004

2009

2008

Pretax
Charges

Pretax
Charges

Pretax
Charges

Net-of-Tax
Amount

$ 5,789
1,696
$ 7,485

$3,589
1,052
$ 4,641

$5,171
2,640
$ 7,811

$

3,206
1,637

$

4,843

For both restricted stock and stock option awards, the expense is recognized over the vesting period, generally straight-line over four
years. As of December 31, 2010, there was $12.5 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested restricted stock awards,
which we expect to recognize over a weighted-average period of 2.5 years. This unrecognized compensation cost assumes an estimated
forfeiture rate of 7.8% as of December 31, 2010. Also as of December 31, 2009, there was $0.2 million of unrecognized compensation
expense related to unvested stock options, which we expect to recognize over a weighted-average period of 0.3 years.
The total fair value of restricted shares vested during the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008 was $6.4 million,
$3.2 million, and $2.5 million, respectively. Unvested restricted stock activity for the year ended December 31, 2010 was as follows:
Weighted-

Average Grant Date
Fair Value

Shares

687,630
554,475
(271,381)
(134,975)
835,749

Unvested balance as of December 31, 2009
Granted
Vested
Forfeited

Unvested balance as of December 31, 2010

$
$
$
$
$

24.64
22.95
25.95
23.26
23.32

The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during the year ended December 31, 2010 was $0.3 million. No stock options
were exercised during the year ended December 31, 2009; the total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during the year ended
December 31, 2008 was nominal. Stock option activity for the year ended December 31, 2010 was as follows:
WeightedWeighted-

Average

Aggregate

Average

Remaining
Contractual
Term (Years)

Intrinsic

Number

Exercise
Price

of Options

650,739
(64,662)
(72,463)
513,614
512,381
468,564

Outstanding at December 31, 2009
Exercised
Forfeited

Outstanding at December 31, 2010
Exercisable and expected to vest at December 31, 2010

Exercisable at December 31, 2010
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$
$
$
$
$
$

Value
(000s)

30.25
24.16
33.24

30.59
30.59

4.9
4.9

30.47

4.7

$
$
$

528
528
528

Table of Contents

MOLINA HEALTHCARE, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
The following is a summary of information about stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2010:
Options Outstanding
Weighted-

Range of Exercise Prices

$16.98 - $28.66
$29.17 - $32.58
$33.56 - $44.29

17.

Number
Outstanding

243,889
174,950
94,775
513,614

Options Exercisable

Average

Weighted-

Remaining
Contractual
Life (Years)

Average

4.1

6.0
4.7

Exercise
Price

$
$
$

26.13
31.33
40.71

Weighted-

Average
Number
Exercisable

Exercise
Price

243,889
135,200
89,475
468,564

$ 28.66
$ 31.23
$ 39.73

Related Party Transactions

We have an equity investment in a medical service provider that provides certain vision services to our members. We account for
this investment under the equity method of accounting because we have an ownership interest in the investee that confers significant
influence over operating and financial policies of the investee. As of December 31, 2010, and 2009, our carrying amount for this
investment totaled $4.4 million, and $4.1 million, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, we paid
$22.0 million, $21.8 million, and $15.4 million, respectively, for medical service fees to this provider.
We are a party to a fee-for-service agreement with Pacific Hospital of Long Beach (“Pacific Hospital”). Until October 2010, Pacific
Hospital was owned by Abrazos Healthcare, Inc., the shares of which are held as community property by the husband of Dr. Martha
Bernadett, the sister of Dr. J. Mario Molina, our Chief Executive Officer, and John Molina, our Chief Financial Officer. Amounts paid to
Pacific Hospital under the terms of this fee-for-service agreement were $1.0 million, $0.7 million, and $0.2 million, for the years ended
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. As of October 2010, Pacific Hospital is no longer owned by Abrazos Healthcare, Inc. or
any other related party to the Company.

18.

Commitments and Contingencies

Leases
We lease office space, clinics, equipment, and automobiles under agreements that expire at various dates through 2018. Future
minimum lease payments by year and in the aggregate under all non-cancelable operating leases consist of the following approximate
amounts:
Year ending December 31,
(In thousands)

2011
2012

$

28,004

$

23,794
20,349
17,366
13,671
30,622
133,806

2013
2014

2015
Thereafter
Total minimum lease payments

Rental expense related to these leases amounted to $25.1 million, $20.8 million, and $17.5 million for the years ended

December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively.
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Employment Agreements
In 2002 we entered into employment agreements with our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, which have been
amended and restated as of December 31, 2009. These employment agreements had initial terms of one to three years and are subject to
automatic one-year extensions thereafter. Should the executives be terminated without cause or resign for good reason before a change of
control, as defined, we will pay one year’s base salary and termination bonus, as defined, in addition to full vesting of 401(k) employer
contributions and stock-based awards, and a cash sum equal in value to health and welfare benefits provided for 18 months. If the
executives are terminated for cause, no further payments are due under the contracts.

If termination occurs within two years following a change of control, the executives will receive two times their base salary and
termination bonus, in addition to full vesting of 401(k) employer contributions and stock-based awards, and a cash sum equal in value
to health and welfare benefits provided for three years.

Legal Proceedings
The health care and business process outsourcing industries are subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state, and local
governments. Compliance with these laws and regulations can be subject to government review and interpretation, as well as regulatory
actions unknown and unasserted at this time. Penalties associated with violations of these laws and regulations include significant fines
and penalties, exclusion from participating in publicly funded programs, and the repayment of previously billed and collected revenues.
We are involved in legal actions in the ordinary course of business, some of which seek monetary damages, including claims for
punitive damages, which are not covered by insurance. The outcome of such legal actions is inherently uncertain. Nevertheless, we
believe that these actions, when finally concluded and determined, are not likely to have a material adverse effect on our consolidated
financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

Professional Liability Insurance
We carry medical professional liability insurance for health care services rendered through our clinics in California, Virginia and
Washington. Claims-made coverage under the policies for California and Washington is $1.0 million per occurrence with an annual
aggregate limit of $3.0 million for Washington, beginning in 2010, and for California, each of the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009
and 2008. Claims-made coverage under the Virginia policy is $2.0 million per occurrence with an annual aggregate limit of $6.0 million
for each of the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, and beginning July 1, 2008. We also carry claims-made managed care errors
and omissions professional liability insurance for our health plan operations. This insurance is subject to a coverage limit of
$15.0 million per occurrence and $15.0 million in the aggregate for each policy year.

Provider Claims
Many of our medical contracts are complex in nature and may be subject to differing interpretations regarding amounts due for the
provision of various services. Such differing interpretations may lead medical providers to pursue us for additional compensation. The
claims made by providers in such circumstances often involve issues of contract compliance, interpretation, payment methodology, and
intent. These claims often extend to services provided by the providers over a number of years.

Various providers have contacted us seeking additional compensation for claims that we believe to have been settled. These matters,
when finally concluded and determined, will not, in our opinion, have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position,
results of operations, or cash flows.
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Regulatory Capital and Dividend Restrictions
Our principal operations are conducted through our health plan subsidiaries operating in California, Florida, Michigan, Missouri,
New Mexico, Ohio, Texas, Utah, Washington and Wisconsin. Our health plans are subject to state regulations that, among other things,
require the maintenance of minimum levels of statutory capital, as defined by each state, and restrict the timing, payment and amount of
dividends and other distributions that may be paid to us as the sole stockholder. To the extent the subsidiaries must comply with these
regulations, they may not have the financial flexibility to transfer funds to us. The net assets in these subsidiaries (after intercompany
eliminations) which may not be transferable to us in the form of loans, advances or cash dividends was $397.8 million at December 31,
2010, and $368.7 million at December 31, 2009. The National Association of Insurance Commissioners, or NAIC, adopted rules
effective December 31, 1998, which, if implemented by the states, set minimum capitalization requirements for insurance companies,
HMOs and other entities bearing risk for health care coverage. The requirements take the form of risk-based capital (RBC) rules.
Michigan, Missouri, New Mexico, Ohio, Texas, Utah, Washington, and Wisconsin have adopted these rules, which may vary from
state to state. California and Florida have not yet adopted NAIC risk-based capital requirements for HMOs and have not formally given
notice of their intention to do so. Such requirements, if adopted by California and Florida, may increase the minimum capital required for
those states.
As of December 31, 2010, our health plans had aggregate statutory capital and surplus of approximately $416.6 million compared
with the required minimum aggregate statutory capital and surplus of approximately $278.0 million. All of our HMOs were in compliance
with the minimum capital requirements at December 31, 2010. We have the ability and commitment to provide additional capital to each
of our health plans when necessary to ensure that statutory capital and surplus continue to meet regulatory requirements.

19.

Segment Reporting

Our reportable segments are consistent with how we manage the business and view the markets we serve. In the second quarter of
2010, we added a segment to our internal financial reporting structure as a result of the acquisition of Molina Medicaid Solutions
described in Note 4, “Business Combinations.” We now report our financial performance based on the following two reportable
segments — Health Plans and Molina Medicaid Solutions. The Health Plans segment represents our former single-segment health plan
operations. The Molina Medicaid Solutions segment represents the operations of our new MMIS solutions business.

We rely on an internal management reporting process that provides segment information to the operating income level for purposes of
making financial decisions and allocating resources. The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in Note 2,
“Significant Accounting Policies.” The cost of services shared
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between the Health Plans and Molina Medicaid Solutions segments is charged to the Health Plans segment. Operating segment revenues
and profitability were as follows:
Molina
Medicaid
Solutions
(In thousands)

Health Plans

Year ended December 31, 2010
Premium revenue
Service revenue
Investment income
Total revenue

Operating income

Year ended December 31, 2009
Premium revenue
Service revenue
Investment income
Total revenue
Operating income
Year ended December 31, 2008
Premium revenue
Service revenue
Investment income
Total revenue
Operating income

Total

$ 3,989,909
—
6,259
$3,996,168
$ 102,392

$

—
89,809
—
$89,809
$ 2,609

$ 3,989,909
89,809
6,259
$ 4,085,977
$ 105,001

$ 3,660,207
—
9,149
$3,669,356
$
51,934

$

—
—
—
—
—

$ 3,660,207
—
9,149
$3,669,356
$
51,934

$ 3,091,240
—
21,126
$ 3,112,366
$ 107,555

$

—
—
—
—
—

$ 3,091,240
—
21,126
$ 3,112,366
$ 107,555

$
$

$
$

Reconciliation to Income before Income Taxes
Year Ended December 31,

Segment operating income
Interest expense
Income before income taxes

2010

2009
(In thousands)

2008

$ 105,001
(15,509)
$ 89,492

$ 51,934
(13,777)
$ 38,157

$107,555
(13,231)

$ 94,324

Segment Assets

Health Plans

$1,333,599
$ 1,244,035

As of December 31, 2010

As of December 31, 2009
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Molina
Medicaid
Solutions
(In thousands)

$175,615
$
—

Total

$1,509,214
$ 1,244,035
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

20.

Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)
The following is a summary of the quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009.
For The Quarter Ended
September 30,
2010
2010

March 31,

June 30,

2010

December 31,
2010

(In thousands)

Premium revenue
Service revenue
Operating income
Income before income taxes
Net income
Net income per share(1):

Basic
Diluted

$965,220
—
20,438

17,081
10,590
$
$

0.41
0.41

$976,685
21,054
21,178
17,079
10,579

$ 1,005,115
32,271
29,953
25,353
16,173

$ 1,042,889
36,484

$
$

$
$

$
$

0.41
0.41

0.58
0.57

For The Quarter Ended
September 30,

March 31,

June 30,

2009

2009

33,432

29,979
17,628
0.58
0.58

December 31,

2009

2009

(In thousands)

Premium revenue
Service revenue
Operating income (loss)(2)
Income (loss) before income taxes(2)
Net income (loss)
Net income (loss) per share(1),(3):

Basic
Diluted

$857,484
—
23,161
19,746
12,211

$925,507
—
19,488
16,265
14,565

$

914,805
—
15,089
11,810
8,564

$

962,411
—
(5,804)
(9,664)
(4,472)

$
$

$
$

$
$

0.34

$
$

(0.18)

0.46
0.46

0.56
0.56

0.33

(0.18)

(1) Potentially dilutive shares issuable pursuant to our 2007 offering of convertible senior notes were not included in the computation of
diluted net income per share because to do so would have been anti-dilutive for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009.
(2) Effective January 1, 2010, the Company has recorded the Michigan gross receipts tax as a premium tax and not as an income tax. For
each of the quarters in the year ended December 31, 2009, premium tax expense and income tax expense have been reclassified to
conform to this presentation.
(3) For the quarter ended December 31, 2009, no potentially dilutive options or unvested stock awards were included in the computation

of our diluted loss per share because to do so would have been anti-dilutive for that period.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

21.

Condensed Financial Information of Registrant

Following are our parent company only condensed balance sheets as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and our condensed statements
of income and condensed statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2010.

Condensed Balance Sheets
December 31,
2010
2009
(In thousands except pershare data)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Income tax receivable
Deferred income taxes
Due from affiliates
Prepaid and other current assets
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Goodwill
Investments
Investment in subsidiaries
Advances to related parties and other assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Long-term debt
Deferred income taxes
Other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Stockholders’ equity:

Common stock, $0.001 par value; 80,000 shares authorized, outstanding 30,309 shares at December 31,
2010 and 25,607 shares at December 31, 2009
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 20,000 shares authorized, no shares issued and outstanding
Paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Retained earnings
Total stockholders’ equity
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$ 57,020

$ 26,040

2,000

3,002

1,928
7,006
19,059
11,009
98,022
81,445
58,719
6,046
702,096
16,397
$962,725

—
—
19,121
11,435
59,598
65,067
45,943
16,516
545,731
16,742
$749,597

$ 56,910
164,014
8,425
14,319
243,668

$ 24,577
158,900
10,769
12,613
206,859

30

—
251,627
(2,192)
469,592
719,057
$962,725

26
—
129,902
(1,812)
414,622
542,738
$749,597
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
Condensed Statements of Income
Year Ended December 31,

Revenue:
Management fees and other operating revenue
Investment income
Total revenue
Expenses:
Medical care costs
General and administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Total expenses
Gain on purchase of convertible senior notes
Operating (loss) income

2010

2009
(In thousands)

2008

$ 238,883
1,153

$218,911
1,540
220,451

$190,538
2,733
193,271

26,865
160,792
25,223
212,880
1,532
9,103

21,759
143,709
18,980
184,448
—
8,823
(13,167)
(4,344)
(456)
(3,888)
63,486
$ 59,598

240,036

30,582
218,834
27,166
276,582
—
(36,546)
(15,500)
(52,046)
(16,936)
(35,110)
90,080
$ 54,970

Interest expense

Loss before income taxes and equity in net income of subsidiaries
Income tax benefit
Net loss before equity in net income of subsidiaries
Equity in net income of subsidiaries
Net income
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(13,770)

(4,667)
(3,755)
(912)
31,780
$ 30,868
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31,
2010

Operating activities:
Cash provided by operating activities
Investing activities:
Net dividends from and capital contributions to subsidiaries
Purchases of investments
Sales and maturities of investments
Cash paid in business purchase transactions
Purchases of equipment
Changes in amounts due to and due from affiliates
Change in other assets and liabilities
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities
Financing activities:
Proceeds from common stock offering, net of issuance costs
Amount borrowed under credit facility
Repayment of amount borrowed under credit facility
Treasury stock purchases
Purchase of convertible senior notes
Payment of credit facility fees
Excess tax benefits from employee stock compensation
Proceeds from exercise of stock options and employee stock plan purchases
Net cash provided (used in) by financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
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$

2009
(In thousands)

19,380

$ 40,551

70,800

21,960

(2,019)
14,083

(139,762)
(40,419)
(5,723)
829
102,211
111,131
105,000
(105,000)

—
—
(1,671)
295
4,056
113,811
30,980
26,040
$ 57,020

2008

$ 17,532

12,669
(2,894)
(32,245)
(17,074)
(540)
(21,968)

42,872
(25,515)
56,833
(1,000)
(33,047)
(6,542)
3,170
36,771

—
—
—
(27,712)
(9,653)
—

—
—
—
(49,940)
—
—

(3,844)

31

2,015
(35,319)
(16,736)
42,776
$ 26,040

43

2,084
(47,813)
6,490
36,286
$ 42,776
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
Notes to Condensed Financial Information of Registrant
Note A — Basis of Presentation
Molina Healthcare, Inc. (Registrant) was incorporated on July 24, 2002. Prior to that date, Molina Healthcare of California (formerly
known as Molina Medical Centers) operated as a California health plan and as the parent company for Molina Healthcare of Utah, Inc.
and Molina Healthcare of Michigan, Inc. In June 2003, the employees and operations of the corporate entity were transferred from Molina
Healthcare of California to the Registrant.

The Registrant’s investment in subsidiaries is stated at cost plus equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries since the date of
acquisition. The parent company-only financial statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes.
Note B — Transactions with Subsidiaries
The Registrant provides certain centralized medical and administrative services to its subsidiaries pursuant to administrative
services agreements, including medical affairs and quality management, health education, credentialing, management, financial, legal,
information systems and human resources services. Fees are based on the fair market value of services rendered and are recorded as
operating revenue. Payment is subordinated to the subsidiaries’ ability to comply with minimum capital and other restrictive financial
requirements of the states in which they operate. Charges in 2010, 2009, and 2008 for these services totaled $238.5 million,
$218.6 million, and $190.4 million, respectively, which are included in operating revenue.

The Registrant and its subsidiaries are included in the consolidated federal and state income tax returns filed by the Registrant.
Income taxes are allocated to each subsidiary in accordance with an intercompany tax allocation agreement. The agreement allocates
income taxes in an amount generally equivalent to the amount which would be expensed by the subsidiary if it filed a separate tax return.
Net operating loss benefits are paid to the subsidiary by the Registrant to the extent such losses are utilized in the consolidated tax returns.

Note C — Capital Contribution and Dividends
During 2010, 2009, and 2008, the Registrant received dividends from its subsidiaries totaling $81.3 million, $76.7 million, and
$91.5 million, respectively. Such amounts have been recorded as a reduction to the investments in the respective subsidiaries.

During 2010, 2009, and 2008, the Registrant made capital contributions to certain subsidiaries totaling $10.5 million,
$54.7 million, and $48.6 million, respectively, primarily to comply with minimum net worth requirements and to fund contract
acquisitions. Such amounts have been recorded as an increase in investment in the respective subsidiaries.

Note D — Related Party Transactions
The Registrant has an equity investment in a medical service provider that provides certain vision services to its members. The
Registrant accounts for this investment under the equity method of accounting because the Registrant has an ownership interest in the
investee that confers significant influence over operating and financial policies of the investee. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the
Registrant’s carrying amount for this investment totaled $4.4 million and $4.1 million, respectively. For the years ended December 31,
2010, 2009 and 2008, the Registrant paid $22.0 million, $21.8 million, and $15.4 million, respectively, for medical service fees to this
provider.
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The Registrant is a party to a fee-for-service agreement with Pacific Hospital of Long Beach (“Pacific Hospital”). Until October 2010,
Pacific Hospital was owned by Abrazos Healthcare, Inc., the shares of which are held as community property by the husband of
Dr. Martha Bernadett, the sister of Dr. J. Mario Molina, our Chief Executive Officer, and John Molina, our Chief Financial Officer.
Amounts paid to Pacific Hospital under the terms of this fee-for-service agreement were $1.0 million, $0.7 million, and $0.2 million, for
the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. As of October 2010, Pacific Hospital is no longer owned by Abrazos
Healthcare, Inc. or any other related party to the Company.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosures
None.

Item 9A.

Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures: Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”).
Our internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance to our management and board of directors
regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements. We maintain controls and procedures designed to ensure
that we are able to collect the information we are required to disclose in the reports we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
and to process, summarize and disclose this information within the time periods specified in the rules of the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures: Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and
our Chief Financial Officer, has conducted an evaluation of the design and operation of our “disclosure controls and procedures” (as
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) under the Exchange Act. Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief
Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective as of the end of the period covered by this
report to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Therefore, even
those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and
presentation.

Changes in Internal Controls: There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the three months
ended December 31, 2010 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal controls over financial
reporting.
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting: Management of the Company is responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the
Exchange Act. The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States. However, all internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations.
Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement
preparation and reporting.
Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010. In
making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (“COSO”) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework.

Our management’s evaluation did not include an assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting at Molina
Medicaid Solutions, which was acquired on May 1, 2010. The assets and net assets of Molina Medicaid Solutions at December 31, 2010
were approximately $175.6 million and $133.1 million, respectively. Total revenue and net income of Molina Medicaid Solutions
included in our consolidated results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2010 were approximately $89.8 million and
$1.8 million, respectively. Our management has not had sufficient time to make an assessment of this subsidiary’s internal control over
financial reporting.
Based on our assessment, management believes that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2010, based on those criteria.
The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report appearing on page 115 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K,
which expresses an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2010.

Item 9B.

Other Information

None.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Molina Healthcare, Inc.
We have audited Molina Healthcare, Inc.’s (the “Company’s”) internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010,
based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
As indicated in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting, management’s assessment of
and conclusion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting did not include the internal controls of Molina Medicaid
Solutions (acquired May 1, 2010), which is included in the 2010 consolidated financial statements of Molina Healthcare, Inc. and
constituted $175.6 million and $133.1 million of total and net assets, respectively, as of December 31, 2010, and $89.8 million and
$1.8 million of revenues and net income, respectively, for the year then ended. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting of
Molina Healthcare, Inc. also did not include an evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of Molina Medicaid Solutions.

In our opinion, Molina Healthcare, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2010, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Molina Healthcare, Inc. as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related consolidated statements of
income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2010 and our report dated
March 8, 2011 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP
Los Angeles, California

March 8, 2011
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PART III

Item 10.

Directors, Executive Officers, and Corporate Governance

(a) Directors of the Registrant
Information concerning our directors will appear in our Proxy Statement for our 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under
“Proposal No. 1 — Election of Three Class III Directors.” This portion of the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

(b) Executive Officers of the Registrant
Pursuant to General Instruction G(3) to Form 10-K and Instruction 3 to Item 401(b) of Regulation S-K, information regarding our
executive officers is provided in Part I of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the caption “Executive Officers of the Registrant,” and
will also appear in our Proxy Statement for our 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. Such portion of the Proxy Statement is
incorporated herein by reference.

(c)

Corporate Governance

Information concerning certain corporate governance matters will appear in our Proxy Statement for our 2011 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders under “Corporate Governance,” “Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee,” “Corporate Governance Guidelines,”
and “Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.” These portions of our Proxy Statement are incorporated herein by reference.

(d) Section 16 (a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance
Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires our executive officers and directors, and persons who own more than 10% of a registered
class of our equity securities, to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the SEC, and to furnish us with copies of the
forms. Purchases and sales of our equity securities by such persons are published on our website at www.molinahealthcare.com. Based
on our review of the copies of such reports, on our involvement in assisting our reporting persons with such filings, and on written
representations from our reporting persons, we believe that, during 2010, each of our executive officers, directors, and greater than ten
percent stockholders complied with all such filing requirements on a timely basis.

Item 11.

Executive Compensation

The information which will appear in our Proxy Statement for our 2011 Annual Meeting under the captions “Compensation
Committee Interlocks,” “Non-Employee Director Compensation,” and “Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” is incorporated herein
by reference. The information which will appear in our Proxy Statement under the caption “Compensation Committee Report” is not
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

Information concerning the security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management will appear in our Proxy Statement for
our 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under “Information About Stock Ownership.” This portion of the Proxy Statement is
incorporated herein by reference. The information required by this item regarding our equity compensation plans is set forth in Part II,
Item 5 of this report and incorporated herein by reference.

116

Table of Contents

Item 13.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Information concerning certain relationships and related transactions will appear in our Proxy Statement for our 2011 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders under “Related Party Transactions.” Information concerning director independence will appear in our Proxy
Statement under “Director Independence.” These portions of our Proxy Statement are incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14.

Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information concerning principal accountant fees and services will appear in our Proxy Statement for our 2011 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders under “Disclosure of Auditor Fees.” This portion of our Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15.

Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) The consolidated financial statements and exhibits listed below are filed as part of this report.

(1)

The Company’s consolidated financial statements, the notes thereto and the report of the Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm are on pages 67 through 113 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and are incorporated by reference.
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets — At December 31, 2010 and 2009
Consolidated Statements of Income — Years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity — Years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows — Years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

None of the schedules apply, or the information required is included in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
(3) Exhibits
Reference is made to the accompanying Index to Exhibits.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the undersigned registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on the 8th day of March, 2011.

MOLINA HEALTHCARE, INC.

By:

/s/ Joseph M. Molina, M.D.

Joseph M. Molina, M.D.
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
Signature

Date
T

i

t

l

e

/s/ Joseph M. Molina
Joseph M. Molina, M.D.

Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer,
and President (Principal Executive Officer)

March 8, 2011

/s/ John C. Molina
John C. Molina, J.D.

Director, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer)

March 8, 2011

/s/ Joseph W. White
Joseph W. White, CPA, MBA

Chief Accounting Officer (Principal Accounting
Officer)

March 8, 2011

/s/ Charles Z. Fedak
Charles Z. Fedak, CPA, MBA

Director

March 8, 2011

/s/ Frank E. Murray
Frank E. Murray, M.D.

Director

March 8, 2011

/s/ Steven Orlando
Steven Orlando, CPA (inactive)

Director

March 8, 2011

/s/ Sally K. Richardson
Sally K. Richardson

Director

March 8, 2011

/s/ Ronna Romney
Ronna Romney

Director

March 8, 2011

/s/ John P. Szabo, Jr.
John P. Szabo, Jr.

Director

March 8, 2011
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The following exhibits, which are furnished with this annual report or incorporated herein by reference, are filed as part of this
annual report.
The agreements included or incorporated by reference as exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-K contain representations and
warranties by each of the parties to the applicable agreement. These representations and warranties were made solely for the benefit of the
other parties to the applicable agreement and (i) were not intended to be treated as categorical statements of fact, but rather as a way of
allocating the risk to one of the parties if those statements prove to be inaccurate; (ii) may have been qualified in such agreement by
disclosures that were made to the other party in connection with the negotiation of the applicable agreement; (iii) may apply contract
standards of “materiality” that are different from “materiality” under the applicable securities laws; and (iv) were made only as of the date
of the applicable agreement or such other date or dates as may be specified in the agreement. The Company acknowledges that,
notwithstanding the inclusion of the foregoing cautionary statements, it is responsible for considering whether additional specific
disclosures of material information regarding material contractual provisions are required to make the statements in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K not misleading.

INDEX TO EXHIBITS
Number
D e s c r i p t i o n

2.1

M e t h o d

o f

F i l i n g

Filed as Exhibit 2.1. to registrant’s Form 8-K filed
January 19, 2010.
3.1
Filed as Exhibit 3.2 to registrant’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1 filed December 30, 2002.
3.2
Amended and Restated Bylaws
Filed as Exhibit 3.2 to registrant’s Form 8-K filed
February 17, 2009.
4.1
Indenture dated as of October 11, 2008
Filed as Exhibit 4.1 to registrant’s Form 8-K filed October 5,
2007.
4.2
First Supplemental Indenture dated as of October 11, 2008
Filed as Exhibit 4.2 to registrant’s Form 8-K filed October 5,
2007.
4.3
Global Form of 3.75% Convertible Senior Note due 2014
Filed as Exhibit 4.3 to registrant’s Form 8-K filed October 5,
2007.
10.1 2000 Omnibus Stock and Incentive Plan
Filed as Exhibit 10.12 to registrant’s Form S-1 filed
December 30, 2002.
10.2 2002 Equity Incentive Plan
Filed as Exhibit 10.13 to registrant’s Form S-1 filed
December 30, 2002.
10.3 Form of Stock Option Agreement under 2002 Equity Incentive Filed as Exhibit 10.3 to registrant’s Form 10-K filed
Plan
March 14, 2007.
10.4 2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan
Filed as Exhibit 10.14 to registrant’s Form S-1 filed
December 30, 2002.
10.5 2005 Molina Deferred Compensation Plan adopted November Filed as Exhibit 10.4 to registrant’s Form 10-Q filed
6, 2006
November 9, 2006.
10.6 2005 Incentive Compensation Plan
Filed as Appendix A to registrant’s Proxy Statement filed
March 28, 2005.
10.7 Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (Executive
Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to registrant’s Form 10-Q filed
Officer) under Molina Healthcare, Inc. 2002 Equity Incentive August 9, 2005.
Plan
10.8 Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (Outside Director) Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to registrant’s Form 10-Q filed
under Molina Healthcare, Inc. 2002 Equity Incentive Plan
August 9, 2005.
10.9 Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (Employee) under Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to registrant’s Form 10-Q filed
Molina Healthcare, Inc. 2002 Equity Incentive Plan
August 9, 2005.
10.10 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with J. Mario Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to registrant’s Form 8-K filed January 7,
Molina, M.D. dated as of December 31, 2009
2010.
Asset Purchase Agreement between Molina Healthcare, Inc.
and Unisys Corporation dated as of January 18, 2010
Certificate of Incorporation
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Number
D e s c r i p t i o n

10.11 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with John C.
Molina dated as of December 31, 2009
10.12 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with Mark L.
Andrews dated as of December 31, 2009 (terminated July 29,
2010)
10.13 Separation Agreement, General Waiver, and Release of Claims
with Mark L. Andrews entered into July 29, 2010
10.14 Amended and Restated Change in Control Agreement with
Terry Bayer, dated as of December 31, 2009
10.15 Amended and Restated Change in Control Agreement with
James W. Howatt, M.D., dated as of December 31, 2009
10.16 Amended and Restated Change in Control Agreement with
Joseph W. White, dated as of December 31, 2009
10.17 Form of Indemnification Agreement
10.18 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of March
9, 2005, among Molina Healthcare, Inc., as the Borrower,
certain lenders, and Bank of America, N.A., as
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PURCHASE AGREEMENT
200 & 300 OCEANGATE, LONG BEACH, CALIFORNIA
THIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of the 30 th day of November, 2010 (“ Contract Date ”), by and between 200 OCEANGATE, LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company (“ Seller”), and MOLINA CENTER LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“ Buyer”).

RECITALS
Seller owns and is offering for sale the land and improvements commonly known as 200 & 300 Oceangate, Long Beach, California, and more completely
described below. Buyer has offered to buy the property, and the parties are entering into this Agreement to set forth the terms and conditions of the sale to
Buyer.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the agreements set forth below, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Agreement of Sale .
1.1 Seller hereby agrees to sell to Buyer and Buyer hereby agrees to purchase from Seller that certain real property (the “ Land”) with street address of 200
& 300 Oceangate, Long Beach, California, and more particularly described in attached Exhibit A, together with Seller’s right, title and interest in the
following, which together with the Land, shall be termed the “ Property” herein:

(a) the approximately 461,263 square foot office project located at 200 & 300 Oceangate, Long Beach, California and all fixtures and other
improvements located upon the Land (collectively, the “ Improvements ”);

(b) all easements, rights of way, privileges, licenses, appurtenances and other rights and benefits of Seller belonging to or in any way related to the
Land, and the Improvements, including water rights, mineral rights, air rights and development rights, if any (together with the Land and Improvements, the
“Real Property ”);

(c) all fixtures, furnishings, equipment and other tangible personal property owned by Seller that are used for the operation of the Property and that are
located on the Property or that are used exclusively for the operation of the Property (the “ Personal Property ”);

(d) the Leases and Service Contracts (as such terms are hereinafter defined) and all security deposits held by Seller with respect to the Leases;

(e) to the extent assignable, all certificate(s) of occupancy, building or equipment permits, consents, authorizations, variances, waivers, licenses,
permits, certificates
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and approvals from any governmental or quasi-governmental authority necessary for the use of the Land or the Improvements (collectively, the “ Approvals”);

(f) all transferable or assignable warranties (the “ Warranties”) relating to the ownership, development, use and operation of the Land and
Improvements;
(g) to the extent assignable, all of Seller’s interest in all structural, soil, seismic, geologic, engineering and other reports and studies, all operating
manuals for all systems, equipment and operating components of the Property, all marketing materials that are distributed or shown to potential tenants in the
marketing of the Property for lease, photos and depictions, all architectural drawings, plans and specifications relating to all or any portion of the Real
Property, and all intellectual property rights to the Property, including, without limitation, trade names, trademarks, service marks, logos or other source and
business identifiers, trademark registrations and applications for registration used at or relating to the Real Property and any written agreement granting to
Seller any right to use any trademark or trademark registration at or in connection with the Real Property (the “ Intangible Property ”).

2. Purchase Price . The purchase price for the Property is Eighty-Three Million Dollars ($83,000,000.00) (“ Purchase Price ”) and shall be paid in cash by
Buyer at the Closing (as defined in Section 10.1 below).
3. Non-Refundable Payment and Deposit

3.1 Non-Refundable Payment . On the Contract Date, as consideration for Seller’s agreement to enter into this Agreement and grant Buyer the right to
conduct due diligence and terminate this Agreement on and subject to the terms of Section 7, and as a condition precedent to the effectiveness of this
Agreement, Buyer shall deliver directly to Seller, by personal check, cash or wire transfer funds in the amount of One Hundred and No/100 ths Dollars ($100)
(the “Non-Refundable Payment ”). The Non-Refundable Payment shall be fully earned and retained by Seller immediately upon receipt and, notwithstanding
any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, the Non-Refundable Payment shall not be returned to Buyer in any circumstance.
3.2 Deposit; Liquidated Damages .

(a) Initial Deposit . Within one (1) business day after the Contract Date, Buyer shall deposit in an escrow (the “ Escrow”) established for the within
contemplated transaction with First American Title Insurance Company, National Commercial Services, 1850 Mt. Diablo Blvd., Suite 300, Walnut Creek,
California, 94596, Attention: Kitty Schlesinger, Order No. NCS-453433-CC (the “ Title Company ”), the sum of Five Hundred Thousand Dollars
($500,000) (the “ Initial Deposit ”), with instructions to the Title Company to hold the Initial Deposit in the Escrow in an interest-bearing account, with
interest accruing for the benefit of Buyer. In the event the sale of the Property is consummated, the Initial Deposit and all interest earned thereon shall be applied
towards the Purchase Price. If Buyer elects to terminate this Agreement pursuant to its terms or fails to notify Seller in writing that the Property is acceptable,
as provided in Section 7, prior to the end of the Due Diligence Period (as defined in Section 7), the Initial Deposit and all interest thereon shall be returned to
Buyer, and the parties shall be
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released from all further obligations and liability under this Agreement, except for those obligations that survive the termination of this Agreement.

(b) Additional Deposit . Concurrently with, and subject to, the delivery of the Approval Notice to Buyer as provided in Section 7, Buyer shall deposit in
the Escrow the additional sum of Two Million and No/100ths Dollars ($2,000,000) (the “Additional Deposit” and together with the Initial Deposit, the
“Deposit”), with instructions to the Title Company to hold such Additional Deposit in the Escrow, in an interest bearing account, with interest accruing for
the benefit of Buyer. In the event the sale of the Property to Buyer is consummated, the Deposit and all interest earned thereon shall be applied towards the
Purchase Price.
(c) Non-Refundable Deposit . Upon the delivery by Buyer to Seller of the Approval Notice, the Deposit shall be non-refundable to Buyer except in the
following events, upon the occurrence of which the Deposit and all interest thereon shall be returned to Buyer: (i) the Closing fails to occur due to a material
default by Seller under this Agreement; (ii) the Closing fails to occur as a result of a failure of a condition to Closing in favor of Buyer, but only if such failure
occurs other than as a result of a material default by Buyer under this Agreement; or (iii) the terms of this Agreement expressly provide for the return of the
Deposit to Buyer. On the Closing Date, the Deposit and all interest earned thereon shall be applied to the Purchase Price.

(d) Liquidated Damages . If this Agreement does not terminate pursuant to Section 7, but Buyer fails to consummate this transaction on
the scheduled Closing Date (as defined in Section 10.1) due to default by Buyer and any such default continues for five (5) business days after
written notice from Seller to Buyer, which written notice shall detail such default, Seller shall be entitled to the Deposit, and all interest thereon, as
liquidated damages. The parties have acknowledged and agreed that Seller’s damages, in the event of a default by Buyer, would be extremely
difficult or impracticable to determine. Therefore, by placing their initials below, the parties acknowledge that the Deposit, and all interest
thereon, has been agreed upon, after negotiation, as the parties’ reasonable estimate of Seller’s damages. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no
event shall Seller’s ability to recover from Buyer any loss, cost, damage or expense pursuant to any indemnification or other provision of this
Agreement that survives the Closing be deemed limited in any respect by this provision or by Seller’s receipt of the Deposit. The parties agree that
the Deposit is not intended as a forfeiture or penalty within the meaning of California Civil Code Sections 3275 or 3369 but shall be treated as liquidated
damages pursuant to California Civil Code Sections 1671, 1676 and 1677.
Buyer

Seller

This Section 3.2 is not intended to limit Seller’s remedies under Sections 6, 18.6 or 18.7.
4. Documents to be Delivered to Buyer .
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4.1 Due Diligence Deliveries . Seller has provided Buyer with, and Buyer acknowledges receipt of, copies of the materials and documents identified in
Exhibit B attached hereto.
4.2 Title Report. Seller has also provided to Buyer, and Buyer acknowledges receipt of that certain preliminary title report for the Property prepared under
Order No. NCS-453433-CC, together with a copy of each document referred to therein (collectively, the “ Preliminary Title Report ”).
4.3 Property Documents . Buyer shall have the right, at Buyer’s sole cost and expense and with at least one (1) business day prior notice, to review Seller’s
real property transaction files (excluding any privileged or confidential information and excluding any valuation and appraisal information), lease files, plans
and specification files, and other files relating to the Property and its ownership, operation, management and maintenance during regular business hours,
which files are located in the management office at the Property.
4.4 Leases. Seller shall deliver to Buyer copies of the existing leases, license agreements and rental agreements covering any portion of the Property, any
guarantees thereof, and all amendments, modifications and supplements thereto as listed on Exhibit C hereto (each a “ Lease” and collectively, the “Leases”).

4.5 Tenant Estoppels.
(a) Seller shall deliver to Buyer an estoppel certificate (a “ Tenant Estoppel”), in the form of attached Exhibit D or, if the applicable Lease provides for
a different form of estoppel in the form specified in the applicable Lease, dated no earlier than thirty (30) days prior to Closing, from as many of the tenants of
the Property (the “ Tenants”) from whom Seller is able to obtain such Tenant Estoppels through the exercise of Seller’s diligent, good faith efforts. Seller shall,
at least ten (10) days prior to the expiration of the Due Diligence Period and prior to delivery to the Tenants for execution, deliver completed forms of Tenant
Estoppels to Buyer for Buyer’s review and approval, provided that Seller shall not be obligated to deliver the form of Tenant Estoppel for any of the following
Tenants (collectively, the “Government Tenants”): (A) the State of California acting by and through the Director of the Department of General Services; and
(B) the United States of America, Department of Veterans Affairs. Buyer may disapprove a Tenant Estoppel only if (i) it is not in the form of Exhibit D or, if
the applicable Lease provides for a different form or content of estoppel in the form or content specified in the applicable Lease, the form or content provided
by the applicable Lease, or (ii) if the information set forth in the Tenant Estoppel is not consistent with the terms set forth in the applicable Lease. If Buyer has
not responded as to such approval within three (3) business days of receipt of a Tenant Estoppel, Buyer shall be deemed to have approved the Tenant Estoppel
in question for delivery to Tenant. Seller shall deliver completed Tenant Estoppels to Buyer as they are received by Seller. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Seller
shall not be obligated to prepare or seek Tenant Estoppels with respect to the following Leases, as amended and assigned to date: (1) License Agreement, dated
November 30, 2000, by and between Pacific Towers Associates and Captivate Network, Inc.; (2) Antenna Site License Agreement, dated as of November 30,
2006, by and between Seller and Direct America Satellite Services; (3) Telecommunications
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License Agreement, dated July 13, 2005, by and between Seller and Rocket Internetworking, Inc.; (4) Telecommunications Access and License Agreement,
dated December 21, 2009, by and between Seller and TCG Los Angeles, Inc.; (5) License Agreement, dated December 21, 2000, by and between XO
Communications, Inc., and Pacific Towers Associates; and (6) UPS Drop Box Agreement, dated February 2, 2010, by and between United Parcel Service,
Inc., and Seller.

(b) Estoppel Thresholds . Buyer shall have a right to terminate this Agreement upon written notice prior to the Closing Date and receive a refund of the
Deposit and all interest thereon as its sole remedy if Seller fails to deliver to Buyer at least three (3) days prior to the Closing Date, Tenant Estoppels from
(i) the State of California acting by and through the Director of the Department of General Services, which is the contracting party under five (5) separate
Leases – State Lands Commission (two Leases), California Coastal Commission, and Department of Industrial Relations (two Leases), confirming that such
Leases are in effect, that the Tenant has no default claims against Seller, that the term of the Lease is consistent with the term reflected in the Lease, and that
the base monthly rent payable is consistent with the base monthly rent shown in the Lease, (ii) the United States of America, Department of Veterans Affairs
confirming that the Lease is in full force and effect, the date to which the rent and other charges have been paid in advance, if any; and whether any notice of
default has been issued, (iii) each of (1) AECOM Technology Corp., (2) Pacific Maritime Association, (3) Long Beach Publishing Company, Inc., and
Medianews Group, Inc., and (4) J. Perez Associates, Inc. (collectively, the “ Major Non-Government Tenants in Occupancy ”) in the form approved or
deemed approved by Buyer pursuant to Section 4.5(a) above, and (iv) an estoppel from Crowell Weedon & Co. certifying that its Lease has not been modified
or amended in writing or orally or by course of conduct, and contains the entire understanding and agreement with Seller concerning the premises under the
Lease. Buyer acknowledges and agrees that if the Major Non-Government Tenants in Occupancy delete or modify one or both of sections 20 and 21 of the
form Tenant Estoppel attached as Exhibit D, such deletion(s) or modification(s) shall not constitute a change in the form approved or deemed approved by
Buyer. As used in this Agreement, the term “Major Non-Government Tenants” shall mean the Major Non-Governmental Tenants in Occupancy and
Crowelll Weedon & Co.

4.6 Service Contracts . Seller has delivered to Buyer, and Buyer acknowledges receipt of, copies of the service, maintenance, management and other
contracts and agreements related to the operation and management of the Property, excluding the property management agreement which will not be assigned at
Closing, all of which are listed on the attached Exhibit E (the “Service Contracts ”). If Buyer delivers the Approval Notice, Buyer shall be deemed to have
agreed to assume at Closing all of the Service Contracts.
4.7 Survey. Seller shall deliver a copy of Seller’s existing survey to Buyer (the “ Survey”). Buyer may, at its sole cost and expense, cause the Survey to be
updated and recertified as deemed necessary and appropriate by Buyer.

5. Title.
5.1 Title Commitment. Buyer shall be responsible for obtaining, no later than the end of the Due Diligence Period, a commitment from the Title Company
to issue at Closing a policy
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of title insurance in a form acceptable to Buyer, which is not conditioned on the performance by any party or third party of any actions other than the express
obligations of the parties under this Agreement (the “ Commitment ”). Seller will provide, at Closing, an affidavit to the Title Company in the form attached
hereto as Exhibit J. Buyer shall deliver the Commitment to Seller together with a letter from Buyer to Seller stating that the exceptions to title reflected in the
Commitment are approved by Buyer. If Buyer does not provide Seller with the Commitment and such letter prior to the expiration of the Due Diligence Period,
the title reflected in the Preliminary Title Report (or any updated title report) shall be deemed unacceptable and disapproved, this Agreement shall terminate and
the Deposit, together with all interest thereon, shall be returned to Buyer. Seller shall have no duty to cure, and Buyer shall not be entitled to any offset or credit
against the Purchase Price due to, any defect in the title to the Property or any condition or aspect of the Property, to which Buyer may object, except as may be
agreed by Seller in writing, in its sole and absolute discretion; provided, however, that Seller shall remove, bond over, or obtain a title endorsement for any
liens (“Seller Liens”) that affect the Property and that are not liens for taxes or assessments accruing on or after the Closing and that are not created by, or the
result of actions of, Buyer, Molina or any of their respective affiliates, agents, employees or contractors. Any cure that Seller has so agreed to perform or is
obligated to perform shall become a condition precedent to Closing in favor of Buyer and shall be cured by the Closing Date. For purposes of this Section 5.1,
a “cure” of a title exception means the elimination of such exception from title and shall not include the bonding of, or endorsement over unless such bonding is
in an amount and on terms required by the Title Company for elimination of such exception from the Title Policy (as defined in Section 5.3) as reasonably
determined by Buyer. If such cure is not accomplished by the Closing Date, Buyer, as its sole and exclusive remedy, may either terminate this Agreement, in
which case the Deposit shall be returned to Buyer, or waive such objection and complete the Closing subject to such exception, provided that if Seller refuses
to remove a Seller Lien at Closing, Buyer shall have the right to instruct the Title Company, as escrow agent, to apply a portion of the Purchase Price
sufficient to discharge such Seller Lien at Closing.

5.2 Permitted Exceptions . The following shall constitute the “ Permitted Exceptions ”: (a) the Title Company’s standard exceptions; (b) all exceptions that
are shown on the Commitment; (c) all of the Leases; and (d) all exceptions that arise after the expiration of the Due Diligence Period and prior to the Closing
that are not Seller Liens and that are approved by Buyer, in writing, in its sole and absolute discretion, or are caused by Buyer or Molina, their agents,
employees, contractors or representatives or result from any new survey of the Real Property or any update of any existing survey.
5.3 Title Policy. Evidence of title shall be the issuance by the Title Company at Closing of a policy of title insurance in the form of the Commitment,
subject only to the Permitted Exceptions (“ Title Policy”). Seller shall be responsible for the cost of a CLTA standard coverage policy of title insurance in the
amount of the Purchase Price; Buyer shall be responsible for the incremental cost of an ALTA extended coverage policy of title insurance, the cost of any
endorsements to the Title Policy and for providing any necessary surveys (other than the Survey) to the Title Company.
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5.4 No Recording . Neither this Agreement nor any memorandum of this Agreement shall be recorded by, or on behalf of, Buyer in the Official Records of
the County of Los Angeles. If Buyer violates the terms of this Section 5.4 by recording or attempting to record this Agreement or a memorandum thereof, such
act shall not operate to bind or cloud the title to the Property, shall constitute a material breach and default by Buyer under this Agreement, and shall entitle
Seller to terminate this Agreement by written notice to Buyer, which termination notice may be recorded against the Property.
6. Access.
6.1 Provided that Buyer has complied with the insurance requirements in Section 6.3 and gives Seller at least one (1) business day’s prior notice (oral or
written), Seller shall allow Buyer and authorized representatives of Buyer reasonable access, at reasonable times, to the Property for the purposes of satisfying
Buyer with respect to the Property. In performing its examinations and inspections of the Property, Buyer shall use reasonable efforts to minimize any
interference with Seller’s and the Tenants’ use and occupancy of the Property. Seller shall have the right at all times to have a representative of Seller
accompany any of Buyer or Buyer’s employees, agents, contractors, consultants, officers, directors, representatives, managers or members (collectively,
“Buyer’s Agents” ) while such persons are on the Property. Buyer may conduct interviews with the Tenants, provided Buyer has given Seller no less than
two (2) business days notice prior to any such interview, and provided further that Seller shall have the right to be present at all such interviews. Buyer’s
breach of this Section 6.1 (and all subsections) shall constitute a material breach and default by Buyer of this Agreement. All investigations and inspections
shall be performed in compliance with this Section 6 and all local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations, including, without limitation, any and all
permits required thereunder, which permits shall be obtained by and at the sole cost of Buyer.

(a) Buyer shall not conduct or allow any physically intrusive or destructive testing of, on or under the Property, without Seller’s prior written consent,
which consent may be withheld at Seller’s sole and absolute discretion; provided, however, Buyer may, subject to its damage and repair obligations in this
Section 6.1 and 6.2, inspect the Property for asbestos-related materials. Buyer shall provide Seller with two (2) days written notice prior to the commencement
of any physically intrusive or destructive testing, accompanied by a detailed work plan describing the nature, scope, location and purpose of the proposed
work. Buyer acknowledges and agrees that Seller’s review of Buyer’s work plan is solely for the purpose of protecting Seller’s interests, and shall not be
deemed to create any liability of any kind on the part of Seller in connection with such review that, for example, the work plan is adequate or appropriate for
any purpose or complies with applicable legal requirements. All work and investigations shall be performed in compliance with all local, state and federal
laws, rules and regulations, including, without limitation, any and all permits required thereunder, all of which shall be at the sole cost and expense of Buyer.

(b) During the performance of Buyer’s investigations, Buyer shall promptly remove and properly dispose of all samples, substances and materials
extracted from or generated by Buyer at the Property and, upon the completion of its investigations, shall return the Property to its original condition, including
the removal of all equipment and materials used or
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generated during its investigations. Buyer shall name itself as the generator on any waste manifests required to dispose of said materials and shall obtain its
own waste generator identification number with respect thereto. If Buyer fails to perform or cause such restoration, and such failure shall continue for two
(2) days after Buyer receives written notice from Seller demanding the cure thereof, Seller may perform or cause to be performed such restoration work, and
Buyer shall reimburse Seller for all the costs and expenses thereof within two (2) days after receipt of bills therefor from Seller.

6.2 Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, any entry upon, inspection, or investigation of the Property by Buyer or Buyer’s Agents
shall be performed at the sole risk and expense of Buyer, and Buyer shall be solely and absolutely responsible for the acts or omissions of any of Buyer’s
Agents. Furthermore, Buyer shall protect, indemnify, defend and hold Seller, and its successors, assigns, and affiliates harmless from and against any and
all losses, damages (whether general, punitive or otherwise), liabilities, claims, causes of action, judgments, costs and legal or other expenses (including, but
not limited to, attorneys’ fees and costs) (collectively, “ Access Claims ”) suffered or incurred by any or all of such indemnified parties to the extent resulting
from any act or omission of Buyer or Buyer’s Agents in connection with: (i) Buyer’s inspection or investigations of the Property; (ii) Buyer’s entry upon the
Property; (iii) any activities, studies or investigations conducted at, to, or on the Property by Buyer or Buyer’s Agents; or (iv) the presence by Buyer or
Buyer’s Agents at or on the Property. If at any time prior to Closing, Buyer or Buyer’s Agents cause any damage to the Property, Buyer shall, at its sole
expense, immediately restore the Property to the same condition as existed immediately prior to the occurrence of such damage as determined by Seller in
Seller’s reasonable discretion. Buyer’s obligations under this Section 6.2 shall survive the termination of this Agreement or the Closing, as the case may be,
notwithstanding any other provisions herein to the contrary, and shall not be limited by the terms of Section 3. Buyer shall, at all times, keep the Property free
and clear of any mechanics’, materialmen’s or design professional’s claims or liens arising out of or relating to its investigations of the Property. The foregoing
provisions of this Section 6.2 shall not apply to, and Buyer shall have no liability for, or obligation to protect, indemnify, defend or hold Seller (or any other
person or party) harmless from or against any of the following: (i) the discovery by Buyer or any of Buyer’s Agents of any Hazardous Material on, under or
affecting the Property, except to the extent that Buyer and Buyer’s Agents exacerbate such condition in any material respect; (ii) the discovery by Buyer or
Buyer’s Agents of adverse physical, environmental, economic, neighborhood or other conditions at, on, in, under, around or affecting the Property, except to
the extent that Buyer and Buyer’s Agents exacerbate such condition in any material respect; or (iii) events, occurrences or conditions resulting from the acts or
omissions of Seller or Seller’s agents or representatives, except to the extent Buyer and Buyer’s Agents exacerbate such events, occurrences or condition in any
material respect. Notwithstanding anything in this Section 6.2 to the contrary, Buyer shall have no duty or obligation to identify or repair any condition in, on
or affecting the Property that Buyer or Buyer’s Agents discover or of which they are aware that may or could be unsafe or dangerous unless and to the extent
such unsafe or dangerous condition was caused by the Buyer or Buyer’s Agents.
6.3 Buyer shall maintain in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, the public liability insurance covering Buyer and its activities at the
Property on the terms and
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with the coverages described in the ACORD Certificate of Liability Insurance attached hereto as Exhibit K , naming Seller as an additional insured under all
such liability insurance.

7. Due Diligence Period . Buyer shall have until December 30, 2010, (“Due Diligence Period”) to inspect and investigate the Property, including roof, plumbing,
soils, electrical, sprinkler, water, sewer, mechanical, engineering, heating, ventilation and air conditioning and life safety systems, structural integrity of the
Improvements, measurement of the square footage of the Land and Improvements, legal status and requirements pertaining to the Property (including
applicable building codes, zoning, environmental, public health and fire safety laws), hazardous substance inspections including preparation of an
environmental assessment, suitability of the Property for Buyer’s purposes and all other matters of significance to Buyer. Buyer agrees to keep the results of
such testing and inspections confidential, except to the extent that disclosure is required by law (in which case Buyer will notify Seller in writing prior to
making any such disclosure). Buyer shall order and pay for all costs and expenses with respect to such inspections and investigations. If, in Buyer’s sole and
absolute discretion, Buyer desires to proceed with its acquisition of the Property, Buyer shall deliver written notice to Seller (the “ Approval Notice ”), prior to
the expiration of the Due Diligence Period, stating that it approves the Property, in which case the parties shall proceed to complete the Closing (subject to the
terms and conditions of this Agreement). If Buyer fails to deliver the Approval Notice prior to the expiration of the Due Diligence Period or if such Approval
Notice seeks to modify any of the terms or provisions of this Agreement, Buyer will be deemed to have disapproved the Property and to have exercised its right
to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section 7, in which case this Agreement shall automatically terminate as of the expiration of the Due Diligence
Period and the Initial Deposit, together with all interest earned thereon, shall be returned to Buyer. Further, if Buyer fails to deposit the full Additional Deposit
in Escrow prior to the expiration of the Due Diligence Period, regardless of whether Buyer has delivered the Approval Notice, Buyer will be deemed to have
disapproved the Property and to have exercised its right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section 7, in which case this Agreement shall
automatically terminate as of the expiration of the Due Diligence Period and the Initial Deposit, together with all interest earned thereon, shall be returned to
Buyer. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, Buyer may elect, at any time prior to the expiration of the Due Diligence Period, for any
reason or no reason, to terminate this Agreement, upon which termination the Deposit and all interest earned thereon shall be refunded to Buyer and the parties
shall have no further obligation to each other excepts for those obligations which expressly survive such termination.

8. Acceptance of Property “As Is” . ACKNOWLEDGING BUYER’S OPPORTUNITY TO INSPECT AND INVESTIGATE THE PROPERTY AS
PROVIDED IN THIS AGREEMENT, BUYER AGREES TO TAKE THE PROPERTY “AS IS” WITH ALL FAULTS AND CONDITIONS THEREON,
SUBJECT ONLY TO THE EXPRESS REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS OF SELLER SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT
OR THE OTHER AGREEMENTS ENTERED INTO BETWEEN BUYER AND SELLER AS OF THE CLOSING DATE. ANY INFORMATION,
REPORTS, STATEMENTS, DOCUMENTS OR RECORDS (“DISCLOSURES ”) PROVIDED OR MADE TO BUYER OR ITS CONSTITUENTS BY
SELLER, ITS AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES OR EMPLOYEES CONCERNING THE PROPERTY SHALL NOT CONSTITUTE
REPRESENTATIONS OR
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WARRANTIES. BUYER SHALL NOT RELY ON SUCH DISCLOSURES BUT, RATHER, BUYER SHALL RELY SOLELY ON ITS OWN
INSPECTION OF THE PROPERTY AND THE EXPRESS REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS OF SELLER IN THIS
AGREEMENT. ACCORDINGLY, BUYER’S DELIVERY OF THE APPROVAL NOTICE PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 7 (DUE
DILIGENCE PERIOD) ABOVE, SHALL CONSTITUTE BUYER’S ACKNOWLEDGMENT AND AGREEMENT TO THE FOLLOWING: (i) BUYER
HAS REVIEWED, EVALUATED AND VERIFIED THE DISCLOSURES AND DOCUMENTS AND HAS CONDUCTED ALL INSPECTIONS,
INVESTIGATIONS, TESTS, ANALYSES, APPRAISALS AND EVALUATIONS OF THE PROPERTY (INCLUDING FOR TOXIC OR HAZARDOUS
MATERIALS, SUBSTANCES OR WASTES (DEFINED AND REGULATED AS SUCH PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 25316 AND 25501 OF THE
CALIFORNIA HEALTH & SAFETY CODE, THE RESOURCE CONSERVATION AND RECOVERY ACT, THE COMPREHENSIVE
ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSE COMPENSATION AND LIABILITY ACT OF 1980, AS AMENDED (“CERCLA” ) OR ANY SIMILAR LAWS AND
ALL REGULATIONS PROMULGATED THEREUNDER)) AS BUYER CONSIDERS NECESSARY OR APPROPRIATE TO SATISFY ITSELF
FULLY WITH RESPECT TO THE CONDITION AND ACCEPTABILITY OF THE PROPERTY (ALL OF SUCH INSPECTIONS, INVESTIGATIONS
AND REPORTS BEING HEREIN COLLECTIVELY CALLED THE “INVESTIGATIONS”); (ii) SELLER HAS PERMITTED BUYER ACCESS TO
THE PROPERTY AND HAS DELIVERED TO, OR MADE AVAILABLE TO, BUYER ALL OF THE MATERIALS REFERENCED IN SECTION 4
(INCLUDING THE DOCUMENTS AND MATERIALS IDENTIFIED ON EXHIBIT B) (COLLECTIVELY, THE “DOCUMENTS ”); AND (iii) BUYER
HAS COMPLETED ITS DUE DILIGENCE WITH RESPECT TO THE PROPERTY AND THE DOCUMENTS TO ITS SATISFACTION, IS
THOROUGHLY FAMILIAR WITH THE PHYSICAL CONDITION OF THE PROPERTY, AND SUBJECT ONLY TO THE EXPRESS
REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS OF SELLER IN THIS AGREEMENT OR THE OTHER AGREEMENTS ENTERED
INTO BETWEEN BUYER AND SELLER AS OF THE CLOSING DATE, IS ACQUIRING THE PROPERTY BASED EXCLUSIVELY UPON ITS
OWN INVESTIGATIONS AND INSPECTIONS OF THE PROPERTY AND THE DOCUMENTS.
FURTHER, BUYER’S DELIVERY OF THE APPROVAL NOTICE PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 7 (DUE DILIGENCE
PERIOD) ABOVE, SHALL CONSTITUTE BUYER’S ACKNOWLEDGMENT AND AGREEMENT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION 8
AND THAT, REGARDLESS OF THE CONTENT OF ANY OF THE DOCUMENTS OR ANY STATEMENTS THAT SELLER, ITS AGENTS,
EMPLOYEES, OFFICERS, CONTRACTORS, PARTNERS OR MEMBERS MAY HAVE MADE TO BUYER, ITS AGENTS, EMPLOYEES,
OFFICERS, CONTRACTORS, PARTNERS OR MEMBERS PRIOR TO OR DURING THE DUE DILIGENCE PERIOD, OTHER THAN THE
EXPRESS REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS OF SELLER IN THIS AGREEMENT AND THE OTHER AGREEMENTS
ENTERED INTO BY AND BETWEEN BUYER AND SELLER AS OF THE CLOSING DATE, SELLER HAS NOT MADE, DOES NOT MAKE
AND SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ANY REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, PROMISES, COVENANTS, AGREEMENTS OR GUARANTIES
OF ANY KIND OR CHARACTER WHATSOEVER, WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, ORAL OR WRITTEN, PAST, PRESENT OR FUTURE,
OF, AS TO,
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CONCERNING OR WITH RESPECT TO: (1) THE NATURE, QUALITY OR CONDITION OF THE PROPERTY, INCLUDING, WITHOUT
LIMITATION, THE WATER, SOIL AND GEOLOGY; (2) THE INCOME TO BE DERIVED FROM THE PROPERTY; (3) THE SUITABILITY OF THE
PROPERTY FOR ANY AND ALL ACTIVITIES AND USES THAT BUYER MAY CONDUCT THEREON; (4) THE COMPLIANCE OF OR BY THE
PROPERTY OR ITS OPERATION WITH ANY LAWS, RULES, ORDINANCES OR REGULATIONS OF ANY APPLICABLE GOVERNMENTAL
AUTHORITY OR BODY; (5) THE HABITABILITY, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OF THE PROPERTY; OR
(6) ANY OTHER MATTER WITH RESPECT TO THE PROPERTY. BUYER SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ANY REPRESENTATIONS REGARDING
TERMITES OR WASTES, AS DEFINED BY THE U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY REGULATIONS AT 40 C.F.R., OR ANY
HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCE, AS DEFINED BY CERCLA AND REGULATIONS PROMULGATED THEREUNDER.
EXCEPT WITH RESPECT TO HAZARDOUS MATERIALS THAT WERE DISCHARGED, RELEASED OR DISPOSED BY SELLER OR ITS
MEMBERS, MANAGERS, PARTNERS, DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, SHAREHOLDERS, TRUSTEES, BENEFICIARIES, AGENTS, EMPLOYEES
AND REPRESENTATIVES IN VIOLATION OF APPLICABLE ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS AS OF THE DATE OF SUCH DISCHARGE, DISPOSAL
OR RELEASE, BUYER, ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, HEREBY WAIVE, RELEASE AND AGREE NOT TO MAKE ANY CLAIM OR BRING
ANY COST RECOVERY ACTION OR CLAIM FOR CONTRIBUTION OR OTHER ACTION OR CLAIM AGAINST SELLER (COLLECTIVELY OR
INDIVIDUALLY) OR ITS RELATED ENTITIES, AND ITS AND THEIR MEMBERS, MANAGERS, PARTNERS, DIRECTORS, OFFICERS,
SHAREHOLDERS, TRUSTEES, BENEFICIARIES, AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, REPRESENTATIVES, SUCCESSORS, HEIRS AND ASSIGNS
(COLLECTIVELY, “SELLER AND ITS AFFILIATES ”) BASED ON, (x) ANY FEDERAL, STATE, OR LOCAL ENVIRONMENTAL OR HEALTH
AND SAFETY LAW OR REGULATION, INCLUDING CERCLA OR ANY STATE EQUIVALENT, OR ANY SIMILAR LAW NOW EXISTING OR
HEREAFTER ENACTED; (y) ANY DISCHARGE, DISPOSAL, RELEASE, OR ESCAPE OF ANY CHEMICAL, OR ANY MATERIAL
WHATSOEVER, ON, AT, TO, OR FROM THE PROPERTY; OR (z) ANY CONDITIONS WHATSOEVER ON, IN, UNDER, OR IN THE VICINITY
OF THE PROPERTY. EXCEPT WITH RESPECT TO ANY CLAIMS ARISING OUT OF ANY BREACH OF COVENANTS, REPRESENTATIONS OR
WARRANTIES EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT OR THE DOCUMENTS EXECUTED IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
AGREEMENT, BUYER, ON BEHALF OF ITSELF AND ITS PARTNERS, MEMBERS, MANAGERS, DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, SHAREHOLDERS,
TRUSTEES, BENEFICIARIES, AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, REPRESENTATIVES, SUCCESSORS, HEIRS AND ASSIGNS HEREBY RELEASES,
SELLER AND ITS AFFILIATES, FROM ANY AND ALL CLAIMS OF ANY KIND WHATSOEVER, KNOWN OR UNKNOWN, WITH RESPECT
TO ANY ASPECT OF THE PROPERTY, INCLUDING THE FOREGOING MATTERS, AND SPECIFICALLY WAIVES WITH RESPECT TO ALL
SUCH MATTERS THE PROVISIONS OF CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE SECTION 1542, AND ANY COMPARABLE LAW APPLICABLE IN THE
STATE WHERE THE PROPERTY IS LOCATED, REGARDING THE MATTERS COVERED BY A GENERAL RELEASE, WHICH PROVIDES AS
FOLLOWS:
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“A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS WHICH THE CREDITOR DOES NOT KNOW OR SUSPECT TO EXIST IN HIS
OR HER FAVOR AT THE TIME OF EXECUTING THE RELEASE, WHICH IF KNOWN BY HIM OR HER MUST HAVE MATERIALLY
AFFECTED HIS OR HER SETTLEMENT WITH THE DEBTOR.”
BUYER AND SELLER REPRESENT AND ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THIS SECTION 8 WAS EXPLICITLY NEGOTIATED AND BARGAINED FOR
AS A MATERIAL PART OF BUYER’S CONSIDERATION BEING PAID. Terms appearing in this Section 8 in all capital letters that have been defined
elsewhere in this Agreement shall have the meanings set forth in such definitions.

9. Conditions to Closing .
9.1 Buyer’s Conditions to Closing . Buyer’s obligation to purchase the Property is conditioned upon the satisfaction of each of the following conditions each
of which is for the exclusive benefit of Buyer. Buyer may, at any time or times before the Closing, waive one or more of the following conditions, but only in
writing and any such waiver will not affect its rights and remedies with respect to the remaining conditions:
(a) Buyer shall have received the requisite Tenant Estoppels as and when required under Section 4.5(b). If Buyer has not received the requisite Tenant
Estoppels at least six (6) business days prior to the Closing Date, Buyer shall have the one-time right to extend the Closing Date by an additional two
(2) business days by delivering written notice of Buyer’s exercise of such right to Seller no later than the date five (5) business days prior to the Closing Date.
If Buyer timely exercises such right, the Closing Date shall be extended by two (2) business days.
(b) The Rent Roll and Delinquency Report (as defined in Sections 11.1(h) and 11.1(i) below) shall have been updated to a date not earlier than three
(3) business days prior to the Closing Date, and such updated Rent Roll and Delinquency Report shall not identify any material adverse change (with a change
being deemed to be material and adverse only if the change would expose Buyer to damages or a loss of income in excess of Thirty-Five Thousand and
No/100ths Dollars ($35,000)) in the aggregate as to all Leases with the Government Tenants and Major Non-Governmental Tenants as compared to the status
of such Leases as shown on the Rent Roll and Delinquency Report delivered to Buyer two (2) business days prior to the expiration of the Due Diligence Period
pursuant to Sections 11.1(h) and 11.1(i) below;

(c) No Government Tenant or Major Non-Government Tenant shall have notified Seller or Buyer of any material adverse change in its Tenant Estoppel
(with a change being deemed to be material and adverse only if the change would expose Buyer to damages or a loss of income in excess of Thirty-Five
Thousand and No/100ths Dollars ($35,000) in the aggregate as to all such Tenant Estoppels); no proceedings under any federal or state bankruptcy or
insolvency laws have been commenced by or against any of the Major Non-Government Tenants that have not been terminated; no general assignment for the
benefit of creditors has
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been made by any of the Major Non-Government Tenants; and no trustee or receiver of any of the Major Non-Government Tenants’ property has been
appointed;

(d) Seller’s performance of all its obligations hereunder;

(e) The truth, completeness and accuracy, in all material respects, of each representation and warranty made by Seller as of the Contract Date and the
Closing; and

(f) The issuance at Closing of the Title Policy.
(g) Delivery of the fully executed amendments (the “ State Lease Amendments ”) to each of the Leases with the State of California, acting by and
through the Director of the Department of General Services, extending the term of such Leases, with such extension term commencing on the date the
amendments are executed, for an additional eight (8) years (Buyer acknowledging that after the 53 rd month of such extension term the State will have an
ongoing termination right exercisable with thirty (30) days notice).

9.2 Seller’s Conditions . Seller’s obligation to sell the Property is conditioned upon the satisfaction of each of the following conditions, each of which is for
the exclusive benefit of Seller. Seller may, at any time before the Closing, waive one or more of the following conditions, but only in writing and any such
waiver will not affect its rights and remedies with respect to the remaining conditions:
(a) The performance by Buyer of all its obligations hereunder; and

(b) The truth, completeness and accuracy, in all material respects, of each representation and warranty made by Buyer as of the Contract Date and the
Closing.

9.3 Seller Default . If, at the Closing, (i) Seller is in default of any of its obligations hereunder, or (ii) any of Seller’s representations or warranties set forth
in Section 11.1 are untrue, inaccurate or incorrect when given, in any material respect, or (iii) the Closing otherwise fails to occur by reason of Seller’s failure
or refusal to perform its obligations hereunder in a prompt and timely manner, and any such circumstance described in any of clauses (i), (ii) or
(iii) continues for five (5) business days after written notice from Buyer to Seller, which written notice shall detail such default, untruth or failure, as
applicable, then Buyer shall have the right, to elect, as its sole and exclusive remedy, to (a) terminate this Agreement by written notice to Seller, promptly after
which (A) the Deposit and all interest earned thereon shall be returned to Buyer, and (B) Seller shall pay to Buyer any title, escrow, legal and inspection fees
incurred by Buyer and any other expenses incurred by Buyer in connection with its review of the Property, and the negotiation, documentation and
performance of this Agreement (including, without limitation, the fees and expenses of environmental and engineering consultants, legal and accounting fees
and expenses, and other out-of-pocket third party charges related to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and their consummation), subject to a cap
of $125,000 (collectively, “Buyer’s Costs ”), in which case, the parties shall have no further rights or obligations hereunder except for obligations which
expressly survive the termination of this Agreement, or (b) waive the condition and proceed to Closing, or (c) seek specific performance
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of this Agreement by Seller. As a condition precedent to Buyer exercising any right it may have to bring an action for specific performance hereunder, Buyer
must commence such an action within ninety (90) days after the occurrence of Seller’s default. Buyer agrees that its failure to timely commence such an action
for specific performance within such ninety (90) day period shall be deemed a waiver by it of its right to commence an action for specific performance as well
as a waiver by it of any right it may have to file or record a notice of lis pendens or notice of pendency of action or similar notice against any portion of the
Property. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if by Seller’s affirmative acts the remedy of specific performance has been rendered unavailable to Buyer, Buyer
shall have and may assert against Seller as a result of Seller’s default under this Agreement, any and all rights available at law and in equity, without
imposition of the limitations in this Agreement on Buyer’s rights, remedies or damages.

10. Closing.

10.1 Closing Date . The consummation of the purchase and sale of the Property (the “ Closing”) shall be held at the offices of the Title Company (or at such
other location as the parties may agree) on January 19, 2011 (the “ Closing Date ”). Buyer acknowledges that Seller is required to defease the existing
securitized loan that is currently secured by a deed of trust on the Property (the “ Existing Loan ”) in order to deliver title to the Property free and clear of the
lien of such deed of trust (the “ Existing Deed of Trust”). In connection with such defeasance, Buyer agrees to cooperate in good faith with all usual and
customary requirements imposed by the master loan servicer, bond trustee and ratings agency for such defeasance transaction so long as Buyer is not required
to incur any additional liability or expense in so doing. The parties acknowledge that, in light of the defeasance, the Grant Deed (as defined below) will be
recorded, and the Seller’s proceeds will be disbursed, one day after the Closing Date. Seller may extend the Closing Date by up to three (3) business days to
accommodate such defeasance. Seller shall be solely responsible for any and all costs, fees and expenses in connection with such defeasance, and any yield
maintenance or other premiums or payments required in connection with such defeasance. The defeasance of the Existing Loan shall not be a condition to
Seller’s obligation to close the Escrow.
10.2 Seller’s Deposits Into Escrow . Seller shall deposit the following documents and items into escrow at least one (1) business day prior to the Closing
Date:

(a) a duly executed and acknowledged grant deed conveying the Property and Improvements to Buyer in the form of the attached Exhibit F, together with
a separate transfer tax affidavit (the “ Grant Deed ”);

(b) a duly executed bill of sale and general assignment, in the form of the attached Exhibit G (the “Assignment ”), transferring the Personal Property,
Leases, Service Contracts, Approvals, Warranties and Intangible Property to Buyer;

(c) an affidavit in the form of the attached Exhibit H stating that Seller is not a “foreign person” under IRC Section 1445(f)(3);
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(d) tenant notice letters for all tenants at the Property informing them of the sale of the Property and assignment of the Leases to Buyer, in the form of
attached Exhibit I;

(e) a duly executed affidavit in the form required by the California Franchise Tax Board certifying that no withholding of any amount of the Purchase
Price is required in connection with the Closing;

(f) Seller’s share of the closing costs as described in Section 10.5 below or instructions to Title Company to deduct same from the Purchase Price;
(g) an owner’s title affidavit in the form of the attached Exhibit J;

(h) the Rent Roll, updated to a date no earlier than three (3) business days prior to the Closing Date, certified by Seller as true and correct;
(i) A certification that all of the representations and warranties set forth in Section 11.1 remain true, complete and accurate, except to the extent of any
exceptions to such representations and warranties identified in such certification; and

(j) such other documents as may reasonably be required to complete the Closing.

10.3 Seller’s Deliveries to Buyer Outside of Escrow . Seller shall deliver to Buyer at the Property (except as otherwise provided below) on or before the
Closing Date, all of the following:
(a) originals, to the extent in Seller’s possession or control, or copies of the Leases and the Service Contracts, which copies are certified by Seller as true
and correct;

(b) the original Estoppel Certificates, duly executed by the Tenants, which shall be delivered to Buyer’s counsel, James Moore of Boutin Jones Inc.;

(c) all keys and security codes to the Property;
(d) electronic or hard copies of all Documents; and
(e) originals or copies of all Lease files and Property files, including all records, instruments and correspondence related to maintenance and repair, the
Tenants, the Leases, construction and alteration of the Improvements (base building and tenant improvements), and operation of the Property, to the extent
such files are located at the Real Property.

10.4 Buyer’s Deposits into Escrow . Buyer shall deposit the following into escrow at least one (1) business day prior to the Closing Date:
(a) the balance of the Purchase Price in immediately available funds;
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(b) Buyer’s share of the closing costs as described in Section 10.5. below;
(c) two original duly executed counterparts of the Assignment; and

(d) such other documents as may reasonably be required to complete the Closing.

10.5 Adjustment and Proration . All accounts receivable and all accounts payable shall be prorated between Buyer and Seller as of 12:01 a.m. on the
Closing Date, on the basis of a 365-day year, with Seller entitled to all accounts receivable and responsible for all accounts payable with respect to the period
prior to such date and time, and with Buyer entitled to all accounts receivable and responsible for all accounts payable with respect to the period from and after
such date and time. Prior to Closing, Seller shall prepare for review, comment and agreement by Buyer a proration statement for the Property, and each party
shall be credited or charged at the Closing, in accordance with the following:
(a) Accounts Receivable . Seller shall account to Buyer for any Rents actually collected by Seller for the month in which the Closing occurs, and Buyer
shall be credited for its pro rata share applicable to the period from and after the Closing Date. For purposes of this Agreement, the term “ Rents” means and
includes Fixed Rents and Additional Rents; “ Fixed Rents ” means the periodic fixed rent payable by a Tenant under its Lease; and “ Additional Rents ” means
all amounts, other than Fixed Rents, due from any Tenant under any Lease, including without limitation, percentage rents, escalation charges for real estate
taxes, parking charges, marketing fund charges, reimbursement of operating expenses or common area expenses, maintenance escalation rents or charges, cost
of living increases or other charges of a similar nature, if any, and any additional charges and expenses payable under any Lease.

(b) Accounts Payable . For purposes of this Agreement, the term “ Expenses ” means all operating expenses normal to the operation and maintenance of
the Property, including without limitation real property taxes and assessments, current installments of any improvement bonds or assessments which are a lien
on the Property or which are pending and may become a lien on the Property, water, sewer and utility charges, amounts payable under any Service Contract
for any period in which the Closing occurs, permits, licenses and inspection fees. Expenses shall not include expenses which are of a capital nature.
(i) Prepaid Expenses . To the extent Expenses have been paid prior to the Closing Date for any part of the period on or after the Closing Date, Seller
shall account to Buyer for such prepaid Expenses, and Seller shall be credited for the amount of such prepaid expenses applicable to the period after the
Closing Date.
(ii) Unpaid Expenses . To the extent Expenses relating to the period prior to the Closing Date are unpaid as of the Closing Date but are ascertainable,
Buyer shall be credited for Seller’s pro rata share of such Expenses for the period prior to the Closing Date.
(iii) Service Contracts . Payments due under any Service Contracts shall be prorated as of the Closing Date, and Buyer shall be liable for all
payments accruing
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thereunder after the Closing. Seller shall be responsible for all payments under all contracts and agreements not assumed by Buyer

(c) Property Taxes. Seller shall be responsible for all real and personal property ad valorem taxes and special assessments applicable to the period prior
to the Closing Date; Buyer shall be responsible for all real and personal property ad valorem taxes and special assessments applicable to the period from and
after the Closing Date. With respect to any property tax appeal or reassessment filed by Seller for the current tax year or tax years (or portions thereof) prior to
the Closing, Seller shall be entitled to the full amount of any refund or rebate resulting therefrom applicable to the period before the Closing Date, except to the
extent such amounts are payable to, or otherwise accrue to the benefit of, the Tenants pursuant to the Leases, which amounts Seller shall promptly refund to
such Tenants.

(d) Utility Charges . All utility (including electricity, gas, water, sewer and telephone) charges will be prorated to the Closing Date as Expenses. All
refundable utility security deposits, if any, will be retained by Seller.
(e) Government Tenants. Buyer acknowledges that the Government Tenants pay Rents in arrears. Accordingly, Seller shall receive a credit at Closing for
the Rents that accrue under the Leases of the Government Tenants in the month that Closing occurs, to the extent any rents accrue under such Leases.

(f) Molina Rents and Reimbursements . If, as of the Closing Date, Seller is due any amounts from Molina under its Lease that are ascertainable, Seller
shall receive a credit at Closing for such amounts. Likewise, if any amounts are due and owing from Seller to Molina at Closing, Seller shall pay such
amounts to Molina at or before Closing. Any amounts that are due and owing from Seller to Molina after Closing shall be paid by Seller to Molina as and
when such amounts come due, after deduction for all amounts then due and owing to Seller by Molina or Buyer.
(g) Post-Closing . If the amount of any proration cannot be determined at the Closing, the adjustments will be made between the parties as soon after
Closing as possible, as follows:

(i) Non-delinquent Rents . If after the Closing either Buyer or Seller collects any non-delinquent Rents applicable to the month in which the Closing
occurred (or if Seller collects any Rents applicable to any month following the month in which the Closing occurred), such Rents shall be prorated as of the
Closing Date and paid to the party entitled thereto not later than five (5) business days following receipt, except to the extent such party received a credit at
Closing for such Rents.
(ii) Delinquent Rents for Month in which the Closing Occurred . If after the Closing Date either Buyer or Seller receives from any Tenant Rents that
were delinquent as of the Closing Date and that relate to the rental period in which the Closing occurred, then such Rents shall be applied in the following order
of priority: First, to reimburse Buyer for all out-of-pocket third-party collection costs actually incurred by Buyer in collecting
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such Rents; second, to satisfy such Tenant’s Rent obligations relating to the period after the Closing Date; and third, to satisfy such delinquent Rent
obligations relating to the period prior to the Closing Date. Buyer agrees to use commercially reasonable efforts to collect any such delinquent rents but Buyer
has no obligation to institute any collection action or otherwise incur any material cost in connection therewith. Seller shall have no right to pursue or continue
the collection of such delinquent Rents from any Tenant in occupancy as of the Closing Date, but Seller shall have the right to continue to prosecute any
collection proceedings that were initiated prior to the Closing against any tenant no longer in occupancy as of the Closing Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
if Molina owes any Rents for any period prior to Closing for which Seller did not receive a credit at Closing, Buyer shall pay all Rents received from Molina to
Seller until such Rents owed to Seller have been paid in full.

(iii) Expenses. With respect to any invoice received by Buyer or Seller after the Closing Date for Expenses that relate to the period in which the
Closing occurred, the party receiving such invoice shall give the other party written notice of such invoice, and the other party shall have thirty days to review
and approve the accuracy of any such invoice. If the parties agree that the Invoice is accurate and should be paid, the parties shall compute each party’s pro
rata share, and deliver a check for that amount in favor of the vendor.

(h) Survival of Obligations . The obligations of Seller and Buyer under this Section 10.5 shall survive the Closing.

10.6 Items Not to be Prorated . There shall be no prorations or adjustments of any kind with respect to:
(a) Insurance Premiums . Insurance Premiums shall not be prorated. Seller will terminate its coverages as of the Closing Date, and Buyer shall be
responsible for obtaining its own coverages as of the Closing Date.

(b) Delinquent Fixed Rents for Full Months Prior to the Month in which the Closing Occurred . Delinquent Fixed Rents with respect to Tenants under the
Leases applicable to months prior to the calendar month in which the Closing occurred shall remain the property of Seller, and Buyer shall have no claim
thereto whether collected by Seller or Buyer, before or after the Closing, and no responsibility of any kind with respect thereto except as specifically set forth
herein. Seller shall not take or continue to take collection measures from or after the Closing. Buyer agrees to use commercially reasonable efforts to collect any
delinquent Fixed Rents owed Seller, but Buyer has no obligation to institute any collection action or otherwise incur any material costs in connection therewith.
Except with respect to the Rents collected from Molina, Fixed Rents collected from Tenants after the Closing Date shall be applied in the following order of
priority: First, to reimburse Buyer for all out-of-pocket third-party collection costs actually incurred by Buyer in collecting such Rents; second, to satisfy
such Tenant’s Rent obligations relating to the period after the Closing Date; and third, to satisfy such delinquent Rent obligations relating to periods prior to the
Closing Date. In the event that Buyer collects any such delinquent Fixed Rents, Buyer shall apply such Fixed Rents as contemplated above and shall promptly
pay over to Seller any amounts properly owed to Seller.
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(c) Additional Rents Relating to Full or Partial Months Prior to the Closing Date . If Additional Rents relating to full or partial months prior to the Closing
Date are not finally adjusted between Seller and any Tenant until after the Closing Date, then any refund to which any Tenant may be entitled shall be the
obligation of Seller, and any additional amounts due from the Tenant for such period shall be the property of Seller. Buyer shall have no obligation with
respect to any such refund due to any Tenant and no claim to any such amounts due from any Tenant, except that Buyer shall promptly pay to Seller any
such delinquent Additional Rent amounts as it actually collects. If Seller receives any refund of expenses paid prior to the Closing and relating to a period prior
to the Closing, and such expenses were reimbursed in whole or in part by any Tenant, Seller shall refund to each Tenant its share of any such refund. Buyer
agrees to use commercially reasonable efforts to collect any such Additional Rents but Buyer has no obligation to institute any collection action or otherwise
incur any material cost in connection therewith.

(d) Security Deposits . Seller shall deliver to Buyer (or credit to Buyer at Closing) all prepaid rents, security deposits, letters of credit and other collateral
actually held by Seller or any of its affiliates or successors in interest under any of the Leases, to the extent not applied by Seller prior to the Closing Date to the
extent permitted under the Leases. From and after the Contract Date, Seller shall not apply any security deposits without the Buyer’s prior written consent.
(e) Survival. The terms of Section 10.6 shall survive the Closing.

10.7 Closing Costs . The Closing costs for this transaction shall be paid as follows:
(a) Seller shall pay (i) any brokerage fees to the Selling Broker as required under Section 18.7 below; (ii) one-half of all transfer and sales taxes
(including documentary transfer taxes); (iii) all costs, expenses and fees related to the defeasance of the Existing Loan; (iv) the cost of the Title Policy, up to
but not to exceed an amount equal to the cost of owner’s standard CLTA coverage title insurance in the amount of the Purchase Price; (v) one-half of the escrow
fees; and (vi) all other costs and expenses allocated to Seller pursuant to this Agreement.

(b) Buyer shall pay (i) any brokerage fees to the Buying Broker as required under Section 18.7 below; (ii) one half of all transfer and sales taxes
(including documentary transfer taxes); (iii) the increased cost of the Title Policy associated with ALTA extended coverage and endorsements requested by
Buyer (except for “gap” coverage); (iv) all recording fees (other than in connection with any documents recorded in connection with the defeasance of the
Existing Loan); (v) one-half of the escrow fees; and (vi) all other costs and expenses allocated to Buyer pursuant to this Agreement.
(c) All other costs shall be paid in accordance with customary practices in the County of Los Angeles.

10.8 Closing. Pursuant to Section 10.1 above, Title Company shall close the escrow for this transaction when it is in a position to issue the Title Policy
and has received from Seller
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and Buyer the items required of each in Sections 10.2 and 10.4 above. Title Company shall close escrow by doing the following:
(a) Recording the Grant Deed in the Official Records of the County of Los Angeles;

(b) Delivering to Buyer the Title Policy, the original documents and items listed in Section 10.2 above, and a closing statement for the escrow consistent
with this Agreement and signed by Buyer and Seller (the “ Closing Statement ”), and any refund due Buyer; and
(c) Delivering to Seller the amount due Seller as shown on the Closing Statement, the original documents listed in Section 10.4 above, and a signed
original of Seller’s Closing Statement.

10.9 Possession . Seller shall deliver possession of the Property to Buyer on the Closing Date, subject to the rights of the Tenants under the Leases.
11. Representations and Warranties.
11.1 Representations and Warranties of Seller . Seller hereby makes the following representations and warranties to Buyer, which representations and
warranties shall survive the Closing, and all of which (i) are material and are being relied upon by Buyer, and (ii) are true, complete and accurate as of the
date hereof.
(a) Organization. Seller is a limited liability company, duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Delaware,
and qualified to do business, and in good standing, in the State of California.

(b) Authorization . This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed, and delivered by Seller; the obligations of Seller under this Agreement are legal,
valid, and binding obligations of Seller; and this Agreement does not, and at the time of Closing will not, (i) violate or conflict with the organizational
documents of Seller or any member of Seller acting on Seller’s behalf, (ii) violate or conflict with any judgment, decree, or order of any court applicable to or
affecting Seller, (iii) breach the provisions of, or constitute a default under, any contract, agreement, instrument, or obligation to which Seller is a party or by
which Seller is bound, or (iv) violate or conflict with any law, ordinance, or governmental regulation or permit applicable to Seller. All documents that are
executed by Seller and that are delivered to Buyer at the Closing will be, at the time of Closing, duly authorized, executed, and delivered by Seller; the
obligations of Seller under such documents will be, at the time of Closing, legal, valid, and binding obligations of Seller; and such documents will not, at the
time of Closing, (i) violate or conflict with the organizational documents of Seller or any member of Seller acting on Seller’s behalf, (ii) violate or conflict with
any judgment, decree, or order of any court applicable to or affecting Seller, (iii) breach the provisions of, or constitute a default under, any contract,
agreement, instrument, or obligation to which Seller is a party or by which Seller is bound, or
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(iv) violate or conflict with any law, ordinance, or governmental regulation or permit applicable to Seller.

(c) Bankruptcy . No proceedings under any federal or state bankruptcy or insolvency laws have been commenced by or against Seller which have not
been terminated; no general assignment for the benefit of creditors has been made by Seller; and no trustee or receiver of Seller’s property has been appointed.

(d) Not a Foreign Person . Seller is not a foreign person within the meaning of section 1445(f)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. Seller has read
and understands the provisions of sections 18662 and 18668 of the California Revenue and Tax Code (the “ Act”) and has a “permanent place of business”
within California within the meaning of the Act and the regulations and guidelines of the California Franchise Tax Board promulgated from time to time
pursuant thereto.
(e) Litigation. Except as disclosed in writing to Buyer, no litigation or proceeding is pending or, to Seller’s knowledge, threatened that affects the
Property or Seller’s ability to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

(f) Violations. Except as disclosed in writing to Buyer, Seller has not received any written notice of any violation by the Property of any applicable rule,
regulation, ordinance or government directive from any administrative or governmental authority that has not been cured.
(g) Leases; Landlord Defaults . There are no leases, rental agreements, license agreements or occupancy rights affecting the Property other than those
listed on Exhibit C and any matters of record. Seller has not received any written notice of a default by Seller from any Tenant under any of the Leases that
has not been cured, other than as set forth in the Tenant Estoppels.

(h) Rent Roll. Exhibit C contains a complete and correct list of all existing Leases, setting forth with respect to each Lease, the following minimum
information (the “ Rent Roll ”): the name of the Tenant, the number of the room or suite occupied by the Tenant, the square footage of the space, the
commencement and expiration dates, the amount of the monthly base rent payment, the current monthly additional rent payment for the Tenant share of Real
Property expenses and taxes, the amount of any security deposit or prepaid rent, and the amount and due date of any payments due Tenants in the future as
reimbursement for costs of tenant improvements. Seller shall deliver an updated Rent Roll to Buyer two (2) business days prior to the expiration of the Due
Diligence Period, which shall be accurate as of the date set forth on the updated Rent Roll (which date shall not be more than three (3) business days prior to the
date the updated Rent Roll is delivered to Buyer). Seller shall deliver a further updated Rent Roll to Buyer three (3) business days prior to the Closing Date,
which shall be accurate as of the date set forth on the updated Rent Roll (which date shall not be more than three (3) business days prior to the date the updated
Rent Roll is delivered to Buyer).
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(i) Delinquency Report . With the exception of delinquencies in the payment of rents which are set forth on the Rent Roll, Seller has not delivered written
notice to any Tenant of any default in the payment of rent under its Lease that has not been cured. Exhibit C contains a true and correct report (the
“Delinquency Report ”) showing the name of each Tenant as to which a delinquency currently exists as to the payment of Rents and specifying the amount of
each such delinquency, and the period of time during which each such delinquency has been outstanding. Seller shall deliver an updated Delinquency Report
to Buyer two (2) business days prior to the expiration of the Due Diligence Period, which shall be accurate as of the date set forth on the updated Delinquency
Report (which date shall not be more than three (3) business days prior to the date the updated Delinquency Report is delivered to Buyer). Seller shall deliver a
further updated Delinquency Report to Buyer three (3) business days prior to the Closing Date, which shall be accurate as of the date set forth on the updated
Delinquency Report (which date shall not be more than three (3) business days prior to the date the updated Delinquency Report is delivered to Buyer).
(j) Leases. The Documents contain a true, correct and complete copy of each Lease. Each such Lease constitutes the entire agreement between Seller and
each other party thereto. As of the Closing Date, no rents due under, or any other interest in, any of the Leases will be assigned to any party other than Buyer,
or otherwise pledged or encumbered in any way.

(k) Tenant Improvements; Lease Costs . Except as set forth in Exhibit C, all of the improvements to be constructed by Seller under each of the Leases,
have been fully completed and paid for. Except as set forth in Exhibit C , Seller has paid, in full, any leasing commissions, except for future contingent
obligations set forth in the Rent Roll.
(l) Service Contracts . Exhibit E contains a true and complete list of all Service Contracts. The Documents include true and complete copies of all
Service Contracts. To Seller’s knowledge, there have been no material defaults by any Party to a Service Contract which have not been cured. To Seller’s
knowledge, Seller is not in breach or default under any Service Contract which has not been cured. The Service Contracts constitute the entire agreement
between Seller and the other parties to the Service Contracts.

(m) Insurance . Exhibit L correctly identifies the policies of casualty and liability insurance currently in effect with respect to the Property. All premiums
for such insurance have been paid in full. Seller has not received any notice or request from any insurance company or Board of Fire Underwriters (or
organization exercising functions similar thereto) canceling or threatening to cancel any of said policies or denying or disputing coverage thereunder.

(n) Commission Agreements . Except as expressly set forth in the Leases or on Exhibit C, there are no lease brokerage agreements, leasing commission
agreements or other agreements providing for payments of any amounts for leasing activities or procuring tenants with respect to the Property, other than such
commissions as may be due on future lease renewals, expansions or extensions.
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(o) Environmental Releases . To Seller’s knowledge, no Hazardous Materials have been discharged, released or disposed of by Seller or its members,
managers, partners, directors, officers, shareholders, trustees, beneficiaries, agents, employees and representatives in violation of applicable Environmental
Laws as of the date of such discharge, disposal or release As used herein, the term “Hazardous Materials” means without regard to amount and/or
concentration any hazardous or toxic substance, material or waste wherever located expressly including but not limited to petroleum and petroleum derived
compounds, which is included within the definition of any hazardous or toxic material, substance or waste in any federal, state or local statutes, laws,
ordinances or regulations applicable to the Property, as well as any soils, ground or surface waters, wetlands or other environmental media which may be
contaminated by such Hazardous Material, including the following: (a) those substances defined as a hazardous substance, hazardous waste, hazardous
material, toxic substance, solid waste, pollutant or contaminant under any Environmental Law, as defined below; (b) those substances listed in the United
States Department of Transportation Table [49 CFR § 172.101], or by the Environmental Protection Agency, or any successor agency, as hazardous
substances [40 CFR Part 302]; (c) other substances, materials, and wastes that are regulated or classified as hazardous or toxic under federal, state or local
laws or regulations applicable to the Property; and (d) any material, waste, or substance that is a petroleum or refined petroleum product or byproduct,
asbestos, or any rock, including serpentine rock, which contains or might contain asbestos, chlorinated solvents, biologic waste, polychlorinated biphenyl,
designated as a hazardous substance pursuant to 33 USCS §1321 or listed pursuant to 33 USCS §1317, a flammable explosive, or a radioactive material. As
used herein, the term “Environmental Law” means all federal, state, local or municipal laws, rules, orders, regulations, statutes, ordinances, codes, decrees or
requirements of any government authority applicable to the Property and regulating, relating to, or imposing liability or standards of conduct concerning any
Hazardous Material, or pertaining to environmental conditions on or under the Property described in this Agreement, as now in effect, including, without
limitation, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 (CERCLA) [42 USCS §§9601 et seq.]; the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976 (RCRA) [42 USCS §§6901 et seq.]; the Clean Water Act, also known as the Federal Water Pollution Control Act
(FWPCA) [33 USCS §§1251 et seq.]; the Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA) [15 USCS §§2601 et seq.]; the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act
(HMTA) [49 USCS §§1801 et seq.]; the Insecticide, Fungicide, Rodenticide Act (7 USCS §§136 et seq.]; the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization
Act [42 USCS §§6901 et seq.]; the Clean Air Act [42 USCS §§7401 et seq.]; the Safe Drinking Water Act [42 USCS §§300f et seq.]; the Solid Waste
Disposal Act [42 USCS §§6901 et seq.]; the Surface Mining Control and Reclamation Act [30 USCS §§1201 et seq.]; the Emergency Planning and
Community Right to Know Act [42 USCS §§11001 et seq.]; the Occupational Safety and Health Act [29 USCS §§655 and 657]; the California
Underground Storage of Hazardous Materials Act [Health and Safety Code §§25280 et seq.]; the California Hazardous Materials Account Act [Health and
Safety Code §§25100 et seq.]; the California Safe Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement Act [Health and Safety Code §§24249.5 et seq.]; the PorterCologne Water Quality Act [Water Code §§13000 et seq.], together with any amendments of or regulations promulgated under the statutes cited above, and any
other federal, state or local law, statute, ordinance or regulation applicable to the Property now in effect that pertains to the regulation or protection of the
environment, including ambient air, soil, soil vapor, groundwater, surface water, or land use.
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For purposes of the representations and warranties given by Seller in this Agreement, the phrase “to Seller’s knowledge” or other terms regarding the knowledge
of Seller, shall mean the actual, current knowledge of Kennard P. Perry and Cory Kristoff, excluding constructive or imputed knowledge or duty of inquiry,
existing as of the Contract Date and the Closing. In no event shall there be any personal liability on the part of any of the foregoing individuals on account of
any breach of any representation or warranty of Seller herein.

11.2 Material Changes; Survival . Two (2) business days prior to the expiration of the Due Diligence Period, Seller shall deliver to Buyer a certification that
all of the representations and warranties set forth in Section 11.1 remain true, complete and accurate, except to the extent of any exceptions to such
representations and warranties identified in such certification. Further, if, prior to the Closing, Seller becomes aware of any fact or circumstance that would
materially change a representation or warranty of Seller in this Agreement, then Seller shall promptly, and in all events at least five (5) business days prior to
the Closing Date (which date shall be extended if necessary to give Buyer five business days to review such material change), give written notice of such
changed fact or circumstance to Buyer. If, prior to Closing, upon Seller’s notice or otherwise, Buyer becomes aware of the material untruth or inaccuracy of,
or facts or circumstances that would change materially, any representation or warranty of Seller in this Agreement that was true when made by Seller, then
Buyer shall have the option of: (i) waiving such breach of representation or warranty or material adverse change and completing its purchase of the Property
pursuant to this Agreement; (ii) reaching agreement with Seller to adjust the terms of this Agreement to compensate Buyer for such change; or (iii) terminating
this Agreement and receiving the return of the Deposit as Buyer’s sole remedy prior to Closing. All of Seller’s representations and warranties shall survive the
Closing; provided, however, that Seller’s representations and warranties set forth in Sections 11.1(d) through 11.1(i) shall survive the Closing only with
respect to written claims alleging a specific breach of one or more of those representations and warranties received by Seller prior to the first anniversary of the
Closing Date. Buyer shall not be entitled to any right or remedy for any inaccuracy in or breach of any representation, warranty or covenant under this
Agreement or any conveyance document unless the amount of damages, in the aggregate, proximately caused by all such breaches or inaccuracies exceeds Fifty
Thousand and No/100ths Dollars ($50,000). If Buyer’s aggregate damages exceed Fifty Thousand and No/100ths Dollars ($50,000), Buyer shall be entitled to
recover the entire first Fifty Thousand and No/100ths Dollars ($50,000) of damages suffered by Buyer. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this
Agreement the aggregate liability of Seller under this Agreement to Buyer for any and all actions or claims by Buyer with respect to these representations and
warranties that survive the Closing shall be limited to One Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($1,500,000).
11.3 Representations and Warranties of Buyer . Buyer hereby makes the following representations and warranties to Seller, which representations and
warranties shall survive the Closing and all of which (i) are material and are being relied upon by Seller, (ii) are true, complete and accurate in all respects as
of the date hereof and shall be true, complete and accurate as of the Closing Date, and (iii) shall survive the Closing:
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(a) Organization. Buyer is a limited liability company, duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Delaware,
and is qualified to do business, and is in good standing, in the State of California.

(b) Authorization . This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed, and delivered by Buyer; the obligations of Buyer under this Agreement are legal,
valid, and binding obligations of Buyer; and this Agreement does not, and at the time of Closing will not, (i) violate or conflict with the organizational
documents of Buyer or any member of Buyer acting on Buyer’s behalf, (ii) violate or conflict with any judgment, decree, or order of any court applicable to or
affecting Buyer, (iii) breach the provisions of, or constitute a default under, any contract, agreement, instrument, or obligation to which Buyer is a party or by
which Buyer is bound, or (iv) violate or conflict with any law, ordinance, or governmental regulation or permit applicable to Buyer. All documents that are
delivered to Seller at the Closing will be, at the time of Closing, duly authorized, executed, and delivered by Buyer; the obligations of Buyer under such
documents will be, at the time of Closing, legal, valid, and binding obligations of Buyer; and such documents will not, at the time of Closing, (i) violate or
conflict with the organizational documents of Buyer or any member of Buyer acting on Buyer’s behalf, (ii) violate or conflict with any judgment, decree, or
order of any court applicable to or affecting Buyer, (iii) breach the provisions of, or constitute a default under, any contract, agreement, instrument, or
obligation to which Buyer is a party or by which Buyer is bound, or (iv) violate or conflict with any law, ordinance, or governmental regulation or permit
applicable to Buyer.
(c) Bankruptcy . No proceedings under any federal or state bankruptcy or insolvency laws have been commenced by or against Buyer which have not
been terminated; no general assignment for the benefit of creditors has been made by Buyer; and no trustee or receiver of Buyer’s property has been appointed.

12. Risk of Loss; Insurance Proceeds; Condemnation .
12.1 Damage or Destruction . In the event of damage or destruction of the Improvements that occurs prior to the Closing Date that (i) would require the
expenditure of an amount less than one percent (1%) of the Purchase Price to repair, and (ii) does not permit any Government Tenant or Major NonGovernment Tenant to terminate its Lease (each of the foregoing events, a “ Material Damage Event ”), Buyer and Seller shall consummate this Agreement,
and Seller shall (a) assign to Buyer at Closing all rights to insurance proceeds on account of such damage or destruction, including any insurance proceeds
previously received by Seller with respect to such damage or destruction, and (b) pay to Buyer the amount of the deductible or retention applicable to such
damage or destruction under the insurance policy. In the event such damage or destruction results in or causes a Material Damage Event, Buyer or Seller may
elect to terminate this Agreement by written notice to the other within ten (10) days after the Material Damage Event. If neither party elects to terminate this
Agreement, Seller shall assign the insurance proceeds and pay the applicable deductible or retention to Buyer at Closing and Seller shall have no further
responsibility to Buyer for such damage or destruction. If either party elects to terminate this Agreement, the Deposit and all interest thereon shall be refunded
to Buyer and the parties shall no further obligation to each other except for those obligations which expressly survive the termination of this Agreement.
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12.2 Eminent Domain . If, prior to the Closing, a taking by eminent domain of all or any portion of the Land or Improvements is pending, and such taking
would (i) materially and adversely interfere with the use of the Property for its current permitted uses, (ii) materially and adversely affect ingress, egress or
parking for the Property or any Tenant’s access to its space, (iii) would permit the termination of any Lease by any Government Tenant or Major NonGovernment Tenant, or (iv) has a value exceeding one percent (1%) of the Purchase Price (each a “ Material Taking”), Buyer or Seller shall have the right, by
delivering written notice to the other within ten (10) days after Seller delivers written notice to Buyer of such pending taking, to terminate this Agreement, in
which event the Deposit and all interest thereon shall be returned to Buyer. If neither party elects to terminate this Agreement or if the taking would not result in
or cause a Material Taking, then this Agreement shall remain in effect, and Seller shall assign to Buyer at Closing its rights to the compensation and damages
due Seller on account of such taking (and will not settle any proceedings relating to such taking without Buyer’s prior written consent) and Seller shall have no
further responsibility to Buyer for such taking. Seller shall promptly (and in any event prior to the Closing) notify Buyer of any condemnation affecting the
Property.
The provisions of this Section 12 shall supersede the provisions of any applicable laws with respect to the subject matter of this Section 12.
13. Assignment . Buyer may not, at any time, assign this Agreement or Buyer’s rights or obligations under this Agreement, either directly or indirectly, without
the prior written consent of Seller, which Seller may withhold in its sole and absolute discretion. Subject to the foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding
upon, inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable by the parties hereto and their respective heirs, devisees, executors, administrators, legal representatives,
successors and assigns. In connection with any approved assignment, the assignee shall assume the assignor’s obligations hereunder, but assignor shall
nevertheless remain liable therefor.
14. Seller’s Covenants During Contract Period . Between Seller’s execution of this Agreement and the Closing, or earlier termination of this Agreement as
permitted hereunder, Seller shall (i) maintain the Property in good order, condition and repair, reasonable wear and tear excepted; (ii) not make any material
physical changes to the Improvements; (iii) continue to manage the Property in the manner in which it is being managed; (iv) not enter into any contracts or
agreements affecting the Property unless such contracts can be completed or terminated prior to the Closing or Buyer, in its sole discretion, agrees to assume
such contract or agreement as of the Closing Date, in which case such contracts shall be included within the term “ Service Contracts ”; (v) not enter into any
lease, amendment of lease or other agreement pertaining to the Property, or permit any tenant of the Property to enter into any sublease or assignment of lease,
except as provided in Section 14.1; (vi) after the end of the Due Diligence Period, not offer the Property for sale publicly or otherwise solicit, make, pursue,
negotiate or accept offers for the sale of the Property to or from any party; (viii) maintain the insurance described on Exhibit L in full force and effect, except as
otherwise approved by Buyer; and (ix) not dispose of or encumber the Property or any part thereof, except for dispositions of personal property in the ordinary
course of business. From and after the Contract Date, Seller shall provide Buyer with regular written updates as to the status of any leasing activity at the
Property.
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14.1 New Leases and Lease Amendments; Lease Expenses .
(a) If Seller desires to enter into any new lease affecting the Property (each a “ New Lease ”) or any termination, amendment, modification, expansion or
renewal of any existing Lease (each, a “ Lease Amendment ”), after the Contract Date but prior to Closing, Seller shall provide Buyer with a copy of the
proposed New Lease or Lease Amendment and a copy of the landlord’s anticipated improvement costs, tenant improvement allowances, brokerage
commissions and out-of-pocket costs and expenses in connection with the New Lease or Lease Amendment for Buyer’s review and approval, which approval
shall not be unreasonably withheld; provided, however, Buyer shall not have the right to disapprove any New Lease or Lease Amendment prior to the
expiration of the Due Diligence Period. Buyer shall advise Seller, in writing, whether Buyer approves or reasonably disapproves such proposed New Lease or
Lease Amendment within three (3) business days after Buyer’s receipt of the proposed New Lease or Lease Amendment; provided, however, if Buyer fails to
notify Seller within such three (3) business day period, Buyer shall be deemed to have approved the proposed transaction. If after the expiration of the Due
Diligence Period, Buyer reasonably disapproves of the proposed New Lease or Lease Amendment, Seller shall not enter into such New Lease or Lease
Amendment. If Buyer unreasonably disapproves of the proposed New Lease or Lease Amendment, Seller shall have the full right, power and authority to
execute such New Lease or Lease Amendment so long as Seller delivers to Buyer at least three (3) business days’ prior written notice of such execution;
provided, however, that after receipt of such notice, Buyer shall have the right to terminate this Agreement, upon written notice delivered to Seller within three
(3) business days after receipt of Seller’s notice of execution of such New Lease or Lease Amendment. If Buyer timely exercises such termination right, this
Agreement shall terminate and the Deposit and all interest thereon shall be returned to Buyer. In all other events, this Agreement shall remain in full force and
effect. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Seller acknowledges that it shall not enter into any extension or expansion of the AECOM Technology Corp. Lease
during the term of this Agreement without Buyer’s approval, which may be withheld at Buyer’s sole discretion.

(b) New Lease Expenses . If the Closing occurs, Buyer shall assume and be responsible for (and to the extent previously paid by Seller, reimburse Seller
on the Closing Date for) a pro rata portion of any and all improvement costs, tenant improvement allowances, brokerage commissions and out-of-pocket costs
and expenses actually paid or incurred by Seller (collectively the “ New Lease Expenses ”) arising out of or in connection with those New Leases and Lease
Amendments entered into by Seller pursuant to the foregoing provisions of this Section 14.1; such pro rata portion shall equal the product of (i) the New Lease
Expenses multiplied by (ii) a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of months of the lease term of the New Lease (or the number of months of the
term of any exercised extension period provided by any Lease Amendment, as applicable) remaining as of the Closing Date, and the denominator of which is
the total number of months of such lease term (or exercised extension period, as applicable). Seller shall be responsible for the remaining pro rata portion of the
New Lease Expenses. All New Leases and Lease Amendments entered into by Seller pursuant to this Section 14.1 shall be part of the Leases, shall be deemed
included on Exhibit C and shall be assumed by Buyer upon Closing.
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(c) Existing Lease Expenses . Seller shall be responsible for the cost of tenant improvement work and leasing commissions required to be paid under or
with respect to all Leases (and amendments thereto) entered into prior to the Contract Date and the cost of tenant improvement work, leasing commissions
required to be paid under or with respect to the State Lease Amendments and the scheduled rent-free periods set forth in the State Lease Amendments
(collectively, “Existing Lease Expenses ”), and if Seller fails to deliver Buyer evidence reasonably acceptable to Buyer confirming that such Existing Lease
Expenses have been paid prior to the Approval Date, Seller shall give Buyer a credit therefore at Closing which shall be calculated as follows: Buyer and Seller
shall attempt to agree on the amount of the credit for such Existing Lease Expenses during the Due Diligence Period, which amount shall equal 100% of the
anticipated post-Closing Existing Lease Expenses (“ Closing Leasing Credit ”). If Seller and Buyer can agree on the Closing Leasing Credit on or before the
Approval Date, such amount shall be credited against the Purchase Price due from Buyer at Closing. If Seller and Buyer cannot agree on the Closing Leasing
Credit at least five (5) business days prior to the expiration of the Due Diligence Period, then at least three (3) business days prior to the expiration of the Due
Diligence Period, Seller shall give Buyer written notice of the amount of the Closing Leasing Credit that Seller is willing to offer. If Buyer timely delivers the
Approval Notice, Buyer shall be deemed to have accepted Seller’s proposed Closing Leasing Credit and Buyer will proceed with the acquisition of the Property
under the terms of this Agreement. Except as otherwise agreed to by Seller and Buyer, the Closing Leasing Credit shall constitute Seller’s sole and only
obligations with respect to the Existing Lease Expenses, and as of the Closing Date Buyer shall assume all such obligations (as to leasing commissions only,
up to the amount set forth for leasing commissions in the Closing Lease Credit) and indemnify and hold Seller harmless with respect thereto (as to leasing
commissions only, up to the amount set forth for leasing commissions in the Closing Lease Credit).

15. ARBITRATION OF DISPUTES. IN THE EVENT OF ANY DISPUTE BETWEEN THE PARTIES ARISING UNDER OR RELATED TO THIS
AGREEMENT, SUCH DISPUTE, SHALL BE RESOLVED BY BINDING ARBITRATION BEFORE A SINGLE ARBITRATOR. SUCH
ARBITRATION MAY BE INITIATED BY EITHER PARTY BY DELIVERING WRITTEN NOTICE OF INTENT TO ARBITRATE TO THE OTHER
PARTY AND TO THE SAN FRANCISCO OFFICE OF THE AMERICAN ARBITRATION ASSOCIATION (“AAA”), WHICH NOTICE SHALL
DESCRIBE THE DISPUTE AND THE PARTY’S PROPOSAL FOR RESOLVING THE DISPUTE IN DETAIL. WITHIN THIRTY (30) DAYS AFTER
DELIVERY OF SUCH NOTICE EACH PARTY SHALL PROVIDE ALL RELEVANT DOCUMENTS AND MATERIALS THAT PERTAIN TO THE
DISPUTE. THE PARTIES SHALL FIRST ENDEAVOR TO AGREE ON THE ARBITRATOR, BUT IF THEY ARE UNABLE TO DO SO WITHIN
TEN (10) DAYS AFTER THE ARBITRATION HAS BEEN INITIATED, THE ARBITRATOR SHALL BE SELECTED, WITHIN THIRTY (30) DAYS
AFTER THE ARBITRATION WAS INITIATED, USING THE AAA PROCEDURES. THE ARBITRATOR SHALL BE A RETIRED SUPERIOR
COURT JUDGE OR A LICENSED, PRACTICING ATTORNEY WHO IS SUBSTANTIALLY FAMILIAR WITH THE REAL ESTATE LAW,
CUSTOM, PRACTICE, OR PROCEDURE, IN THE AREA IN WHICH THE PROPERTY IS LOCATED, PERTINENT TO THE DISPUTE BEING
ARBITRATED, IN EITHER CASE WITH NOT LESS THAN TWENTY (20) YEARS CONTINUOUS EXPERIENCE AS A JUDGE AND/OR REAL
ESTATE PRACTITIONER. IN
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ESTABLISHING WHETHER AN ARBITRATOR IS ABLE TO SERVE, THE PARTIES SHALL ADVISE HIM OR HER OF THE NAMES OF ALL
PARTIES AND THEIR AFFILIATES AND PRINCIPAL OFFICERS AND OWNERS, AND CONFIRM THAT THERE IS NO CONFLICT OF
INTEREST, WHICH FOR PURPOSES HEREOF SHALL MEAN NO BUSINESS OR PERSONAL CONNECTIONS WITH THE ARBITRATOR, OR
HIS OR HER FIRM, WITH ANY OF SUCH PARTIES EITHER CURRENTLY OR AT ANY TIME DURING THE IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING
THREE (3) YEARS. THE ARBITRATION SHALL BE CONDUCTED PURSUANT TO THE AAA’S COMMERCIAL ARBITRATION RULES, AS
MODIFIED BY THIS SECTION 15, OR BY SUCH OTHER ORGANIZATION AND RULES AS THE PARTIES MAY MUTUALLY AGREE UPON. IF
AAA IS NOT AVAILABLE AND THE PARTIES CANNOT AGREE ON AN ALTERNATE CHOICE, THE PROVISIONS OF CALIFORNIA CODE OF
CIVIL PROCEDURE SECTION 1280 ET. SEQ. SHALL APPLY. ALL ARBITRATION PROCEEDINGS SHALL BE CONFIDENTIAL, AND NEITHER
PARTY NOR THE ARBITRATOR MAY DISCLOSE THE CONTENT OR RESULTS OF ANY ARBITRATION HEREUNDER WITHOUT THE
WRITTEN CONSENT OF BOTH PARTIES. THE ARBITRATOR SHALL FOLLOW THE LAW (INCLUDING APPLICABLE STATUTES OF
LIMITATIONS) AND ALL RULES OF EVIDENCE UNLESS THE PARTIES STIPULATE TO THE CONTRARY. ANY PROVISIONAL REMEDY
(INCLUDING PRELIMINARY OR PERMANENT INJUNCTIONS AND WRITS OF ATTACHMENT AND POSSESSION) WHICH WOULD BE
AVAILABLE FROM A COURT OF LAW OR EQUITY SHALL BE AVAILABLE FROM THE ARBITRATOR PENDING COMPLETION OF THE
ARBITRATION. THE BENEFITED PARTY OF SUCH PROVISIONAL REMEDY SHALL BE ENTITLED TO ENFORCE SUCH REMEDY IN
COURT IMMEDIATELY, EVEN THOUGH A FINAL ARBITRATION AWARD HAS NOT YET BEEN RENDERED. WITHIN THIRTY (30) DAYS
AFTER HIS OR HER APPOINTMENT, THE ARBITRATOR SHALL HEAR AND DECIDE THE DISPUTE SUBMITTED TO ARBITRATION
HEREUNDER AND SHALL PROMPTLY PREPARE A WRITTEN DECISION ON THE MERITS OF THE MATTERS IN DISPUTE, WHICH
DECISION SHALL STATE THE FACTS AND LAW RELIED UPON AND THE REASONS FOR THE ARBITRATOR’S DECISION. THE
ARBITRATOR MAY, AT HIS OR HER DISCRETION, ELECT WHETHER TO MEET WITH THE PARTIES AND WHETHER TO CONDUCT A
HEARING ATTENDED BY ALL PARTIES; PROVIDED, HOWEVER, THAT FOR DISPUTES INVOLVING $50,000.00 OR MORE, THE
ARBITRATOR SHALL CONDUCT A HEARING. DISCOVERY SHALL BE ALLOWED IN ACCORDANCE WITH CALIFORNIA CODE OF CIVIL
PROCEDURE 1283.05. THE ARBITRATOR SHALL HAVE COMPLETE DISCRETION TO RESOLVE DISCOVERY DISPUTES, TO ORDER THE
PRODUCTION OF DOCUMENTS AND PRESENTATION OF WITNESSES AND TO LIMIT SUCH DISCOVERY, INCLUDING THE NUMBER
AND SCOPE OF DEPOSITIONS THAT MAY BE TAKEN BY THE PARTIES. PRIOR TO ISSUING HIS OR HER FINAL WRITTEN DECISION,
THE ARBITRATOR SHALL INFORM THE PARTIES, IN WRITING, OF THE ARBITRATOR’S EXPECTED DECISION ON THE MATTER AND
THE REASONS THEREFORE AND GIVE THE PARTIES FIVE (5) BUSINESS DAYS TO SUBMIT ADDITIONAL ARGUMENTS OR
INFORMATION, IN WRITING, TO THE ARBITRATOR AND THE OTHER PARTIES. THE AWARD OR DECISION OF THE ARBITRATOR,
WHICH MAY INCLUDE AN ORDER OF SPECIFIC
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PERFORMANCE, SHALL BE FINAL AND BINDING ON ALL PARTIES AND ENFORCEABLE IN ANY COURT OF COMPETENT
JURISDICTION; PROVIDED, HOWEVER, THAT THE AWARD MAY BE VACATED OR CORRECTED FOR ANY OF THE REASONS PERMITTED
UNDER AND PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE SECTIONS 1286.2 OR 1286.6. THE ARBITRATOR SHALL HAVE
NO AUTHORITY TO MODIFY ANY OF THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT. THE FEES AND EXPENSES OF THE ARBITRATOR AND THE
COSTS AND ATTORNEYS’ FEES OF THE PREVAILING PARTY SHALL BE PAID BY THE PARTY WHO IS NOT THE PREVAILING PARTY, AS
DEFINED IN SECTION 18.6 (ATTORNEYS’ FEES) AND DETERMINED BY THE ARBITRATOR IN ITS DECISION.

NOTICE : BY INITIALING IN THE SPACE BELOW YOU ARE AGREEING TO HAVE ANY DISPUTE ARISING OUT OF THE MATTERS
INCLUDED IN THE ‘ARBITRATION OF DISPUTES’ PROVISION DECIDED BY NEUTRAL ARBITRATION AS PROVIDED BY CALIFORNIA
LAW AND YOU ARE GIVING UP ANY RIGHTS YOU MIGHT POSSESS TO HAVE THE DISPUTE LITIGATED IN A COURT OR JURY TRIAL.
BY INITIALING IN THE SPACE BELOW YOU ARE GIVING UP YOUR JUDICIAL RIGHTS TO DISCOVERY AND APPEAL, UNLESS THOSE
RIGHTS ARE SPECIFICALLY INCLUDED IN THE ‘ARBITRATION OF DISPUTES’ PROVISION. IF YOU REFUSE TO SUBMIT TO
ARBITRATION AFTER AGREEING TO THIS PROVISION, YOU MAY BE COMPELLED TO ARBITRATE UNDER THE AUTHORITY OF THE
CALIFORNIA CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE. YOUR AGREEMENT TO THIS ARBITRATION PROVISION IS VOLUNTARY.
WE HAVE READ AND UNDERSTAND THE FOREGOING AND AGREE TO SUBMIT DISPUTES ARISING OUT OF THE MATTERS
INCLUDED IN THE ‘ARBITRATION OF DISPUTES’ PROVISION TO NEUTRAL ARBITRATION
Buyer

Seller

16. Indemnification . Each party hereby agrees to indemnify, defend, protect and hold harmless the other party from and against any and all claims, demands,
liabilities, costs and damages, including without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees (collectively, “ Claims”) suffered by the other party and resulting from
or arising out of all third-party tort claims and similar claims of the type that would typically be insured under a Commercial General Liability Insurance
Policy which are based on actions, facts or circumstances existing or occurring during the indemnifying party’s ownership of the Property, excluding any
Claims related to hazardous substances. All of the indemnifications set forth in this Section 16 shall survive the Closing and conveyance of the Property to
Buyer.

17. Miscellaneous .
18. Notice. All notices and any other communications permitted or required under this Agreement must be in writing and will be effective (i) immediately upon
delivery in person or by facsimile, provided delivery is made during regular business hours or receipt is acknowledged by
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a person reasonably believed by the delivering party to be employed by the recipient and that for all facsimiles, good and complete transmission is confirmed
by the sending facsimile machine and a copy of the notice is concurrently mailed pursuant to clause (iii) below; or (ii) upon the actual delivery as evidenced by
executed receipt of the recipient if delivered by a nationally recognized delivery service for overnight delivery, provided delivery is made during regular
business hours or receipt is acknowledged by a person reasonably believed by the delivering party to be employed by the recipient; or (iii) or the date shown on
the return receipt if delivered by the United States Postal Service, certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid and with the return receipt returned to
the sender marked as delivered, undeliverable or rejected. In the case of any notices sent pursuant to clauses (ii) or (iii) above, the sender shall also send a copy
of such notice by email, which email shall be sent no later than 6:00 p.m. (Pacific Time) on the date such notice is deposited with the delivery service or
United States Postal Service. The inability to deliver because of a changed address of which no notice was given, or rejection or other refusal to accept any
notice, shall be deemed to be the receipt of the notice as of the first date of such inability to deliver or rejection or refusal to accept. Any notice to be given by
any party hereto may be given by the counsel for such party. All notices must be properly addressed and delivered to the parties at the addresses set forth
below, or at such other addresses as either party may subsequently designate by written notice given in the manner provided in this Section 18:
Seller:

200 Oceangate, LLC
c/o The Swig Company, LLC
220 Montgomery Street, 20th Floor
San Francisco, CA 94104
Attn: Kennard P. Perry
Telephone: (415) 291-1140
Facsimile: (415) 291-8373
Email:
kperry@swigco.com

with copy to:

Farella Braun + Martel LLP
235 Montgomery Street
San Francisco, CA 94104
Attn: Anthony D. Ratner
Telephone: (415) 954-4448
Facsimile: (415) 954-4480
Email:
tratner@fbm.com

Buyer:
Prior to Closing:

Molina Healthcare, Inc.
300 University Avenue, Suite 100

Sacramento, CA 95825
Attn: General Counsel
Telephone: (916) 646-9193 x114663
Facsimile: (916) 646-4572
Email:
Jeff.Barlow@Molinahealthcare.com
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with copy to:

Boutin Jones Inc.

555 Capitol Mall, Suite 1500
Sacramento, CA 95814
Attn: James R. Moore
Telephone: (916) 321-4444
Facsimile: (916) 441-7597
Email:
jmoore@boutininc.com

After Closing:

Molina Center LLC
200 Oceangate, Suite 100
Long Beach, CA 90802
Attn: John Molina
Telephone: (562) 435-3666 x111128
Facsimile: (562) 495-7770
Email:
John.Molina@Molinahealthcare.com

with a copy to:
Molina Healthcare, Inc.
300 University Avenue, Suite 100

Sacramento, CA 95825
Attn: General Counsel
Telephone: (916) 646-9193 x114663
Facsimile: (916) 646-4572
Email:
Jeff.Barlow@Molinahealthcare.com

18.1 Headings. The headings used herein are for purposes of convenience only and should not be used in construing the provisions hereof.
18.2 Covenant of Further Assurances . The parties hereby agree to execute and deliver such other documents and instruments (including, without limitation,
additional escrow instructions in conformity with this Agreement), and to take such other actions, whether before or after Closing, as may reasonably be
required and which may be necessary to consummate this transaction and to otherwise effectuate the agreements of the parties hereto; provided that such
additional documents, instruments, or actions shall not impose upon the parties any obligations, duties, liabilities or responsibilities which are not expressly
provided for in this Agreement.
18.3 Entire Agreement . This document represents the final, entire and complete agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and
supersedes all other prior or contemporaneous agreements, communications or representations, whether oral or written, express or implied, including any
letters of intent, including that certain Confidentiality Agreement 200 & 300 Oceangate by and between Molina and Seller. The parties acknowledge and agree
that they may not and are not relying on any representation, promise, inducement, or other statement, whether oral or written and by whomever made, that is
not contained expressly in this Agreement. This Agreement may only be modified by a written instrument signed by representatives authorized to bind both
parties. Oral modifications are unenforceable.
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18.4 Partial Invalidity . If any term, covenant or condition of this Agreement or its application to any person or circumstances shall be held to be illegal,
invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement or the application of such term or provisions to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected,
and each term hereof shall be legal, valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law, unless an essential purpose of this Agreement would be defeated
by the loss of the illegal, unenforceable, or invalid provision. In the event of such partial invalidity, the parties shall seek in good faith to agree on replacing
any such legally invalid provisions with valid provisions which, in effect, will, from an economic viewpoint, most nearly and fairly approach the effect of the
invalid provision and the intent of the parties in entering into this Agreement.

18.5 No Waiver. No consent or waiver by either party to or of any breach or non-performance of any representation, condition, covenant or warranty shall
be enforceable unless in a writing signed by the party entitled to enforce performance, and such signed consent or waiver shall not be construed as a consent to
or waiver of any other breach or non-performance of the same or any other representation, condition, covenant, or warranty.
18.6 Attorneys’ Fees . In the event of any arbitration or litigation between the parties, whether based on contract, tort or other cause of action or involving
bankruptcy or similar proceedings, in any way related to this Agreement, the non-prevailing party shall pay to the prevailing party all reasonable attorneys’
fees and costs and expenses of any type, without restriction by statute, court rule or otherwise, incurred by the prevailing party in connection with any action
or proceeding (including arbitration proceedings, any appeals and the enforcement of any judgment or award), whether or not the dispute is litigated or
prosecuted to final judgment. The “prevailing party” shall be determined based upon an assessment of which party’s major arguments or positions taken in
the action or proceeding could fairly be said to have prevailed (whether by compromise, settlement, abandonment by the other party of its claim or defense,
final decision, after any appeals, or otherwise) over the other party’s major arguments or positions on major disputed issues.
18.7 Brokers and Finders . Neither party has had any contact or dealings regarding the Property, through any licensed real estate broker or other persons
who can claim a right to a commission or finder’s fee in connection with this transaction, except for CB Richard Ellis, Inc., representing Seller (the “ Selling
Broker”) and McKinney Advisory Group, Inc., representing Buyer (the “ Buying Broker ”). The parties agree that Seller shall pay a brokerage commission to
Selling Broker, pursuant to its separate agreement with the Selling Broker. The parties agree that Buyer shall pay any amount owing to Buying Broker
pursuant to its separate agreement with the Buying Broker. In the event that any other party claims a commission or finder’s fee in this transaction, the party
through whom the party makes its claim shall be responsible for said commission or fee and shall indemnify the other against all costs and expenses
(including reasonable attorneys’ fees) incurred in defending against the same. This indemnification obligation shall survive the Closing or termination of this
Agreement.

18.8 Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement.
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18.9 Governing Law; Forum . This Agreement is entered into and shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California
(without giving effect to its choice of law principles).
18.10 Interpretation . All parties have been represented by counsel in the preparation and negotiation of this Agreement, and this Agreement shall be
construed according to the fair meaning of its language. The rule of construction to the effect that ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party shall
not be employed in interpreting this Agreement. Unless the context clearly requires otherwise, (i) the plural and singular numbers shall each be deemed to
include the other; (ii) the masculine, feminine, and neuter genders shall each be deemed to include the others; (iii) “shall,” “will,” or “agrees” are mandatory,
and “may” is permissive; (iv) “or” is not exclusive; (v) “includes” and “including” are not limiting, absent express language to the contrary; (vi) “days”
means calendar days unless specifically provided otherwise; and (vii) “business day” means any day other than Saturday, Sunday, or any day that is an
“optional bank holiday” under Section 7.1 of the California Civil Code, whether or not any particular bank is open for business on such optional bank
holiday.

18.11 IRS Form 1099-S Designation . In order to comply with information reporting requirements of Section 6045(e) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,
as amended, and the Treasury Regulations thereunder, the parties agree (i) to execute an IRS Form 1099-S Designation Agreement to designate the Title
Company (the “ Designee ”) as the party who shall be responsible for reporting the contemplated sale of the Property to the Internal Revenue Service (the “ IRS”)
on IRS Form 1099-S; and (ii) to provide the Designee with the information necessary to complete Form 1099-S.
18.12 Third Party Beneficiaries . This Agreement has been made solely for the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted
assigns, and nothing in this Agreement is intended to, or shall, confer upon any other person any benefits, rights or remedies under or by reason of this
Agreement.

18.13 Compliance With Laws. Each party shall comply with all applicable laws, rules, regulations, orders, consents and permits in the performance of all
of their obligations under this Agreement.
18.14 Counterparts . This Agreement may be signed in any number of counterparts with the same effect as if the signatures to each counterpart were upon a
single instrument, and is intended to be binding when all parties have delivered their signatures to the other parties. Signatures may be delivered by facsimile
transmission or by e-mail in a portable document format ( pdf). All counterparts shall be deemed an original of this Agreement.

18.15 Exhibits. All Recitals and Exhibits referred to in this Agreement are incorporated herein by reference and shall be deemed part of this Agreement.
18.16 Authority. The individuals executing this Agreement on behalf of Seller and Buyer individually represent and warrant that he or she has been
authorized to do so and has the power to bind the party for whom they are signing.
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18.17 Exchange Transaction. Buyer agrees upon the request of Seller to cooperate with Seller in closing all or part of this transaction as an exchange
pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section 1031, provided that:
(a) Buyer shall incur no additional expense or liability in connection therewith and shall not be required to make any representations or warranties,
incur any personal liabilities or hold title to any property other than the Property;

(b) Seller shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold Buyer harmless from any claims, liabilities, demands, causes of action, judgments, expenses,
costs and attorneys’ fees in connection with such exchange or which result from Buyer’s compliance with this paragraph, which obligation shall survive the
Closing or termination of this Agreement; and
(c) The Closing is not extended or delayed by the exchange and the completion of the exchange is not a condition to Seller’s obligation to close the
Escrow.

18.18 Confidentiality . Buyer and Seller shall each maintain as confidential any and all material or information about the other, the terms of this
Agreement, and the Property, and shall not disclose such information to any third party, except, in the case of Buyer, to Buyer’s investment bankers, lender
or prospective lenders, insurance and reinsurance firms, accountants, attorneys, environmental and other consultants, as may be reasonably required for the
consummation of this transaction, as required by law or in connection with any arbitration or litigation between the parties, and except, in the case of Seller, to
Seller’s existing lender, attorneys, accountants and other professional consultants, as may be reasonably required for the consummation of this transaction, as
required by law or in connection with any arbitration or litigation between the parties. Neither party shall issue a press release or other public statement about
this Agreement or the transactions contemplated by this Agreement without the other party’s prior written consent, unless such release or statement is required
by law. Seller acknowledges that Buyer’s ultimate parent is a publicly traded company and that Buyer is, therefore, subject to laws and regulations regarding
the disclosure and dissemination of business information. Buyer acknowledges that in the event this Agreement terminates for any reason, Seller has the right
and the obligation to disclose to subsequent purchasers of the Property the price and material terms of this Agreement, and Buyer agrees that such disclosure is
a permitted disclosure under this Section 18.18.
[Signatures on following page ]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the Contract Date.

SELLER:

200 OCEANGATE, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

By:

200 Oceangate, Inc.,
a Delaware corporation
its Manager

By:
Jeanne R. Myerson
President

MOLINA CENTER LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

BUYER:

By:

Molina Healthcare, Inc., a Delaware corporation

By:
Name:
Title:

NOTE: BOTH PARTIES MUST INITIAL THE AGREEMENT AT SECTIONS 3.2 AND 15.
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EXHIBIT A

DESCRIPTION OF THE LAND

PARCELS 2 AND 3, AS SHOWN ON PARCEL MAP NO. 5196, IN THE CITY OF LONG BEACH, COUNTY OF LOS ANGLES, STATE OF
CALIFORNIA, FILED IN BOOK 71 PAGE 14 OF PARCEL MAPS, IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAID COUNTY.
EXCEPT THEREFROM, ALL OIL, GAS, HYDROCARBON SUBSTANCES AND MINERALS OF EVERY KIND AND CHARACTER LYING MORE
THAN 500 FEET BELOW THE SURFACE OF SAID LAND, TOGETHER WITH THE RIGHT TO DRILL INTO, THROUGH AND TO USE AND
OCCUPY ALL PARTS OF SAID LAND LYING MORE THAN 500 FEET BELOW THE SURFACE THEREOF FOR ANY AND ALL PURPOSES
INCIDENTAL TO THE EXPLORATION FOR AND PRODUCTION OF OIL, GAS, HYDROCARBON SUBSTANCES OR MINERALS FROM SAID
OR OTHER LANDS, BUT WITHOUT, HOWEVER, ANY RIGHT TO USE EITHER THE SURFACE OF SAID LAND OR ANY PORTION OF SAID
LAND WITHIN 500 FEET OF THE SURFACE FOR ANY PURPOSE OR PURPOSES WHATSOEVER AS RESERVED BY VARIOUS DEEDS OF
RECORD, AMONG THEM, BEING THE DEED RECORDED JULY 19, 1965 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 885 IN BOOK D2981 PAGE 153 OFFICIAL
RECORDS.
APN: 7278-003-035 and 7278-003-036

Exhibit A, Page 1

Exhibit 12.1
Molina Healthcare, Inc.

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges
Year Ended December 31,
2010

2009(1)

2008(1)
(Dollars in thousands)

2007

2006

$ 89,492

$ 38,157

$ 94,324

$ 92,722

$ 73,458

15,509
4,524

13,777
5,181
18,958
$57,115
$18,958

13,231
4,370
17,601
$111,925
$ 17,601
6.4
$ 17,481
25%
$
4,370

5,605
3,988
9,593
$102,315
$ 9,593
10.7
$ 18,127
22%
$ 3,988

2,353
2,682
5,035
$ 78,493
$ 5,035
15.6
$12,193
22%
$ 2,682

Earnings:
Income before income taxes
Add fixed charges:
Interest expense, including amortization of debt

discount and exp
Estimated interest portion of rental expense
Total fixed charges
Total earnings available for fixed charges

Fixed Charges from above
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges
Total rent expense
Interest factor
Interest component of rental expense

20,033

$109,525
$ 20,033
5.6
$ 25,134
18%
$ 4,524

3.0

$ 20,723
25%
$ 5,181

(1) Effective January 1, 2008 through December 31, 2009, income tax expense included both the Michigan business income tax, or BIT,
and Michigan modified gross receipts tax, or MGRT. Effective January 1, 2010, we have recorded the MGRT as a premium tax and
not as an income tax. We will continue to record the BIT as an income tax. For the years ended December 31, 2009, and 2008,
amounts for premium tax expense and income tax expense have been reclassified to conform to this presentation. The MGRT
amounted to $6.2 million, $5.5 million, and $5.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively.

Exhibit 21.1
LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES
Name
J u r i s d i c t i o n

Molina Information Systems, LLC, dba Molina Medicaid Solutions
Molina Healthcare of California
Molina Healthcare of California Partner Plan, Inc.
Molina Healthcare of Washington, Inc.
Molina Healthcare of Michigan, Inc.
Molina Healthcare of Utah, Inc.
Molina Healthcare of New Mexico, Inc.
Molina Healthcare of Ohio, Inc.
Molina Healthcare of Texas, Inc.
Molina Healthcare of Texas Insurance Company*
Molina Healthcare of Nevada, Inc.
Molina Healthcare Insurance Company
Alliance for Community Health LLC, dba Molina Healthcare of Missouri
Molina Healthcare of Florida, Inc.
Molina Healthcare of Virginia, Inc.
Abri Health Plan, Inc.

* Subsidiary of Molina Healthcare of Texas, Inc.

California
California
California
Washington
Michigan
Utah
New Mexico
Ohio
Texas
Texas
Nevada
Ohio
Missouri
Florida
Virginia
Wisconsin

o f

I n c o r p o r a t i o n

EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements (Forms S-8, No. 333-108317, No. 333-138552,
No. 333-153246, and No. 333-170571) pertaining to the Molina Healthcare, Inc. 2000 Omnibus Stock and Incentive Plan, 2002 Equity
Incentive Plan, and 2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, and in the Registration Statement (Form S-3, No. 333-155995) and related
Prospectus of Molina Healthcare, Inc. for the registration of $300,000,000 of its securities, of our reports dated March 8, 2011, with
respect to the consolidated financial statements of Molina Healthcare, Inc., and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting
of Molina Healthcare, Inc., included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2010.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP
Los Angeles, California

March 8, 2011

EXHIBIT 31.1
SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION
I, Joseph M. Molina, M.D., certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 of Molina Healthcare, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period for which this report is being prepared;
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based
on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Joseph M. Molina
Joseph M. Molina
Chief Executive Officer and President

March 8, 2011

EXHIBIT 31.2
SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION
I, John C. Molina, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010, of Molina Healthcare, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period for which this report is being prepared;
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based
on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ John C. Molina
John C. Molina, J.D.
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

March 8, 2011

EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the annual report of Molina Healthcare, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31,
2010 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), I, J. Mario Molina, M.D., Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

/s/ Joseph M. Molina
Joseph M. Molina, M.D.
Chief Executive Officer and President

March 8, 2011
This certification accompanies this report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not, except to the
extent required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed filed by the Company for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Molina
Healthcare, Inc. and will be retained by Molina Healthcare, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff
upon request.

EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the annual report of Molina Healthcare, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31,
2010 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), I, John C. Molina, J.D., Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

/s/ John C. Molina
John C. Molina, J.D.
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

March 8, 2011
This certification accompanies this report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not, except to the
extent required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed filed by the Company for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Molina
Healthcare, Inc. and will be retained by Molina Healthcare, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff
upon request.

